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TSMC VISION & CORE VALUES

TSMC's Vision
Our vision is to be the most advanced and largest technology and foundry services provider to fabless companies and IDMs, and in partnership
with them, to forge a powerful competitive force in the semiconductor industry.

To realize our vision, we must have a trinity of strengths:

{1) Be a technology leader, competitive with the leading IDMs

(2) Be the manufacturing leader

(3) Be the most reputable, service-oriented and maximum-total-benefits silicon foundry

TSMC Core Values

Integrity - Integrity is our most basic and most impaortant core value. We tell the truth. We believe the record of our accomplishments is the best
proof of our merit. Hence, we do not brag. We do not make commitments lightly. Once we make a commitment, we devote ourselves
completely to meeting that commitment. We compete to our fullest within the law, but we do not slander our competitors and we respect the
intellectual property rights of others. With vendors, we maintain an objective, consistent, and impartial attitude. We do not tolerate any form of
corrupt behavior or politicking. When selecting new employees, we place emphasis on the candidates' qualifications and character, not
connections or access.

Commitment - TSMC is cormmitted to the welfare of customers, suppliers, employees, shareholders, and society. These stakeholders all
contribute to TSMC's success, and TSMC is dedicated to serving their best interests. In return, TSMC hopes all these stakeholders will make a
mutual commitment to the Company.

Innovation - Innovation is the wellspring of TSMC's growth, and is a part of all aspects of our business, from strategic planning, marketing and
management, to technology and manufacturing. At TSMC, innovation means more than new ideas, it means putting ideas into practice.

Customer Partnership - At TSMC, customers come first. Their success is our success, and we value their ability to compete as we value our own.
We strive to build deep and enduring relationships with our customers, who trust and rely on us to be part of their success over the long term.
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TSMC Board of Directors
Back row, fram the left: Rick Tsai, FC. Tseng, Chwntay Shih
Front row, from the feft: Stan Shih, Carly Fiorina, Morns Chang, Peter Bonhield, Lester Thurow
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Dear Shareholders,

tn 2007, TSMC delivered its 6 consecutive annual growth in revenue
since 2001. Although we saw weakened demand in the first quarter
as customers worked down inventories, our revenue recovered in the
following gquarters with rising utilization rates and improving prof-

itability quarter over quarter.

Due to customers’ inventory correction that took place in early part of
2007, growth of the pure-play foundry segment of the semiconduc-
tor industry for the year was essentially flat, lagging the global semi-
conductor industry's estimated 4% growth. Nevertheless, in our 20
year as a public company, TSMC continued to enjoy a market share of
about 50% in the pure-play foundry segment it created, and
announced several major operational and technological develop-
ments. More importantly, better capital discipline in 2008 along with
increasing capital productivity and operating efficiencies should put
us in a stronger position for continued growth and higher profitabili-

ty in future years.
Financial Results

Revenue for 2007 totaled NT$322.63 hillion, a 1.6 percent increase
compared with NT$317.41 billion in 2006, Net income was
NT$109.18 billion, a decrease of 14 percent compared with net
income of NT$127.01 billion earned in 2006. Diluted earnings per
share decreased 15.8% to NT$4.14, compared with NT$4.92 for
2006. In US dollars, TSMC revenue for 2007 increased 0.7% to
US5$9.83 billion, while net income declined 15% to U$$3.23 billion.
Although TSMC registered another revenue record in 2007, a lower
average utilization rate and a larger deciine in average selling price

than in 2006 contributed to the decrease in earnings.

Among other highlights in 2007, TSMC achieved:
e Total average billing utilization of 93%

® Average gross profit margin of 44.1%

* Average operating profit margin of 34.6%

During the year, TSMC shipped more than 8 million eight-inch equiva-
lent wafers, representing about 7.5% of global IC wafer shipments.

Technology Innovations

TSMC continues to lead the semiconductor industry by pushing the
boundaries of advanced technology. Our investment and long-term
commitment in advanced technology development helps enable our
customers to bring their leading-edge products first to market. In
early 2007, TSMC delivered the foundry segment’s first functional 65-
nanometer embedded DRAM for customer product. In September of

the same year, TSMC completed 45-nanometer technology qualifica-
tion and entered production. In December, we announced, at the
IEEE International Electron Devices Meeting in Washington DC, our
development of the first 32-nanometer technology and the proven
functionality of the test chip. Customers continue to move toward
our mare powerful and efficient 65nm and 45nm technologies. in
2007, we have increased our market share at the 65nm node and fur-
ther solidified our leadership in advanced technologies. Meanwhile,
the number of customers we have engaged in discussions for TSMC's
45nm technology is higher at this stage than we experienced for

65nm at the same ramp point.
Awards

In 2007, TSMC continued to receive recognition and awards from
around the world as a corporate role model. Among the numerous
media surveys conducted in 2007, FinanceAsia, Corporate
Governance Asia, The Asset Magazine, and the IR Magazine all have
awarded TSMC as the Best Corporate Governance, while FinanceAsia
has also chosen TSMC as the Best Managed Company with the Best
CFO and the Best Investor Relations in the Taiwan region. IR Magazine
also awarded TSMC with the Grand Prix for Best Overall Investor
Relations, Best Investment Meetings, Best IR by a CEO, and Best IR
Officer. CommonWealth Magazine voted us the Most Admired
Company for the 11% consecutive time and also awarded us with

Excellence in Corporate Social Responsibility.
Corporate Development

The Company and Royal Philips Electronics announced in March 2007
a four-phased plan to facilitate an orderly exit by Philips from its
TSMC shareholding. In the third phase of the program completed on
December 31, 2007, the Company had repurchased a total of 800
million of its common shares over the open market from the Taiwan
Stock Exchange, accounting for approximately 3.03% of its total out-
standing shares, at an average price of NT$60.58 per share. The

repurchased shares will be cancelled.

TSMC increased to 37 percent its ownership of outstanding shares of
Vanguard International Semiconductor Corporation. We expect the
investment will strengthen the Company’s business alliance with

Vanguard and advance our eight-inch wafer strategy.

Starting in 2008, Taiwan accounting rules require the expensing of
employee profit sharing in the Company's financial statements. TSMC
took an early leadership position by announcing in November 2006 a
change in its profit sharing mechanism in order to better balance the
interests of TSMC's employees and its shareholders. As we informed

the market as well as our employees at that time, employee profit




sharing for the year 2008 will be at 15% of 2008's net income, and
the Company will start accruing such an amount in each quarter

beginning the first quarter of 2008,
Outlook

As we begin gur 21% year, management anticipates the global semi-
conductor market should grow by a mid-single digit rate in 2008,
and that the foundry segment in general, and TSMC in particular,

should grow by more than that.

While much depends on macro-economic developments globally, our
2008 resuits will benefit from the capacity that we have already built
over the years along with improvements in capital productivity and
operating efficiency. We are focused on balancing capacity installa-
tion with anticipated demand to maintain high utilization rates,
which will have a positive impact on return on investment. Given
TSMC's 2008 capacity plan, which represents an annual capacity
increase of 12.7%, we expect the capital intensity ratio, defined as
capital expenditure as a percentage of sales, will be lower this year.
We are also focusing on pricing so that it will reflect the true value
proposition that TSMC's products and services represent to our cus-
tomers.

The semiconductor competitive landscape will continue to transform
itself as the costs associated with designing and preducing advanced
technology continues to grow. Customers and suppliers are today
dealing with new processes and new materials as complex and costly
as they are powerful. All of us at TSMC will continue to commit our-
selves to enabling ocur customers' success and increasing our share-
holders' value throughout 2008 and beyond.

h‘\u& QL--

Rick Tsai
President and CEQ

Maorris Chang
Chairman
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2. COMPANY PROFILE







2.1 An Introduction to TSMC

TSMC is the world's largest dedicated semiconductor foundry.
Founded on February 21, 1987 and headquartered in Hsinchu,
Taiwan, TSMC pioneered the business model of focusing solely on
manufacturing customers' semiconductor designs. As a dedicated
semiconductor foundry, the company does not design, manufacture,
or market semiconductor products under its own brand name,
ensuring that TSMC does not compete directly with its customers.

TSMC's diverse global customer base ensures that TSMC-
manufactured microchips are used in a broad variety of applications,
including various segments of the computer, communications and
consumer electronics markets.

Total capacity of the manufacturing facilities managed by TSMC,
including subsidiaries and joint ventures, was 8.29 million 8-inch
equivalent wafers in 2007, In Taiwan, TSMC operates two advanced
12-inch wafer fabs, four 8-inch wafer fabs, and one 6-inch wafer fab.
TSMC also manages two 8-inch fabs at wholly owned subsidiaries:
WaferTech in the United States and TSMC {Shanghai) Company, Ltd.
in China. In addition, TSMC obtains 8-inch wafer capacity from other
compantes in which TSMC has an equity interest.

TSMC provides customer service through its account management
and engineering services offices in North America, Europe, Japan,

China, South Korea, and India. The company employed more than
20,000 people worldwide as of the end of 2007,

TSMC continued to lead the industry in advanced process
technologies. Already first to provide 65nm production capacity,
TSMC in 2007 became the first foundry to provide 45nm production.
In addition to general-purpose logic process technology, TSMC
supports the wide-ranging needs of its customers with embedded
non-volatile memory, embedded DRAM, mixed signal/RF, high
voltage, CMOS image sensor, color filter, and silicon germanium
technologies. In December 2007, TSMC announced at the IEDM
conference in Washington the foundry's first 32nm technology with
functional SRAM.

The company is listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange (TSE) under
ticker number 2330, and its American Depositary Shares trade on the
New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) under the symbol TSM.

2.2 Market/Business Summary
2.2.1 TSMC Achievements

In 2007, TSMC maintained its leading position in the dedicated
foundry segment of the global semiconductor industry, with an
estimated market segment share of 47%, above twice the share of its
closest competitor. TSMC achieved this result amid fierce competition
from both established players and relatively new entrants to the
business.

A key contributory factor to TSMC's strong position is its lead in
advanced process technologies. In 2007, 55% of TSMC's wafer
revenue came from manufacturing processes with geometries of
0.13um and below. A critical milestone was reached in December
2007, when TSMC shipped its one-millionth 90nm 12-inch wafer.
Moreaver, TSMC also achieved volume production of the 45nm
process as well as development of the leading-edge 32nm process,
both industry firsts. By the fourth quarter of 2007, more than 39% of
TSMC's revenue came from 90nm processes or below.

In line with its unwavering focus on customer partnership, TSMC
offers innovative services as well as advanced technologies. Among
the many innovative services unveiled in 2007 were: Multi-Layer Mask
Service, which enables maximum customer flexibility in prototyping
single or multi-chip verifications or small velume production runs;
Reference Flow™ 8.0, the latest generation of TSMC's design
methodology, which increases yield, lowers risks and improves design
margins; and Active Accuracy Assurance, which enables design
optimization critical for silicon success in leading-edge technologies
such as 45nm.

TSMC continued to advance the semiconductor roadmap in 2007.
Examples of technologies the Company developed or rolled out
include:

* 32nm technology with functional SRAM

*45nm technology

* 55nm technology, a 90% linear shrink from 65nm

* 65nm mixed signal and radio frequency (MS/RF) technologies
* 65nm embedded DRAM technology

#0.13um embedded flash memory

*0.16um high voltage process for small panel single chip drivers
* 0.20um process for larger panel source drivers

* 0.25um bipolar complementary device (BCD)

¢ 1.00um ultra high voltage process

In addition, a major focus of TSMC's technology development in 2007
was its guarter-node strategy. TSMC unveiled CMOS Logic 0.152um,
CMOS Mixed Signal 0.152um, CMOS Logic 0.12um, CMOS Logic
85nm General, and CMOS Logic 85nm Low Power technologies.
These quarter-node technologies enabled customers to produce their
IC chips even more cost-effectively by shrinking the process nodes.

2.2.2 Market Overview

The integrated circuit (1IC) market in 2007 reached U$$218.5 billion in
revenue, an increase of 4.3% over 2006. This represented 85% of
total worldwide semiconductor revenue of US$256 billion. Growth of
fabless design companies slightly outpaced that of integrated device
manufacturers (IDMs) in 2007, with a market share of 21% of total IC
revenues. IC foundry, a manufacturing sub-segment of the IC industry
that serves both fabless companies and IDMs, generated total
revenues of US$24.3 billion in 2007, up 4.3% year on year, while
revenues from dedicated IC foundries such as TSMC reached US$20.7
hillion, up 4% from 2006. It is estimated that the production value of
dedicated IC foundries accounted for 19% of worldwide IC revenues
in 2007.




In 2007, the largest geographic market for dedicated foundry services
was North America, which accounted for 59% of overall dedicated
foundry revenue. The second largest geographic market was Asia
Pacific (excluding Japan), which accounted for 26% of total dedicated
foundry revenue in 2007. European-based customers accounted for
9%, and orders from companies based in Japan contributed 6%.

2.2.3 Industry Outlook, Opportunities and Threats

Industry Demand and Supply Outlook

The semiconductor market in 2007 experienced modest growth of
3.5%. For 2008, based on current market conditions, semiconductor
market growth could be around the mid single digit depending on
the level of global economic growth. As the inventory fevel in general
appears normal at the beginning of 2008, the growth of the foundry
segment could outperform the semiconductor industry by a few
percentage points in 2008. On the other hand, the foundry capacity
could expand at 13% in 2008 according to IC Insights, compared
with the 15% compound annual growth rate of the past 3 years. This
indicates that there may be more cautious capacity investment from
major foundry players in response to slowing industry demand.

Opportunities and Threats in the Foundry Sector of the
Semiconductor Market

Despite the fact that the semiconductor market as a whaole is
maturing, TSMC helieves that foundry services, the sector TSMC
competes in, will play an increasingly important role as the IC
industry becomes more reliant on outsourced manufacturing. IC
Insights forecasts that by 2012, 27% of globa! semiconductor
revenue will come from dedicated foundries, compared with 19% in
2007, Consequently, the dedicated foundry sector is forecast to grow
at a rate of 12% in 2008, outpacing overall industry growth. As the
leader in dedicated foundry services, TSMC is well positioned to
capture the faster growth opportunities of this sector. On the other
hand, threats remain, such as the continuing fall in wafer prices, due
to the fact that the IC industry is prone to fast-declining end
application prices, as well as potentia!l industry overcapacity if the
global economic climate experiences a downturn,

2.2.4 TSMC Position, Differentiation and Strategy

Position

As the leader in the dedicated foundry segment of the IC
manufacturing industry, TSMC commanded a 47% share of this
segment in 2007, with total revenue of US$9.8 billion. In terms of
geographic distribution categorized by company headquarters, 77%
of total revenue came from North America, 11% from the Asia Pacific
region excluding Japan, 9% from Europe, and 3% from Japan. In
terms of end product application, 32% of total revenue came from
the computing sector, 42% from communications, 17% from
consumer products, and 9% from other categories, such as industrial
products.

Differentiation

TSMC's leading industry position is based on a trinity of key
differentiating strengths: technology leadership, manufacturing
excellence, and customer partnership. As a technology leader, TSMC
has consistently been the first dedicated foundry to develop the next
generation of leading-edge technologies. As @ manufacturing leader,
TSMC is renowned for its yield management, and offers best-in-class
support services to expedite time-to-market and time-to-volume.
And, in customer partnership, TSMC works closely with its customers
on end-to-end collaboration to optimize design and manufacturing
efficiencies. Going forward, TSMC will continue building on this
trinity of strengths to provide the best overall value to its customers.

Strategy

TSMC is confident its differentiating strengths will enable it to
leverage the attractive growth opportunities in the foundry sector
going forward. TSMC works constantly to ensure that these strengths
are maintained and improved, both in the short-term and in the
long-term. For example, TSMC is intensively working on the leading-
edge 32nm process to maintain its technology leadership position,
and is poised to be the first dedicated foundry player to roll out
production in that technology. Numerous efforts are also underway
to ensure manufacturing excellence, such as continuing enhancement
of Design-For-Manufacturing (DFM) support services to increase yield
and efficiency. Finally, TSMC conducts throughout the year customer
reviews and surveys to better understand customer needs and wants,
and accordingly adjusts its offering in response, thereby
strengthening its partnership with customers.

To counter the ongoing challenge of falling wafer prices, TSMC's
long-term and short-term development plans are to continue
strengthening its core capabilities and value propositions; including
its ability to deliver customer product to market earlier and with
better functionality, advanced and mainstream technologies with
sufficient capacity support and flexible manufacturing, and focus on
customer service. In addition, TSMC will continue optimizing its
service portfolio in order to balance profitability and growth.
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2.3 Organization

2.3.1 Organization Chart

Audit Committee
Board of Directors
Chairman
Vice Chairman
Compensation Committee
President & CEQ
L -

Design and Materal Advanced ‘ Mainstream
Research and Information g Human Quality and Corporate Worldwide Sales  Management
Developmens Technology Techanlogy Resources Reliability Planning and Marketing and Risk Techr_mlogy Techr_mlugy

Platform M Business Business
anagement ;
Note: Beginning March 1, 2008, TSMC d its business ization in ofdes to improve the company's structural profitability and further qth partnerships by forming the new Advanced Techrology Business Organization

and Mainstream Technology Business Organization. These two new organizations will respectively take respensibility fer formulation, development, and execution of advanced technology and mainstream technology business objectives.




2.3.2 Major Corporate Functions

Research and Development
| * Advanced technology research and development, and exploratory
| research and development

‘ Information Technology
¢ Technology and business system integration, Information
technology infrastructure, and IT development and operation

Design and Technology Platform
» Design services and technology platform development

Human Resources
# Human resources management and organizational development

Quality and Reliability

¢ Quality and reliability management

Corporate Planning
® Production planning and control, industrial engineering, and
operational efficiency

Worldwide Sales and Marketing

# Brand Management — corporate brand management

® Market Research — market analysis, forecast and research

s Customer Service — customer loyalty and solutions management

® Regional Operations — business development and account services
for the North American, European, Japanese, and Asian regions

Materials Management and Risk Management
® Purchasing, warehousing, import and export, logistics support,
industrial safety, and environmental protection

Advanced Technology Business

* Manufacturing Operations {Fabs 12 and 14), new fab planning,
manufacturing technology integration, advanced product
engineering, mask manufacturing, advanced technology business
development, and technology and service marketing

Mainstream Technology Business
finance & ‘ ¢ Manufacturing Operations (Fabs 2, 3, 5, 6, and 8), mainstream
Spakesperson Legal China Spedal Prajecss  Internal Audi product engineering, backend technology and service, mainstream
‘ technology business development, capacity management, and
technology and service marketing

Finance & Spokesperson

* Finance and accounting services including investor relations, public
relations, treasury, tax, asset management, strategic investment,
and financial and accounting management

* Corporate spokesperson

Legal
® Corporate legal affairs, litigation, commercial transactions, patents
and other intellectual property management

China
® Business strategy and development, manufacturing operations, and
account services in China

Special Projects
* Ongoing new business initiatives and developing new strategic
businesses

Internal Audit
® |Internal audit and process compliance

1"
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2.4 Board Members

2.4.1 information Regarding Board Members

) Shareholding When Elected Cument Shareholding

Title/Mame Date Elected Term Expires Date First Elected

Shares % Shares %
Chairman 05/152006 051572009 121061986 112,677,772 0.46% 116,637,208 0.46%
Martis Chang
Vice Chairman 45/18/2006 05/15/2609 05/13/1997 39,010,891 0.16% 36,602,588 0.14%
FC. Tseng
Hational Development Fand, Executive Yuaa 0316/2006 1511572009 121011986 1,581,649,966 53%% 1437,228,303 63%%
Representative: {Note 1, 2)

Director
Chintay Shih

Director 05/15/2006 054152009 06/03/2003 25,466,795 0.10% 31,261,025 0.12%
Rick Tsai
Independent Direcios 051612006 057152009 0540772002
Sir Peter Leahy Bonfield
Independent Director 05/16/2006 054152009 05/07/200¢
Lester Cad Thurow
Independent Direcios 05/16/2006 05/152009 (0411412000 1,415,785 0.01% 1,465,534 0.01%
Stan Shik
Independent Direcior 05/16/2006 05/1572008 05/16/2006
Carleton (Carly} S. Fiorina

Remarks:

1. No member o the Board of Directors held TSMC shares by nominee arrangement.
2. o member of the Board of Diretors had a spouse o relative within twao degrees of consanguinity serving as a manager or director at TSMC.

Note 1: Major Shareholder of TSMC's Director that is a Juridical Person Shareholder

Director that is a Juridical Person Shareholder

Top 18 Shareholders

National Development Fund, Executive Yuan

Not Applicable

Note 2: Major shareholder of juridical person shareholder as stated in note 1: Not applicable.




As of 02/29/2008

Spouse & Minor Shareholding . .. " e " X
pro— " Selected Education, Past Positions & Curment Positions at Non-profit Organizations Selected Current Positions at TSMC and Other Companies
121,430 0.00% | Ph.0., Electrical Enginesring, Stanford University, USA None
Master Degree, Mechanical Engineering, MIT
Chairman, Industrial Technology Research Insiute
President & COQ, General Instrument Corporation
Group Vice-President, Texas Instruments
CED, TSMC
Supervisor, Industrial Technology Research Institute
Life Member Emesitus of MIT Corporation
Member of National Academy of Engineering, USA
Trustee of the Eisenhower Foundation
Member of the Comminiee of 100
Fellow of Computer History Museum, USA
Member of the intemational Advisory Committee of NYSE Euranext Board of Directors
131,532 0.00% | Ph.D., Elearical Engineering, National Chengkung University, Taiwan Chairman, TSMC {(Shanghai) Company Lid.
President, Vanquard International Semiconductor Corporation Chairman, Global Unichip Corpozation
President, TSMC Directar, Prosperity Venture Capital Corporation
Deputy CEQ, TSMC Director, digimay, Inc.
Director, Allegro Manufacturing Pre, Lid.
154,676 0.00% | Ph.D., Electrical Engineering, Princetan University, UISA Director, Industria! Technology Investment Corporation
President, Industrial Technology Research Institute
Director of Yanquard Intemational Semiconductor Corporation
Professor and Bean, College of Technology Management, Natianal Tsinghua University
Managing Director and Special Advisor, Industrial Techinelogy Research Institute
Ph.D., Material Science, Comell University, USA President & CEQ, TSMC
President, Vanguard intemational Semicenductor Corporation Director, TSMC subsidiary companies
00, TSMC
Executive Vice President, Worldwide Marketing and Safes, 15MC
Honours Degree in Engineering, Loughbarough University Chairman of Supervisory Board, NXP B.V.
Fellow of the Royal Academy of Engineering Director, LM. Ericsson, Sweden
Chairman and CEQ, ICL Pl Directer, Mentor Graphics Corporation Inc., Oregon, USA
(0 and Chairman of the Executive Committee, British Telecommunications Ple Directot, Sony Corporation, Japan
Vice President, the British Quality Foundation Member of the Sony Carporation Advisory Board
Director, Adtis Caprtal LLP Board
Director, Dubai International Capital
Member of the Citigroep International Advisory Board
Ph.D., Econcmics, Harvard Universiy, USA Diredtor, Analog Devices Inc.
Dean, Sloan School of Managemen, MIT
Jerome and Dorothy Lemelsan Professor of Management and Economics, Stean Schocl of
Management, MIT
15,956 0.00% | Honorary Dogior of Intemational Law, Thunderbird American Graduate School of Group Chairman, ib SoftCapial
International Management, USA Dicector, Acer Incorporated
Hanarary Fellawship, University of Wales, Cardiff, UK Director, Qsda Corporation
Hongrary Doctor of Technology, The Hong Kong Palytechnic University, Hong Kong Director, Wistran Corporation
Hancrary EE PR.D.,, MSEE, BSEE, National Chiao Tung University, Taiwan Director, Nan Shan Life Insurance Company, Lid,
Co-Founder and Chairman Ementus of the Acer Group
Master Degree in Business Administration, Robert H, Smith School of Business, University of | Director, Revolution Health Group LLC
Maryland at College Park, Md.
Master Degree, Science, MITs Sloan Schog!
Bachelor Degree in Medieval Kistory and Philasophy, Stanfard University, USA
Senior Management, AT&T and tucent Technologies
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Hewleti-Packard
Director, CyberTrust
Direqto, MIT Corporation Board of Trustees

13
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2.4.2 Directors' Professional Qualifications and Independence Analysis

According to the relevant requirements set by Taiwan's Securities and Futures Bureau, the professional qualifications and independence status of
the Company's Board members are listed in the table below.

Meet One of the Following Professional Qualification Requirements, Together with at Least Five Years Work Experience

An Instructor of Higher Position in 3 Department of

4 Judge, Public Prosecutor, Antomey, Centified Public

Carleton {Cary) 5. Fiorina

Name/Criteria Commerce, Law, finance, Accounting, or Other Acadermic | Accountart, or Other Professional or Technical Spedialists | Have Work Experience in the Area of Commerce, Law,
Depanment Related to the Business Needs of the Who Has Passed a National Examination and Been Finance, or Accounting, or Otherwise Necessary for the
Company in a Public or Private Junior College, College or | Awarded 2 Centificate in a Profession Necessary for the Business of the Company
University Business of the Company

Chaiman 7

Marris Chang

Vice Chalrman v

FC. Tseng

Diracror

Chisiay Stih v

Director

Rick Tsai v

Independent Director v

Sir Peter Leahy Bonfield

Independent Diractor v

Lester Carl Thurow

Independent Director v

S1an Skih

Independent Direcor v

Note: Directors ar Supervisars, during the two years before being elected or during the term of otfice, have been or be any of the following, please tick the appropriate correspanding boxes:
. Not an employee of the company or any of its affiliates;
. Not a director or supesvisor of the company or any of its affifiates. The same does nct apply. however, in cases where the persan is an independent director of the cempany, its parent company, or any subsidiary in which the company holds,

-

directly or indirectly, more than 50% of the veting shares;

w

shates of the company or ranking in the 1op 10 in holdings;

~N ;o A

or to any affiliate of the cempany, or 2 spouse thereof.

. Not a spouse, relative within the second degree of kinship, or lingal relative within the fifth degree of kinship, of any of the parsons in the preceding three subparagraphs;
Not a directar, supervisor, or employee of a corparate shareholder that directly holds 5% or more of the total number of auistanding shares of the company or that holds shares ranking in the top five in holdings;
Not a director, supervisos, officer, or shareholder hokding 5% or more 6f the shares, of a specified company or institution that has a finandal or business relationship with the company;

8. Not having a marital relationship. or a relative within the second degree of kinship 1o any other directar of the company:

]

. Not been a person of any conditions defined in Article 30 of the Company Law. and

10. Not a governmental, juridical person os its representative as defined in Article 27 of the Company Law.

. Not a natural-person shareholder who holds shares, together with those held by the person's spouse, minar children, or held by the person under othees' names, in an aggregate amount of 1% or more of the total number of outstanding

. Not a professional individual wha, or an owner, partner, director, supervisor, or officer of a scle proprietorship, partnership, company, or institution that, provides commercial, legal, financial. accounting services or consultation ta the company




Criteria (Mote)

Number of Other Public Companies Concurrently
Serving as an Independent Director
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2.4.3 Remuneration Paid to Directors {Note 1)

Unit: NT$ thousands

Title/Mame

Remuneration

Base Compensation ()

Profit Sharing (B} (Nate 3)

Mlowances (C] {Note 4)

Total Remuneration (A+B+C) as a%
of 2007 Met Income

Froem All
Consalidated
Entities

From TSMC

From TSMC

From All
Consplidated
Entities

From All
Consolidated
Entities

From TSMC

Fram TSMC

From Al
Consolidated
Entities

Chairman
Morris Chang

Vice Chairman
FC. Tseng

Koninkfijke Philips. Elactronics Y.
Representative:

Director

1.C Lebbezeo {Note 2}

Nationai Development Fund, Executive Yuan
Representative:

Director

Chintay Shik

Direcior
Rick Tsai

Independent Director
Sii Peter Leahy Bonfietd

\ndependent Director
tester Carl Thurow

Independent Direcior
Stan Shih

Independent Director
Carleton {Carly} S. Fiofina

23,856 13856 176,850 176,890

6,01 6,01 0.19%

0.19%

Nate 1; Remuneration Policies: The base campensation for the Chairman, Vice-Chairman and directors are determined in accardance with the procedures set forth in TSMCs Artides of Incorporatian. The Articles of Incorporation alsc provides that TSMC

shall allocate na more than 0.3% of eamings available for distribution as bonus to directors, The distribution of compensation to direciors shall be made in accordance with TSMCs *fules for Distribution of Compensation to Directors”.
Nuts 7! Koninklijke Philips Electronics N.V. resigned from TSMCs Board on March 9, 2007,
Note 3: The Board adopted a propasal for 2007 compensation to TSMC's directors in the amount of NT$176,890 thousand at its meeting on February 19, 2008. The proposed compensation will be effecied upen the approval of shareholders at the

Ansual Shaseholder Meeting on June 13, 2008,

Note 4: Includes allowances for company cars. Compensation paid to company drivers 1otaled NT$3,901 thousand.
Note 5: Represents cumutative employee stock options exercisabée as of the date of this Annual Report.
Note 6: Total remuneration paid to TSMCs directors and supervisors in 2006 was NT$663,666 thousand, accounting for 0.52% of 2006 net incame.

Remuneration Paid to Directors (Note 1)

| Total Remuneration (A +8+C) Total Compensation (& + B+C+D-+E}
| From TSMC From Al Consolidated Entities From TSMC From All Consolidated Entities
Under NT$2,000,060 Rick Tsai (Note 2)
NT$2,000,000 ~ NT$5,000,000 Yoninklijke Philips Elecironics NV, Koninkfijke Philips Electronics N.V.
NT$5,000,000 ~ NT$10,000,000
NT$10,000,000 ~ NT$15,000,000
Ni$15,000,000 ~ NT$30,000,000 Maorris Chang Monis Chang
EC. Tseng EC. Tseng
National Development Fund, Executive Yuan National Development Fund, Executive Yuan
Sir Peter Leahy Bonfield Sir Peter Leahy Bonfield
Lester Carl Thurow Lester Ca:l Thurow
Stan Shih Stan Shih
Carleton {Carly) 5. Figrina Carleton {Carly) S. Fiorina
NT$30,000,000 ~ NT$50,000,000
NT$50,000,000 ~ NT$100,000,000
COver NT$100,000,000 Rick Tsai
Total 9 9

Note 1: The proposed compeniation will be eHected upon the app

| of shareholders at the Annual Sharehokier Meeting o June 13, 2008.

Note Z: According to the Company's Artides of Incorporation, directors who also serve as executive officers of this Corporation are not entitled to receive bonus to directars. As a result, no director remuneration was paid to Dr. Rick Tsai.
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Compensation Earned as Employee of TSMC or of TSMC's Consolidated Entities

Base Compensation, Bonuses, and

Totat Compensation {A+8+C+D+E)

. Exercisable Employee Stock Options % of 2007 Net | Note § Compensation
Allowances (D) Employee Profit Sharing (E} (Note 5] F) asatha et Income {Note 6) Paid 10 Directars
- — from Non-
From Al From TSMC From Al Consolidated Entities From All From Al consolidated
From TSMC Consolidated oh Stock (Fair ash Stock (Fair From TSMC Consalidated From TSMC Consolidated Affiliates
Entities Market Value) Market Yalug} Entities Entities
9,744 9,744 26,000 149,511 26,000 149,511 1,611 1,611 0.36% 0.36% 4
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2.5 Management Team

2.5.1 Information Regarding Management Team

Shareholding Spouse & Minar TSMC Sharehalding by Nominee

Title {Note 1)/Name Date Effective {Note 2} Arangement Shares)

$Shareholding % Shareholding %

President & Chief Executive Officer 0770172005 31,261,025 0.12%
Rick Tsai

Senior Vice President 0710412001 6,030,912 0.01%
Spedial Projects
Kenneth Kin

Senior Vice President & Chief Information Officer 12312004 14,262,599 0.06%
Information Technology & Materials Management and
Risk Management

Stephen T Tso

Senior Vice President 1200172005 12,181,439 0.05%
Advanced Technology Business
Madk Liv

Senior Vice Presicent 1260112005 8,044,114 0.03% 159 0.00%
Mainstraam Technclogy Business
C.C. Wei

Vice President 0170172002 7,057,682 0.03% 101,699 0.00%
Mainstream Technology Business
ML Tzeng

Vice President & General Counsel 0170272002 3,360,833 0.01%
Richard Thurston

Vice President, Chief Financial Office: & Spokesperson | 0%/08/2003 5,681,614 0.02% 109,170 0.00%
Lora Ho

Vice President 02437/2004 3,775,456 0.01%
Human Resources
PH. Chang

Vice President 03/31/2005 1,782,270 0.01% 122 0.00%
Worldwide Sales and Marketing
. Jason €5, Chen

Vice President 03/33/2006 1,350,874 0.0i%
Design and Technology Platform
Fu-Chieh Hsu

Vice President 06/05/2006 2,095,378 0.01%
Research and Development
Wei-Jen Lo

Vice President 0612312006 5,070,698 0.02%
Research and Development
Jagk Sun

Vice President 0211572008 7,454,537 0.03% 2,243,410 - 0.01%
Advanced Technelogy Business
Y.2 Chin

Vice President 024192008 1,969,556 01% 196,272 0.00%
Quality and Reliability
N.S. Tsai

Senior Director 06/25/2002 8,732,786 0.03% 1,239,999 0.00%
Corporate Planning
LCTu

Senior Director 10/15/2003 1,623,356 001%
Intemal Audit
Jan Kees van Viet

Note 1: TSMC's business organization was re-structured beginning March 1, 2008,
Note 2: The date effective means the offical dare joining the Management Team.




As of 0212972008

Managess Who are Spouses ar within Second-degree Relative of

Education & Selected Past Positions Selected Current Positions a1 Other Companies Consanguinity to Each Other
Title Name Relation
Ph.D., Material Science, Comell University, USA Director, TSMC subsidiary companies
Executive Vice President, Worldwide Marketing and Sales, TSMC
(00, TSMC
President, Vanguard intemationa| Semiconductor Corp.
Ph.D., Nuctear Enginesring and Applied Physics, Columbia University, USA Diractor, TSMC subsidiary companies
Vice President, Workdwide Safes & Services, 13M Microelectionics Division
Ph.D., Materials Science & Engineering, University of Cahfornia, Berkeley, USA Directon, TSMC subsidiary companies
President, WaferTech, tiC
Senior Vice President, Operations, TSMC
Ph.D., Electrical Engineering & Computer Science, University of Calfomia, Berkeley, USA None
Vice President, South Site Operation, TSMC
President, Worldwide Semiconductor Mamufacuring Corp.
Ph.D., Electrical Engineering, Yale University, USA Directar, TSMC subsidiary companies
Vice President, South Site Operation, TSMC Director, TSMC affiliated companies
Senir Vice President, Chartered Semiconducor Manufacturing Ld.
Master, Applied Chemistry, Chungyuan University, Taiwan None Oepartiment Manager | M., Tzeng Siblings

Senior Director, Fab 2 Operation, TSMC

1.D., Rutgers Schoal of Law, State University of New Jersey, USA

Ph.D., History, University of Virginia, USA

Panner, Haynes Boane, LLF.

Vice President Corporate Staff, Assisiant General Counsel, Texas Instruments Incorporated

Director, TSMC subsidiary companies
Directos, TSMC atfliated companies

Master, Finance, National Taiwan University, Taiwan
Senier Director, Accounting, TSMC
Vice President, Tt-Acer Semiconductor Manufacuring Corp.

Director and/or Supervisol, TSMC subsidiary companies
Supervisor, TSMC affiliated companies

Ph.D., Materials Science & Engineering, Purdue University, USA
Senior Directo Materials Management, TSMC
Vice President, Worldwide Semicorductor Manufacturing Corp.

Nane

Master, Business Administration, University of Missouri-Columbia, USA
Vice President & Co-Director of Worldwide Sales & Matketing Group, Intef

Direcior, TSMC subsidiary companies

Ph.D., Eleatical Engineering and Computer Sciences, University of Califomia, Berkeley, USA
Chairman and CEQ, Manolithic Sysiem Technology Inc.
Chaiman and President, Myson Technelogy Inc.

Direcior, TSMC subsidiary companies

Ph.D., Sclid State Physics & Surface Chemistry, University of Califomia, Berkeley, USA None
Director, Advanced Technology Development & CTM Plant Manager, Intel

Ph.0., Flectrical Enginesring, University of lfnois, USA None
Senior Director, Logic Technology Division, TSMC

Master, Electric] Engineering, National Cheng Kung University, Taiwan None
Senior Director, Procluc: Engineering & Services, TSMC

Ph.D., Material Science, Massachusetts Institute of Technelagy, USA None
Senior Director, Assembly Test Technology & Service, TSMC

Vice Prasident, Operations, Yanguard International Semiconductar Corp.

Master, Business Adminisiration, Tufane University, USA None
Senior Director, Fab 5 Operation, TSMC

Master, Management, Delft/Erasmus University, the Netherlands Nong

Senior frector, Pricing & Business Process, TSMC
Chief Financial Officer & member of the Board of Management, Philips Taiwan
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2.5.2 Compensation Paid to President and Vice Presidents (Note 1)

Unit: NT$ thousands

Research and Development

Salary Bonuses and Allowances {Note 2}
Title kame From All From Al
From TSMC Consolidated From TSMC Consolidated
Erstities Entities
President & Rick Tsai
Chief Executive Officer
Senior Vice President Kenneth Kin
Special Projects
Senior Vice President & Chief Information Officer Stephen T. Tso
Information Technology & Materials Management and Risk
Management
Senior Vice President Mark Liu
Advanced Technology Business
Senior Vice President L Wef
Mairstrezm Technology Business
Vice President M.C. Tzeng
Mainstream Technolagy Business
Vice President & Richard Thurston 50,940 50,940 17,384 17,527
General Counsel
Vice President Lora Ha
Chief Finandial Officer & Spokesperson
Vie President PH. Chang
Human Resources
Vice President Jason C5. Chen
Worldwide Sales and Marketing
Vice President Fu-Chieh Hsu
Design and Technology Matferm
Vice President Wei-Jen Lo
Research and Development
Vice President Jack Sun

before the compensation and profit sharing peopasils are subrmitied 10 the Baard of Directors for approval.
Note 2; In¢lude the use of company cars. Compensation paid to the drivers totaled NT$4,669 thousand.

|
|
| Note 3: Fhe Board adopted a propesal for 2007 employee profit sharng d
| distribution will be processed after the approval of the same by shaseholders at the Annual Shareholder Meeting on June 13, 2008,

Note 4: Total compensation paid to TSMCs president and vice presidents in 2006 was NT$1,791,128 thousand, accounting for 1.41% of 2006 net income.

Note 5: Represents cumutative employee stock optians exercisable as of the date of this Annual Repodt.

Compensation Paid to President and Vice Presidents (Note)

Note 1: Compensation Policy: The cash compensation and profit sharing paid to the president and each vice president are also reviewed by the Compensation Committe? individually based on their jab responsibikty, contribution and performance

in 2008 with respect to 2007 eamings at its meeting on February 19, Y008, The abave-menticned figures are preliminary and the proposed employee profit shacing

2007
From TSMC Fram All Consolidated Entities
Under NT$2,000,000
From NT$2,000,000 ~ NT$5,000,000
Frarm NT$5,000,000 ~ NT$10,000,600
From NT$30,000,000 ~ NT$15,000,000
from NT$ 79,000,000 ~ NT$3C,000,000
From NT$30,000,000 ~ NT$50,000,000
From NT$50,000,000 ~ NT$100,000,000 C.C Wi, M.C Tzeng, Richard Thurston, Losa Ho, PH. Chang, Jason C.S. Chen, Fu-Chieh Hsu,
Wei-len Lo, Jack Sun
Qver NT$100,000,000 Rick Tsai, Keaneth Kin, Stephen T. Tso, Mark Liu
Tetal 13

Note: The Board adopted a propesal 1or 2007 employee profit sharing distribution in 2008 with respect to 2007 earnings at its meeting on February 19, 2008. The aboy

distribution will be processed alter the approval of the same by sharehalders at the Annual Sharehoder Meeting on June 13, 2008,
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Employee Profit Sharing (Note 3)

Total Compensation as a % of 2007 Net

Exet(isable Emplayee Stock Options (Note 5}

Income (Note 4) Compensation
- " Received from
From TSMC From All Consolidated Entities From All From All Non-consalidated
Stock {Fair Stock (Fair From TSMC Consolidated From TSMC Congolidated Affiliates
Cash Cash Entities Entities
Market Value} Market Value)
162,395 933,838 162,395 933,838 1.07% 1.07% 2,892 2,892 !
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2.5.3 Employee Profit Sharing Granted to Management Team (Note)

Unit: NT$ thousands

Title Name

President & Chief Executive Officer Rick Tsai

Senior Vice President, Special Projeqis Kenneth Kin
Senior Vice President & Chief Infarmation Cficer Stephen . Tso
Information Technclogy & Materials Management and Risk Management

Senipr Vice President, Advanced Technology Business Mark Liu

Senior Vice President, Mainstream Technology Business CL Wei

Vice President, Mainstream, Technalogy Business M.C. Tzeng

Vice President & General Counsel Richard Thursion
Vice President, Chief Finandial Officer & Spokesperson Lora Ho

Vice President, Human Resources PH. Chang

Vice President, Worldwide Sales and Marketing {ason C.S. Chen
Vice President, Design and Technology Platform Fu-Chieh Hsu
Vice President, Research and Bevelopment Wei-len Lo

Vice President, Research and Development Jack Sun

Senior fhrector, Corparate Planning LC T

Senior Director, internal Audit Jan Kees van Wiiet

Note: The Board adopted a proposal for 2007 emplayee peofit sharing distribution in 2008 with respect ta 2007 eamings at its meeting on February 19, 2008, The above-mentioned figures are preliminary and the propesed employee profit sharing
distribution will be processed after the approval of the same by shareholders at the Annual Shareholder Meeting on June 13, 2008,

22




Stock (Fair Market Value)

Cash

Tatal Employee Profit Sharing

Total Emplayee Profit Sharing Paid to Management
Team as a % of 2007 Net Income

992,134

172,531

1,164,666

1.07%
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TSMC advocates and acts upon the principles of operational transparency and respect for shareholder rights. We believe that the basis for
successful corporate governance is a sound and effective Board of Directors. In line with this principle, TSMC's Board of Directors established an
Audit Committee in 2002 and a Compensation Committee in 2003.

TSMC's corporate governance was recognized in 2007 with the "Best Corporate Governance Award" for the Hong Kong and Taiwan regions from
IR Magazine, the "Best in Taiwan of Asset Corporate Governance Awards 2007" from The Asset Magazine, the "Corporate Governance Asia
Recognition in Taiwan" from Corporate Governance Asia. It was also recognized as the company "Most Committed to Corporate Governance" for
the Taiwan region by FinanceAsia Magazine.

3.1 Board of Directors

TSMC's Board of Directors consists of eight distinguished members with a great breadth of experience as world-class business leaders or
scholars. Four of the eight members are independent directors: former British Telecommunications Chief Executive Officer, Sir Peter Bonfield;
Professor Lester Thurow from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology; former Acer Group Chairman, Mr. Stan Shih; and former Hewlett-
Packard Chairman and CEQ, Ms. Carleton (Carly} Fiorina. Under the leadership of Chairman Morris Chang, TSMC's Board of Directors takes a
serious and forthright approach to its duties and is a serious, competent and independent Board.

In the spirit of Chairman Chang's approach to corporate governance, a board of directors' primary duty is to supervise. The Board should
supervise the Company's: compliance with relevant laws and regulations; financial transparency; timely disclose of material information, and
maintaining of highest integrity within the company. TSMC's Board of Directors strives to perform through the Audit Committee and the
Compensation Committee, the hiring of a financial expert for the Audit Committee, coordination with the Internal Audit department, and
through the ombudsman reporting system. The second duty of the board of directors is to provide guidance to the management team of the
Company. TSMC's management quarterly reports to the TSMC Board on a variety of subjects. The management also proposes and reviews the
Company's business strategies with the Board. Furthermore, the management often reviews with and updates TSMC's Board on the progress of
the strategies, obtaining Board guidance as appropriate. The third duty of the board of directors is to dismiss officers of the company when
necessary and to evaluate the management's performance. TSMC's management has maintained a healthy and functional communication with
TSMC Board of Directors, has been devoted in executing guidance of TSMC Board of Directors, and is dedicated in running the business
operations, all to achieve the best interest for all TSMC shareholders.

Board of Directors Meeting Status
The Chairman convened four regular meetings and two special meetings in 2007. The directors’ attendance status is as follows:

Title Name Attendance in Person By Proxy Ami:tr::"n;; Notes
Chairman Morris Chang 6 0 100% | Meone
Vice Chairman FC. Tseng 5 1 83% | None
Director Koninklijke Philips Electranics N.V. 1 b 100% | Resigned on March 8, 2007
Representative: 1.C. Lobhbezoo
Director Nationa) Development Fund, Executive Yuan 4 ? 67% | None
Representative: Chintay Shih
Director Rick Tsai B il 100% | Mone
Independent Director Sir Peter Leahy Bonfield 4 1 67% | None
Independent Ditector Lester Carl Thurow 3 2 50% | None
Independent Director Stan Shih 5 1 83% | Nome
Indzpendent Director Carletan S. Fiorina 4 ? 67% | None

Annotations:

1. In 2007, there were na written or otheswise recorded resolutions on which an indegendent dirctor had a dissenting pinion or quakified opinicn.

2. There were no recusals of Direciors due to conflices of interests in 2007.

3. Measures taken to strengthen the functionality of the Board: We believe that the basis for successtul corporate goverance is a sound and effective Board of Directars. In line with this principle, TSMC's Board of Directors has established an
Audit Committee and a Compensation Committee. As of January 1, 2007, the Audit Committee has taken on the duties of supervisors as set forth in the relevant rules and regulations gavering supervisrs.




3.1.1 Audit Committee

The Audit Committee assists the Board in carrying out its financial oversight responsibilities and other duties as set forth in the Company Act,
the Securities and Exchange Act, and other applicable laws and regulations. Matters required to be reviewed by the Audit Committee include the
Company's financial reports; auditing and accounting policies and procedures; internal control systems; material asset or derivatives
transactions; offering or issuance of any equity-type securities; hiring or dismissal of an attesting CPA, or the compensation given thereto; and
appointment or discharge of financial, accounting, or internal auditing officers.

TSMC's Audit Committee is empowered by its Charter to conduct any study or investigation it deems appropriate to fulfill its responsibilities. It
has direct access to TSMC's internal auditors, the Company's independent auditors, and all employees of the company. The Committee is
authorized to retain and oversee special legal, accounting, or other consultants as it deems appropriate to fulfill its mandate.

As of February 2008, the Audit Committee was comprised of all four independent directors and had engaged a financial expert consultant. The
Audit Committee Charter is available on TSMC's corporate website,

Audit Committee Meeting Status
Sir Peter Bonfield, Chairman of the Audit Committee, convened four regular meetings and three special meetings in 2007. The Committee
members' attendance status is as follows:

Title Name Attendante i Person By Proxy Ami:‘::r:::nn(a;‘; Notes
Chait Sir Peter Leahy Bonfieid 7 0 100% | None
Member Lester Cal Thurow 6 1 86% | Mone
Member Stan Shih 7 ¢ 100% | HNone
Member Carteton S, Fiorina 7 4 100% | HNone
Finandial Expert 1. Lobbezoo 7 0 100% | None
Annotations:

1. The following Securities and Exchange Act §14-5 resolution was not approved by the Audit Committee but was approved by twa thirds or more of all directors on August 24, 2007:
Resolution:To approve the purchase of no more than 109% of Vanguard International Semicond.rctor Corp. shares from the National Development Fund, Executive Yuan.
2. There were no recusals of independent directors due 19 conflicts of interesis in 2007.

3.1.2 Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee assists the Board in discharging its responsibilities related to TSMC's compensation and benefits policies, plans
and programs, and in the evaluation and compensation of TSMC's executives.

As of February 2008, the Compensation Committee was comprised of five members. All four independent directors served as voting members of
the Commiittee; the Chairman of the Board, Dr. Morris Chang, was a non-voting member, Mr. Stan Shih, Chairman of the Compensation
Committee, convened four regular meetings in 2007. The Compensation Committee Charter is available on TSMC's corporate website,
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3.2 Taiwan Corporate Governance Implementation as Required by the Taiwan Financial

Supervisory Commission

Item

Implementation Status

Reason for Non-implementation

1, Shareholding Structure & Shareholders' Rights None
(1) Method of handling shareholder suggestions er complaints TSMC has designated appropriate depariments, such as lnvestor Relations, Public Relations, the
SEC Compliance Depariment, Legal, tc, to handle sharzholder suggestions or complaints.
{2) The Campany's possessicn of a fist of major shareholders and a list of uhimate owners of these | TSMC tracks the shareholdings of direiors, officers, and shareholders hiolding more than 10% of
major shareholders the outstanding shares of TSMC.
(3) Risk management mechanism and “firewall' between the Company and its affiliates TSMC has established appropriate quidelines in its "Intemal Conteod System® palicy and
procedures,
2. Composition and Responsibilties of the Soard of Directors None
[1) Independent Directors Sir Peter Leahy Bonfield, Prof. Lester Carl Thurow, Mt Stan Shih and Ms. Careton 5. Fiorina are the
independent direciors of TSMC.
(2) Regular evaluation of external auditors' independence The Audit Commitiee egularly evaluates the independence of extemal auditors.
3. Identity and Responsibilities of Supervisors None
{1} Independent Supenvisor(s) TSMC autherized its Audit Committee 10 take over the duties of supervisors as set forth in the
relevant rules and regulations, effective January 1, 2007. The terms of the prior Supenvsors
expiredf on December 31, 2006, The Audit Committee is comprised of 3!l independent directars of
TSMC and a financial expert consultant,
(2) Communication channel with employees or sharehelders The Audit Committee has a direct channel of communication with TSMC's Internal Audit unit,
extemal auditers and ali emplayees.
4, Communication channel with stakeholders TSMC has designated appropriate depariments, such as investor Relations, Public Relations, the None
SEC Compliance Department, Legal, etc,, to cemmunicate with stakehclders on 2 case by case
basis, s needed. Furthermore, the contact infoimation providing access 1o the Company's
spokesperson and relevant departments is available on TSMC's website.
5. Information Disdosure None
(1} Establishment of 2 carporate website o disdose information regarding the Company's TSMC discluses information through its website hitp;ffwww lsme.com.
financials, business and corporate govemance status Since TSMC s 2 foreign private issuer with American Depaositary Receipts listed on the New York
Stock Bxchange {NYSE}, TSMU is subject 1o various KYSE regulations, one of which requires TSMC
to disclose the significant ways in which its corporate govesnance practices differ irom those
followed by US domestic companies under NYSE listing standards. Such disclosure information
may be found at the following web address:
hrtp:Afwwiw.tsme.comidownload/englishie03_governance/NYSE_Section_303A,pdf
(2) Other information disdosure channels (e.g., maintaining an Erglish-lanquage website, TSMC has designated appropriate departments {e.g. Investor Relations, Public Relations, the SEC
appointing responsible people to handle information collection and dislosure, appointing Compliance Department, Legal, et} to handle the collection and disdosure of information as
spokespersons, webcasting investors conference) required by the relevanit laws and regulations of Taiwan and other jurisdictions.
TSMC has designated spokespersons as required by relevant regulations.
TSMC webcasts live investor conferences.
b. Operations of the Company’s Nomination Committee, Compensation Committee, or other TSMC's Boarg of Directors has established an Audit Commitiee and a Compensation Commitiee. None

committees of the Board of Directors

Please refer o the "Corporate Governance” section on pages 24-31 of this Annual Repoit for
detafs,

7.1 the Company has established corporate governance poficies based on 75¢ Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles, please describe any discrepancy between the policies and their implementation.

for the status of TSM's corporate governance, please refer to the "Corporate Governance” section an pages 24-31 of this Annual Repart.

8. Please describe the company’s corporate sodial resporsibility (such as human rights, employee rights, employee welfness, community pariidipation, sodial contribution, community service, investor relations, supplie: relations and rights of

stakeholders) policy and implementation.

For the status of TSMCs corporate social responsibility efforts, please refer ta the "Corporate Social Respansibility” section on pages 66-71 of this Annual Report.

9. {rther impertant information to fadilitate better understanding of the Company's corpurate qovernance practices {e.g., directors' and supervisors' training records, the implementation of risk management policies and risk evaluation
measures, the implementation of consumer/custamer protection policies, and purchasing insurance for directors and supenvisors):

(1) Status of Risk Managemen Policies and Risk Evaluation: Please refer 10 the "Risk Management” secion on pages 61-65 of this Annual Report.

(2) Status of Customer Relations Policies: Please refer to the "Customer Partnership* section on page 51 of this Annual Report.

(3) TSMC maintains D&O Insurance for its directors and officers.

10. Hf the Company has a self corporate govemance evaluation or has authorized any other professional organization 1o conduct such an evaluation, the evaluation results, major defitiencies or suggestions, and improvements are stated as

follows: Nene

TSMC was recognized for its corporate governance in 2007 wilh the "Best Corporate Govemance Award" for the Hong Kong and Taiwan regions from /R Magazine, the "Best in Taiwan of Asset Comorate Gavernarce Awards 2007" frem
The Asset Magazine, and the "Corporate Governance Asia Regognition in Jaiwan" award irom Corporate Governance Asia. The Company was also acknowtedged as the "Most Commirted to Corporate Governance for the Taiwan region

by the financeAsia Magazine.




Continuing Education/Training of Directors in 2007

Title/Mame Date Hast by Training/Speech Title Duration
Chairmen 03107 Business Weekly Magazine Leadership in 213! Century {talk with Jack Weich) | horr 45 minutes
Monis Ch o
lNo;I;) g 06/06 - 06/07 MIT Quantur Leaps Event - The Asia Infosmation Initiative {in Japar) 2 days
1124 Global Chinese Business Leaders Sumamit Keynote Speech of "Marching towards a world-dass enterprise* 30 minutes
1729 1102 Asia Business Coundi ABC Autumn Forum 4 days
Vice Chaiman 0517 Security & Futures Institute Insider trading and imerest relationships for directors & supervisors, related 3 hours
FC. Tseng matters and case studies
September TSMC's Legal Depanment Relevant laws and requlations on “Insider Trading® 1 hour
Director 01206 Taipei International Management Council Speech of "Branding Taiwan® 2 hours
Stan Shik
™ ortle) : 03/06 Bureau of Foreign Trade Speech of *Building and Managing a Brang® 2 haurs
12413 Sun Yun Suan foundation Speech of *Branding Taiwan" 2 hours
Director Septamber TSMC's Legal Department Relevant laws and regulations on "lnsider Trading" 1 hour
Rick Tsai
1. From time 1o time, TSMC provides direciors with information concerning regulatary requirements and developments as related to directors' activities, TSMC management alsa reqularly presents updates on the Company's business and other
Infarmation to directors.
2. Regular requlatory update reports are provided by TSMC's General Counsel and by the Company's independent auditars at the Audit Committee meetings.

Note: Selected speeches, induding preparatory work, on corporate govemance and related topics.

3.3 Major Resolutions of Shareholders' Meeting and Board Meetings
3.3.1 Major Resolutions of Shareholders' Meeting and Implementation Status

Major Resolutions: TSMC's 2007 regular Shareholder Meeting was held in Hsinchu, Taiwan on May 7, 2007. At the meeting, shareholders
present in person or by proxy approved the following resolutions:
(1) The 2006 Business Report and Financial Statements;
(2) The distribution of 2006 profits;
(3) The capitalization of 2006 dividends, employee profit sharing and capital surplus;
{4) Revisions to the Articles of Incorporation; and
(5) Revisions to the internal rules and policies as follows:
® Procedures for Acquisition or Disposal of Assets
# Policies and Procedures for Financial Derivatives Transactians
# Procedures for Lending Funds to Other Parties
# Procedures for Endorsement and Guarantee
® Rules for Election of Directors and Supervisors

Implementation Status: All the resolutions of the Shareholders' Meeting have been fully implemented in accordance with the resolutions.
3.3.2 Major Resolutions of Board Meetings

During the 2007 calendar year, and through the period of January 1 to February 29, 2008, five regular meetings and two special meetings were
convened. Major resolutions approved at these meetings are summarized below: (1) The 2006 business report and financial statements; (2)
Distribution of 2006 profits, and the capitalization of dividends, employee profit sharing and capital surplus; (3) 2007 financial plan; {4)
Convening the 2007 Annual Shareholders' Meeting; (5) 2007 R&D projects and sustaining capital appropriation; (6) TSMC's sponsorship of the
sale of ADRs by Koninklijke Philips Electronics N.V.; (7} Specification of the number of directors comprising TSMC's Board of Directors; (8) The
2007 semi-annual financial statement; (9) Purchasing of Vanguard International Semiconductor Corporation shares via Block Trade; (10)
Repurchasing up to US%1.5 billion (approximately NT$48.5 billion) of the Company's common shares from the open market; {11) The 2007
business report and financial statements; (12) Distribution of 2007 profits and capitalization of dividends, employee profit sharing and capital
surplus; (13) 2008 financial plan; (14) The canceflation of 800,000,000 treasury shares and the paid-in capital reduction of NT$8,000,000,000;
(15} Convening the 2008 Annual Shareholders' Meeting; {16) 2008 R&D projects and sustaining capital appropriation; (17) Promotion of Mr. YF
Chin and Dr. N.S. Tsai as Vice Presidents of TSMC.

3.3.3 Major Issues of Record or Written Statements Made by Any Director Dissenting to Important Resolutions
Passed by the Board of Directors from January 1, 2007 to February 29, 2008: None.
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3.4 Internal Control System Execution Status

Statement of Internal Control System

Date: February 19, 2008

Based on the findings of a seH-assessment, Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited (TSMC) states the following with regard
to its internal control system during the period from January 1, 2007 to December 31, 2007:

1. TSMC is fully aware that establishing, operating, and maintaining an internal contro! system are the responsibility of its Board of
Directors and management. TSMC has established such a system aimed at providing reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of
objectives in the following categories: (1) effectiveness and efficiency of operations (including profitability, performance, and
safeguarding of assets), {2} reliability of financial reporting, and (3) compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

2. An internal controt system has inherent limitations. No matter how perfectly designed, an effective internal control system can provide
only reasonable assurance of accomplishing the three objectives mentioned above. Mareover, the effectiveness of an internal control
system may be subject to changes of environment or circumstances. Nevertheless, the internal control system of TSMC contains self-
monitoring mechanisms, and TSMC takes corrective actions whenever a deficiency is identified.

3, TSMC evaluates the design and operating effectiveness of its internal control system based on the criteria provided in the Regulations
Governing the Establishment of Internal Control Systems by Public Companies (hereinbelow, the "Regulations®). The criteria adopted by
the Regulations identify five components of internal control based on the process of management control: (1) control environment, (2)
risk assessment, (3) control activities, (4) information and communication, and (5) monitoring. Each component further contains several
items. Please refer to the Regulations for details.

4. TSMC has evaluated the design and operating effectiveness of its internal control system according to the aforesaid criteria.

5. Based on the findings of the evaluaticn mentioned in the preceding paragraph, TSMC believes that, during the year 2007, its internal
control system (including its supervision and management of subsidiaries), as well as its internal controls to menitor the achievement of
its objectives concerning operational effectiveness and efficiency, reliability of financial reporting, and compliance with applicable laws
and regulations, were effective in design and operation, and reasonably assured the achievement of the above-stated objectives.

6. This Statement will be an integral part of TSMC's Annual Report for the year 2007 and Prospectus, and will be made public. Any
falsehood, concealment, or other illegality in the content made public will entail legal liability under Articles 20, 32, 171, and 174 of the
Securities and Exchange Law.

7. This Statement has been passed by the Board of Directors in their meeting held an February 19, 2008, with zero of the eight attending

directors expressing dissenting opinions, and the remainder all affirming the content of this Statement.

Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited

Chairman of the Board of Directors

A}‘(wa/ Morris Chang

h_ Q . Rick Tsai
vele “—  President & CEO

The disclosure of the external auditors' opinion on TSMC's internal control is not applicable.




3.5 Status of Personnel Responsible for Preparing Financial Reports

No personnel responsible for preparing financial reports resigned or were dismissed in 2007, and as of February 29, 2008.

3.5.1 Certification Details of Employees Whose jobs are Related to the Release of the Company's Financial

Information
Number of Employees
Centicaton Intemal Audit Finance
Certified Public Accountants (CPA) 0 9
US Certified Public Accountants (US CPA) 2 5
Certified Intemal Auditor (C14) 8 4
Chartered financial Analyst (CFA} 0 2
Certified Management Accountant (CMA) 0 1
Financial Risk Manager {(FRM) 0 1
Cerficate in Financial Management (CFM) 0 1
Certification in Control Self-Assessment (CCSA) 3 0
Capability Examination on Entesprise Internal Control held by the Securities and Futures Institute {ICC-ROQ) 3 o
Cenified Information Systems Auditor {CISA) 2 0
Certified Information Systems Manager (C15M) i 0
Cerified Information Sysiems Secunty Pro‘essional (CISSP) ) [\
8577994150 27001 tead Auditor 2 ¢
SAP 4.6C Fl Consultant i [

3.6 Information Regarding TSMC's Independent Auditor

Audit Fees:

Unut: NT$ thousands

N ditF Whether the CPA's Audit Period Covers an
on-aud Fee Entire Fiscal Year
Accounting Firm Name of CPA Audit Fee Note
System Company Human I
Design | Registration Resource Others Subtatad Yes No Audit Period
Deloitte & Touche Hung-Wen Huang
Ming-Cheng Chang 82,399 - 81 - - 811 v

TSMC did not replace its independent auditor during 2006, 2007, and as of February 29, 2008.

TSMC's Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, and managers in charge of its finance and accounting operations did not hold
any positions within TSMC's independent audit firm or its affiliates during 2007.
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4.1 Capital and Shares

4.1.1 Capitalization

Unit: Share/NT$ As of 02/29/2008
Autharized Share Capital Capital Stock Remark
Issue Price ;
Month/¥ear Capital Increase
(Per Share) Shares Amount Shares Amount | Sources of Capitat by Assets Other g:z:e:fmml & Approval
than Cash '
032007 0 27,050,000,000 | 270,500,000,000 15,829,687,846 | 258295878460 | Exercise of Employee Stock Options None 03/07/2007 Yuan Shang Tzu
ha. 0960005253
0672007 10 28,050,000,000 | 280,500,000,000 25832958,219 | 258,329,592,190 | Exercise of Employee Stock Options None 06/7/2007 ‘uan Shang Tau
No, 0960014355
072007 0 28,050,000,000 | 280,500,000,000 16,419,387,460 | 264,193,874,600 | Capitalization of Prafits: None D7A0R/Z007 Yuan Shang Tzu
NT$5,089,391,770 and No. 0960017514
Capital Surplus: NT$774,850,640
0972007 i0 28,050,000000 | 280,500,000,000 25,423,516,808 264,235,168,080 | Exercise of Employee Stock Options None 09/12/2007 Yuan Shang Tzu
No. 0960024269
1212007 0 28,050,000,000 | 280,500,000,000 26,426,201,794 | 264,262,017,940 | Exerdse of Employee Stock Gptions None 12/26/2007 ‘Yuan Shang Tzu
No. 0950035468
4.1.2 Capital and Shares
Unit; Share As of 02/20/2008
Authorized Share Capital
Type of Stock Issued Shares Total
- - Unissued Shares
Listed Nen-listed
Common Stack 25,627,997,015 0 15,627,997,015 2,422,002,985 28,050,000,000

Shelf Registration: None.

4.1.3 Composition of Shareholders

Common Share

As of 06/16/2007 {last record date)

Type of Shareholders Government Agencies Financial Institutiens Other Juridical Persons hmig;::g:";::;‘:; Domestic Natural Persons Total
Number of Shazeholders 9 9% 836 2,156 435,991 439,090
Sharefielding 1,878,009,110 1,276,869,744 780,432,679 18,551,394,963 1933,673,334 26,420,379,830
Holding Perceniage (%) 111% 483% 2.95% T0.22% 14.89% 100.00%




Distribution Profile of Share Ownership

Comaan Share As of 06/16/2007 (ast record date)
Shareholder Ownership {Unit; Share) Number of Shareholders Ownership Ownership (%)
)~ 999 155,702 47,212,348 0.18%
1,000 ~ 5,000 172,380 396,636,356 1.50%
5001 ~ 10,000 48,646 330,748,443 1.25%
10,001 ~ 15,000 21,291 253,386,372 0.96%
15,001 ~ 20,00¢ 8,262 141,523,512 0.54%
30,001 -~ 30,000 11,623 178,897,'09 1.06%
30,001 ~ 40,000 5,483 187,313,168 0.71%
40,004 ~ 50,000 im 140,770,345 0.53%
50,001 ~ 100,000 5941 405,465,936 1.53%
100,001 ~ 200,000 281 188,820,975 147%
200,001 ~ 400,000 1477 406,238,567 1.54%
400,001 ~ 600,000 52 253,301,539 0.96%
600,001 ~ 800,000 26% 186,256,141 0.70%
800,001 ~ 1,000,000 168 149,850,675 057%
Over 1,000,001 1.287 22,853,647,944 86.50%
Total 439,080 26,420,3719,830 100.00%

Preferred Share: None,

4.1.4 Major Shareholders with 5% Shareholdings or More

Common Share

As of D6/16/2007 {last record date}

Shareholders Total Shares Owned Ownership {%)
ADR-Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company, Lid. 567,912,039 21.41%
Koninkljke Philips Electranics M.V, 2,111,490,224 7.99%
National Deveiopment Fund, Executive Yuan 1,637,228,303 6.20%
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4.1.5 Net Change in Shareholding and Net Change in Shares Pledged by Directors, Management and

Shareholders with 10% Shareholdings or More:

Unis: Share

Title/Name

2007

01/01/2008 ~ 02/29/2008

Net Change in Shareholding | Net Change in Shares Pledged (Note 1)

Net Change in Shareholding

Net Change in Shares Pledged {Note 1)

Chairman
Moris Chang

580,189

Vice Chairman
FC. Tseng

{1,582,058)

(270,000)

Director, President & Chief Executive Officer
Rick Tsai

3,207,992

{10,000

Director

Nationa! Development Fund, Executive Yuan
Representative;

Chintay Shih

8,144,075

Independent Director
Sir Peter Leahy Bonfleld

Independent Director
Lester Carl Thurow

Independent Director
$tan Shih

7,290

Independent Director
Carleton (Carly) S. Fiarina

Senior Vice President
Special Projects
Kenneth Kin

1,864,200

Senior Vice President & Chief Information Offices
Information Technology & Materials Management and
Risk Management

Stephen T. Tso

1,571,639

(60,000}

Senior Vice President
Advanced Technology Business
Mark L

1,252,486

{120,000)

Senior Vice President
Mainstream Technology Business
CC Wei

1,531,657

{400,000}

(117,000

Vice President
Mainstream Techrology Business
M.C. Tzeng

927,600

(63,000)

Vice President & General Counsel
Richard Thurston

962,264

580,000

(410,000)

60,000

Vice President, Chief Financial Officer & Spokesperson
Lora Ho

1,202,243

(70,000}

Vice President
Hurman Resources
PH. Chang

1,163,053

Vice President
Wordwide Sales and Marketing
Jason .5, Chen

831,279

470,000

{70.000)

Vice President
Design and Technolegy Platform
Fu-Chigh Hsu

1,265,874

(90.000)

Vice President
Research and Development
Wei-Jen Lo

1,014,802

(30,000)

Vice President
Research and Development
Jack Sun

657,313

£2060,000)

Vice President
Advanced Technology Business
YP Chin (Note 2)

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Vice Prasidert
Quality and Reliability
N.S. Tsai (Note 2)

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Senior Director
{orporate Planning
LC Ty

500,386

(24,000)

Senior Director
Intemal Audit
Jan Kees van Viet

589,794

Note 1: This refers to the creation of security interest over TSMC shares in favor of creditars, usually in connection with 3 shareholder's own financing activities.
Note Z: Mr. YP Chin and Mr. N.S. Tsai were promoted on February 19, 2008. Their net change in shareholding or shares predged was from 02/19/2008 to 02/29/2008.




4.1.6 Stock Trade with Related Party: None.

4.1.7 Stock Pledge with Related Party: None.

4.1.8 Information on Our 10 Largest Shareholders Who are Related Parties to Each Other: None of TSMCs 10 largest

shareholders are related parties to each other.

4.1.9 Long-term Investments Ownership

As of 12312007

Ownership by TSMC (1)

Direct/Indirect Ownership by Directors and

Total Ownership {1) + {2}

Long-term Investment Management (2
Shares I % Shares % Shares %
Equity Methex:
TSMC Intemational lnvesiment Lid. 987,968,244 100.0% 0 0% 987,958,244 100.0%
TSMC Partners, Ltd. 300,000 100.0% il % 300,000 100.0%
TSMC Globel, Ltd. 1,284 100.0% 0 % 1284 100.0%
TSMC North America 11,000,000 100.0% 0 0% 11,000,000 100.0%
TSMC Eurcpe BY. 00 100.0% 0 % 200 100.0%
TSMC Japan Limited 6,000 100.0% 0 0% 6,000 100.0%
TSMC Korea Umited 80,000 100.0% 0 0% 80,000 100.0%
Chi Cherng Investment Co., Ltd, Not Applicable (Note 2) 35.7% (Note 4) 0 % Not Applicable (Note 2) 35.7% {Note 4)
Hsin Ruey Investment Co., t1d. Nat Applicable (Mote 2) 35.7% (Note 5} 0 % Nex Applicable (Nate 2) 35.7% {Note 5)
TSMC (Shanghal) Company Lid. Not Applicable (Nete 2) 100.0% 0 0% Not Applicable (Note 3) 100.0%
Systems on Silicon Manufacturing Co. Pte Ltd. 463,350 38.8% 0 0% 463,350 388%
Vanguard Intemational Semiconductos Corp. 616,240,459 36.2% 212,654,033 16.0% (Note 1) 888,894,497 52.2%
XinTeg Inc, 91,702,823 41.5% 0 % 91,702 823 42.5%
Global UniChip Com. 42,512,353 31.0% 0 0% 42,572,353 31.0%
Emerging Alliance Fund, LR Not Applicable {Note 2) 92.5% 0 0% Nat Applicable {Note 2) 99.5%
VentureTech Alliance Fund I, LP Not Applicable {Note 2) 98.0% 0 0% Not Applicable {Note 2) 98.0%
VentureTech Alliance Fund IIl, L.P. Not Applicable {Note 2) 98.0% 0 0% Not Applicable (Note 2) 98.0%
Cost Method:
Non-publicly Traded
United Industrial Gases Co, Lid, 16,782,937 4.9% Not Available (Note 3) Not Available iNote 3) 16,782,937 9.9%
Shin-Etsu Handolai Taiwan Company Ltd. 10,500,000 1.0% Not Available (Note 3) Not Available {Note 3} 10,500,000 10%
Hortung Ventwre Capital Co,, Ltd. 2,632,867 10.5% Not Available (Note 3) Not Available (Note 3) 2,632,867 10.5%
W.K Technelogy Fund IV 4,000,000 1.5% Not Available (Note 3) Hot Available {Note 3) 4,000,000 1.9%
Funds:
Huvizon Ventures Fund Not Applicable {Note 2) 12.1% Not Applicable (Note 2) Not Avallable (Note 3) Not Applicable {Note 2) 12.1%
Lrimsen Asia Capital Not Applicable {Note 2) 1.0% Net Applicable (Note 2) Not Available iMote 3) Not Applicable {Note 2) 1.0%

Mote 1: 16.0% represents the shareholding owned by National Development fund, Executive Yuan
Note 2; Net applicable, These firms do not issue shares, TSMC's investment is measured as a percentage of ownership.
Note 3: Not lable. Not alf inf ion is labl

10 TSMC as of the report date.

Note 4: T5MC directly owns 35.7% and inditectly owns 64.3% in Chi Cherng Investment Co., Ltd., through Hsln Ruey Investment Co., i5d.
Note 5: TSMC direaly owns 35.7% and inditectly owns 64.3% in Hsin Ruey Investment Ca., Lid,, through Chi Chemg Investment Co., Lid,
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4.1.10 Share Information

TSMC's earnings per share decreased 15.9% in 2007 to NT$4.14 per share. The following table details TSMC's net werth, earnings, dividends and
market price per common share in 2007, as well as other data regarding return on investment.

Net Worth, Earnings, Dividends, and Market Price Per Common Share

Unit: NT$, except for weighted average shares and return on investiment ratios

Htem 2006 007 | 0110112008 ~ 0272972008
Market Price Per Share
Highest Market Price 64.80 (Note 1) 73.10 (Note 1) 63.60
Lowest Market Price 52.30 (Nete 1) 57.40 [Note 1) 49.60
Average Market Price 59.14 (Note 1) £3.72 [Note 1) 57.93
et Worth Per Share
Before Distribution 19.67 18.47
After Distribxition 16.49 (Note 2}
Earnings Per Share
Weighted Average Shares (thousand shates) 25,813,183 26,368,250
Diluted Earnings Per Share 492 414
Adjusted Diluted Eamings Per Share {Note 1) 481 {Wate 2)
Dividends Per Share
Cash Dividends 3.00 3.00 [Note 2)
Stock Dividends
Dividends from Retained Eamings 0.02 0.02 (Note 2)
Dividends from Capital Surplus 003 0.03 (Note 2)
Accumulated Undistributed Dividend
Return on investment
PricefEarnings Ratio (Mote 3) 12.30 {hote 2)
PricefDividend Ratio Note 4) 197 {Note 2)
Cash Dividerd Yield {Note 5) % {Nate 2)

Note 1: Retroactivety adjusted for stock dividends and stock bonuses to employees

Note I Pending shareholders’ approval

Note 3: PricefEamings Ratio = Average Market PricefAdjusted Diluted Eamings Per Share
Note 4: Price/Dividend Ratio = Average Market Price/Cash Dividends Per Share

Note 5: Cash Dividend Yield = Cash Dividends Per Share/Average Market Price

4.1.11 Dividend Policy

TSMC's profits may be distributed by way of cash dividend and/or stock dividend. The preferred method of distributing profits is by way of cash
dividend. Under TSMC's Articles of Incorporation, stock dividend shall not exceed 50% of the total dividend distribution in any given fiscal year.
Except under certain conditions specified in the Company's Articles of Incorporation, TSMC does not pay dividends when there is no profit or
retained earnings.

4.1.12 Distribution of Profit

The Board adopted a proposal for 2007 profit distribution at its Meeting on February 19, 2008. The proposed profit distribution will be effected
according to the relevant regulations, upon the approval of shareholders at the Annual Shareholders' Meeting on June 13, 2008,




Proposal to Distribute 2007 Profits

4.2 Issuance of Corporate Bonds

Unit: NT$
Bonus to Birectors 176,889,955 4.2.1 Corporate Bonds
{ash Dividends to Common Shareholders (NT$3.0 per share) 76,881,311,145 As of 02/20/2008
Stock Dividends to Comemon Sharehalders (NT50.02 per share at 512,542,080 Jssuatce Domestic Unsecured Bond { )
par value, i-2., 2 shares for each 1,000 shares owned; equivalent -
to underlying 51,254,208 Shares} {Note 1) Issuing Date 0¥/10/2002 - 0172412002
Emplayees’ Profit Sharing in Cash 3,939,883,064 Denomination NT$1,000.000
NT$5,000,000
Employees' Profit Sharing in Stock {Equivaent to underiying 3,939,843,080 ——
393,588,308 shares) {Note 2) Offering Price Par
Note 1:In addition, it is proposed 1o capitalize 2 portion of capital surplus 1n the amount of NT$768,813,120. For each Total Amount HT$15,000,000,000
1.000 shares cwned, each common share holder will be entitled to receive 3 shares from such capitalization of Eoupon Rate Tranche A: 2.60% pa.
capital syrplus, and, together with the 2 shares of stock dividend as mentioned above, 5 shares in total. Tranche §: 2.75% pa.
Nate 2: Employee profit sharing paid in stock as a % of total capitalization of stock dividends and employee profit Tranche C: 3.00% pa.
sharing paid in stock: B8.49%
Note 3: Pro farma earnings per share with profit sharing paid to directars and employees (cash and stock} expensed at Tenure Tra"(h_e A:§ years
fair market value {based on the dosing price at the end of fiscal year): NT$3.06 Maturity: 014102007 - 01/2272¢07
Tranche B: 7 years
Maturity: 01/10/2009 - 0172412009
Tranche C: 10 years
According to the Company's Articles of Incorporation, TSMC shall Malurity: 0111072012 - 042412612
allocate no more than 0.3% of earnings available for distribution (net Guarantor None
income after a regulatory required deduction for prior years' losses Tnustee TC Bank
and contributions to legal and special reserves) as a bonus to Underwriter ot Apphcatte
H 0,
directors, and not [ess than 1% as bonus to employees. Legal Counsel Yan-an Intemational Law Offce
s e . . . . Auditor TH Soong & Co
2006 Profit Distribution Set Aside as Directors & Supervisors " !
. . . Repayment Buflet
Compensation, and Employee Profit Sharing: Lkl
Qutstanding N1§12,500,000,000
Board Resolution :
Redemption or Early Repayment Clause None
(02106/2007) Actual Result pi ¥ Repay
Underying Covenants Customary Covenants
Amount (NTS) Amourt (NTS) Number of Shares Dilution {%) Credit Rating whAAA (Taiwan Ratings Comoration, 09712/2007)
Birectors & Supervisars 285,799,875 285,799,875 Gther Rights of Conversion Right None
i Bondhold
Compensation {Cas) nenoler Amourt of Converted or Mot Appiicable
Employee Profit Shating 4,572,797,994 4,512,797,994 Exchanged Common
in Cash Shares, ADRs or Other
- - Securities as of 02/29/200%
Employee Frofit Sharing 4,572,798,010 4,512,798, 10 457,279,801 1.73%
in Stock Dilution Effect and Other Advesse Effects on Existing ( None
h |
Toul 9431395873 | 9431395879 Shareholders
Custadian None

4.1.13 Impact to 2008 Business Performance and EPS
Resulting from Stock Dividend Distribution: Not
applicable.

4.1.14 Buyback of Common Stock

As o 022972008
Buyback Man Second Buyback Plan
Purpase For the shareholders interest
Period 1114/2007 ~ 12312007

Planned Buyback Price Range (NTS) 43,20 ~ 94.20 per comman share

Class and Mumber of Shares Bought Back 800,000,000 common shares

Value of Shares Bought Back {NT$) 48,466,957,100

Number of Shares Cancelled or Transferred [Note} 0

Accumuiated Number of Treasury Shares Held {Note) 500,000,000 common shares

Accumutated Treasury Shares Held 25 a % of Toial Ouistanding Shares | 3.03%

Note: The shares bought back were subsequently cancelled i March 2008,

4.2.2 Convertible Bond: None.
4.2.3 Exchangeable Bond: None.
4.2.4 Shelf Registration: None,
4.2.5 Bond with Warrants: None.
4.3 Preferred Shares

4.3.1 Preferred Share: None.

4.3.2 Preferred Share with Warrants: None.
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4.4 Issuance of American Depositary Shares

Issuing Date 10/08/1997 117201998 0H12/1999 - 071151999 0872311999 . 02/22/2000 - 04/17/2000 06/07/2000 -
/1411999 09/09/1999 03/08/2000 06/15/2000
Issuance & Listing NYSE NYSE NYSE NYSE NYSE NYSE NYSE NYSE
Total Amount {USS) 594,720,000 184,554,440 35,500,000 296,499,641 158,897,08% 379,134,599 224,640,000 1,167.873,850
Offering Price Per ADS [USS) | 24.78 15.26 175 24515 28964 57.79 56.16 3505
Units kssued 24,000,000 12,094,000 1,000,000 12,094,000 5,486,000 6,560,000 4,000,000 32,667,800
Underlying Securities TSMC Comemen TSMC Comman TSMC Commen TSMC Common TSMC Common Shares | TSMC Commen Shares | TSMC Cammen Cash Offering and
Shares from Selling Shares from Selling Shares from Selling Shares from Sefling from Selling from Selling Shares from Selling TSMC Common
Shareholders Shareholders Sharehglders Shareholders Sharehalders (Pursuant | Sharehalders (Pursuant | Shareholders Shares from Selling
10 ADR Conversion 10 ADR Conversion Shareholders
Sale Program) Sale Program)
Common Shares Represented | 120,000,000 60,470,000 10,000,000 50,470,000 27,430,000 32,300,000 20,000,000 163,339,000
Rights & Cbligations of ADS | Same as those of Same as those of Same as those of Same as those of Same as these of Same as those of Same as those of Same as these of
Holders {ommon Share Common Share Common Share Common Share Common Share {omman Share Comman Share Common Share
Holders Holders Holders Holders Holders Holders Holders Holders
Trustee Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Apglicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable
Depasitary Bank Citibank, N.A. - Citbank, N.A. - Citibank, N.A. - Citibank, N.A. - Civbank, N.A. - Ciubank, NA. - Citibank, N.A, - Citibank, N.A, -
New York New York Mew York New York New York New York New York New York
Custodian Bank Ciibank, N.A. - Citbank, NA. - Citibank, NA, - Citibank, N.A. - Cithank, N.A. - {itibank, N.A. - Citibank, N.A, - Citbank, NA. -
Taipei Branch Taipei Branch Teipei Branch Taipei Branch Taipei Branch Taipei Branch Taipei Branch Taipei Branch
ADSs Outstanding {Notel} 14,000,000 46,222,650 48,222 550 11,407,859 76,893,859 83,453,859 87453859 144,608,739
Apportienment of Expenses (Note 2) {Note 3)
for Issuance & Maintenance
Terms and Conditions inthe | See Deposit See Deposit See Depasit Sea Deposit See Deposit See Depasit See Deposit See Deposit
Deposit Agreement & Custody [ Agreement and Agreement ang Agreement and Agreement and Agreement and Agreement and Agreement and Agreement and
Agreement Custody Agreement Custody Agreement Custody Agreement Custody Agreement Custody Agreement Custody Agreement Custody Agreement Custody Agreement
for Details for Details for Details for Details for Details for Desails for Details for Details
Closing Price Per ADS (USS) 2007 High 1,74
Low .11
Average 10.32
01/0172008 - High V0.4
0272972008 or 19
Average 9.24

Note 1: TSMC has in aggregate issued 813,544,500 ADSs since 1997, which, if taking into consideration stock dividend distributed over the pericd. would amount to 1,136,856,859 ADSs. As of February 29, 2008, total number of outstanding ADSs
was 1,129,367,405 alter 7,529,454 ADSs were redeemed. Stock dividends digstributed in 1398, 1999, 2000, 2001, 2002, 2003, 2004, 2005, 2006 and 2007 was 45%. 23%. 28%. 40%. 10%. 8%. 14.08668%, 4.9997 1%, 2.99%03% and

0.49991% respectively.

Note 2: All fees and expenses such as underwriting fees, legal fees, listing fees and other expenses related 1o issuance of ADSs were borne by the selling sh.

borne by TSMC.

Note 3: All fees and expenses such as underwriting fees, legal fees. listing fees and other expenses related 10 issuance of ADSs were borne by TSMC and the selfing shareholders, while maintenance expenses such as annual listing fees and accountant

fees were borne by TSMC.

helders, while

such as annoal listing fees and accountant fees were




05/14/2001 - 06/12/2001 000 02/07/2002 - 112172002 - 07/14/2003 1111412003 08/10/2005 - 05/23/2007

06/11/2001 02/08/2002 121912002 0772172003 09/08/2005

NYSE NYSE NYSE NYSE NYSE NYSE NYSE NYSE NYSE

240,999,660 297,649,640 320,600,000 5,001,850,000 160,087,914 903,514,880 4,077,000,000 4,402,036,500 2,563,200,000

20.63 20.63 16.03 16.75 8.13 10.40 wnn 86 10.68

11,682,000 14,428,000 20,000,000 55,800,000 18,348,000 87,357,200 100,000,000 163,027,500 240,000,000

TSMC Cornrmon Shares | TSMC Comemon Shares | TSMC Common Shares | TSMC Commean Shares | TSMC Common Shares | TSMC Commen Shares | TSMC Common Shares | TSMC Common Shares [ TSMC Comman Shares

from Selling from Selling from Selling from Selling from Selling from Selling from Selling from Selling from Selling

Sharehalders (Pursuant | Sharehelders Shareholders Shareholders Shareholders (Pursuant | Sharehalders Shareholders Shareholders Shareholders

10 ADR Conversion to ADR Conversion

Sale Program) Sale Program)

58,410,000 72,140,000 100,000,000 299,000,000 91,740,000 436,785,000 500,000,000 815,137,500 1,200,000,000

Same as those of Same as those of Same as those of Same as those of Same as those of Same as those of Same as those of Same as those of Same as those of

Commen Share Common Share Common Share Common Share Comman Share Commen Share Common Share Common Share Comman Share

Holders Holders Holders Holders Holders Holders Holders Holders Holders

Not Applicable Not Applicable Nat Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable ot Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable

Citibank, N.A. - Crsbank, N.A. - Ciibank, N.A. - Citibank, N.A, - Citibank, N.A. - Citibank, N.A. - Citibank, N.A, - Citibark, N.A. - Ceibank, N.A, -

New York New York New York New York New York New York New Yark New York New York

Citibank, N.A. - Citibank, N.A. - Ctibank, N.A. - Cuibark, NA, - Cnhank, N.A. - Citibank, NA. - Citibank, N.A. - Citihank, N.A. - Cishank, N.A, -

Taipei Branch Taipei Branch Taipei Branch Taipei Branch Taipei Branch Taipei Branch Taipei Branch Taipei Branch Taipei Branch

156,290,739 170,718,739 255,006,235 118,806,235 369,019,413 485,898,166 585,898,166 §64,210,597 1,128,739,639
{Note 2)

See Deposit Agreement | See Deposit Agreement | See Deposit Agreement | See Deposit Agreement | See Depost Agreement | See Deposit Agreement | See Deposit Agreement | See Deposit Agreement | See Deposit Agreement

and Custody and Custody and Custody and Custody and Custody and Custody and Custody and Custody and Custody

Agreement for Details | Agreement for Details | Agreement for Details |  Agreement for Details | Agreement for Details |  Agreement for Detalls | Agreement for Detalls | Agreement for Details | Agreement for Details
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4.5 Status of Employee Stock Option Plan

4.5.1 Issuance of Employee Stock Options

Employee Stock Options Granted First Grant Second Grant Third Grant

Approval Date by the Securities & Futures Bureau 06/25/2002 06/25/2002 06/25/2002

Issue (Grant) Date 08/22/2002 11/08/2002 03/07/2003

Number of Optioos Geanted 18,909,700 1,085,000 5,488,514

Percentage of Shares Exerdsable to Qutsianding Common Shares 0.10154% 0.00583% 0.03485%

Option Deration 10 years 10 years 10 yzars

Source of Option Shares New Common Share Kew Common Share New Common Share

Vesting Schedule 2nd Year: up 10 50% 2nd Year: up to 50% 2nd Year: up lo 50%
3rd Year: up to 75% 3rd Year: up 10 15% 3rd Year: up 10 75%
4th Year: up o 100% 4th Year: up 0 100% 4th Yeat: up 10 100%

Shares Exercised 13,074,921 1,025,657 1,034,539

Value of Shares Exercised (NT$) 484,990,600 35,888,631 30,912,280

Shares Unexercised 1318113 380,872 6,400,862

Original Grant Price Per Share (NT$} NT$53.0 NT$51.0 NT$41.6

Adjusted Exercise Price Per Share (NT$) NT$329 NT$31.7 NT$25.3

Percentage of Shares Unexercised to Qutstanding Common Shares 0.02792% 0.00144% 0.02422%

Impact to Shareholders' Equity Dilution t Shareholders' Dilution to Shareholders' Dilution to Shareholders'
Equity s Limited Equity is Limited Equity is Limited

4.5.2 Employee Stock Options Granted to Management Team and to Top 10 Employees with an Individual Grant

Value over NT$30,000,000

" Number of Options Granted % of Shares Exercisable to
Title Name {Note 2} Outstanding Common Shares
Chaisman Marris Chang [Note 1)

President & Chief Executive Officer Rick Tsai {Note 1)
Senior Vice President Mark Liu (Note 1)
Senior Vice President Stephen T. Tso (Note 1)
3814295 001443%
Senior Vice President Kenneth Kin (Note 1)
Senior Vice President C.C. WeiiNote 1)
Vice President Jack Sun (Note 1)
Vice President & General Counsel Richard Thurstan {Note 1)

Note 1: TSMC granted ogptions to certain of its officers {as kisted above) as a result of their voluntary selection to exchange part of their profit sharing for stock optians in 2003. This inctudes a voluntary exchange by Chairman Martis Chang in his

capacity as Chiel Executive Officer,

Hote 2: Number of options granted inckudes the additional shares due to stock dividend distributed in 2004, 2005, 2006 and 2007.

4.6 Status of New Share Issuance in Connection with Mergers and Acquisitions

TSMC did not issue new shares in connection with mergers or acquisitions in 2007, and as of the date of this Annual Report.

4.7 Financing Plans and Implementation: not appticable.




As of 121332007

fourth Grant Fifth Grant Sixth Grant Seventh Grant Eighth Grant Ninth Grant
06/25/2002 1012572003 1012912003 10/29/2003 1012972003 01/06/2005
06062003 1210312003 0211972004 0511172004 0871172004 05/1712005
23,050,550 B42,500 18,720 11,167,817 135,300 10,742,350
0.12399% 0.00416% 0.00008% 0.05510% 0.00058% 0.04620%
10 years 10 years 10years 10 years 10vears 10years
New Common Share New Common Share New Common Share New Common Share New Comemon Share New Common Share
20d Year, up to 50% 2nd Year. up to 50% 2nd Year: up 1o 50% 2nd Year: up 10 50% 2nd Year; up 1o 50% 2nd Year: up to 50%
3rd Year, up to 15% 3rd Year: up 10 75% 3rd Year. up 10 75% 3rd Year: up 1o 75% 3rd Year: up to 75% 3rd Year: up to 75%
Ath Year: up to 100% 4th Year: up to 100% 4th Year: up ta 100% dth Year: up to 100% 4th Year: up to 100% 4th Year: up to 100%
10,185,496 217,218 2,764 4,787,202 55,663 2,077,847
404,387,594 11,435,449 136,430 216,488,294 2,205,709 100,132,951
14,367,080 436,154 12,566 5,609,165 77,663 1.212,205
NT$58.5 NT$66.5 NF363.5 NT$57.5 NT$43.8 HTS54.3
NT$36.4 NT$51.3 NT$48.9 NT$44.2 NT$389 NT$48.2
(.05436% 0.00¢65% 0.00005% 0.02123% 0.00029% 0.02725%
Dilution to Shareholders' Dilution to Shareholders' Dilution to Shareholders' Dilution to Shareholders' Dilution to Sharehoiders' Dilution to Shareholders'
Equity is Limited Equity is Limited Equity is Uimited Equity is Limited Equity is Lirited Equity is Limited
As of 123172007
Exercised Unexercised
Shares Exercised |  Exercise Price Per Share Value_of Shares * 52:’;];:::':: Shares Unexercised Adjasted Grant Price Value_oi Shares Ul?:;idsszzrf:
Exerdised (NT$) Common Shares Per Share Unexercised (NTS) Outstanding Common
Shares
116,662 k] 3,488,194 0.00045% 3,697,634 259 95,768,229 001399%
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5.1 Business Activities
5.1.1 Business Scope

TSMC's business scope is IC foundry and associated services. The
Company excels in all aspects of its business, including
semiconductor process technology research and development, wafer
manufacturing, logistics management, capacity utilization, customer
service, and associated services such as design services, mask
manufacturing, wafer probing, in-house bumping and testing. TSMC
strives to provide the best overall value to customers; the success of
TSMC's business is manifested in the success of its customers.

5.1.2 Customer Applications

Qver the past 20 years, more than 500 customers worldwide have
relied on TSMC to manufacture chips that are used across the entire
spectrum of electronic applications, including computers and
peripherals, information appliances, wired and wireless
communications systems, automotive and industrial equipment,
consumer electronics such as DVDs, digital TVs, game consoles,
digital still cameras (DSCs), and many other applications.

The rapid evolution of end products drives our customers to utilize
TSMC's innovative technologies and services, while at the same time
spurring TSMC's own development of technology. As always, success
depends on leading rather than following industry trends.

5.1.3 Shipments and Gross Sales in 2007 and 2006

Unit: Shipments (8-inch equivalent wafers} /Grass Sales {NT$ thousands)

5.2 Technology Leadership
5.2.1 R&D Organization and Investment

TSMC increased its research and development investment and
expanded its world-class R&D organization in 2007, strengthening its
lead in providing best-in-class semiconductor technologies and
design solutions to its customers. The Company also expanded its
R&D in mainstream and derivative technologies, advanced CMOS and
system-on-chip {(SoC). R&D expenditure reached NT$17.9 billion,
while R&D staff grew by 14.5% during the same pericd. The
Company will continue to invest significant amounts in research and
development in 2008.

TSMC has accelerated its developments of transistor, memory, and
interconnect technologies with a new R&D organization. During
2007, the R&D organization once again proved its value by providing
a first-to-market portfolio of 45am foundry technology as well as the
industry's first 32nm capability. TSMC also expanded its external R&D
partnerships and alliances with world-class research institutions. For
example, TSMC is a core member of IMEC, the respected European
CMOS R&D consortium. TSMC also has a partnership agreement with
NXP, a semiconductor company with world-class technology, to
conduct exploratory research and modeling in advanced CMOS,
beyond CMOS, and special "more than Moore" technologies. In
addition, TSMC has strengthened its collaborative research with key
partners on design-process aptimization. TSMC also continues to
fund nanotechnology research at major universities worldwide to
promaote innovation and the advancement of technology.

These research efforts enable the Company to offer its customers
industry-leading, first-to-market technology and design solutions,
helping to ensure their product success in this complex and
challenging nanometer era.

R&D Expenditures @mount: NTS theusnads)

2006 16,076,432
2007 17,946,322
01/01/2008
~{2/29/2008 3,656,210

2007 2006

Shipments Gross Sales Shipments Gross Sales

Domestic 1442285 | 38,066,322 1087883 | 30945735

ate Expor 6255368 | 246329080 |  5.6/0064 | 206018463

Domestic 53 15641 104 8,548

Padage Export 303427 12,192,114 238596 | nsM

Domesiic 15,945 3,471,781 13,968 3,050,487

e Bxor 05148 | 19,104387 2065 | 1795934

Domestic 1458283 | 41,541,714 1101955 | 34004770

foal Expor 6,601,943 | 277625585 B149708 | 285205378
5.1.4 Production in 2007 and 2006

Unit: CapacityfOutpu! (8-inch equivalent wafers) fAmount {NT$ thousands)
Wafers

Year Capacity Output Amount

2007 8,285,788 7,861.951 164,625,063

3006 7,061,856 7,154,333 147,668,132

5.2.2 R&D Accomplishments in 2007

R&D Highlights

¢ 45 Nanometer Technology

2007 was a outstanding year for TSMC's 45nm technology. In the
third quarter of 2007, we extended our technology leadership in the
foundry sector with qualification and delivery of the first 45nm low-
power technology (N45LP} including advanced 193nm immersion
lithography, competitive performance-enhancing silicon strains, and
extreme low-k inter-metal dielectric material. Our N45LP is believed to
have the world's best density and speed at the lowest standby
leakage for wireless/RF SoC and handheld applications.




TSMC's leadership in immersion lithography and its success in 45nm
technology also paved the road for its successful development of
40nm technology. Both high-performance and low-power 40nm
technologies have demonstrated both best-in-class performance and
density with good yield. The Company expects to wrap up its
development of the 45nm and 40nm technology portfolios in 2008.

As a part of TSMC's shift towards building stronger and tighter
foundry-customer co-development relationships for advanced
technology, very intensive customer engagement and collaboration
were involved throughout the development of both the 45nm and
40nm technologies. This win-win business model was successfully
demeonstrated as TSMC's new 45nm technology enabled and
accelerated customer success. For example, one key TSMC customer
successfully placed phone calls using the world's first 45nm 3G
cellular phane chip in 2007.

TSMC's 45nm and 40nm technologies extended the Company's
industry leadership not only on technical metrics such as
performance, power and density, but also in terms of development
milestones and customer shuttle verifications. The Company provided
its customers with the first-to-market cyber shuttle for both the
45nm and 40nm technologies. First-wave customers have already
used more than 200 shuttle blocks.

* 32 Nanometer Technology

In 2007, TSMC led the industry in demonstrating the first 32nm
technology, which supported both analog and digital functionalities.
The 0.15u¢m? high-density SRAM cell was realized using 193nm
immersion lithography. The full functionality of the 2Mb SRAM test
chip was proven with the smallest bit-cell at the 32nm node. This
leading-edge technology was optimized for low power, high density
and manufacturing margins with optimal process complexity. TSMC
plans to provide complete digital, analog and RF functions, as well as
high-density memory capabilities at the 32nm node for integrated RF
and SoC applications.

TSMC also demonstrated a general-purpose 32Znm technology with
functional SRAMs intended for high-end ASIC and graphics
applications. In addition, the Company has made excellent progress
in 32nm high-K/metal gate technology for high performance
applications. Early feasibility results were published by TSMC in 2007,

® Immersion Lithography

Immersion lithography provides better depth of focus and enables
the industry to continue scaling beyond the 65nm node, all the way
to 22nm. It has been more than 5 years since Dr. Burn Lin of TSMC
proposed immersion lithography. TSMC was the first to demonstrate
90nm SRAM using the immersion scanner in 2004. The Company was
also the first to achieve single-digit immersion-related defects on
300mm wafers in early 2006, demonstrating 65nm customer product
chip yield in July 2006. The Company yielded 32Mb SRAM with 45nm
process in December 2006, and qualified 45nm at the end of 2007,

TSMC led the industry in achieving manufacturing-ready immersion
lithography for the 45nm generation. The Company developed
proprietary techniques and resist systems to produce nearly defect-
free immersion lithography patterning for volume production.

Overlay performance was also raised to a new level consistent with
the requirements of our 45nm and 40nm veolume productions, which
had the tightest design rules in the industry.

¢ Long-term Research

2007 was also a great year for TSMC in its expansion of long-term
research. One of the technological breakthroughs reported by the
NXP-TSMC Research Partnership was a revolutionary embedded
memory technology with superior performance, up to 1000 times
faster than traditional non-volatite memories, coupled with scalability
and reduced power consumption. The estimated power consumption
is at least one order of magnitude tower than existing solutions. This
technology will be helpful, for example, to prevent data stream
interruptions and increase the security of transactions while using
near field communication (NFC) to complete mohile payment
transactions or content upload.

Another breakthrough was a quartz-replacement resonator for
producing smaller and thinner clocks in silicon chips than currently
using traditional quartz crystals. This makes it possible to embed
clocks into smart cards or SIM cards, which can be used to improve
the cryptographic protection of smart cards.

There was also the excellent progress on the next-generation
transistor technology in 2007. The research team demonstrated high-
performance FinFET devices featuring an optimized gatestack.
Another example was the improvement of power consumption in low
operational power CMOS devices. Using rapid circuit-based
optimization, power consumption was effectively reduced by 80%.

Spectrum of Technologies

Beyond the highlights above, TSMC continued to develop a broad
mix of new technologies. The Company accelerated its SoC roadmap,
including embedded DRAM {eDRAM} and RF with earlier availability,
higher integration and more variants. We are on our way to bring up
45nm RF and eDRAM availabilities by 3 to 6 months after the
readiness of the logic platform.

¢ Embedded DRAM

Embedded DRAM is important for many applications, such as game
consoles, digital TVs, networking, base stations, and hard-disk drives.
TSMC's eDRAM is fully compatible with the Company's logic
technology. In 2007, TSMC qualified 65nm embedded DRAM
technologies for both high-speed and low-power applications. These
technologies will enter production in early 2008. Several customer
products have already been successfully pitoted. We also successfully
demonstrated 45nm low-power (N45LP) eDRAM and made excellent
progress in 40nm general-purpose eDRAM technology.

* Mixed Signal/Radio Frequency (M5/RF} Technology

TSMC completed 65nm MS/RF low-power product qualification in
2007 and successfully moved into production. The technology has
enabled one leading cellular phone company to tape out its cellular
product with proven 5oC functionality. 45nm MS/RF technology was
also developed in partnership with early customers. This technology
has provided approximately 15% corner tightening for Metal-Oxide-
Metal capacitors, an improvement that was also retrofitted to 90nm
and 80nm technologies, as well as providing a wide-range inductor
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for various design applications. A HYMOS was also developed to
fulfill power-management design needs.

¢ Silicon Germanium BiCMOS Technology

Through intensive yield improvement efforts, TSMC's silicon
germanium (SiGe) BiICMOS technology achieved the same yield level
as its MS/RF CMOS5 technology. Combined with the Through-Silicon-
Via (TSV} technology developed in 2007, TSMC's SiGe BiCMOS
technology can now provide a high-performance, cost-effective
solution to power amplifier applications, enabling a higher level of
design integration. A variety of passive devices were also developed,
including a high-density (2.0Ff/ym?) metal-insulator-metal (MiM)
capacitor, 46KA ultra-thick-metal, and a linear poly/sinker capacitor,
for cost-effective yet high-performance MS/RF design.

* CMOS Image Sensor Technology

A high-performance, low-cost 0.111m 4T CMOS image sensor (CIS)
process with aluminum-copper backend was successfully developed
and qualified by TSMC in 2007. This new process aimed at high-end
imaging applications with a small pixel size of 1.75um and high
resolutions of greater than three megapixels. It was compatible with
TSMC's 0.13um CMOS logic, which enabled SoC platforms in mobile
phones, digital cameras, security sensors, automotive applications
and other image sensor markets. Color backside illumination image
capability was also successfully demonstrated. This can extend
0.11um CIS technology to smaller pixel sizes {1.4um) and ultra-high
resolutions (larger than eight megapixels).

® Flash/Embedded Flash Technology

In 2007, TSMC also completed the qualification of its automotive-
grade application using embedded flash (embFlash) processes at the
0.18um technology node. Production is well underway. In addition,
0.13pm embFlash technology was also qualified for commercial
embFlash prototype activities. For next-generation embFlash
technology, a new cell with scaling capabilities of the 90nm and
65nm nodes was demonstrated. A test vehicle with 32Mb flash IP has
been proven with good yield,

® Mask Technology

Mask technolegy is an integral part of advanced lithegraphy. TSMC
has developed proprietary resolution-enhancement techniques that
were highly optimized with our in-house mask-making technology,
including optical proximity correction (OPC), subresolution-assist
mask features, and phase-shifting masks. In 2007, we implemented a
low-cast, high-precision OPC methodology based on our proprietary
hardware and software approaches. Our OPC methodology
significantly improved the cycle time, while maintaining the high
accuracy required for both the 45nm and 32nm technology nodes.
Fast Lithography Process Check (LPC) technology and Design For
Manufacturing (DFM) were also being extended to the 45nm node.
TSMC mask facilities featured state-of-the-art E-beam mask writers,
etchers, and inspection and repair tools for both R&D and production
usages at 45nm, and were moving steadily towards 32nm. TSMC's
strength in mask technology provides significant benefits to our
customers in terms of technical excellence, quality, fast cycle time,
and one-stop service.

5.2.3 Intellectual Property

A strong portfolio of intellectual property strengthens TSMC's
technology leadership. In 2007, TSMC received 462 U.S. patents, 322
Taiwanese patents, 111 PRC patents, and other patents issued in
countries around the world. We are in the process of implementing a
unified model for TSMC's intellectual capital management. Strategic
considerations and close alignment with business objectives now
drive the creation, management and use of our intellectual property.

At TSMC, we have built a process to extract value from our
intellectual property by aligning our intellectual property strategy
with our R&D, marketing, and corporate development strategies.
Intellectual property rights protect our freedom to operate, enhance
our competitive position, and give us leverage to participate in many
profit-generating activities.

We have worked continuously to improve the quality of our
intellectual property portfolio and to reduce the cost of maintaining
it. We expect to continue investing in our intellectual property
portfolio and intellectual property management system to ensure
that we receive maximum business value from our intellectual
property rights.

5.2.4 Future R&D Plans

In 2008, TSMC plans to focus on the development and qualification
of the 32nm logic/mixed signa! technology platforms as well as the
exploratory study of a 22nm logic technology platform. Both nodes
should have superior transistor performance, high-k dielectric and
metal gate processes. Other development projects will include 45nm
embedded DRAM; 45nm/40nm mixed signal/RF for communications
applications; embedded flash IP development in 90nm/65nm
technologies; and 90nm CMOS image sensor technology.

Following the significant successes of TSMC's advanced technologies
in 2007, the Company plans to continue to grow the R&D
organization. TSMC will further expand the 300mm R&D pilot line to
speed up 32nm qualification with its early engagement customers
and the 22nm exploratory research programs with world-leading
research institutions. We plan to reinforce our exploratory
development work on new transistors and technologies such as 3D
structures, MRAM, strained-layer CMOS, and novel 3D-IC devices with
TSV. The study of the fundamenta! physics of nanometer CMOS
transistors is a core aspect of our efforts to improve the
understanding and guide the design of transistors at advanced
nodes. The findings of these studies are being applied to ensure our
continued industry leadership at the 32nm and 22nm nodes. One of
TSMC's goals is to extend Moore's law through innovative in-house
work, as well as by collaborating with industry leaders and academia
to push the envelope in finding cost-effective technologies and
manufacturing solutions.

TSMC plans to continue working closely with international consortia
and photolithography equipment suppliers to ensure the timely
development of 193nm high-NA scanner technology, liquid
immersion lithography, EUV lithography, and massively parallel E-




Beam direct-write technologies. These technologies are now
fundamental to our process development efforts at the 32nm and
22nm nodes and beyond.

TSMC plans to continue its collaboration with mask inspection
equipment suppliers to develop viabie inspection techniques. This
collaborative partnership should help to ensure that we maintain our
leadership position in mask quality and cycle time, and continue to
meet aggressive R&D, prototyping and production requirements.

Overall, TSMC will continue to invest heavily to expand our R&D
capabilities. With a highly competent and dedicated R&D team and
unwavering commitment to innovation, we are confident of our
ability to deliver the best and most cost-effective SoC technologies
for our customers, and to support our business growth and
profitability.

TSMC R&D future major project summary:

Risk Production

Project Name (Estimated Target Dates)

Description

40nm logic platform
technology and applications

40nm general-purpase and low-power ScC 2008
technologies with embedded memory and
analog/RF

32nm logic platfrm
technology and applications

Next-generation technology for both digitaland | 2009
analog products

12m logic platform Exploratory technology for both digitat and 20M

technology and applications | analoq oroducts

3¢ Low cest solution with better form factor and 20102011
performance for $IP

Next-generation lithography | EUY and multiple E-Beam to extend Moore's 2011212
Law

Long-term research Special SoC technology finduding new NYM, 20122014

MEMS, RF analog) ard 15nm teansistors

The bave plans accaunt for soughly 70% of total corporate R&D budget in 2008.

5.3 Manufacturing Excellence
5.3.1 Efficiency

Fast Yield Ramp Up

Fast yield ramp for new products is a key factor behind the success of
TSMC and its customers. The Company has developed a
comprehensive technology transfer methodology extending from
R&D to production in order to shorten new technology learning
curve, TSMC's seamless technology transfer also enables consistent
yields when customers transfer production to a second internal fab.
In 2007, the Company delivered a significant breakthrough on 65nm
ramp-up by shortening the yield learning curve by 20% in
comparison with that of the previous generation, 90nm.

Accurate Delivery

TSMC has a proven record of providing customers with consistent on-
time delivery. To become even more responsive to our customers’
need for flexibility in delivery, TSMC has re-engineered its demand
fulfillment system with a state-of-the-art manufacturing scheduling
system. The system further enhances the accuracy of our deliveries to
our customers.

Best-in-Class Cycle Time Management

One of the keys to our customer's success is TSMC's ability to deliver
products with short demand fulfillment cycle times. To achieve this
for our customers, TSMC has developed a sophisticated
manufacturing scheduling and dispatching system, implemented
industry-leading automated materials handling systems, and
employed effective lean manufacturing approaches. TSMC strives
unceasingly to improve the productivity of hoth people and
equipment, and its cycle times are among the best in the
semiconductor industry.

Flexible Manufacturing Management

Flexible Manufacturing is a crucial element that addresses the
fluctuations in demand forecast. In most cases, TSMC has the ability
to meet unanticipated customer demand surges, thanks in large part
to our cluster fab capability as well as extensive know-how in
performance matching for both tools and Fabs.

Knowledge Management

TSMC has built the industry's leading, state-of-the-art knowledge
management, and Best Known Method (BKM} systems. TSMC
maintains a vast repository system for key knowledge. This database
also features a sophisticated expert system that embeds the captured
knowledge into TSMC's engineering system.

Inventory Management

TSMC made continuous improvements in materials and inventory
management in 2007. Demand and supply information from the
materials management and other related departments was

integrated using a system of real-time updates and reports. The
system is intended to improve the Company's responsiveness to wafer
demand forecasts. The speed and accuracy of TSMC's response has
heen improved through real-time demand information sharing. This
ensures that the Company can continue to appropriately respend to
ever-changing industry conditions.

5.3.2 GigaFab™

TSMC's 12-inch fabs are a key part of its manufacturing strategy.
TSMC currently operates two 12-inch GigaFabs™ — Fab 12 and Fab
14. The combined capacity of the two GigaFabs™ reached 388,000
12-inch wafers or 873,000 8-inch equivalent wafers in the fourth
quarter of 2007. Production within these two facilities supports
0.13um, 90nm, 65nm and 45nm process technologies. Part of the
capacity is reserved for research and development work and currently
supports 32nm and beyond technology development.

These GigaFabs™ are the center stones of TSMC's unceasing efforts to
improve manufacturing excellence and to deliver manufacturing
breakthroughs. Not only do these GigaFabs™ have the inherent scale
advantages over smaller fabs, they also enable greater flexibility to
adapt to demand fluctuations, improve product quality and yields,
accelerate yield learning and time to volume, shorten cycle times, and
minimize costly product re-qualification.
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5.3.3 Raw Materials and Supply Chain Risk Management

In 2007, TSMC brought together materials management, fab operations, risk management and quality systerm management in one project to
improve supply chain risk management. TSMC worked together with suppliers throughout 2007 to prepare safety inventories, improve their
quality, and enhance supply chain risk management.

Raw Materials Supply

Major Materials Major Suppliers Market Status Procurement Strategy
Raw Wafers fS.1 These five suppliers together provide over 85% of the TSMC's suppliers of silicon wafers are required 10 pass siingent quality centification
MEMC world's wafer supply. procedures.
EIEFEHIC Each supplier has multiple manufacturing sites in order TSMC procures wafers from muftiple sources te ensure adequate supplies for volume
UMD 1o meet customer demand, induding plants in North manutaciuring and to appropriately manage supply risk.
America, Asia, and Eurgpe. . T . ) )
TSMC maintains competitive price and service agreements with its wafer suppliers, and
whien necessary enters into stzategic and collaborative agreements with key suppliers.
TSMC reqularly reviews the quality, delivery, cost and service performance of its wafer
suppliers, The results of these reviews are incorporated into TSMC's subsequent
purchasing decisions.
A periodic audit of each wafer supplier's quality assurance systems ensures that TSMC
an maintain the highest quality in its own products.
Chemicals Alr Products These five companies are the major suppliers for butk Most suppliers have refocated many of their operations loser to TSMC's major
ATMI and specialty chemicals, manutacturing facilities, thereby significantly improving procurement logistics.
ifgg The suppliers' products are regularly reviewed to ensure that TSMC's specifications are
s met and product quality is satisfactory.
Photoresist A These {ive companies are the major suppliers for TSMC works dosely with its suppliers 10 ensure that they have adequate production
Shin-Etsu Chemical photoresist. Iead time o supply the required preducts to TSMC.
;J 152N TSMC conducts peviodic audits of the suppliers' quality assurance systems to ensure that
umitomeo .
they meet TSMC's standards.
TOK
Gases Air Liquide These faur companies are the major suppliers of The majority of the four suppliers are located in different geographic locations,
Air Products specialty gases. minimizing supply risk to TSMC.
l; r_1de Nipnon Sanso The products of these four suppliers are interchangeable. | TSMC has long-term contracts with these suppliers to ensure supply stability and service
eIy Rippan ans quality. In addition, the avallability of cther domestic suppliers enables TSMC 1o secure
better puichase terms for these gases.
TSMC conducts periodic audits of the suppliers' quality assurance systems to ensure that
they meet TSMC's standards.

5.3.4 Quality

TSMC is committed to providing customers with the best quality wafers for their preducts. Our Quality and Reliability (Q&R) services champion

the partnership between customers and the entire TSMC organization to achieve "quality on demand”. The goal of quality on demand is to fulfill
customers' needs regarding time to market, reliable quality, and market competition over a broad range of products.

In the design stage, Q&R technical services assist customers to design-in their product reliability requirements. Q&R also works with R&D on

process development in order to assure reliability performance, not only for a variety of circuit devices, but also for different types of IC
packages. Q&R has deployed systems to ensure robust quality in managing production dynamics as the Company meets customers' business
requirements. To sustain production quality and minimize risks to customers when deviations occur, manufacturing quality monitoring and event
management span all critical stages, from raw material supply, mask-making, and real-time in-process monitoring, to wafer sort and assembly
and customaer field quality performance. Advanced failure and materials analysis techniques are also developed and effectively applied to identify
the root causes for process development, customer new product development, and product manufacturing issues. In 2007, nanoprobing was

used to accelerate yield learning, and newly developed dopant profiling and high spatial resclution strain measurement techniques were
effectively used to support development activities.

TSMC Q&R is also responsible for leading the Company towards the ultimate goal of zero-defect production, using continuous improvement
programs. Periodic customer feedback indicates that products shipped from TSMC have consistently met or exceeded their field quality
requirements in the marketplace. in 2007, TSMC conformed to ISO/TS 16949 requirements for a sixth consecutive year, continuing to meet the
automotive industry's stringent quality requirements. This year, TSMC met and received the IECQ's QC08000 standard certification for control of

hazardous materials.




5.4 Customer Partnership
5.4.1 Customers

TSMC's global customers have diverse product specialties and
excellent performance records in various segments of the
semiconductor industry. Fabless customers include Altera
Carporation, Advanced Micro Devices, Inc., Broadcom Corporation,
Marvell Semiconductor Inc., NVIDIA Corporation, Qualcomm Inc. and
VIA Technologies Inc. IDM customers include Analog Devices Inc.,
Freescale Semiconductor Inc., NXP Semiconductors (formerly Philips
Semiconductars}, and Texas Instruments Inc. In 2006 and 2007, there
was anly one customer from which the sales was accounted for more
than 10% of our gross sales. For more information, please refer to
the "Financial Information" on page 81 of Annual Report (ll}.

Customer Service

TSMC is committed to providing the best services to our customers
and believes that customer service is critical to enhancing customer
loyalty. In turn, customer loyalty leads to higher levels of customer
retention and to expansion of our business relationships. TSMC's goal
is to maintain our position as the most advanced and largest provider
of semiconductor manufacturing technologies and foundry services.
TSMC believes that achieving this goal will help retain existing
customers, attract new customers, and strengthen customer
partnerships.

To facilitate customer interaction and information access on a real-
time basis, TSMC has established a wide range of web-based services
covering applications in design, engineering, and logistics
collaborations. They are collectively branded as eFoundry™.

Customer Satisfaction

TSMC regularty conducts surveys and reviews to ensure that
customers' needs and wants are being adequately understood and
addressed. Continual improvement plans supplemented by customer
feedback are an integral part of this business process.

Market Expansion and Penetration

TSMC continues to diversify its customer base while supporting the
growth of our existing customers. TSMC acquired more than 80 new
customers in 2007,

5.4.2 Technology Platform and Design Enablement

Design is becoming increasingly intertwined with manufacturing as
technology advances into deep sub-micron nodes. TSMC is dedicated
to serving its customers by lowering the bharriers to advanced
technology design. TSMC and its alliance partners offer
comprehensive design infrastructure to support our technology
platform. In April 2007, TSMC announced the 45nm Design
Ecosystem to accelerate the adoption of new technologies. TSMC's
design ecosystem offers a portfolio of process-proven libraries and IP,
design tools and reference flow.

In June 2007, TSMC unveiled Reference Flow™ 8.0 to address 45nm
design challenges. It features a powerful statistical analysis
methodology, a set of new power management techniques and an
array of design for manufacturing enhancements. Reference Flow™
8.0 further strengthens the Reference Flow™ 7.0 released in 2006.

The higher standards of accuracy are critical to achieve silicon success
with 45nm and beyond. To achieve new levels of accuracy for TSMC's
advanced process technotogies, TSMC also announced the Active
Accuracy Assurance Initiative. The initiative provides an on-going
evolution of accuracy standards for all stages of the design and
manufacturing value chain.

From 2006 to 2007, TSMC established three design centers in North
America. This activity allowed TSMC to recruit local design talent to
further enhance TSMC capability on design enablement.

5.5 Employees
5.5.1 Human Capital

Human capital is one of the most important assets of TSMC. TSMC is
committed to create a corporate culture that embraces innovation
and diversity. Believing that an inspiring work environment promotes
innovation, TSMC strives to provide employees with a work
environment that is challenging yet enjoyable and rewarding. In
2007, TSMC was named the "Most Admired Company in Taiwan" by
Commonwealth Magazine for the 11" consecutive year.

At the end of 2007, TSMC had 23,020 employees worldwide, among
whom 2,520 were managers and 8,814 were professionals. Female
managers comprised 11.4% of all managers and non-Taiwanese
nationals comprised 11.5% of all TSMC managers and professionals.
At the end of February 2008, TSMC's total workforce, managers and
professionals were 22,973, 2,526 and 8,793 respectively. The
following tables summarize TSMC's workforce structure:

TSMC Workforce Structure

12/31/2006 1231/2007 02/25/2008

Managers 2313 1,520 1,526
Professionals 812 8814 8,793
Assistant Engineers/Clericals 893 844 865
Technicians 10,818 10,842 10,789
Gender Male {%) 46.9% 479% 52.0%
Female (%) 53.1% 52.1% 48.0%

Average Age 38 EPR] 322
Average Years of Service 54 58 6.0
Total 22,246 23,020 22973
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TSMC Workforce Structure by Level of Education

12/31/2006 123172007 02/29/2008
PhOD. 2.6% 19% 3.0%
Master's 28.0% 9.0% 29.8%
Bachelor's 19.6% 19.9% 19.8%
Other Higher Education 20.6% 18.9% 18.9%
High Schoal 29.2% 15.6% 18.5%

5.5.2 Recruitment

Attracting new employees and retaining and motivating the existing
employees are key to the success of TSMC's human resources
strategy. TSMC believes in equal cpportunity employment.
Recruitment is conducted via an open selection process and is based
on the candidate's ability to fulfill the needs of each position,
regardless of race, gender, age, religion, nationality, or political
affiliation. In order to seek out the best talents around the world,
TSMC employs a number of recruiting programs, including academic
corporate collaboration program, Jaint Development Pragram in
Campus, summer internship, job fair, Technology Talents Career
Symposium. During 2007, TSMC recruited 163 managers, 1,685
professionals and 894 technicians.

5.5.3 People Development

Continuous learning is the cornerstone of TSMC's employee
development strategy. A tailor-made individual development plan is
established for each employee that suits the employee's development
needs. Employees are provided with a comprehensive network of
resources, including on-the-job training, coaching, mentoring, job
rotation, on-site courses, e-learning, and external learning
opportunities.

TSMC provides employees with a wide range of on-site general,
professional and management training programs. During 2007,
TSMC conducted 872 internal training sessions totaling 698,564
training hours. A total of 245,988 attendees participated in those
trainings. The total training expenses were NT$61,931,620. TSMC's
training programs include:

* Management Training: Management training includes
management development training programs tailored to the needs
of managers at all levels. Management training programs include
New Manager Program, Experienced Manager Pregram, and Senior
Manager Program, as well as other elective courses.

e General Training: General training refers to training required by
government regulations and company policies, such training
includes industry-specific safety, workplace health and safety,
quality, and fab emergency response team training.

¢ Professional/Functional Training: Professional/functional training
provides technical and professional training required by various
functions within the company, offering training courses on
equipment engineering, process engineering, accounting, and
information technology, among others,

# Direct Labor {DL) Training: DL training enables production line
employees to acquire the knowledge, skills, and attitude they need
to perform their job well. it also helps employees pass required tests
in order to be certified for operating equipments. DL training
includes DL Skill Training, Technician "Train-the-Trainer" Training, and
Manufacturing Leader Training.

* New Employee Training: New Employee training includes new
employee orientation and pre-job training. The training consists of
new employee basic training and job orientation.

In addition to the on-site training courses, TSMC has established
"Procedures for Employee Training and Education” in order to
encourage employees to participate in various training programs,
TSMC provides education subsidies for employee development that
best suits company and individual development objectives.

5.5.4 Employee Satisfaction

TSMC has continuously promoted programs devoted to employee
benefits, employee care, employee rewards, and employee
communication. TSMC works hard to provide a work environment
that is challenging yet enjoyable.

Employee Benefits Programs

® TSMC Employee Welfare Committee plans and implements various
welfare programs, including hobby clubs, art and cultural seminars,
employee outings, TSMC Sports Day, TSMC Family Day. In addition,
TSMC also provides holiday bonuses, wedding bonuses, funeral and
emergency subsidies.

*To ensure that employees have ali the conveniences that they need
while at work, TSMC provides on-site cafeteria, dry-cleaning, travel,
banking, haircut services, housing, and commute assistances.

® Health improvement programs and psychological consultation
services are provided to employees to ensure the physical and
psychological well being of all employees.

¢ In order to promote healthy living, during 2007, TSMC Sports
Center was established. It is open to all employees and their family
members and provides a variety of workout facilities. TSMC
provides Children Centers at Hsinchu and Tainan sites to meet
employees' needs for childcare.

Employee Rewards

# Innovation and customer partnership are key elements of TSMC's
core values. TSMC annual innovation awards and customer
partnership awards were established to recognize and reward
employees who contribute to TSMC's overall success.

® |n addition to the TSMC annual innovation awards and customer
partnership awards, there are a number of other award programs
to recognize employees' achievements, including the Outstanding
Engineer Award for each fab and the Total Quality Excellence
Conference Award. Additionally, TSMC also recommends its
employees for external awards. In 2007, TSMC employees were
granted a number of national awards, including the National Model
Worker Award, the Top 10 National Cutstanding Managers Award,
the Qutstanding Engineer Award, the Outstanding Young Engineer
Award, and the National QCC Silver Award.




Employee Communication

TSMC is committed to keeping an open communication channel with
its employees. Regular communication meetings are held for the
various levels of managers. Periodic employee satisfaction surveys are
conducted. Silicon Garden Magazine, a quarterly TSMC magazine, is
published covering things from work to fun. These all help
maintaining the free flow of information between TSMC and its
employees.

In order to ensure employees’ opinions and complaints can be heard,
an employee opinion/complaint submission mechanism is
established, which includes:

* A confidential complaint channel headed personally by a vice
president for employees to file complaints related to major
management, financial and auditing issues.

® A communication channel managed by the Employee Relations
department for employees to express their opinions regarding their
work and the working environment in general.

® Call Service Center and employee care teams in each fab to deal
with issues related to employees' work and personal life.

TSMC is committed to establishing and promoting policies and
measures for ensuring gender equality in accordance with

employment laws and sexual harassment prevention policies to
create a fair working envirenment for employees of both sexes.

Between January 1, 2007 and February 29, 2008, there were no labor
disputes or settlements that resulted in a loss to TSMC.

5.5.5 Retention

TSMC works hard to retain outstanding employees. We are
committed to:

* Setting up retention and counseling plans for different groups. For
example, TSMC employs a “Buddy System® to help new employees
to fit in quickly through assistance provided by senior employees.

¢ Enabling employees to enhance professional knowledge and to
pursue further career development through numerous employee
development programs.

# Establishing various employee welfare and care programs to
encourage employees to develop their careers and at the same time
to maintain work-life balance.

5.5.6 Compensation

TSMC's compensation program includes cash compensation and
profit sharing. Cash compensation includes a monthly salary and a
variable guarterly incentive bonus. The employee is entitled to a
profit sharing of no less than one percent of TSMC's net income after
deducting the losses of previous years and contributions to legal and
special reserves. The purpose of this profit-sharing bonus is to reward
employees' contributions appropriately, to encourage employees to
work consistently to ensure the success of TSMC, and to link
employees' interests with those of TSMC's shareholders, The amount

and form of the distribution are determined by the Board of Directors
based on the Compensation Committee's recommendation and are
subject to sharehoclders' approval at the Annual General Meeting. The
Company determines the amount of the profit-sharing bonus based
on operating results and industry practice in the Republic of China.
Individual awards are based on each employee’s job responsibility,
contribution and performance.

In addition to providing employees of TSMC's overseas subsidiaries
with a locally competitive base salary, the Company grants short-term
and long-term bonuses as a part of total compensation. The
performance bonus is a short-term incentive and is granted in line
with Jocal regulations, market practices, and the overall operating
performance of each subsidiary. The long-term incentive bonus is
awarded based on TSMC's financial performance and is vested over
the course of several years in order to encourage long-term employee
commitment and development within the Company.

5.5.7 Retirement Policy

TSMC's retirement policy is in accordance with the provisions in the
Labor Standards Law and Labor Pension Act of the Republic of China,

5.5.8 Ethics and Business Conduct

T5MC's corporate image and professional reputation are among the
Company's most important intangible assets. Honorable, honest and
legitimate business practices are one of the cornerstones of TSMC's
long-term success. TSMC has established an Ethics Code (the "Code)
to assist its employees in understanding the meaning of honorable
and honest business practices, and to provide employees with
guidelines to follow and implement.

This Code covers the behavioral norms for all employees in their
dealings with each other as well as with the Company, customers,
suppliers, investors and the general public. In case of violations of the
Code, the individual faces appropriate disciplinary action.
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5.6 Material Contracts

Technology Cooperation Agreement

Term of Agreement:

2004 - 2008

Contracting Party:

Koninklijke Philips Electronics N.V. (Philips)

(In September 2006, Philips assigned its rights and obligations under
this agreement to Philips Semiconductors International B.V., which
has now been renamed NXP B.V.)

Summary:

The parties cross license certain semiconductor patents under the
agreement, and TSMC is obligated to pay Philips {now NXP B.V.} a
fixed amount of license fees for patent license coverage obtained for
TSMC's benefit.

Shareholders Agreement

Term of Agreement;

Effective as of 03/30/1999 and may be terminated as provided in the
agreement

Contracting Parties:

Koninklijke Philips Electronics N.V. {Philips) and EDB Investments Pte
Ltd. (EDBI}

{In September 2006, Philips assigned its rights and obligations under
this agreement to Philips Semiconductors International B.V. which has
now been renamed NXP B.V. In November 2006, NXP B.\. and TSMC
purchased all $SMC shares owned by EDBI; EDBI is no longer a
contracting party to this agreement.)

Summary:

TSMC, Philips and EDBI had formed a Singapore joint venture
"Systems on Silicon Manufacturing Company Pte Ltd." {S5MC) for
providing |C foundry services. Philips Semiconductor (now NXP B.V.}
and TSMC are committed to purchasing a certain percentage of
55MC's capacity.

Technology Cooperation Agreement

Term of Agreement:

03/30/1999 - 03/29/2009

Contracting Party:

Systems on Silicon Manufacturing Company Pte Ltd. (SSMC)
Summary:

TSMC agreed to transfer certain process technologies to SSMC, and
SSMC agreed to pay TSMC a certain percentage of the net selling
price of SSMC products.

Patent License Agreement

Term of Agreement:

12/20/2007 - 12/31/2017

Contracting Party:

A multinational company

Summary:

The parties entered into a cross licensing arrangement for certain
semiconductor patents. TSMC pays license fees to the contracting
company.

Manufacturing, License, and Technology Transfer
Agreement

Term of Agreement:

04/01/2004 - 03/31/2006, automatically renewable for successive
one-year terms until and unless both parties decide otherwise by
mutual consent in writing.

Contracting Party:

Vanguard International Semiconductor Corporation (VIS)
Summary:

VIS reserves certain capacity to manufacture TSMC products on
mutually agreed terms. TSMC may also transfer certain technologies
to VIS, for which it will in return receive royalties from VIS,

Patent License Agreement

Term of Agreement:

11/01/2002 - 10/31/2012

Contracting Party:

A multinational company

Summary:

The parties entered into a cross licensing arrangement for certain
semiconductor patents. TSMC pays license fees to the contracting

party.

Patent License Agreement

Term of Agreement:

07/01/2002 - 06/30/2009

Contracting Party:

A multinational company

Summary:

The parties entered into a cross licensing arrangement for certain
semiconductor patents. TSMC pays license fees to the contracting
party.

Patent License Agreement

Term of Agreement:

01/01/2001 - 12/31/2011

Contracting Party:

A multinational company

Summary:

The parties entered into a cross licensing arrangement for certain
semiconductor patents. TSMC pays license fees to the contracting

party.

The Second Amendment to the Amended and
Restated Joint Technology Cooperation Agreement
Term of Agreement:

07/16/2001 - 12/31/2008 (terminated effective January 2008}
Contracting Parties:

STMlicroelectronics N.V.

Philips Semiconductors International B.V. {(now NXP B.\.}

Freescale Semiconductor, Inc.

Summary:

The parties entered into a joint technology cooperation arrangement
for the development of certain high-performance and advanced
semiconductor technologies. TSMC has terminated its participation in
this cooperation.




Techneology Development and License Agreement
Term of Agreement:

12/04/2003 - 12/03/2007

Contracting Party:

Freescale Semiconductor, Inc.

Summary:

The parties agreed jointly to develop certain advanced SOl process
technologies and to cross license related intellectual property rights.

Settlement Agreement

| Term of Agreement:

. 01/30/2005 - 12/31/2010
Contracting Parties:
Semiconductor Manufacturing International Corp. (SMIC) and certain
of its subsidiaries
Summary:
The parties settled their patent infringement and trade secret
misappropriation disputes, whereby SMIC agrees to pay TSMC
US$175 million over six years.

Research and Development Collaboration Agreement
Term of Agreement:

01/01/2007 - 12/31/2010

Contracting Party:

NXP B.V.

Summary:

The parties entered into research and development collaboration to
develop advanced semiconductor technologies.

Asset Sale and Purchase Agreement

Effective Date of Agreement:

10/8/2007

Contracting Party:

Atmel North Tyneside, Atmel Corporation

Summary:

The parties entered into an asset sale and purchase agreement,
whereby TSMC purchases Atmel North Tynesides' semiconducter
production equipment and tools for US$82 million,

Note: TSMC is not currently party to any other materiat contract, other than contracts entered into in the ordinary course
of our business. The Cpmpany's *Significant Commitments and Centingencies* are disclosed in the "Financial
Information® of Annual Report (11}, pages 28-29.
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TSMC's trinity of strengths, technology leadership, manufacturing excellence, and customer partnership, are built on a foundaticn of financial

strength. In 2007, we generated positive free cash flow for the 6" consecutive year. We also returned a record amount of cash to our

shareholders through cash dividends and share buybacks. With our strong balance sheet and our consistent profitability, we believe we are well

positioned for our future growth and for delivering increasing long-term returns to our shareholders.

6.1 Financial Status and Operating Results

6.1.1 Financial Status

Unconsolidated

Unit: NT$ thousands

ftem 2007 2006 Difference %
Current Assets 174,199,286 193,676,010 {18,376,724) -10%
Fixed Assets 234,564,558 228,135,359 6,329,199 3%
Other Assets 19,017,626 14,295,330 4,722,296 33%
Total Assets 551,771 623 573,584,904 (21,812,281) A%
Current Liabilities 43,800,210 42,905,154 895,656 %
Long-term Liabilities 20,880.411 22,698,466 {1,818,055) 8%
Tatah Liabilities 64,681,221 65,603,620 (922,399 1%
Capital Stock 264,271,037 258,296,879 5,974,158 %
Capital Surplus 53,731,682 54,107.4%8 (374,816 -1%
Retained Earnings 218,854,571 197,124,532 21,740,039 1%
Total Shareholders' Equity 487,091,402 507,981,284 (20,689,882) 4%

® Analysis of Deviation over 20%
The increase in other assets was mainly due to increase in deferred charges and deferred income tax assets.

* Major Impact on Financial Position
The above deviations over 20% had no major impact on TSMC's financial position.

® Future Plan on Financial Position: Not applicable.

Consolidated

Unit: NTS thousands
Item 2007 2006 Difference %
Current Assets 243,822,329 260,317,168 (10,454,839) -4%
Fixed Assets 260,252,187 254,094,190 6,157,997 %
Other Assets 24,329,385 19,178,650 5,150,735 7%
Total Assets 570,865,226 587,485,159 (16,619,933) -3%
Current Liabilities 48,706,007 46,860,531 1,845,476 4%
Long-term Liabilities 31,473,648 31,486,512 (12,864} 0%
Tatal Liabiities 80,179,655 15,347,043 1,832,612 %
Capital Stock 264,271,037 158,296,879 5,974,158 %
Capital Surplus 53,732,682 54,107 498 (374816 1%
Retaired Earnings 218,864,571 197,124,532 21,740,039 1%
Equity Attributable to Shareholders of the Parent 487,091,402 507,981,284 (20,889,882) A%
Total Shareholders' Equity 490,685,571 509,138 116 {18,452 549) -4%

® Analysis of Deviation over 20%

The increase in other assets was mainly due to increase in deferred charges and deferred income tax assets.

* Major Impact on Financial Position
The above deviations over 20% had no major impact on TSMC's financial positian.

e Future Plan on Financial Position: Not applicable.
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6.1.2 Operating Results

Unconsolidated

Unit: KT$ thousands

[tem 2007 2006 Difierence %
Gross Sales 319,167,25% 319,210,148 (42,849) 0%
Sales Retums & Allowances 15,519,659) (5,328,513 (191,142 %
Net Sales 313,647,644 313,881,635 (233.991) %
Cost of Sales 176,223,224 164,163,235 12,009,939 %
Gross Profit 137,424,420 149,718, 406 {12,293,920) 8%
Unrealized Grass Profit from Affiliates 265,106 - 265,106

Realized Gross Profit 137,159,314 148,718,400 {12,559,086) B%
Operating Expenses 24,507,261 23,418,541 1,488,726 6%
Income from Operations 112,252,047 126,299,859 (13,047,812 1%
Non-operating [ncome & Gains 10,834,698 11,596,727 (762,029) 7%
Non-operating Expenses & Losses 2,335,339 3,090,087 [794,748) -15%
Incorme before Income Tax 120,751,406 134,806,499 (14,055,093) -10%
Income Tax Expenses {11,574,313) (7,550,582) (4,023,731) 53%
Incorme befare Cumulative Effect of Changes in Accounting Principles 106,177,003 127,295,917 (18,078,829) -14%
Cumulative Effect of Changes in Accounting Principles - (246,1806) 145,186

Income after Income Tax 108,177,003 127,009,731 (17,832,638) -14%

® Analysis of Deviation over 20%
Decrease in non-operating expenses and losses; The decrease was mainly due to less loss on settlement and disposal of financial instruments
and foreign exchange loss, offset in part by an increase in provision for litigation loss.
Increase in income tax expenses: The increase was primarily due to higher taxable income in 2007.

» Sales Volume Forecast and Related Information
For additional details, please refer ta "Letter to Shareholders" on pages 4-5 of this Annual Report.

Consolidated

Urdt: NT$ thousands

Item 1007 2006 Difference %
Gross Sales 328,335,171 327,883,499 5452613 2%
Sales Retumns & Allowances (5,705,576} (5,476,328) {229,248 4%
Net Sales 322,630,59 31740010 5,203,425 %
Cost of Sales 180,280,385 161,597,084 18,683,304 12%
Gross Profit 142,350,211 155,810,030 {13,459,879) 0%
Operating Expenses 30,628,304 8,545,396 2,082,908 %
Incame from Operations 11,721,907 127,264,694 (15,542,787 12%
Non-operating Income & Gains 11,933,803 9,705,392 2228241 3%
Non-operating Expenses & Losses 13,684 3,608,078 (1,594,354} -A6%
Income before Income Tax 121,542,026 133,362,208 (11,220,182} 9%
Tecome Tax Expenses (11,709,626 7.773.m) (3,935,915} 51%
Income before Cumulative Effect of Changes in Accounting Principles 109,932,400 125,588,497 {15,636,097) -12%
Comulative Effect of Changes in Accounting Principles - 1,606,749 {1,606,749)

Net Income 109,932,400 127,195,246 (17,262 846) -14%
Net Income Attributable to Shareholders ofthe Parent 109,477,093 127,009,731 (17,832,638) -14%
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® Analysis of Deviation over 20%
Increase in non-operating income and gains: The increase was primarily due to an increase in interest income, gain on settlement and disposal
of financial instruments, and valuation gain on financial instruments.

Decrease in non-operating expenses and losses; The decrease was mainly due to less loss on settlement and disposal of financial instruments,
valuation loss on financial instruments and foreign exchange loss, offset in part by an increase in provision for litigation loss.
Increase in income tax expenses: The increase was primarily due to higher taxable income in 2007.

® Sales Volume Forecast and Related Information
For additional details, please refer to "Letter to Shareholders" on pages 4-5 of this Annual Report,

6.1.3 Cash Flow

Unconsolidated
Unit: NT$ thousands
: ; ; Remedy for Cash Shortfall
Cash Balance 123172006 Net Cash Provided by Operating | - Net Cash Outflows from Investing and Cash Balance 123172007
Activities in 2007 Financing Activities in 2007 Investeent Plan Financing Plan
100,139,709 174,116,992 (201,834,599) 12,422,100

¢ Analysis of Cash Flow

NT$174.1 billion net cash provided by operating activities: Mainly from net income and depreciation/amertization.

NT$65.9 billion net cash used in investing activities: Primarily for capital expenditures.

NT$1325.9 billion net cash used in financial activities: Mostly for the payout of cash dividends and repurchase of common shares.

* Remedial Actions for Cash Shortfall: As a result of positive cash flows and ample cash on-hand, remedial actions are not required.

# Cash Flow Projection for Next Year: Not applicable.

Consolidated

Unit: NT$ thousands

Net Cash Provided by Operating | Net Cash Cutflows from Investing and Remedy for Cash Shortfall
Cash Balance 12/31/2006 Adtivities in 2007 Financing Activities in 2007 Cash Balance 1213172007 nvestment Plan Financing Plan
117,831,192 183,766,668 (206,617,372} 94,986,488

* Analysis of Cash Flow
NT$183.8 hillion net cash provided by operating activities: Mainly from net income and depreciation/amortization.
NT$70.7 billion net cash used in investing activities: Primarily for capital expenditures.
NT$135.9 billion net cash used in financial activities (including effect of exchange rate changes): Mostly for the payout of cash dividends and
repurchase of common shares,

» Remedial Actions for Cash Shortfall: As a result of positive cash flows and ample cash on-hand, remedial actions are not required.
* Cash Flow Projection for Next Year: Not applicable.
6.1.4 Major Capital Expenditure

Major Capital Expenditure and Sources of Funding

Unit: NT$ thousands

Status of Actual or Projected Use of Capital

Plan Actual or Planned Source of Capital Total Amount as of 12/31/2007

2004 2005 2006 007
Production Facilities and Equipment Cash flow generated from operations 302,408,147 75,797,890 75,040,652 73,643,829 77925776
R&D Equipment Cash flow genesated from operations 15,016,577 2,000,055 3,869,192 3,146,173 5,401,157




Expected Future Benefits

With the above-mentioned capital expenditures, it is estimated that
TSMC's annual production capacity will increase by approximately 1
million 8-inch equivalent wafers in 2008. In addition, we expect 2009
and 2010 production capacity will also increase.

6.1.5 Investments Exceeding 5% of Company’s Paid-in
Capital in 2007: Not applicable.

6.2 Risk Management

TSMC and its subsidiaries are committed to proactively and cost-
effectively integrating and managing strategic, operational, financial
and hazardous risks together with potential consequences to
operations and revenue.

TSMC has established an Enterprise Risk Management (ERM} program
based on TSMC's corporate vision as well as its long-term
sustainability and responsibility to both industry and society. The
program is overseen by the Audit Committee.

The ERM program seeks to provide for TSMC's adequate management
of risks on behalf of its stakeholders, shareholders and other

interested parties.

6.2.1 Risk Management {RM) Organization Chart

President & CEQ
Materials Management and
RM Steering Committee ———————= Risk Management
- Senior Vice President
1
1
1
]
I
1
1
1
RM Waorking Comnittee :--- - RM Division
PN |

Organization Description
* RM Steering Committee:
Is composed of functional heads;
Reviews risk control progress; and
|dentifies and approves the prioritized risk lists.

® RM Working Committee:
Is composed of representatives from each function;
Aligns functional ERM activities; and
Foltows up the risk control action plan.

* RM Division:
Coordinates the RM Working Committee activities;
Facilitates functional risk management activities; and
Consolidates ERM reports into the RM Steering Commiittee.

6.2.2 Strategic Risks

Industry Developments

The semiconductor and microelectronics industries are affected by
demand for end products, e.g., personal computers, handsets, and
consumer electronics. Our semiconductor foundry business is
affected by such market conditions, and mest of our customers also
operate in these industries. Because our business is, and will continue
to be, dependent on the requirements of semiconductor and
microelectronics companies for our services, periads of downturn and
overcapacity may lead to reduced demand for our services. To
mitigate such risks, TSMC covers a broad spectrum of customer and
product portfolios to avoid significant impact from events in any
single semiconductor or microelectronics industry,

Changes in Technology

Technologies used in the semiconducter industry are constantly
changing. If we do not anticipate these technological changes and
rapidly develop new and innovative technologies, or if our
competitors unforeseeably gain sudden access to more advanced
technologies, we may not be able to win bids for advanced foundry
services on competitive terms. Hence, we have concentrated on
maintaining a competitive edge in research and development.
Staying at the leading edge of technology development is and always
will be a top priority effort for TSMC.

Decrease in Demand and Average Selling Price

Since our sales revenue is derived from customers in the personal
computer, communication device and consumer electronics
industries, demand in these industries may adversely affect demand
for our services and place pressure on our average selling prices.
TSMC maintains a broad range of customer and product portfolios to
address such risks. Qur premium services and proven trustworthiness
also enable TSMC to maintain more stable pricing.
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Competition

The markets for our foundry services are highly competitive with
other dedicated foundry service providers as well as integrated device
manufaciurers, Qur competition may, from time to time, decide to
undertake aggressive pricing tactics that may lead to lost customer
business or decreased average selling prices for TSMC. Such risks,
however, are mitigated as TSMC's technology leadership,
manufacturing excellence, and customer partnership create a very
high bar for competition to undercut simply by lowering prices.

Risks Associated with Changes in the Political and
Regulatory Environment

TSMC's management team closely monitors both domestic and
foreign political and regulatory developments that could have a
material impact on TSMC's financial operations, and sets related risk
management procedures.

In March 2007, the Accounting Research and Development
Foundation of the Republic of China issued an interpretation that
requires compantes to expense the bonus payable to directors,
supervisors and employees, rather than recording it as an
appropriation of earnings. The Company has applied this ruling to its
financial statements for the fiscal year beginning on or after January
1, 2008. The new requirement will increase the costs of goods sold
and operation expenses, and will affect the Company's annual net
income. However, the Company will adopt measures such as
increasing productivity and cost savings to minimize the impact of
this requirement.

6.2.3 Operational Risks

Risks Associated with Capacity Expansion

To meet customer demand, TSMC increased its annual preduction
capacity by approximately 1.23 million 8-inch equivalent wafers in
2007. The total average billing utilization rate for 2007 was 93%. As
of the date of this Annual Report, the benefits brought about by such
capacity expansion have been in line with TSMC's expectations. TSMC
has established systems to evaluate and forecast market demand and
refers to these forecasts and evaluations when expanding capacity.

Risks Associated with Sales Concentration

In 2006 and 2007, our 10 largest customers accounted for 53% and
51%, respectively, of our net sales. In particular, our largest customer
in 2007 accounted for meore than 10% of our net sales. Since a
relatively limited number of customers contribute a significant
portion of our revenue, unforeseen loss or significant reduction of a
major customer's business may adversely affect TSMC's performance.
TSMC mitigates such risk by placing customer partnership in its core
strategy, and works closely with customers from end to end to
provide the best overall value, so that such unforeseen events are
minimized,

Risks Associated with Purchase Concentration

# Raw Materials

TSMC procures raw materials from muitiple sources whenever
possible to ensure adequate supplies for volume production and to
mitigate purchase concentration risk, However, we procure some of

our raw materials from sole-source suppliers. TSMC evaluates the risk
of supply disrupticons from single-source suppliers and assists those
suppliers in lowering production and transportation risk by helping
suppliers improve quality and safety. Also, TSMC monitors supplier
site inventory for earlier detecting of supply risk. To lower the risk of
potential price increases, TSMC seeks to establish long-term contracts
with critical suppliers. TSMC also continues to look for additional
sources for single-sourced materials.

* Equipment

Qur operations and ongoing expansicn plans depend on our ability
to obtain a significant amount of equipment and related services
from a limited number of suppliers in a market that is characterized,
from time to time, by intense demand, limited supply and long
delivery cycles. During such times, supplier-specific or industry-wide
lead times for delivery can be as long as four to ten months or more.
Supplier-specific or industry-wide shortages of equipment could
result in longer delivery times. If we are unable to obtain equipment
in a timely manner, we may be unable to fulfill our customers’ orders,
which could negatively impact our financial condition and results of
operations, To better manage equipment lead time, we have
implemented various business models with suppliers to shorten the
procurement lead time. We also provide our projected demand for
various items to many of our equipment suppliers to help them plan
their preduction in advance.

Risks Associated with Intellectual Property Rights

Our ability to compete successfully and to achieve future growth will
depend in part on the continued strength of our intellectual property
portfolio. There can be no assurance that, as our business or business
models expand into new areas, we will be able to independently
develop the technology, trade secrets, software or know-how
necessary to conduct our business or that we can do so without
infringing the intellectual property rights of others. We may have to
rely increasingly on licensed technology from others. To the extent
that we rely on licenses from others, there can be no assurance that
we will be able to obtain ali of the licenses we desire in the future on
terms we consider reasonable or at all. The lack of necessary licenses
could expose us to claims for damages and/or injunctions from third
parties, as well as claims for indemnification by our customers in
instances where we have contractually agreed to indemnify our
customers against damages resulting from infringement claims. We
have received, from time to time, communications from third parties
asserting that our technologies, manufacturing processes, the design
of the integrated circuits made by us or the use by our customers of
semiconductors made by us may infringe their patents or other
intellectual property rights. And, because of the nature of the
industry, we may continue to receive such communications in the
future. In some instances, these disputes have resulted in litigation.
While we actively enforce and protect our intellectual property rights,
there can be no assurance that our efforts will be adequate to
prevent the misappropriation or improper use of the protected
technology, trade secret, software or know-how.

If we fail to obtain or maintain certain government, technology or
intellectual property licenses and, if litigation relating to alleged
intellectual property matters occurs, it could prevent us from




manufacturing or selling particular products or applying particular
technologies, which could reduce our opportunities to generate
revenues.

Risks Associated with Litigations

To protect its intellectual property rights, trade secrets and other
intellectual assets, TSMC may initiate, as appropriate, litigation
against former employees or third parties, As is the case for most
companies in the high-technology industry, TSMC receives from time
to time notices from third parties alleging that TSMC’s technologies,
designs, and manufacturing processes may infringe patents or ather
intellectual property rights. TSMC takes these matters seriously,
investigates all such claims, and takes appropriate action as the
circumstances require.

in December 2003, we commenced legal action in several forums
against SMIC and certain of its subsidiaries for several causes of
action including but not limited to patent infringement and trade
secret misappropriation. The dispute with SMIC was settled under a
settlement agreement entered into in January 2005 and pursuant to
which SMIC is paying us US$175 million in installments over six years.
Under its terms, we agreed not to sue SMIC for itemized acts of
alleged trade secret misappropriation except in the event of breach.
In addition, we and SMIC agreed to cross license each other's certain
patents through December 2010. The settlement agreement also
provided for the dismissal without prejudice of all pending legal
actions between the two companies, including matters pending in
the U.5. District Court for the Northern District of California, Superior
Court of California for Alameda County, the U.S. International Trade
Commission and Hsinchu District Court in Taiwan. The settlement
does not grant a license to SMIC to use any of our trade secrets nor
does it result in TSMC transferring any technology or providing any
technical assistance to SMIC. In August 2006, TSMC, TSMC North
America, and WaferTech filed a complaint with the Superior Court of
the State of California in the County of Alameda against
Semiconductor Manufacturing International Corporation {SMIC),
SMIC {Shanghai), SMIC {Beijing) and SMIC Americas, alleging breach
of a settlement agreement reached in 2005 and misappropriation of
trade secrets, The suit sought injunctive relief along with monetary
damages. In September 2006, SMIC filed a cross-complaint against us
in the same court alleging breach of settlement agreement, implied
covenant of good faith and fair dealing. SMIC also filed a civil action
against us in November 2006 with the Beijing People's High Court
alleging defamation and breach of good faith.

In September 2007, the court in the California action ruled on TSMC's
motion for preliminary injunction. While the court did not grant a full
preliminary injunction against SMIC, the court found that TSMC has
demonstrated a significant probability of establishing that SMIC
retains and is using TSMC Information in SMIC's 0.13um and smaller
technologies that should have been returned under the Settlement
Agreement, and there is significant threat of serious irreparable harm
to TSMC if SMIC were to disclose or transfer that information before
final resolution of the case. Therefore, the court ordered that,
effective immediately, SMIC must provide 10 business days advance
notice and an opportunity for TSMC to object before disclosing items
enumerated in the Court Order to SMIC's third party partners,

These SMIC-related matters are still pending in their respective
forums, and their specific outcome cannot be determined at this
time. Management intends to protect vigorously its intellectual
property rights to maintain shareholder value,

In April 2004, UniRAM Technology, Inc. filed an action against MoSys
Inc., TSMC and TSMC North America in the U.S. District Court for the
Northern District of California, alleging patent infringement and
trade secret misappropriation and seeking injunctive relief and
damages. UniRAM fater dropped its patent infringement claims
during the course of litigation, but TSMC and TSMC North America's
inequitable conduct counterclaim against UniRAM's asserted patents
remained. In 2007, the trade secret misappropriation portion of the
case went to trial, and in September 2007, a jury rendered a verdict
awarding U5$30.5 million to UniRAM Technology, Inc. The court held
a separate bench trial on the inequitable conduct counterclaims in
January 2008, but has yet to issue a decision as of the date of this
Annual Report. As a procedural matter, the jury verdict cannot be
entered into the record while the inequitable conduct issues remain
undecided. Nevertheless, as a result of the verdict, we have accrued
the full amount of the jury award by reporting it as a separate line
item in the income statements. The charge is classified as part of our
non-operating expenses. We intend to continue to pursue remedies
against this verdict.

Other than the matters provided above, TSMC was not involved in
any other matenial litigation during 2007 and as of the date of this
Annual Report.

Risks Associated with Mergers and Acquisitions
In 2007, and as of the date of this Annual Report, TSMC did not
complete any merger and acquisition activities.

Risks Associated with Recruiting and Retaining Qualified
Personnel

The company's growth and development rely on the continuing
service and contributions of our executive officers and skilled
management and technical personnel. Losing any of these personnel
without adequate replacement could jeopardize our business. While
expansion of TSMC's business generates ongoing demand for
personnel, due to the intense competition in recruiting qualified
manpower, we cannot guarantee that our needs can be fulfilled in
time. We have conducted in-depth personnel analyses, consolidated
the efforts of all levels of the management, and implemented
appropriate strategies and plans to minimize the potential
risksfimpacts of a deficit in qualified personnel.

Future R&D Plans and Expected R&D Spending
For additional detatils, please refer to "Future R&D Plans* on pages 48-
49 of this Annual Report.
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Changes in Corporate Image and Impact on Company's
Crisis Management

TSMC has established an excellent corporate image based on its firm
belief in its core values, its rigorous corporate governance, and its
outstanding operations. The Company has won recognition such as:

¢ Cammonwealth magazine's benchmark for Most Admired Company
in Taiwan

¢ Commonwealth magazine's Best Corporate Citizenship for a large
company

» GlobalViews magazine's Corporate Social Responsibility award

® Number one in the Asian Wall Street Journal's survey of the top 10
companies in Taiwan

® First place in Cheers magazine's survey of Company Most Admired
by the New Generation

¢ The Executive Yuan's Enterprise Sustainable Development Award

¢ The Ministry of Economic Affairs' Qutstanding Innovation
Achievement Award

® The Environmental Protection Administration's National Enterprise
Environmental Protection Award

* IR Magazine's award for Best Corporate Governance in Taiwan and
Hong Kong and Best Investor Relations in Taiwan.

We believe this recognition is the strongest proof of TSMC's positive
corporate image,

In addition, the Company has established departments such as Brand
Management, Customer Service, Public Relations, Employee
Relations, Investor Relations, Risk Management, Internal Audit, and
the TSMC Education and Culture Foundation to further improve
TSMC's corporate image and to take preparatory measures for the
prevention and control of potential reputational risk.

Risks Associated with Change in Management
In 2007, and as of the date of this Annual Report, there were no such
risks for TSMC.

6.2.4 Financial Risks

Internal Management of Economic Risks

¢ Interest Rate Fluctuation

TSMC's exposure to interest rate risks derives primarily from long-
term debt obligations that are incurred in the normal course of
business. In order to limit its exposure to interest rate risks, TSMC
finances its funding needs through issuance of fong-term, fixed-rate
debt. On the asset side, the primary objective of our investments in
fixed income securities is to preserve principal in highly liquid
markets. In order to maintain our liquidity profile, the majority of
fixed income securities are at the short end of the yield curve.

® Foreign Exchange Volatility

Over half of our capital expenditures and manufacturing costs are
denominated in currencies other than NT dollars, primarily U.S.
dollars, Japanese yen, and Euros. More than 90% of our sales are
denominated in U.S. dollars and currencies other than NT dollars.
Therefore, any significant fluctuation to our disadvantage in such
exchange rate may have an adverse effect on our financial condition.

for example, during the period from January 1, 2008 to February 29,
2008, the U.S, dollar has depreciated 4.7% against the NT dollar,
which may have a material impact on our results of operations. TSMC
hedged its foreign exchange exposure resulting from its assets and
liabilities mainly through cross currency swaps and currency forward
contracts.

o Inflation

Our most significant export market is North America and we do not
believe that inflation in the R.0.C. or North America had a material
impact on our results of operations in 2007. However, we cannot
ensure that there will be no significant variations in the inflation rates
in the future aor any such variation would not have a material impact
on our results of operations.

Risks Associated with High-risk/High-leveraged Investment;
Lending, Endorsements, and Guarantees for Other Parties;
and Financial Derivative Transactions

TSMC did not make high-risk or high-leveraged financial investments
during 2007 and up to the date of this report. Neither did TSMC
provide lending, endorsements or guarantees for other parties in the
period.

The financial transactions of a "derivative" nature that TSMC entered
into were strictly for hedging purposes and not for any trading or
speculative purpose. For more information, please refer to the
“Financial Information" on page 64 of Annual Report (I1).

To control various types of financial transactions, the company has I
established internal policies and procedures based on sound financial
and business practices, all in compliance with the relevant rules and
regulations issued by the Taiwan Securities and Futures Bureau. TSMC
policies and procedures include *Policies and Procedures for Financial
Derivative Transactions', "Procedures for Lending Funds to Other
Parties", "Procedures for Acquisition or Disposal of Assets”, and
"Procedures for Endorsement and Guarantee'.

Risks Associated with Impairment Charges

Under R.O.C. GAAP and U.5. GAAP, TSMC is required to evaluate our
long-lived assets and intangible assets for impairment whenever
there is an indication of impairment. If certain criteria are met, TSMC
is required to record an impairment charge. TSMC is also required
under R.0.C. GAAP and U.5. GAAP to evaluate goodwill for
impairment at least on an annual basis or whenever a triggering
event or an indication of impairment occurs.

We currently are not able to estimate the extent or timing of any
impairment charge for future years. Any impairment charge required
may have a material adverse effect on our net income.

The determination of an impairment charge at any given time is
hased significantly on our expected results of operations over a
number of years subsequent to that time. As a result, an impairment
charge is more likely to occur during a period when our operating
results are otherwise already depressed. TSMC has established
systems to closely monitor and evaluate capacity utilization and
economic cycle,




6.2.5 Hazardous Risks

TSMC is committed to maintaining a comprehensive risk
management system dedicated to the conservation of natural
resources, safety of people, and protection of property. In order to
effectively handle emergencies and natural disasters at each facility,
management has developed comprehensive plans and procedures
that focus on loss prevention, emergency response, crisis
management, and business recovery. TSMC has adopted international
standards for ESH management. All TSMC fabs have been 1SO 14001
certified {Environmental Management System), OHSAS 18001
certified {Occupational Health and Safety Management System) and
QCO080000 certified (Hazardous Substance Process Management
System).

TSMC pays special attention to emergency preparedness for disasters
such as typhoons, earthquakes, environmental contamination, large-
scale product returns, disruption of IT systems, strikes, and
disruptions to the supply of raw materials or water, electricity, gases,
and public utilities. We have established contingency plans, which
include the establishment of emergency task forces when necessary,
the preparation of a thorough analysis of the emergency, its impact,
alternatives, and solution for each possible scenario, and appropriate
precautionary and/or recovery measures, Each task force is given the
responsibility to ensure TSMC's ability to conduct business while
mintmizing personal injuries, business disruption, and financial
impact under the circumstances. For the year 2007 and up to the
date of this Annual Report, there are no reportable material events
that have necessitated the activation of such contingency plans. In
2007, we also conducted the continuous improvement project for
building anti-seismic capability evaluation and tool anchorage
fixation.

We use some combustible materials in manufacturing processes and
are therefore subject to explosion and fire risk. We maintain many
overlapping risk prevention and protection systems, as well as
comprehensive fire and casualty insurance, including insurance for
loss of property and loss of profit resulting from business
interruption. Nanetheless, our risk management and insurance
coverage may not be sufficient to cover all of our potential losses. If
any of our fabs were to be damaged or cease operations as a result
of an explosion, fire, or environmental excursions, it could reduce our
manufacturing capacity and might cause us to lose important
customers, thereby having a potentially material adverse impact on
our financial performance. In addition to periodic fire protection
system inspection and fire fighting drills, we also carried out a
corporate-wide fire risk mitigation project focused on management
and hardware improvements.

6.2.6 Other Risks

Potential Impact and Risks Associated with Sales of
Significant Numbers of Shares by TSMC's Directors, and
Major Shareholders Who Own 10% or More of TSMC's Total
Outstanding Shares

The value of TSMC shareholders' investment may be reduced by
possible future sales of TSMC shares owned by the major
shareholders.

One or more of TSMC's existing shareholders may, from time to time,
dispose of significant numbers of their shares. For example, the
National Development Fund, one of TSMC's largest shareholders, has
sold TSMC shares in form of ADSs in several transactions since 1997,
In May 2005, Philips, another major shareholder of TSMC, reiterated
its intention, first announced in October 2003, to gradually and
orderly reduce its equity interest in TSMC.

On March 9, 2007, Philips and TSMC jointly announced a multi-phase
plan to facilitate an orderly exit by Philips from its current
shareholding in TSMC. Specifically, according to the announced plan,
Philips intends to divest its current shareholding in TSMC through
ohe or more block trades on the Taiwan Stock Exchange, a public
offering of our common shares in the form of ADSs, and through
participation in share buy-backs conducted by TSMC during a period
beginning in 2007 and ending in 2010.

The plan's initial step occurred on March 12, 2007, when Philips sold
approximately US$1.75 billion worth of our comman shares over the
Taiwan Stock Exchange through block trades to a few institutional
investors in Taiwan. Further, the plan's second step was a sale by
Philips in a public offering registered with the U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission of about US$2.56 billion worth of our
common shares in the form of ADSs on May 18, 2007. It is the
intention of TSMC and Philips that no further ADS offerings will be
conducted in respect of Philips' shareholding in TSMC.

For the third step of the plan, TSMC conducted a share repurchase
program from November 14, 2007 to December 31, 2007, in the
amount of approximately US$1.5 billion, and subsequently canceled
800 million common shares that had been repurchased. During the
same period, Philips also disposed 800 million of cur common shares
by selling them in the open market. After the completion of this third
step, Philips held approximately 5.1% of our total outstanding
commeon shares as of February 29, 2008.

Last, the plan's fourth step calls for TSMC to conduct, subject to
maintaining the current annual cash dividend per share, additional
share repurchase and cancellation programs between 2008 and
2010, in which Philips has informed TSMC that it intends to tender its
remaining common shares held in TSMC at such time. Philips may
also consider selling its remaining common shares held in TSMC to
specified long-term investors mutually agreeable to Philips and TSMC.

There is currently no other shargholder who owns 10% or more of
TSMC's total outstanding shares.

Other Material Risks

During 2007 and as of the date of this Annual Report, TSMC's
management is not aware of any other risk event with a potentially
material impact on the financial status of the Company.
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TSMC's core value of commitrment extends to all aspects of its
business, including commitment to the welfare of employees, society,
and the environment.

7.1 Environmental, Safety and Health
Management

TSMC believes its environmental, safety and health practices should
not only comply with legal requirements, but also measure up to
recognized international practices. The Company aims to prevent
pollution, efficiently use all resources, prevent accidents, improve
employee safety and health, protect property, and establish a work
environment that promotes the well-being of our employees and of
the communities in which we operate.

Al TSMC manufacturing facilities have received (SO 14001
certification for environmental management systems and OHSAS
18001 certification for occupational health and safety management
systems. TSMC strives for continuous improvement and actively seeks
to enhance pollution prevention, power and resource conservation,
waste reduction, health and safety management, fire and explosion
prevention and other risks such as earthquakes in order to reduce
environmental, safety and health risk. In 2006, TSMC began to adopt
the IECQ QC08000C Hazardous Substance Process Management
(HSPM) System in order to meet customer needs for management of
hazardous materials and to meet the European Union's Restriction of
Hazardous Substances (RoHS) directive. All TSMC manufacturing
facilities were QC080000 certified in 2007.

TSMC is committed to communicating with suppliers and contractors
on environmental, safety and health issues and encouraging them to
improve their ESH performance. In line with this policy, TSMC uses
pricrity work management and self-management to govern work
performed by contractors. TSMC requires contractors performing
high-risk operations to complete certification for technicians, and to
establish their own OHSAS 18001 safety and health management
system before bidding on contracts. This self-management is aimed
at increasing contractars' sense of ownership and responsibility, with
the goal of promoting safety awareness and technical improvement
for contractors in the industry.

TSMC has also conducted on-site ESH audits of local material
suppliers' and testing/assembly subcontractors since 2005. In the case
of suppliers or subcontractors which performed poorly on ESH audits,
TSMC requires these organizations to take preventive and corrective
action to improve their ESH performance. TSMC also assists them to
improve their ESH performance.

7.1.1 Environmental Protection

Greenhouse Gases (GHG) Emission Reduction

TSMC is committed to environmental protection and actively
participates in international environmental protection programs. In
2005, TSMC was Taiwan's first semiconductor company to make a
complete inventory of its GHG and to gain 15014064 certification for
its processes and outputs. The purpose of the inventory was to serve
as a reference for TSMC's strategy to reduce GHG, to meet future
domestic regulatory requirements, and to prepare for carbon trading

and corporate carbon asset management. All TSMC facilities continue
to conduct a GHG inventory on an annual basis. The inventory result
shows that the major direct GHG emission is perfluorinated
compounds (PFCs), which are used in the semiconductor
manufacturing process. The primary indirect GHG emission is
electricity consumption.

TSMC is also taking measures to reduce its emission of greenhouse
gases. TSMC has endorsed a memorandum of understanding
between the Taiwan Semiconductor Industry Association, the R.O.C.
Envirenmental Protection Administration, and the World
Semiconductor Council, whereby TSMC is committed to reducing PFC
emissions to 10% below the average of 1997 and 1999 by 2010. This
emissions target remains fixed as TSMC continues to grow and
expand its manufacturing facilities. The Coempany is taking the
following measures to reduce emissions in line with
recommendations provided by the intergovernmental Panel on
Climate Change {(IPCC);
® Accurate measurement of PFC gas production and the effectiveness
of exhaust gas abatement equipment in order to calculate actual
PFC emission volumes
e Evaluation of feasible alternatives to greenhouse gases and
gradually replacement of greenhouse gases at all manufacturing
facilities
® Evaluation and installation of PFC exhaust gas abatement
equipment, in line with effectiveness and safety considerations

Coal-fired power generatars are a major source of electricity in
Taiwan and emit large amounts of carbon dioxide (CO,). TSMC makes
continuous efforts to conserve energy, which reduces both carbon
dioxide gas emissions and costs. TSMC has not only adopted energy-
conservative designs for both manufacturing fabs and offices, but
has also improved the energy efficiency of facilities during operation.

Air and Water Pollution Control

TSMC has installed effective air and water pollution control
equipment in each wafer fab to meet requlatory emissions standards.
In addition, TSMC maintains backup pollution control systems,
including emergency power supplies, to lower the risk of pollutant
emission in the event of equipment breakdown. TSMC monitors the
operations of air and water pollution control equipment centrally
around the clock and tracks system effectiveness to ensure emitted
air and discharged water quality.

Water Conservation

To make most effective use of Taiwan's limited water resources, all
TSMC fabs make efforts to increase water reclamation rates by
adjusting the water usage of manufacturing equipment and
improving wastewater reclamation systems. New fabs are able to
reclaim 85% of process water, meeting or exceeding the standards of
the Science Park Administration and outperforming most
semiconductor fabs around the world. TSMC also strives to reduce
non-manufacturing-related water consumption, including water used
in air conditioning systems, sanitary facilities, cleaning, landscaping
and kitchens.



Waste Management and Recycling

TSMC has established a designated unit responsible for waste
recycling and disposal. To meet the goal of sustainable resource
utilization, TSMC's first priority is to reduce process waste before
considering recycling or disposal. TSMC carefully selects waste
disposal and recycling contractors and performs annual audits of
certification documents, site operations and transportation routes to
ensure legal and proper disposal of waste.

Other Environmental Protection Programs

TSMC has implemented an environmental accounting system,
allowing each fab to calculate cost savings or profits created by each
environmental program.

In addition, TSMC conducts "Product Life Cycle Assessments” {Product
LCA), collecting and analyzing data from the entire semiconductor
manufacturing chain from raw materials suppliers to finished
products, including statistics for such items as energy, raw materials
consumption, and pellution. The product LCA study has established
“Eco-Profiles” for all TSMC fabs and will help the Company to meet
future international regulations such as the European Union's
"Energy-Using Product® directive. These "Eco-Profiles" can also be
provided to custemers who require such documentation,

TSMC also maintains "green procurement” procedures, requiring raw
materials suppliers to declare that the materials they supply to TSMC
do not contain any prohibited substances. This ensures that products
manufactured by TSMC comply with customer requirements and the
regulatory requirements of the European Union’s RoHS directive,
TSMC also encourages employees to use "Green Mark” products in
offices, such as recycled paper, desktop PCs, LCD monitors, and
batteries.

TSMC has adopted the standards of Taiwan "Green Building" and U.S.
LEED {Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design) to apply on
future new fab and office building design, which may be more
energy and resource efficient than usual designs. In the meantime,
TSMC is planning to upgrade existing office buildings to comply with
LEED standard year by year starting in 2008.

Environmental Compliance Record
There were no environmental penalties or fines in 2007.

7.1.2 Safety and Health

Safety and Health Management

TSMC's safety and health management is built on the framework of
the OHSAS 18001 system, and adheres to the management principle
of “Plan, Do, Check, Act® to prevent accidents and protect employee
safety and health as well as Company assets.

Besides accident prevention, TSMC has established emergency
response procedures to protect the lives of employees and
contractors if disasters should occur, as well as to minimize the
negative impact on society and the environment. TSMC
communicates to suppliers to reduce potential risks in the operation
of production equipment and follows safety control procedures when
instalfing production equipment. The Company places stringent

controls on high-risk operations and also evaluates the seismic
tolerance of facilities and equipment to reduce the risk of earthquake
damage. In health management, TSMC maintains regular wellness
and professional health programs and also establishes Company-level
prevention committees when infectious diseases such as Severe Acute
Respiratory Syndrome (SARS) or Avian Influenza pose a potential risk
to the Company.

Working Environment and Employee Safety Protection
TSMC's ESH (Environmental, Safety and Health} policy commits to
preventing incidents, improving employees’ safety and health,
protecting property and establishing a secure working environment.
TSMC safety and health management operations apply to:

e Hardware Safety of Equipment Used by Process, Facilities, IT,
and General Services Departments

In addition to meeting regulatory and internal standards when

building or rebuilding facilities, TSMC also maintains procedures

governing new equipment and raw materials management, safety

approvals for bringing new tools online, revising safety rules, seismic

protection measures, and other safety measures.

* General Safety Management, Training and Audit

All TSMC facilities hold environmental, safety and health committee
meetings on a monthly basis. TSMC takes preventive measures such
as controls on high-risk work, contracter management, chemical
safety management, personal protective equipment requirements,
and safety audit management. In addition, TSMC also maintains
detailed disaster response procedures and performs regular drills to
minimize harm to employees and property, as well as the impact on
society and the environment in the event of a disaster.

® Working Environment Measurement

TSMC conducts working environment physical and chemical
measurements every six months to safeguard employees' health,
including measurement of factors such as noise, air quality, chemical
exposure, and illumination. The measurement results for each item
must be compliant with regulatory requirements; otherwise
corrective action is undertaken.

® Emergency Response

Planning and execution of an effective emergency response requires
big-picture thinking and continuous improvement and practice drifls,
TSMC's emergency response plans include procedures for rapid
response to accidents and disaster recovery as well as establishing
respense procedures for potential disasters.

All TSMC fabs conduct major annual emergency response exercises
and evacuation drills. TSMC's on-site service contractors also
participate in emergency response planning and exercises to ensure
cooperation in handling accidents and to effectively minimize
damage caused by disasters.

In addition to reqular emergency response drills held by engineering
and facilities departments each quarter, laboratory, canteen,
dormitory, and shuttle bus personnel also hold emergency response
drills to prepare for events such as chemical leakage, ammonia
release, fires, and automobile accidents.
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* Employee Health Enhancement

TSMC provides healthcare and staff assistance services in every fab.
TSMC employees enjoy health services such as 24-hour nursing care,
annual physical examinations, psychological consultations, stress
management programs, workshops, and staff assistance projects. In
addition, the Company also provides subsidized or free clinical and
dental care services, women's healthcare, acupuncture and massage
services and programs.

Health enhancement activities include nutritional consultation,
weight-loss classes, an acupuncture weight-loss program, carotid and
thyroid ultrasound examinations, an endocrinalogy clinic, a
dermatology clinic, bone mineral densitometry examinations and
cancer screenings. Canteens also provide healthy meals with high
fiber and fow fat, as well as all-fruit meals. TSMC fabs have fitness
centers with treadmills, exercise equipment, and aerobics classrooms
to encourage employees to participate in athletic activity. In addition,
all employees can find health information through the Company's
healthcare website.

Supplier and Contractor Management

For the purpose of enhancing its supply chain management, TSMC is
committed to communicating with and encouraging its contractors
and suppliers to improve their environmental, safety and health
performance. By means of communication between senior managers,
site audits and experience sharing, TSMC collaborates with major raw
materials suppliers and contractors to ensure continual improvement.
Contractors performing high-risk activities must lay out clearly-
defined safety precautions and preventative measures. In addition,
contractors working on high-risk engineering projects must establish
QHSAS 18001 systems and the workers must successfully complete
work skill training.

Environmental, Safety and Health-related Awards in 2007

® Recognized by the Ministry of Economic Affairs Water Resources
Agency for “Excellence in Water Conservation”

® Recognized by the Ministry of Economic Affairs Bureau of Energy
for "Excellence in Energy Conservation”

® Recognized by the Ministry of Economic Affairs Industry
Development Bureau for "Excellence in Voluntary Greenhouse Gas
Reduction”

& Environmental Protection Administration's "Award for Outstanding
Achievement in Industrial Waste Disposal, Resources Reduction, and
Recycling”

® Recognized by the Tainan Science Park for "Outstanding
Achievement in Environmental Protection”

® Recognized by the Executive Yuan Councit of Labor Affairs (CLA} for
"Excellence in Safety and Heaith 5-Star Award"

& Recognized by Hsinchu Science Park Administrations for Excellence
in Labor Safety and Hygiene

# Chosen for membership in the Dow Jones Sustainability World
Index for a seventh consecutive year, and the only Taiwan member
since 2003

7.2 TSMC Education and Culture Foundation

TSMC established the Education and Culture Foundation in 1998 to
coordinate the Company's sponsorship as part of its efforts in
corporate social responsibility. The Foundation's resources are
directed towards promoting our engagement in four areas:
commitment to education, sponsorship of art events, contribution to
local communities, and the employee volunteer program. In 2007,
marking TSMC's 20™ anniversary, the Foundation organized a series
of activities to highlight our commitment. We initiated a charity
concert to help abariginal students, collaborated with the renowned
Taiwan Literature Camp, sponsored a children's arts education TV
program, and expanded the TSMC employee volunteer program.
Over the next 20 years, the Company will continue to further do our
duty as a leading corporate citizen and make our community a better
and more beautiful place to live in.

7.2.1 Commitment to Education

The Foundation has been running its "TSMC Esthetic Education Tour"
program since 2003. 1t sponsors underprivileged students from
remote school districts on education tours to museums, art galleries,
and local historic sites. By 2007, the Foundation had tallied over
50,000 visits on this project. As an extension, in 2007 TSMC
commissioned the Public Television Service to produce and broadcast
a related children's TV program — An Enchanted Journey through the
National Palace Museum. Using lively animation and an in-depth
introduction, the program presents the beauty and profusion of the
Chinese cultural heritage and makes the artifacts more accessible to
young viewers.

Developing scientific talents and nurturing future leaders have always
bean two of our long-term goals. The Foundation maintains our
support of the Wu Chien-Shiung and the Wu Ta-You Science Camps.
In 2007, the Wu Chien-Shiung Science Camp, together with the 2007
Asian Science Camp, invited five Nobel laureates and 13 other world-
class scientists to give lectures to talented high school and university
students. We also work closely with leading universities on a wide
range of programs. The Foundation provides financial aid for
students from low-income families, supports chaired professor
positions and lecture series, and sponsors students from National
Tsinghua University and National Chiaotung University to study
abroad for one year.

The Foundation has also made contributions te the construction of
new facilities at leading research institutes in the science, technology
management, and electric engineering, including National Taiwan
University, National Tsinghua University, and the University of
California, Berkeley. In July of 2007, National Taiwan University began
the second phase of construction of a new chemistry research center.
The TSMC Building at Tsinghua University, is almost complete and will
open in 2008.




7.2.2 Sponsorship of Arts Education Nationwide

In 2007, the TSMC Foundation sponsored the renowned Taiwan
Literature Camp. Students and literature devotees from all over the
ceuntry gather in Hsinchu to hear from authors and literary experts,
giving Hsinchu, a city primarily known for science and technology, an
infusion of the humanities. The popular TSMC Youth Literature
Award, established in the hope of cultivating literary taste in our
society, entered its fourth year. Now well established as one of most
rigorous youth literature awards, the event attracted a huge number
of students to participate in the competition.

Noting the importance of preserving historic sites, the Foundation
continued to sponsor the Taipei Story House's Literature Salon.
Cultural activities such as regular author readings on the site gave the
old building a new lease of life and attracted the general public to
this cultural heritage site.

7.2.3 Contribution to Local Communities

The Foundation continues to sponsor and arganize art and cultural
activities in our site communities of Hsinchu and Tainan. In 2007, the
TSMC Hsinchu Art Festival was inaugurated with a special charity
concert. Students from the remote scheols of Taoshan and Wufeng
were invited to perform with a prominent symphony orchestra. The
concert gave the children an opportunity to show their musical talent
and also encouraged the general public to participate in fundraising
and community building. All of the proceeds were donated to the
education of underprivileged children in remote school districts in
Hsinchu County. The festival also included other outstanding events
such as classical music concerts, opera and drama, family activities,
and art and literature seminars. Over 40,000 people from the
community participated or attended, making for an overwhelmingly
positive response.

7.2.4 The Employee Volunteer Program

Besides sponsoring the above educational, art, and literature
programs and activities, the Foundation has encouraged employees
to participate in volunteer programs. Employees and their family
members have either served as volunteer docents on weekends at the
National Museum of Natural Science in Taichung or joined the TSMC
Book Reading Volunteer Program to read stories to elementary school
children in remote townships in Hsinchu or Tainan on weekdays.

The TSMC Volunteer Docent Program at the National Museum of
Natural Science in Taichung has operated for four years. In 2007, the
program was expanded to recruit employees of TSMC-affiliated
companies, including Vanguard, VisEra, and Global Unichip. About
200 employees have volunteered every year, and over the past four
years, volunteers have put in a total of over 25,000 hours and given
tours to over 500,000 visitors. The TSMC Book Reading Volunteer
Program, now in its third year, has already recruited 160 people, who
volunteered in four schools in 2006 and in five in 2007. Over the past
three years, there have been almost 7,000 reading sessions, and the
total reading hours have reached almost 10,000. Through many years
of dedicated volunteer work from TSMC employees, employees of
TSMC-affiliated companies, and their family members, TSMC has
shown its commitment to the expansion of science education and the
education of the underprivileged.
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8. AFFILIATE INFORMATION
AND OTHER SPECIAL NOTES







TSMC's affiliates support our core foundry business with related services such as design service and back-end assembly and test, enabling TSMC
to provide customers with the most complete set of solutions for their needs.

8.1 Affiliates

8.1.1 TSMC Affiliated Companies Chart
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TSMC North America
Shareholding; 100%

TSMC Europe B.V.
Shareholding: 100%

TSMC Japan Limited
Shareholding: 100%

TSMC Technology, Inc.
Sharehoiding: 100%

TSMC Korea Limited
Shareholding: 100%

TSMC Development, Inc.
Shareholding: 100%

TSMC {Shanghai} Company
timited
Shareholding: 100%

InveStar Semiconductor
Development Fund, Inc.
Shareholding: 97.09%

TSMC Internationat
avestment Ltd.
Shareholding: 100%

InveStar Semiconductor
Develapment Fund, Inc.
{l1) LDC.

Shareholding: 97.09%

TSMC Partnars, L1d,
Shareholding: 100%

TSMC Design Technology
Canada Inc.
Shareholding: 100%

TSMC Global, Lid.
Shareholding: 100%

Global Unichip Corp.
Shareholding: 37.04%

Global Unichip Japan
Co., Ltd.
Shareholding: 100%

XinTec fnc.
Shareholding: 42.51%

Global Unichip Corp.-NA
Shareholding: 100%

Hsin Ruey investment Co., itd.
Shareholding:

TSMC: 35.71%

Chi Cherng: 64.29%

Chi Cherng investment Cg,, Ltd.
Shareholding:

TSMC: 35.71%

Hsin Ruey: 64.29%

Emerging Alliance Fund, L.P
Shareholding: 99.5%

VentureTech Alliance fund I, LP.
Shareholding: 98%

VentureTech Alliance
Holdings, LLC
Shareholding: 100%

Venturefech Alliance Fund Iif, L.P.
Shareholding: 98%

Mutual-Pak Technology
Co., Ltd.
Shareholding: 51%

As of 12/31{2007

 WaferTech, LLC
Shareholding: 99.996%



8.1.2 Business Scope of TSMC and its Affiliated Companies

TSMC's affiliates support the company's core business of providing dedicated foundry services to customers around the world. Several of TSMCs
affiliated companies are focused on investing in companies involved in design, manufacturing, and other related businesses in the
semiconductor industry. TSMC and its affiliates provide mutual support in technology, capacity, marketing and services to maximize synergy
within the group, enabling TSMC to provide its customers with the most complete dedicated foundry services worldwide and ensure TSMC's

leading position in the global foundry market.

8.1.3 TSMC Affiliated Companies

Umit: NT{US, EUR, J#{ KRW)$ thousands

As of 12/3172007

Company Date of Incorporation Place of Registration Capital Stock | Business Activities

TSMC Noith America Jan, 18, 1983 San Joe, California, USA us 11,000 | Sales and marketing of integrated dircuits and semiconducier devices

T5MC Eurape B.Y. Mar. 04, 1994 Amsterdam, The Netherlands EUR 50.76 | Marketing actvities

TSMC Japan Limited Sep, 10, 1997 Yekehama, Japan Y 300,000 | Marketing activities

TSMC Korea Limited May 02, 2006 Seoul, Korea KRWS 400,000 | Matketing actties

TSMC (Shanghai) Company Limited Aug. 04, 2003 Shanghai, China Uss 371,000 | Manufacturing, selling, testing and computer-aided designing of
integrated dicuits and other semiconduttor devices

TSMC Interational Investment Ltd. Apr. 09, 1996 Tortola, British Virgin Islands Uss 987,968 | Providing investment in companies involved in the design,
marufacture, and other refated business in the semiconductor indusiry

TSMC Technolagy, Inc. Feb. 20, 1996 Delaware, USA Us§ 0.001 | Engineering suppodt aclivities

InveStar Semiconducior Development Fund, Inc. Sep. 10, 1936 Cayman Islands Uss 8983 | Investing in new start-up iechnology companies

InveStar Semiconductor Gevelopment Fund, Inc. (INADC. | Aug. 25, 2000 Cayman Islands uss 44,339 | Investing in new starl-up technotogy companies

TSMC Development, Inc. Feb. 16, 1996 Delaware, USA sy 0001 | Investment activities

Wafertedh, LLC Jue. 03, 1996 VWashington, USA [} 435,410 | Manulacturing, selling, testing and computer-aided designing of
integrated circuits and other semiconductor devices

TSMC Partners, Ltd. Mar, 26, 1993 Tovtola, British Virgin Islands uss 300 | (nvestment aciivties

TSMC Design Technology Canada inc. May 28, 2007 Ontario, Canada [113) 2,300 | Enginesring support activities

TSMC Global, Ltd. Il 13, 2006 Tortola, British Virgin lstands Uss 1,284,000 | Investment activities

Global Unichip Corporation Jan, 22, 1998 Hsinchu, Taiwan NTS 1,419,360 | Researching, developing, manufacturing, testing and marketing of
integrated circuts

Global Unichip Japan Co., Ltd. Jun. 16, 2005 Yokohama, Japan Py 10,000 | Providing products consulting

Global Unichip Comporation-NA feb. 02, 2004 San Jose, Calfornia, USA Uss 100 | Providing products consufting

XinTeg Inc. Sep. 11, 1598 Taoyuan, Taiwan NTS 2,157,391 | Waler level chip size packaging service

Hsin Ruey Invesiment Co., Ltd. Jul. 13, 1998 Taipei, Taiwan NTS 840,000 | Investment activities

Chi Chemg Lrwestment Co., Ltd. Jul. 15, 1598 Taipei, Taiwan NTS B40.000 | Investment activities

Mutual-Pk Technology Co., Lid. Mar. 22, 2006 Taipei, Taiwan NT§ 90,000 | Manufacturing and selling of electronic parts, and researching,
developing and testing of RFID

Emerging Alliance Fund, LP. Jan, 10, 2001 Cayman lsiands 15} 29978 | Investing in new stan-up technology companies

VentureTech Alliance Fund I, LP Feb, 27, 2004 Cayman Islands sy 33,600 | Investing in new stast-up technology companies

VentureTech Alliance Fund 1, LP. Ma. 25, 2006 Cayman lslands Uss 30,100 | lovesiing in new stan-up technology companies

VentureTech Alliance Holdings, LLC Apr. 25, 2007 Delaware, USA N/A | Investing in new start-up technology companies

8.1.4 Common Shareholders of TSMC and Its Subsidiaries or Its Affiliates with Actual of Deemed Control: None.
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8.1.5 Rosters of Directors, Supervisors, and Presidents of TSMC's Affiliated Companies

Unit: NT (US} $, except sharehalding s of 123172007
Shareholding
Company Title Name
Shares {investment Amount) | % (investmeni Holding %)
TSMC North America Director Kenneth Kin
Diretor Rick Cassidy
President Rick Cassidy - -
TSMC holds 11,000,000 shares 100%
TSMC Europe B.V. Director Kenneth Xin
Director Wendelf Huang
Director Maria Marced
President Maria Marced - -
TSMC holds 200 shares 100%
TSMC Japan Limited Chaimman Rick Teai
Director Kenneth Kin
Director Makoio Onodeia
Supervisor Lora Ho
President Makoto Onodera . -
TSMC helds 6,000 shares 100%
TSMC Korea Limited Director 1a Ming Warg
Dirertar Chih-Chun Tsai
President {Note 1)
TSMC hotds 80,000 shares 100%
TSMC (Shanghai} Company Limited Chaiman Representative of TSMC: FC.Tseng {U5$371,000,000} (100%)
Director Representative of TSMC: C.C Wei {U33371,000,000) (100%)
Director Representative of TSMC, Y.C, Chao {U5$371,000,000) {100%)
Supervisor Representative of TSMC: Lora Ho (US$371,000,000) (100%)
President YC. Chao - -
TSMC Internaticnal Investment Lid. Director Lora Ha
Director Richard Thursion
Presiclent lora Ho . -
TOMC holds 987 958,244 shares 100%
TSMC Technology, Inc. Chaiman Lora Ho
Director Richard Thurston
President Lora Ho . -
TSMC Intermational Investment Ltd. holds 100%
1,000 shares
InveSiar Semiconductor Development Fund, Inc. Director Wendell Huang
President {Note 1}
TSMC International Investment Ltd. 97.09%
hiokts 8,721,359 shares
InveStar Semiconductor Development Fund, Inc. {1 Director Wendell Huang
LDC. President [Note 1)
TSMC Intemational Investment Ltd, 97.09%
haids 43,047,573 shares
TSMC Development, Inc. Chairman Lora Ho
Director Richard Thurston
President lora Ho . .
TSMC International {nvestment Lid. holds 100%
1,000} shares
WaterTedh, LC Chaiman Rick Tsai
Director Stephen 1. Tso
President Kuo-Chin Hsu - -
TSMC Oevelopment, Inc, holds 293,636,833 99.996%
preferred shares
TSMC Pantners, Ltd, Director lora Ho
Director Richard Thurston
President Lora Ho . -
TSMC holds 300,000 shares 100%
T5MC Design Technology Canada inc. Directar Fu-Chieh Hsu
Directar Sreedhar Natarajan
Director Richard Thurston
President Fred Wang - -
TSMC Partners, Ltd. holds 2,300,000 shares 100%
TSMC Global, Ltd. Ditector lora Ho
Director Fichard Thurston
Supervisor Wendell Huang
President (Note 1)
TSMC holds 1,284 shares 100%

{Continued)




Company

Title

Name

Shareholding

Shares {Investment Amount} | % (nvestment Holding %)
Global Unichip Corporation Chairman Representative of TSMC: FC. Tseng 42,572,353 shares 37.04%
Vice Chairman K.C. Shih 3,640,893 shares 31T%
Directos Representative of Chin Yu Investment td.: C.C. L 1,268,869 shares 1.10%
Director Representative of TSMC: Lora Ho 42,572,353 shares 37.04%
Director Representative of TSMC: Jim Lai 42,512,353 shares 37.04%
Director Representative of TSMC: Jason C.5. Chen {Note 2) 41,572,353 shares 37.04%
Director CW. Jen - -
Director W.C Liv - -
Supervisor Representative of TSMC: Wendell Huang 43,512,353 shares 37.04%
Supervisor CH. Kao . -
Supenvisor Yu Lin
President lim Lai
Global Unichip Japan Co., Lid. Director Representative of GUC: fim Lai 200 shares 100%
Director Representative of GUC: Chung-Lin Tsai 200 shares 100%
Director Representative of GUC: 5.H. Cherg 200 shares 100%
Supervisor Representative of GUC: K.C, Shih 200 shares 100%
President Chung:-Lin Tsai - -
Global Unichip Corporation-NA Dicector Representative of GUC: S.H. Cheng 100,000 shares 100%
Dicector Representative of GUC: Jim Lai 100,000 shares 100%
Supenvisor Representative of GUC: K.C. Shih 100,000 shares 100%
President Jim Lai - -
XinTe Inc. Chairman Representative of TSMC: Shang-Yi Chiang 91,702,838 shares 4251%
Directar Representative of TSMC: C.C.Wei 91,702,838 shares 42.51%
Director Representative of TSMC: Lora Ho 91,702,838 shares 4251%
Director Representative of OmniVision Intemational Hokding, 9,873,751 shares 439%
1td.: XinPing He
Director Tzun Zing Chen 1,608,893 shares 0.75%
Supervisar Representative of Cheng Xin Technology Development 996,659 shares 0.46%
Corp.: Toang Chiou tu
Supervisor Representative of Quanita Computer In¢.: Chao Pin Lu 4,496,504 shares 2.08%
President Lidon Chen 132,326 shares 0%
Hsin Ruey Investsent Co,, Lid, Director Representative of Chi Cherng investment Co., Ltd.: {NT$540,000,080) (64.29%;
‘Werdell Huang
President {Nete 1)
(FSMCs investment NT$299,999,880) (35.71%)
Chi Chemng Investment Co., Ltd, Director Representative of Hsin Ruey lnvestment Co., Lid.: INT$540,000,080) (64.25%)
Jessica Chou
President [Note 1)
{TSMC's investment NT$299,999,880) (35.711%)
Mutual-Pak Technology Co., Ltd. Chairman Hsu-furg Chen 70,000 shares 1%
Director Lewis Hwan 1,524,000 shares 13.93%
Director Reprsentative of VentureTech Alliance Fund I, LP: 4,590,000 shares 51%
Kai Tseng
Supervisor Wei-Pang Lin 20,000 shares 0.20%
President Lewis Hwan 1,524,000 shares 13.93%
Emerging Afliance Fend, LE None Nene {TSMCs investment US$29,828,009) {99 50%)
VentureTech Alliance Fund {l, LR None HNone {TSMC's investment 15%32,928,000) (98%}
VentureTech Alliance Fund N, L.P Nene None {TSMC's investment U$329,498,000) (58%)
VentureTech Alliance Holdings, LC None None Nore {100%}

Nate 3: No President postion listed

Note 2; On March 10, 2008, TSMC appainted Mr. Fu-Chieh Hsu to replace Mt Jason C5. Chen as a director.
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8.1.6 Operational Highlights of TSMC Affiliated Companies (Note)

Unit: NT$ thousands, except EPS (3) As of 123172007
Company Capital Stock Assets Liabilities Net Worth Net Sales lnc;::r::;r: rrf;tlgﬁr::' (Ne?osikTaE;E Remark
TSMC North America 356,873 30,709,415 28,283,119 2,426,296 194,928,377 61173 210,754 i9.16
TSMC Europe BV, 4,342 122,901 39,199 88,702 313,770 41,052 31,366 156,830.00
TSMC Japan timited 7,090 122,825 17,896 104,929 112,730 4133 35931 588.50
TSMC Xorea Limited 13,880 18,076 1,639 16,437 20,660 1,885 1,926 2408
TSMC (Shanghai) Company Limited 13,639,707 19,000,810 10,379,647 8,621,163 5,798,239 {1,197,463) {859,165) N/A
TSMC Internatignal Investment Ltd. 32,052,646 38,863,540 11,045,318 27818222 1,566,054 562,154 562,154 0.57
TSMC Techrology, Inc. 0.032 946,888 133014 213,874 45,132 16,432 17,552 17,552.00
InveStar Semicenductor Development Fund, Inc. 291,435 1,601,116 156,354 1,404.762 69,012 552,356 552,336 61.49
InveStar Semiconductor Development Fund, Inc. 1,418,450 1,528,005 3434 1,924,511 363,471 317,179 315,634 2
{ihL0C. .

TSMC Development, Inc. 0.032 16,657,254 1,760 16,655,494 1,824,325 821,11 1,814,836 1,814,336.00
WalerTech, LLC 14,126,007 8.418,049 864,061 7,554,988 9,407,547 1,448,213 1,479,598 NIA
TSMC Partners, Lid. §733 13,508,139 8,773,454 4,734,685 302,552 302,505 302,505 1,008.35
TSMC Design Techrology Canada Inc. 74,619 131,675 38,322 93,353 123,850 11,248 11,548 5.01
TSMC Globat, Lid. 41,656,812 44,235,835 31,647 44,204,188 2,375,319 2321578 1,321,568 1,808,074.77
Global Unichip Corporation 1,149,360 3,628,605 1,325475 2,302,530 6,988,940 704,983 732,585 6.37
Global Unichip Japan Co, Ltd, 2,503 4,682 1,472 3,210 17,256 B22 357 1,785.00
Glcbal Unichip Corporation-NA 3,244 9,731 1,675 8,056 60,141 1862 1,711 0492
XinTec Inc. 2,157,391 5814517 2474718 3339,799 2,963,300 465,056 465,155 216
Hsin Ruey Invesiment Co., Lid. 840,000 2,199,313 375 2,195,555 62,339 62,126 58,751 NiA
Chi Cherng Investment Co., Ltd. 840,000 2,199,769 3757 2,196,012 62,991 62,778 59,407 NiA
Mutual-P2k Technology Co., Lid. 90,000 80,633 2143 78,490 {5.316) (2,605) 0.29
Emerging Alliance Fund, LP. 972,576 498,195 21,910 470,225 638423 137,200 137,200 NiA
VentyreTach Afliance Fund Il, LP 1,090,085 1,209,958 19,769 1,190,189 210,195 140,497 140,497 NfA
VentureTech Affiance Fund I, LP 476,534 915,177 915,177 3333 (41,533) (41,533} NfA
VentureTech Alliance Holdings, LLC NiA

“Except Global Unichip kapan Co., Ltd., the basic EPS of each group entity is caloulated based on audit figures.

Note: Foreign exchange rates for balance sheet amounts are as follows:

$1USD = 332,443 NT $1 EUR = S47 84 NT. §4 IPY = $0.2903 NT $1 RMB = $4 442 NT. $1 KRW = 50.0347 NT

Fereign exchange rates for income statement amounts are a3 follows:

$1 USD = §32.853 N1, $1 EUR = $45.03 NT, 51 IPY = $0.2B NT, §1 RME = $4.319 NT, ! KRW = 30.034 NT
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8.2 Status of TSMC Common Shares and ADRs Acquired, Disposed of, and Held by Subsidiaries

{In thousands of NTD except for number of shares}

Acquisition (Note 2) Disposal Balance Balance of | Balance of

Name of Paid-in | Source of P;::Z?g; Transaction . ‘"velsr::;:: Ba:::;;:g Guarantee | Finandng

Subsidiary Capital | Funding Date Number o Number of Number of Amount Provided by | Provided by

TS shares | A | e | AT | s | Uighaes | oted | S | roue | e

Chi Chemg 840,000 | Retained 35.7% | Year 2007 84,702 0 0 0 0 | 17,031,993 458,564 0 ¢} 0

Investment eamings Year 2008 0 0 0 0 0 | 17.031,993 458,564 0 0 0
Co,, Lid. {Note 1)

Ksin Ruey 840,000 | Retained 35.7% | Year 2007 84,883 0 0 0 0 | 17.063,919 459,511 9 ¢ 0

Investment earnings Year 2008 0 0 0 0 0 | 17063919 459,511 0 0 0
Co., Ltd. {Note 1)

Note 1: As of G2/29/2008
Note 2: Stock dividend distributed in 2007
Note 3: Carrying cost of TSMC shares

8.3 Special Notes
. 8.3.1 Private Placement Securities in 2007 and as of the Date of this Annual Report: None.

8.3.2 Regulatory Authorities' Legal Penalties to the Company or Its Employees, and the Campany's Resulting
Punishment on its Employees in 2007 and as of the Date of this Annual Report: Nore.

8.3.3 Any Events in 2007 and as of the Date of this Annual Report that Had Significant impacts on Shareholders'
Right or Security Prices as Stated in Item 2 Paragraph 2 of Article 36 of Securities and Exchange Law of
Taiwan: None.

8.3.4 Other Necessary Supplement: None.
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" Tel: 886-3-5636688

CONTACT INFORMATION

Corporate Headquarters & Fab 12
8, Li-Hsin Rd. 6, Hsinchu Science Park, Hsinchu, Taiwan 300-77, R.O.C.
Tel: 886-3-5636688 Fax: 886-3-5637000

Fab 2, Fab 5
121, Park Ave. 3, Hsinchu Science Park, Hsinchu, Taiwan 300-77, R.O.C.
Fax: 886-3-5781546

Fab 3
9, Creation Rd, 1, Hsinchu Science Park, Hsinchu, Taiwan 300-77, R.O.C.
Tel; 886-3-5636688 Fax: 886-3-5781548

Fab 6
1, Nan-Ke North Rd., Tainan Science Park, Tainan, Taiwan 741-44, R.O.C.
Tel: 886-6-5056688 Fax: 886-6-5052057

Fab 8
25, Li-Hsin Rd., Hsinchu Science Park, Hsinchu, Taiwan 300-77, R.O.C.
Tel: 886-3-5636688 fax: 886-3-5662051

Fab 14
1-1, Nan-Ke North Rd., Tainan Science Park, Tainan, Taiwan 741-44, R.O.C.
Tel: 886-6-5056688 Fax: 886-6-5051262

TSMC North America
2585 Junction Avenue, San lose, CA 95134, U.S.A.
Tel: 408-382-8000 Fax: 408-382-8008

TSMC Europe B.V.
World Trade Center, Zuidplein 60, 1077 XV Amsterdam, The Netherlands
Tel: 31-20-3059900 Fax: 31-20-3059911

TSMC Japan Limited

21F, Queen's Tower C, 2-3-5, Minatomirai, Nishi-ku
Yokohama, 220-6221, Japan

Tel: 81-45-6820670 Fax: 81-45-6820673

TSMC (Shanghai} Company Limited

4000, Wen Xiang Road, Songjiang, Shanghai, China
Postcode: 201616
Tel: 86-21-57768000 Fax; 86-21-57762525

TSMC Korea Limited

15F, Annlay Tower, 718-2, Yeoksam-dong, Gangnam-gu, Secul135-080, Korea
Tel: 82-2-20511688 Fax: 82-2-20511669

TSMC Liaison Office in India

1st Floor, Pine Valley, Embassy Golf-Links Business Park
Bangalore-560071, India
Tel: 91-99803-91826 Fax: 91-80-41764568
TSMC Design Technology Canada Inc.

349 Terry Fox Drive, Kanata, ON K2K 2V6, Canada
Tel: 1-613-5667067 Fax: 1-613-2713643

TSMC Spokesperson

Name: Lora Ho

Title: Vice President & CFO

Tel: 886-3-5636688 Fax: 886-3-5637000
Email: spokesperson@tsmc.com

Deputy Spokesperson

Name: J.H. Tzeng

Title: Public Relations Deputy Director

Tel: 886-3-5055028 Fax: 886-3-5670121
Email: jhtzeng@tsmc.com

Auditors

Company: Deloitte & Touche

Auditors: Hung-Wen Huang, Ming-Cheng Chang

Address: 12F, 156, Se¢. 3, Min-Sheng E. Rd., Taipei, Taiwan 105, R.0.C.
Tel: 886-2-25459988 Fax; 886-2-25459966

Website: http/Awww.deloitte.com.tw

Commeon Share Transfer Agent and Registrar

Company: The Transfer Agency Department of Chinatrust Commercial Bank
Address: 5F, 83, Sec. 1, Chung-Ching 5. Rd., Taipei, Taiwan 100, R.0.C.

Tel: 886-2-21811911 Fax: 886-2-23116723

Website: http://www.chinatrust.com.tw

ADR Depositary Bank

Company: Citibank, N.A.

Depositary Receipts Services

Address: 388 Greenwich Street, New York, NY 10013, U.S.A.

Website; http.//www.citigroup.com/adr

Tel: 1-877-2484237 {toll free)

Tel: 1-781-5754555 (out of US)

Fax; 1-201-3243284

E-mail: citibank@shareholders-online.com

TSMC's depositary receipts of the common shares are listed on New York
Stock Exchange (NYSE) under the symbol TSM. The information relating to
TSM is available at http:/Awww.nyse.com and http:/newmops.tse.com.tw

Copyright ©® 2008 by Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company, Ltd. All rights reserved.
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2. Condensed Statement of Income

2.1 Condensed Statement of Income from 2003 to 2007 (Unconsolidated)

Unit: NT$ thousands (Except EPS: NTY)

2.2 Condensed Statement of Income from 2003 to 2007 (Consolidated)

Uit NT$ thousands (Except EPS: NT$)

Item 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 Item 2003 2004 2005 006 2007
Net Sales 201,904,341 255,992,427 264,588,364 313,881,635 313,647,644 Net Sales 202,996,812 257,212,618 266,565.070 317,407,101 322,530,596
Gross Profit 72,891,637 110,160,584 115,244,049 149,718,400 137,159,314 Graoss Profit 74,833,478 115,819,183 118,202,874 155,810,000 142,350,211
Income from Cperations 52,647,577 86,822 778 93,013,824 126,299,859 112,252,047 Income from Operations 51,300,581 88,481,674 90,968,559 127,264,694 111,721,907
Non-operating Income ang Gains 2,665,799 6,785,048 7,381,360 11,586,727 10,834,698 Non-operating Income and Gains 5,669,312 6,015,558 9,398,360~ 9,705,592 11,933,803
Non-operating Expenses and Losses 4,285,101 §,829,242 6,575,761"*" 3,080,087 2,335,319 Nonroperating Expenses and Lasses 5,791,243 2,531,645 6,104 672+ 3.608,078 2,013,684
Interest Revenue 819,317 1,687 581 2,506,769 3,382,868 2,634,636 Interest Revenug 888,107 1,783,693 2,806,226 4,542,149 5,651,700
Interest Expense 1,576,343 1,278,072 1,180,484+ 661,200 584,736 Interest Expense 1,831,005 1,454,242 1,413,374%* 890,602 842,242
Income from Operations of Continued 51,028,275 91,778,584 93,819,423 134,806,499 120,751,406 Income from Operations of Continued 51,178,645 91,965,587 94,263,247 133,362,208 121642026
Segments - before Tax Segments - before Tax
Income from Operations of Continued 47,258,700 92,316,115 93,575,035 127,255,917 109,177,093 Income from Qperations of Continued 47 255,688 92,329,013 93,632,668 125,588,457 109,932,400
Segments - after Tax Segments - after Tax
Net Income 47,258,700 92,316,115 93,575,035 127,009,721 109,177,093 Het Income 47,155,688 62,329,013 93,632,668 127,195,246 109,932,400
Earnings Per Share 1.33" 387 379" 493* 4.14* Net Income Attributatle to Shareholders of 47,258,700 92316115 93,575,035 127,009,731 109,177,093
Adjusted Ezrnings Per Share .78+ 3,50 355m a2 ; the Farent
Caplalized Interest 138,668 262,108 | | . farnings Per Share 233" 1.97* 379 493" 414
- Based on weighted average shares outstancing in each year Adjusted Earnings Per Share 1.78* 3.50 3.55¢* 482+ -
** Retroactive adiustment for capitalization of unappropriated earnings and bonus 1o employees Capitalized Interest 138516 278334 - - -

** Cerain accounts of year 2005 have been redassified o conform ta year 2006 dassifications.

" Retroactive adj for | of

Based on weighted average shazes outstanding in each year
rati d eamings and bonus to employees

*** Certain accounts of year 7005 have been reclassified to conform 10 year 2006 classifications.
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3.2 Financial Analysis from 2003 to 2007 (Consolidated)

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
Capital Structure Analysis Debits Ratio {%) 19.17 20,10 14.10 13.34 1405
Long-term Fund to Fived Assets (%) $75.65 166.58 194,69 205.38 197.87
Liquidity Anatysis Current Ratio (%} 547 48 288.57 604 46 555.51 512.92
Quick Ratio (%) 50220 261,62 54994 506.39 461114
Times Interest Earned (Times} 26.14 53.92 67.69 152.46 145.43
Operating Performance Analysis Average Collection Turnover (Times) 9.03 9.22 184 8.84 855
Days Sales Qutstanding 40.41 39.60 46,54 41.28 42.69
Average Inventory Turnaver (Times) 1098 10.21 89 8.25 7.96
Average Inventery Turnaver Days 3324 3574 40.94 4422 45.35
Average Payment Turnover {Times} 15.43 1475 14.37 15.41 15.76
Fixed Assets Turnover {Times) 0.96 0.99 1.09 1.25 1.24
Total Assets Turnover (Times) 030 0.51 0.51 054 0.57
Profitability Anatysis Return on Total Assets (%) 12,30 20.68 183.89 2312 19.10
Raturmn on Equity (%) 1512 25.36 22.16 26 64 2194
Opefating Income to Paid-in Capital Ratio{%) 2531 38.05 36.78 4927 4228
Pre-tax Income to Paid-in Capital Ratio (%) 2525 3955 33.12 52.22 46.03
Net Margin (%) 2328 35.90 35.13 40.07 34.07
Basic Earnings Per Share (NT$} (Notel} 178 150 155 482 434
£arnings Per Share {NT$) (Notel) 1.78 350 355 481 414
Cash Flow Cash Flow Ratio (%) 381.44 239.60 447,65 437.46 377.30
Cash Flow Adequacy Rato (%) 132.59 146.18 15453 156.75 142.46
Cash Flow Reinvestment Ratic (%) 17.97 18.54 12.64 1436 10.07
Leverage Qperating Leverage 3.3 2.38 231 199 22
Finarkial Leverage 1.04 1.02 1.02 1m 101
Industry Specific Key Performance Billing Utilization Rate (%) 82 105 94 102 93 (Note 2)
Indicater Advanced Technologies {0.13-micron and below) 17 8 45 49 55
Percentage of Wafer Sale (%)
Sales Growth (%) 251 267 16 19.1 16
Net Income Growth (%) a7 953 14 357 140
Analysis of Deviation over 20% - 2007 vs. 2006
1. The cash flow reinvestment ratio decreased by 30%, which was primanly due 1o a decrease in cash provided by operating activities and an increase in cash dnidends.

Mate 1: Retroactive acjustment for capitalization of unappropriated earnings and bonus to employees.
Note 2: Capacity includes wafers committed by Vanguard.
Note 3: Cerlain accounts of prior years have been redassified to conform to current year classifications.

*Glossary
1. Capital Structure Analysis
(1) Deb1 Ratio
(2) Long-term Fund to Fixed Assets
Ratio
2, Liguidity Analysis
(1) Current Ratio
(2) Quick Rratio

(3) Times Interest Earned

= Total Liabilies / Total Assets
= (Shareholders’ Equity + Long-term Liabilities) 7 Net Fixed Assets

= Current Assets / Current Liabilities

= (Current Assats - Inventories - Prepaid Expenses) { Current
Liabilities.

= Earnings before Interest and Taxes / Interest Expenses

3. Operating Performance Analysis
{1} Average Colfection Turngver
(2} Days Sales Dutstanding
(3} Average tnventory Turnover

= Net Sales / Average Trade Receivables
= 365 / Average Collection furnaver
= Cost of Sales / Average Inventary

(4) Average Inventory Turnover Days = 365 / Average Inventory Turnaver

(5) Average Payment Turnover
(E) Fixed Assets Tumover
(7) Total Assets Tumaver
4, Profitability Anatysis
{1) Return on Total Assets

{2) Retum on Equaty
{3) Opesating Income to Paid-in
Lapnal Ratio

= Cost of Sales { Average Trade Payables
= HetSales { Net Fixed Assets
= Ne1Sales { Total Agsets

= (Net Income + Interest Expenses * {1 - Effective Tax Rate) }
Average Tota) Assats

= Het Income | Average Shareholders' Equity

= (perating Income / Paid-in Capital

(4} Pre-tax Income ta Paid-in
Capetal Ratio

(5} Net Margin

(6) Earnings Per Shate

5. Cash Flow
{1) Cash Flow Ratio
{2) Cash Flow Adequacy Ratio

{3) Cash Flaw Reinvestment Ratic
6. Leverage

{1) Operating Leverage
{2) Financial Levarage

= Income before Tax { Paid-in Capital

= Net Income / Net Safes
= [Net income - Preferred Stock Dividend) / Weighted Average
Number of Shares Outstanding

= Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities f Current Liabilities

= Five-year Sum of Cash from Operations / Five-year Sum of Capeal
Expenditures, Inventory Additions, and Cash Dividend

= {Cash Provided by Dperating Activities - Cash Dividends) / (Grass
Fixed Assets + Investments + Other Assets + Working Capital)

= {Nat Sales - Variable Cost) / Income from Operatians
= |ncome from Operations / (Income from Operations - Interest
Expenses)
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7. Financial Statements for the Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 and Independent Auditors' Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing
Company Limited as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related statements of income, changes
in shareholders' equity and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company's management, Cur responsibility is to express an gpinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accardance with the Rules Governing the Audit of Financial Statements
by Ceriified Public Accountants and auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China.
Those rules and standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether the financial statemenits are free of material misstaternent. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited as of December 31,
2007 and 2006, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in
conformity with the Guidelines Governing the Preparation of Financial Reparts by Securities Issuers,
requirements of the Business Accounting Law and Guidelines Governing Business Accounting with
respect to financial accounting standards, and accounting principles generally accepted in the
Republic of China.

We have also audited, in accordance with the Rules Governing the Audit of Financial Statements by
Certified Public Accountants and auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China, the
consolidated financial statements of Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and
subsidiaries as of and for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, and have expressed an
unqualified opinion on the consclidated financial statements.

Doty X [ ue

lanuary 10, 2008

Notice to Readers

The accompanying financial statements are intended only to present the financial position, results of
operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally accepted
in the Republic of China and not those of any other jurisdiction. The standards, procedures and
practices to audit such financial statements are those generally accepted and applied in the Republic
of China.

For the convenience of readers, the auditors' report and the accompanying financial statements have
been translaied into English from the original Chinese version prepared and used in the Republic of
China. If there is any conflict between the English version and the original Chinese version or any
difference in the interpretation of the two versions, the Chinese-language auditors' report and
financial statements shall prevail.
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Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited

STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006

’
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earnings Per Share)
2007 2006 2007 ) 006
Amount % Amount *% Amount % Amount %
GROSS SALES [Notes 2 and 24) $ 318,167,299 $ 319,210,148 Foreign exchange loss, net {Note 2} $ - i 412,726 -
Cthers 83,932 - 151,294 -
SALES RETURNS AND ALLOWANCES (Note 2) 5.519,655 5328,513
Total non-operating expenses and dosses 2,335,339 - 3,090,087 1
NET SALES 313,647,644 100 313,881,635 100
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 120,751,406 39 134,806,499 43
L0OST OF SALES (Motes 18 and 24) 176,223,224 S6 164,163,235
INCOME TAX EXPENSE {Notes 2 and 17) {11,574 313) (4) {7,550,582) (2)
GROSS PROFIF 137,424 420 a4 149,718,400
NET INCOME BEFORE CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
UNREALIZED GRQSS PROFIT FROM AFFILIATES {Note 2) 265,106 - - PRINCIPLES 109,177,033 35 127,255 N7 41
REALIZED GROSS PROFIT 137,159,314 44 149,718,400 CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, NET OF TAX
BENEFIT OF NT$82,062 THOUSAND (Note 3} - - (245,186) -
OPERATING EXPENSES [Notes 18 and 24)
Research and development 15913834 5 14,601,385 NET INCOME b 109,177,093 35 $ 127,009,731 41
Generzl and administrative 7,660,776 3 7,190,422
Matketing 1,332,657 - 1,626,734 2007 2006
) Before After Before After
Total operating expenses 007267 B | 23418541 Income Tax Income Tax Income Tax Income Tax
WCOME FROM OPERATIONS 112,252,047 3 126,299,859 EARINGS PER SHARE INTS, Hote 27)
Basic earnings per share § 458 ] 414 $ 5.10 b 482
NON-OPERATING INCOME AND GAINS Dituted earnings per share § 458 % 414 | § 5.09 } 4.81
Equity 5. earnings of equity method investees, net (Noses 2 and 10) 5,468,130 ? 5,526,727 z Certain pro forma information (after income tax) is shown as follows, based on the assurption that the Company's stock held by subsidiaries i treated as
Interest income (Note 2) 2634636 ! 3382868 ! aveilable-for-sale financial assets instead of treasury stock (Notes 2 and 21):
Setdement income (Note 26) 985,134 967,506 1
Technical senvice income (Notes 24 and 26) 712,162 670,297 - 2007 2006
Rental income (Note 24) . 368,748 22,281 : NET INCOME BEFORE CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment and other assets PRINCIPLES $ 109,278,855 5 127.338.237
(Motes 2 and 24) 305,204 - 596,459 -
Fareign exchange gain, net (Note 2) .28 : - : NET INCOME 5 109,278,855 5 127,092,051
Valuation gain en financial instruments, net (Notes 2, 5 and 23} - - 33,850 -
Others {Nate 24) 289,479 - 194,739 - EARNINGS PER SHARE (NT$}
. . Basic earnings per share 3 4.14 $ 481
Total non-opeérating income and gains 10,834,652 3 11,596,727 4 Diluted earnings per share 5 414 s 481
NON-OPERATING EXPENSES AND LOSSES The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. (Concluded)
Provision for Iitigation loss (Note 26 j) 1,008,635 - - -
Interest expense 584,736 - 661,200 -
Loss on settlement and disposal of financial instruments, net {Notes 2, 5
and 23} 413,809 - 1,623,882 1
Valuation loss on financial instruments, net {Notes 2, 5, and 23} 239,413 - -
Loss on disposal of property. plant and equipment and other assets
{Note 2y 4814 . 240,985
{Continued)
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Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006

{In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

2007 2008 2007 2006
CASH FLOWS FROM QOPERATING ACTIVITIES Financial assets carried at cost $ - 4 na9
Net income ] 104,177,003 4 127,009,731 Investments accounted for using equity method - 37,946
Adjustmenits to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating Property, plant and equipment and cther assets 54,509 1,277,729
actmties: Proceeds from return of capital by investees 433,551 162,354
Degreciation and amortization 72,820,579 66,009,455 Increase in deferred charges {2,685,610} {1,272,355)
Unrealized gross profit from affitiates 265,106 - Increas# in refundable deposits (1,435,304} {1,222,592)
Amortization of premiumydliscount of financial assets {117,158) 2,399 Increase in other asset (232,575 -
Loss {gain) on dispasal of available-for-sale financial assets, net {271,064} 485 Net cash used in investing activities {65,941,167) {117,301,784)
Equity in earnings of equity method investees, net (5,468,23C) (5.526,727)
Dividends received from equity method investees 877,147 626,367 CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Gain on disposal of investments accounted for using equity method Repayment of bonds payable (7.000,000) -
investees, net - (26,031) Increase {decrease) in guarantee deposits {1,569,284) 917,016
Gain on dispasal of financial assets carried at cost, net - 212) Cash dividends {77.489,064) (61,825,061}
Loss on impairment of financial assets carried at cost - 36,608 Cash bonws paid to employees {4,572,798) (3,432,129
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment and other assets, net {300,387} {355,474) Boaus 10 directors and supervisors {285,800 {257,410}
Deferred income 1ax 1,083,194 179,828 Repurchase of treasury stock {45,413,373) -
Loss on idle assets - 44072 Proceads from exercise of employee stock options 436,827 575,197
Changes in operating assets and liabibt
Decrease (increase) in: Net cash used in finanding activties {135,893,492) (64,022,387)
Financial assets and liabelities at fair value through profit or loss 236,413 1,112,776
Receivables from related parties {9,832,139) 4,181,095 NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {22,717 607} 14,756,126
Notes and accounts receivable {1,633,164) 4,313,654
Allowance for doubtful receivables {1.959) (285,413) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 100,139,709 85,383,583
Allowance for sales returns and others 1,105,620 (1,518,904}
Other receivables from retated parties {76,042) 985,419 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR § 72422102 $ 100,139,709
Other financial assets 321,762 (99,109)
Inventaries (1,834,928) (2,894,259 SUPPLEMENTAL CISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFCRMATION
Prepaid expenses and othey curzent assets 359,734 {49,426) Interest paid $ 661,200 $ £61,200
Increase (decrease} in: Income tax paid 5 7,330,401 § 3,184528
Accounts payable 3,392,139 (1,808,427
Payables to related parties (327,286) (612,384 INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES AFFECTING BOTH CASH AND NON-
Income tax payable 3,127,545 4,034,530 CASHITEMS
Accrued expenses and other current labilities 1,259,738 157,262 Acquisition of property, plant, and equipment $ 76,013,264 3 79,026,104
Accrued pension cost 127,563 68,724 Decrease (increase) in payables to contractors and equipment suppliers 5,279,783 {1,810,293)
Deferred credits 72,747 95,745} Cash paid 3 81,303,047 ] 77,215,811
Net cash provided Dy operating actinties 174,115,992 196,080 297 Repurchase of reasury stack $ 48,466,957 $ -
Increase in accrued expenses and other cutrent liabilities {3,053,584} -
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES Cash paid $ 45413373 § -
Acquisitions of.
Avatlable-for-sale financial assets {9,547,253) (98,679,832} NON-CASH INVESTING AND AINANCING ACTIMITIES
Held-to-maturity financial assets - (18,554,027} Cutrent portion of bonds payable 3 3 7,000,000
investments accounted for using equity methed (7,358,685) (5,515,466} Current portion of other payables to related parties {under payables 16
Financial assets carried at cost {36,333) (12,240 related parties) b3 - 3 688,591
Property, plant and equipment (81,303,047) (77.215811) Current portion of other long-term payable {under accrued expenses and
Proceeds from disposal o redemption of: other current liabilities) b 3,673,182 $ 617,892
Available-for-sale financial assets 18,844,520 73,212,019 Transfer of available-for-sale financial assets and other net assets to
Held-to-maturity financial assets 17,325,120 10,410,000 investments accounted for using equity methad (Note 6) $ - § 39,687,637
{Continued) The accompanying notes are an integrat part of the financial statements. [Conctuded)

"




‘Bununoe alep USWa|19s

Bursn Jop pajunodde | s1asse [edueuly Jo 3jes Jo aseyduind Aem senbas v "uonezitowe Jo uawledw
‘'uonubo221ap Jo 3w ay) e paziubodal ale $3s50| 40 suleS 'UoSINkDEe aY) 0} 3|geIngLile

Ap2aup ase 1ey) s1so> uonsesues) smd anjea Jiey 1e paziuBodal A|(eiur aue $)asse |gueul asoy ]
"1502 UONISINDIE 18 PALUED 210 YD1y SHSOdaD 2wl PRINIaNIS 10) 1dadxs POYIaW 1531211 AANIIYD
3} J3pUn 150D PAZILJOWE B PILUED e pue s}asse jepueuly Alln)ew-0y-piay se pazuobales ale
Aluniew 01 pjoy o3 AljIge pue coljuaiul aanIsod e sey AUBGLIOD BYY YDIYM JOJ SJUSWINIISUI |BIDUBULY
$1955y [eDueuly Ajunlew-01-play

‘paziubodal sem $50| JuaULItedw 3Ll 13Ye PALINII0 YIIYM JUBAS

ue 0] ajgelnguile Ajea|d sl asealdap syl ey papirold ‘sbuiuies ul paziubodal st asealnsp ay) o
JUNOLWE 3Y1 ‘S311NJ3S 3P JC} 'S3seaIdEp ss0| Juawiedw ay3 o Junowe ay 'pouad luanbasqns e u
‘31 "pazIuBoas 51 550| B 'pasiedul] 51 135S |RIDUBUY € FBYY S31EDIPUI U21UM 3IUSPIAS 9ANDSIqO S1 31aLl |

‘1eak a4y Jo pua 3y} 1@ saoud pasise pue piq jo abesare 3yl Buisn paulLIaIE S BN|BA JIEB)
'SANIINDGFS 1G3p 104 Jeak 3Yl JO pUd 3YL e anjeA s1asse 1au ayy buisn paulwialap st spuny [eninw pus
-uado Jo anjea 1124 “saNbiuyd3 uoienjes Buisn PaleLISD S| SHSOAAP 3WIL PAINIANILS JO aN[eA Jigy 3y

‘Bununodle a1ep WBWIINSS Buisn 10} PAIUNGCIIE S| SIASSe |BIDUBUNY JO 3fEs 1o aseydind Aem senbal
¥ 199YS 32UP[Bq Ayl Woly paziubodasap si 19s5e (BDUeUl) ay) usym sBuluies Ul paziubodal aie sasso)|
1o suief parejnwnioe buipuodsanod ay) Anba siapjoyaieys 1o wsuodwod aieledas e se paiodal
24P 1U3LWIINSEALLAY JUSNDAsqNs woly anjea Jiey u) sabuey) ‘uonisinboe ayy o) ajgetnguiie Apdaup
210 121 51502 uonsesuen snid anjea Jiey 1e paziubodal AYjBILIUL ) 513558 (B1DURLY) 3[ES-104-3[qR(1IBAY
51355y |RIDUBUL 3|eS-10)-3(e|leAy

Aunger (eoueuy

e 58 pazIubooas sI 2AIIRALIBP aY] ‘AAM1EBU 5) 3njeA Ile) Syl UBYm [1asse (Bpueul e se paziuBodas

S1 SANBABP B3 ‘aAllisod SI aN|eA 1IBp SL) USUAA ‘SUOTIpUOD 133ew Buljieazid yitm tualsisuod

ale 1ey) suondwnsse pue ssiewnss bunesodiodur sanbiuysal uonenea Suisn palewnsa s| anjea seq

‘Bununodoe aiep Juswapias buisn oy pawnoie

S| 5195SE [BIDUBUY 0 9185 10 aseynd Aem Jejnbal y 'sbulules u) paziuboosl anjea ey us sabueys yum
Auanbasqns IN|eA Jie) 1B PAINSPILUDL AL SSAILEALIAP 3U] “PRINDUIL SB Pasuadxs S1S0D UONDESUEL Y)lm
‘an|ea Jiey 1e paziubodal Afjeitiul are Bununode aBpay JOJ BLSILD BY} 193U 10U OP JBY] SIAILBALRQ
$S07 0 113044 YBnoiy] anjea aeg 1e sani|Iqe/s1assy |einueury

‘anjea iie) sarewixosdde Junowe Bundued ay| ‘sluajeanba yses se payissepy
a1e @seY2iNnd 4O J1EP IYL WO} SYIUOW 33IY] UBY] 53| JO Sailunew Yiam pasnboe sajou alelodiod
pue siaded |erIaWWoY paydeq-tasse ‘spueq uswusasob Ag pazijeaie|jod syuawsalbe aseydunday

sjuajeanby ysed

‘Ajaandadsal
'S3IH|IGE) pUE $1aSSE JUSLINDUOU 38 JUSLIND SB PAIISSED 10U 81€ Jeyl S311jiqel| pue $1955y "31ep

T

193Ys 3IuUe|Eq 24} W) Jeak 3u0 Uylim Pa(11as aq o) papadxe sucliebiqo pue sasodind Buipel Joy
PaUNdUl SUCHEBIIQO 218 SAIY(IQRY TUSLIND "S1EP 193YS S2UE(RY A4} WO} JPIA SUO UILYIIAA PIINSUOD IO
PJos "ysed 01 paliaaund 3q 0] parsadxa s1asse pue sasodind Buipey Joy piay s19sse AU S1asse UL
SNIGEIT PUE $ITSSY 1UILINIUON PUE JUBLIND JO UDNEILISSED

‘se1ewnsa siuawabeusw wolg Jayip Aew synsad |en1oe ay] uleuadun Ajuaiayu
3le 18y} SI9NEW JO S31PLUISS pur suondwinsse ajgeUosSeal YW 0} Juswabeuew sainbas saididund
pue me| ‘saunaping pauoiualaloge 3yl s AIWIojUod Ul sjuatualels [epueuy jo uoneredaid ayy

53)BWINST JO 85N
:SMO||0) SE pazLewwns ale ssdljod Bununodse 1wesylubig

“lieasud jjeys sjuawalels jeueuly abenbuel-asauiys syl 'SUOISIaA OM] BY}

10 UONRIIAIIUN BY) Ul 3DUISYIP AUB SO UOISIZA 3S3UIYD [euIBUO 341 pue uoisiaa ysi|bul au) usamiag
Piyuod Aue 51 2134) | 'D'0Y B4l Ui pasn pue paledaid uoisias asauy)) jewbuo ays woy ysiBul

OlUI PAIB|SULI) UBIQ BARY SIUAWALEIS [PRUeUl DutAuedwiodde ayy *SIapeal JO 32UBIUSAUOD JY3 104

'O’y 2yl ul paldadse Ajeisuab saidipuud Bununoase pue ‘Builunoddy
ssauisng Buiisaon saulapIn ‘meT Buitunoy $SaUISNg 's1anss] sanunaas Ag suoday [eoueuly Jo
vonesedald 3yl Buanon sauUSpIND ayl Yim ALWIOUOD Ul pRIudsald a1e SJUSWISIE]S jeIDUBUY S|

S3I21T10d DNILNNOZDY LNVIIINDIS T

"Alaniioadsal ‘saadoldwa Zoz' 0T pue §65'0Z pey Auedwod ay) ‘9007 PUB L00Z “| £ Joquanaq jo sy

"SYSeW Jo
Bulineynuew ayl pue SId1A3P JOIPNPUOIWSS J3YI0 puUe N33 pajesbaiul jo Buubisap papie
-i21ndwod pue Bunsal 'Buibeyoed ‘Bujes ‘Bulimiaejnuew syl U Auiew pabebus s) Auedwod ay

“(s5Qv) saleys Aeusodag ueduswy 0 Wiy 8yl Ul (ISAN} 3BUBLYDXT 33015 JIOA MBN

Y} U0 32015 JO SAIRYS S11 JO SWOS PAS) DINSL “£661 "8 1290120 UQ (351) aBueyx] 32015 uemie ayl
UO Pa1sl| 313 SaIBYS SH “pRE L G Jequiidag uQ sio1saaul areald saylo uieLad pue (sdiyd) se1eie
11 JO UIELISY pUB A’N $21U0J19|] sdifiyd (UBNA SAIINZEXT 343 JO puny luawdoaag ayl ybnouyy
Bunode 3’0 Y Y1 JO WAWWIRACD 341 Buowe ainuana e se palelodiodul sem "uone:odiod (D'Q'Y)
euyD Jo Jgnday e '(OINSL 10 Auedwo) ayl) paliw Auedwo Buuniaenuey J01oNPUOdIWSS UBAIEL

TVYINID 'L

(2sIMUBLI0 Pa1YI2ads SSI|UN 'SIB|IOQ UBMIBL M3N JO SPUBSNOY| Ul SJUNGLIY)
9007 GNV £00Z L€ H39IW3D3d QIAN3T SHY3IA JHL HOd
SLNIWILYLS TVIDNYNIA OL1 SILON

paywn Auedwo) Buuinide nuepy JOIINPUOIIWAS UBMIE]L



If there is objective evidence which indicates that a financial asset is impaired, a loss is recognized. If,
in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease is cleasly
attributable to an event which occurred after the impairment loss was recognized, the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed to the extent of the decrease. The reversal may not result in a
carrying amount that exceeds the amortized cost that would have been determined as if no
impairment loss had been recognized.

Allowance for Doubtful Receivables

An allowance for doubtful receivables is provided based on a review of the collectibility of notes and
accounts receivable. The Company determines the amount of the allowance for doubtful receivables
by examining the aging analysis of outstanding notes and accounts receivable and current trends in
the credit quality of its customers as well as its internal credit policies.

Revenue Recognition and Allowance for Sales Returns and Others

The Company recagnizes revenue when evidence of an arrangement exists, the rewards of ownership
and significant risk of the goods has been transferred to the buyer, price is fixed or determinable, and
collectibility is reasonably assured. Provisions for estimated sales returns and others are generally
recorded in the period the related revenue is recognized, based on historical experience,
management’s judgment, and any known factors that would significantly affect the allowance.

Sales prices are determined using fair value taking into account related sales discounts agreed to by
the Company and its customers. Sales agreements typically provide that payment is due 30 days from
invoice date for a majority of the customers and 30 to 45 days after the end of the month in which
sales occur for some customers. Since the receivables from sales are collectible within one year and
such transactions are frequent, fair value of the receivables is eguivalent to the nominal amount of
the cash to be received.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market value. Inventories are recorded at standard cost
and adjusted to the approximate weighted-average cost at the balance sheet date, Market value
represents replacement cost for raw materials, supplies and spare parts and net realizable value for
work in process and finished goods. The Company assesses the impact of changing technaclagy on its
inventaries on hand and writes off inventories that are considered obsalete, Year-end inventories are

evaluated for estimated excess quantities and obsolescence based on a demand forecast within a
specific time horizon, which is generally 180 days or less. Estimated losses on scrap and slow-moving

items are recognized and included in the allowance for losses.

Investments Accounted for Using Equity Method

Investments in companies wherein the Company exercises significant influence over the operating
and financial policy decisions are accounted for using the equity method. The Company’s share of the
net income or net loss of an investee is recognized in the "equity in earnings/losses of equity method
investees, net" account. Prior to January 1, 20086, the difference, if any, between the cost of
investment and the Company's proportionate share of the investee’s equity was amortized by the
straight-line method aver five years, with the amortization recorded in the "equity in earnings/losses

of equity method investees, net" account. Effective January 1, 20086, pursuant to the revised
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 5, "Long-term Investments Accounted for Using the
Equity Method" (SFAS No. 5), the cost of an investment shall be analyzed and the cost of investment
in excess of the fair value of identifiable net assets acquired, representing goodwill, shall not be
amertized and instead shall be tested for impairment annually. If the fair value of identifiable net
assets acquired exceeds the cost of investment, the excess shall be proportionately allocated as
reductions to fair values of non-current assets (except for financial assets other than investments
accounted for using the equity method and deferred income tax assets). The accounting treatment
for the investment premiums paid before January 1, 2006 is the same as that for goodwill which is
no longer being amortized; while investment discounts continue to be amortized over the remaining
periods. When an indication of impairment is identified, the carrying amount of the investment is
reduced, with the related impairment loss recognized in earnings.

When the Company subscribes for additional investee's shares at a percentage different from its
existing ownership percentage, the resulting carrying amount of the investment in the investee differs
from the amount of the Company's share of the investee's equity. The Company records such a
difference as an adjustment to long-term investments with the corresponding amount charged or
credited to capital surplus.

Gains or losses on sales from the Company to equity method investees are deferred in proportion to
the Company’s ownership percentages in the investees until such gains or losses are realized through
transactions with third parties. The entire amount of the gains or losses on sales to investees over
which the Company has a controlling interest is deferred until such gains or losses are realized
through subsequent sales of the related products to third parties. Gains or losses on sales from equity
method investees to the Company are deferred in proportion to the Company's ownership
percentages in the investees until they are realized through transactions with third parties. Gains or
losses on sales between equity method investees over each of which the Company has control are
deferred in proporticen to the Company's weighted-average ownership percentage in the investee
which records gains ar losses. In transactions between equity method investees over either or both of
which the Company has no control, gains or losses on sales are deferred in proportion to the
multiplication of the Company's weighted-average ownership percentages in the investees. Such
gains or losses are recarded until they are realized through transactions with third parties,

If an investee's functional currency is a foreign currency. differences will result from the translation of
the investee's financial statements into the reporting currency of the Company. Such differences are
charged or credited to cumulative translation adjustments, a separate component of shareholders'
equity.

Financial Assets Carried at Cost

Investments for which the Company does not exercise significant influence and that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, such as
non-publicly traded stecks and mutual funds, are carried at their original cost. The costs of non-
publicly traded stocks and mutual funds are determined using the weighted-average method. If there
is objective evidence which indicates that a financial asset is impaired, a loss is recognized. A
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taxable income for calculating the AMT includes most of the tax-exempt income under various laws
and statutes. The Company has considered the impact of the AMT Act in the determination of its tax
liabilities.

Stock-based Compensation

Employee stock option plans that are amended or have options granted on or after January 1, 2004
are accounted for by the interpretations issued by the Accounting Research and Development
Foundation of the Republic of China. The Company adopted the intrinsic value method and any
compensation cost determined using this method is recognized in earnings over the employee
vesting period.

Treasury Stock

Treasury stock is stated at cost and shown as a deduction in shareholders' equity. When the Company
retires treasury stock, the treasury stock account is reduced and the commaon stock as well as the
capital surplus - additional paid-in capital are reversed on a pro rata basis. When the book value of
the treasury stock exceeds the sum of the par value and additional paid-in capital, the difference is
charged to capital surpius - treasury stock transactions and to retained earnings for any remaining
amount. The Company's stock held by its subsidiaries is treated as treasury stock and reclassified from
investments accounted for using equity method to treasury stock. The gains resulted from dispesal of
the treasury stock held by subsidiaries and cash dividends received by subsidiaries from the Company
are recorded under capital surplus - treasury stock transactions.

Foreign-currency Transactions
Fareign-currency transactions are recorded in New Taiwan dollars at the rates of exchange in effect
when the transactions occur. Exchange gains or losses derived from foreign-currency transactions or

monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in earnings.
At the balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in fareign currencies are
revalued at prevailing exchange rates with the resulting gains or losses recognized in earnings.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In March 2007, the Accounting Research and Development Foundation of the R.O.C. issued an
interpretation that requires companies to record the bonus paid to directors, supervisors and
employees as an expense rather than an appropriation of earnings. This interpretation should be
applied to financial statements for fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2008,

The Accounting Research and Development Foundation of the R.O.C, issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 39, "Accounting for Share-based Payment" (SFAS No. 39) in August 2007,
which requires companies to record share-based payment transactions in the financial statements at
fair value. SFAS No, 39 should be applied to financial statements for fiscal years beginning on or after
January 1, 2008. .

The Accounting Research and Development Foundation of the R.O.C. revised Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 10, *Accounting for Inventories” {SFAS No. 10} in November 2007, which

requires inventories to be stated at the lower of cost or net reaiizable value item by item. Inventories
are recorded by the specific identification method, first-in, first-out method or weighted average
method. The last-in, first-out method is ne longer permitted. The revised SFAS No. 10 should be
applied to financial statements for the fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2009, Early
adoption is permitted.

3. ACCOUNTING CHANGES

On January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the newly released Statements of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 34, "Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement® (SFAS No. 34) and No. 36,
*Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation.”

The Company had categorized its financial assets and liabilities upon initial adoption of the newly
released SFASs. The adjustments made to the carrying amounts of the financial instruments
categorized as financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss were included in the
cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles; the adjustments made to the carrying ameounts
of those categorized as available-for-sale financial assets were recognized as adjustments to
shareholders' equity.

The effect of adopting the newly released SFASs is summarized as follows:

Recognized as Cumulative Effect Recognized as a Separate

of Changes in Accounting Component of Shareholders”

Principles (Net ¢f Tax) Equity

Financial assets or liabilities at fai value thraugh profit or Joss $ {246,186) 3 -

Avatlable-for-sale financial assets - .

] {246,186

The adoption of the newly released SFASs resulted in an increase in net income before cumulative
effect of changes in accounting principles of NT$280,036 thousand, an increase in net income of
NT$33,850 thousand, and an increase in basic earnings per share {after income tax) of NT$0.001, for
the year ended December 31, 2006.

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the newly revised SFAS No. 5 and SFAS No. 25,
which prescribe that investment premiums, representing goodwill, be assessed for impairment at least
on an annual basis instead of being amortized. Such a change in accounting principle did not have a
material effect on the Company's financial statements as of and for the year ended Decemnber 31,
2006.
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Structured time deposits categorized as available-for-sale financial assets consisted of the following:

Principal Amount Carrying Amount Interest Rate [ Matunity Date
December 31, 2007
Step-up callable deposits
Domestic deposits § 500,000 § 49 410 1.76% | March 2008
December 31, 2006
Step-up callable depaosits
Domestic deposits $ 500000 | § 499,242 1.76% | March 2008

The interest rate of the step-up callable deposits was pre-determined by the Company and the banks.

7. HELD-TO-MATURITY FINANCIAL ASSETS

December 31
2007 2006
Corporate bonds $ 10,900,247 3 13,742,541
Gavernement bonds 1,824,425 12,070,657
Structured time deposis 1,500,000 11,671,120
20,224,672 37.484,318
Current portion (11,526 946) {8,510,823)
s B S 28573455
As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, structured time deposits categorized as held-to-maturity
financial assets cansisted of the following:
L. X Range of Interest .
Principal Amount Interest Recewable Rates Maturity Date
December 31, 2007
Step-up callable deposits
Domestic deposits b 1,500,000 b3 5.585 1.77%- 1.83% | April 2008 to Qctober 2008
December 31, 2006
Step-up callable deposits
Domestic deposits H 4500000 | § 13,928 1.40% - 1.83% | June 2007 to October 2008
Callathe range accrual deposis
Demestic deposits 3,911,520 4,808 {See below) | September 2009 10 December 2009
Foreign deposits 3,255,600 4,958 {Se¢ below) | October 2009 ta lanuary 2010
$ 11,671,120 5 23,734

The amount of interest earned from the callable range accrual deposits is based on a pre-defined

range as determined by the 3-month or 6-month LIBOR plus an agreed upon rate ranging between
2.10% and 3.45%. Based on the terms of the contracts, if the 3-month or 6-month LIBOR maves
outside of the pre-defined range, the interest paid to the Company is at a fixed rate between zero and
1.5%. Under the terms of the contracts, the bank has the right to cancel the contracts prior to the

maturity date.

As of December 31, 2007, no structured time deposit was resided in banks located in foreign
countries. As of December 31, 2006, the principal of the deposits that resided in banks located in
Hong Kong and Singapore amounied to US$80,000 thousand and US$20,000 thousand, respectively.

8. ALLOWANCES FOR DOUBTFUL RECEIVABLES, SALES RETURNS AND OTHERS

Movements of the allowance for doubtful receivables were as follows:

Years Ended December 31

2007 2006
Batance, beginning of year H £90,931 i 976,344
Write-off 1,859) (285413)
Balance, end of year i £088.972 3 530,931
Movements of the allowance for sales returns and others were as follows:
Years Ended Decernber 31
2007 2006
Balance, beginning of year $ 2,751,065 5 4,269,969
Prowision 5,919,635 5,328,513
Write-off (4,414,035) {(5,847.417)
Balance, end of year § 3,856,685 $ 2,751,065
9. INVENTORIES, NET
December 31
1007 2006
Finished goods $ 3811,212 b 4,754,342
Work in process 15,867,009 13,251,172
Raw materials 1,428,592 1,515,996
Supglies and spare parts 612,128 421 648
21,718,837 19,943,160
Allgwance for losses (731,795) {790,946)
b 20,987,142 $ 19,152,214
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. DEFERRED CHARGES, NET

Year Ended December 31, 2007 Year Ended Decernber 31, 2007
Balance, Bal £nd . Balance,
Beginning of Additions Disposals | Reclassification 2AMKe, & Beginning of Additions Amortization Deduction | Reclassification Balance, End
of Year of Year
Year Year
Cost Technotogy license fees § 4038551 | % 3263950 | $(1.656413) | § - s (296451 | § 5349937
Buikdings 506961851 | 8 502529 | 3 (31.835) | 8 (474200 | $101,907.892 Software and system design costs 1,547,575 1,181,579 (820,183) {51) {560,648) 1,309,272
Machinery and equipment 527,850,728 61,793,498 (487,386) (25,215} 589,131,625 Qthers 36,942 283,990 {104,179) - 296,451 513,204
Qffice equipment 8,659,225 536,003 (328,555) {99,566} 9,167,107
633471804 | $67,754797 | §_(847776) | 8 (172201 | 700,206,624 3 5503068 | § 4720519 | 52580475 | § i51) | $ {s69.648) | § 7172413
Accumulated depreciation
Buiklings 49595017 | § 7783832 | % 009D [ 5 103 57,349,828
Machinery and equipment 361401800 | 61,492,223 {459,113) (156,839) | 422,278,071 Vear Ended December 31, 2006
Office equipment 6,469,533 958315 (328,363) {2,365) 7,097,120 Balance,
417467250 | 7023370 | 3 (318433 | 3_ (158168 | 486725019 Beginningof |  Additions | Amortizaion |  Deduction |Redassification | Caonee: End
Advance payments and construction in prograss 12,230,805 | $ 8268467 | § - | $ 58368 21,082,953 Year of Year
Technology ficense fees $ 4985806 | 5 373054 | 301320309 | § -1 - | s 4038551
M 228,135,359 $234,564,558 i ' o
i o8I — Software and system design costs 1,623,276 99,30 {1,006,141) . 1,138 1,517,575
Cthers 72,062 - {35,120} - - 36,342
Year Ended December 31, 2006
o $ 6681044 | § 1272355 | s36150 | 3 S| s_ 1139 | 55593068
alance, - —~
Beginning of _pnn_;..a:u Disposals | Reclassification Balance, End
Yoar {Deduction) of Year
14. BONDS PAYABLE
Cost
Buikdings $00760622 | § 7160875 | § (964370) | 5§ (4376} | $ 96,961,851
Machinery and equipment 459,850,773 73,454,632 (5,218,678) {235,999} 527,850,728
Office equipment 7,850,035 1,046,724 (196,984) {40,550} 8,659,225 December 31
558,470,430 | § 81662331 | 36380032 | § psows) | 633471804 2007 2006
Accumulated depreciation . i
Building 42902526 | 3 7441573 | 5 (ras01m | 8 ony | 49505017 cc_aam,%”%e”“ Mﬂw § oavane n Gecember 2007, 5.36% hieres
Machinery and equipment 10636317 | S5.380.578 |  14,869,587) {235.908) | 361,401,800 o #___m ﬁm_m and repayanle In Liecember 240/, 3.30% Interes ; . 500000
Ofice equipment 5 662,986 1,009,599 {196,629) {6,423} 6,269,533 _EM_. _%2 _“SN o reanable n s 2007, 2008 ard 20121 ) T
359191829 | §$ 64332150 | S (5814227 | 3 42502 | 417.467.250 Ssued in January 2002 and repayahle in lanuary 2007, "
Advance payments and consiruction in progress 14857032 | § (2636227 | 3 - | s . | 12230805 three insialiments, 2.60%, 2.75% and 3.00% interest payable annually,
o — == respeciively 12,500,000 15,000,000
12,500,000 14,500,000
Net 214,14 228,235,350 ) I =
m 321412568 12823535 Currert portion - {7,000.000)
No interest was capitalized during the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006. 5 12,500,000 $ 12,500,000

As of December 31, 2007, future principal repayments for the Company's bonds were as follows:

Year of Repayment Amount
2008 ) 8,000,000
il 4,500,060

s 1250000
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17. INCOME TAX

a. A reconciliation of income tax expense based on “income before income tax" at statutory rate and

income tax currently payable was as follows:

d. Integrated income tax information:

The balance of the imputation credit account as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 was

NT$3,012,848 thousand and NT$828,612 thousand, respectively.

The estimated creditable ratio for distribution of earnings of 2007 and 2006 was 1.86% and

5.23%, respectively.

The imputation credit allocated to shareholders is based on its balance as of the date of dividend
distribution. The estimated creditable ratic may change when the actual distribution of imputation

credit is made.

e. All earnings generated prior to December 31, 1997 have been appropriated.

f. As of December 31, 2007, investment tax credits consisted of the following:

Years Ended December 31
007 2006
Income tax expense based on "income before income tax* at statutory rate
{25%} H 30,187,852 ' 33,701,625
Tax effect of the following:
Tax-exempt income (7.502,675) {12,274,041)
Temporary and permanent differences (789,073) (2,080,010}
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles - (82,062)
Additional tax at 10% on unappropriated eamings 2,686,561 1,156,130
income tax credits used (13,740,683} (127153779}
Income 1ax <urrently payable $ 10,741,982 § 7,706,165
b. Income tax expense consisted of the following:
Years Ended December 31
2007 2006
Incame tax currently payable 3 10,741,982 ] 7,706,165
Other income tax adjustments (250,863} (335411)
Met change in deferred income tax assets
lavestment tax credits 5,120,137 3,908,879
Temporary differences {302,847) (1,522,734)
Valuation allowance 13,734,096) (2,206,317)
Income 1ax expense 1 11,574,313 b 7,550,582
c. Net deferred income tax assets consisted of the following:
December 31
2007 2006
Current deferred income tax assets
Imvestment tax credits 3 5,268,000 § 7,832,000
Noncurrent deferred income tax assets, net
Investment tax credits b 9,568,755 $ 12,124,692
Temporary differences 1,143,311 840,464
Valuation allowance (3,470,133} 7,204,229
] 7,241,933 3 5,761,127

based entarprises

LawStatute tem Total Creditable | Remaining Creditable Eronry
Wit Amount Amount Xy vear
Suatute for Upgrading Industries Purchase of machinery and equip- 238012 | § - | 007
ment 3,177,254 - 2008
6,029,704 - | 2009
6,508,673 6,508,673 | 2010
3,696,375 3,686,375 2011
19.650018 | § 10,205,048
Statute for Upgrading Industries Research and development expendi- 1245142 | § - | 2007
ures 2,560,454 - 2008
1,486,845 1,029,080 | 2009
1,781,376 1,781,376 2010
1,654 065 1654055 | 201
5731882 | § 4,464,571
Statute for Upgrading Industries Personnel training expenditures 16197 | § - | 007
16,155 - | 2008
46,130 46,130 | 2009
44,252 41252 | 2010
19734 | § 87,382
Statute for Upgrading Industries Investments in important technelogy- 78804 | $ 79804 | 2010




"BunlFaL SI9P|OYAIRYS YL JO UONN|OSAJ 3yl oF Buipiodde paleso|e 3q leys Jaa0 o] aduejeq Auy p

'S10133.11Q JO pieog ayy Aq pazuoyine Anp vosiad ay}
Aq 10 s1013811Q 0 pieog ayl Aq 195 suociipued ayl bunssw Auedwod parenye ue jo ssakojduwa 01
SISNUOK 3420)s anssl Aew AuedwoD) 3y "sJ0123Ip 01 SNUCG 3Y) BAIBIAI O] PI|IUD 10U e Auedwo)
U] 4O SIIYH0 DANNIIXS SE DAIDS O5|8 OYM S10123U1Q A|9Andadsal Sapulewal syl Jo % | ueyl

SS3| 10U pUR %E°( ueyl alow 1ou jo Auedwod 3yl jo saa40jdwa 01 SNUOQ pur SIO1XSHP 0) SNuog

‘abueyd uy sanroyine
ay3 Aq paisanbal se 1o suonenbal 10 SME| JUBAI|SS LM IDUBRPIOIDE Ul DAISS3) (eUded |e1xads g

lendes ul-pied sAuedwor ayl paenba
sey aasasas [ended [eBa) patenwiniae syl un 12a0 133] sijold 3y Jo %0 | 1e anasal jeuded eba] e

:AjBuipioaoe
swatl BUIAMO)0) 3L} SPISE 185 USY) pUe SIedA snoimald u) sasso| s 1ase 11y [jeys Auedwos ay) Uead
|essyy yoea soy siyoud 13w ayd Bunedope uaym 1ey) apwnord uonesodiodu] Jo sapPily sAuedwod ay|

867 L01 VS $ TRYZELES H

[ 55 SUOEUOQ
YSE'BLE SLT'IeE SJuawsBAL) WiaL-uo) wol
28168 056'061 SUOISRSHRI} YOS AINSEal} woly
YZr0ets ¥IP'09E $pUDQ 3(qUAICT WoH
LEv'vi6'6! 76v'925'61 ez un-pied [puonippy
9P EDOYE § 9YSE0D VT | Rbsw woiy
002 1002

LE Bqwaag

114

:buimo)jo} syt jo pasisuod snjdins euded

“lendes u-pied sAuedwo) ayi jo abeuadiad

UIRLIZD B O] PAlILLI 218 YdIym ‘spuspialp 3301s se pajeudoidde aq Aew (Suonoesuely 320)s Anseal)
wiosy sniduns 3Y) pue spuoq 3|qIuaauos 's1ebiaw ‘felided mau 1oy panssi 320ols ayl buipnpul) yools
|endes jo anjea Jed ay) 1aA0 2d0d 33UBNSS) Y} O $SBOX2 Ay} PUE SUOIRUOP woJ) palessuab snidins
jeuded ayy Jaaamon ‘meq Auedw o 3yl JSpUN 12Y3P B 19510 0] pasn ag Auo ued snidins |ended

‘(Sa1e1S UoWLWOoD
any syuasaudal SOy 2U0) puESNOYL EE°1I9'S §I SSQY 24l AQ Paludsasdal saIeys UoWIWOD JO 13quinu
34l "ISAN 2yl uo papely asam Auedwo?d Ju) JO SSOY PUESNOY) /9B'ZEL’| "L00Z 'L E 49qWad3( JO sy

ALINDI SHIQIOHIYVHS ‘6L

080'8VE'C $ | L0Bs § | 8900€Y'| $ ueHezHoWY

16%'S2E WYY § ] vaLoeTE $ | fuesuns § uonen3idag

a01'I151'EL § ) 5289l § | ISTYECZL 3

66E'SHT vEIEL S19'52z ]

£28'€87 £2€'66 095'v81 LBJM

L08°809 Z0€'651 S05'6vy ]

£87'V26 SIKEIE ££8'018 uossuay

01Z'BE0'L S80'75€ 571'989 BUBINSU) 4|23y PUE J0GE]

f15'050'7? $ | swzy $ | e09'uss H fimes
1507 J0q

Burzesad
o sasuadx] bunesadg | sojeS
se payssep 401507 5B paljsse))
9002 ‘LE $2quRdBQ PIpLT Jeay

BIEBIST $ | sereil $ | £61't08°) 5 UDLEZILOWY

16516102 § | eBEOIRE § | 6152899 5 uenenaidag

HYEEEED § | O£B'ssES § | 8S'60T'IL $

6L18L e 182521 sRYIo

{SEVET PESDLL E9Y'E8) aejam

890709 796'¢51 WL'vEY (e

SIF'LYE 965'SEE 618509 uotsiRyg

1185t [74¥333 8v.'809 BIUBINSLY Y} [B3Y pue 1oqe

SHE'E6S'EL $ | evtieey § | s09102'6 s Aueg
1503 5008}

e sasuadxg bunesadgy | sajes

et 58 patysse(y 10 3500 Se payisseny

£007 "L E 1quadaq papu] 1eas

NOILVZILYOWY NV NOILYIDIHdIQ 150D YOoav1 '8l

00z YBnolyl Auedwion Ayl JO SUINIDL XB] JWW0IU| PIUILEXS JARY SALOYINE X&) 3y4 Y

1102 ? {002 £ 3|NPOL - | GEY JO UOTONNSUOY
0102 91 6002 Y 3|NPOLl - | Q€ JO LORINASLOD
£007 O D07 Y NP - 7| G4 O UONIAISUOY

poLsag uondwIxs-xey

pousad Jeak
-3Al} 10 -IND} B 40O} XBl AWodU! Wouy 1dwaxs aue siafoid Bumolo) oy woy palessuad syjoid ay) -6




The Company's Articles of Incorporation also provide that profits of the Company may be distributed
by way of cash dividend and/or stock dividend. However, distribution of profits shall be made
preferably by way of cash dividend. Distribution of profits may also be made by way of stock
dividend; provided that the ratio for stock dividend shall not exceed 50% of the total distribution.

Any appropriations of the profits are recorded in the year of shareholder approval and given effect to
in the financial statements of that year.

The Company no longer has supervisors since January 1, 2007, The required duties of supervisors are
being fulfilled by the Audit Committee.

The appropriation for legal capital reserve shall be made until the reserve equals the Company's paid-
in capital. The reserve may be used to offset a deficit, or be distributed as dividends and bonuses for
the portion in excess of 50% of the paid-in capital if the Company has no unappropriated earnings
and the reserve balance has exceeded 50% of the Company's paid-in capital. The Company Law also
prescribes that, when the reserve has reached 50% of the Company's paid-in capital, up to 50% of
the reserve may be transferred to capital.

A special capital reserve equivalent to the net debit balance of the other components of shareholders'
equity {for exampte, cumulative translation adjustments and unrealized loss on financial assets, but
excluding treasury stock) shall be made from unappropriated earnings pursuant to existing
regulations promulgated by the Securities and Futures Bureau (SFB). Any special reserve appropriated
may be reversed to the extent that the net debit balance reverses.

The appropriations of earnings for 2006 and 2005 had been approved in the shareholders' meetings
held on May 7, 2007 and May 16, 2006, respectively. The appropriations and dividends per share
were as follows:

Appropriation of Eamings Dividends Per Share (NT$)

For Fiscal Year | For Fiscal Year | For Fiscal Year | For Fiscal Year

2006 2005 2006 2005
Legal capital reserve $ 12,700,973 $ 9357503
Special capital reserve {11,192) {},585,685)
Bonus to emplayess - in cash 4,572,798 3432129
Bonus to employess - in stock 4,572,798 3,432,129

Cash dividends to sharehokders 77,489,064 61825061 | § 300 |8 2.50

Stock dividends to sharshokders 516,594 3,709,504 0.02 0.15
Bonus ta directars and supendsors 285,800 257410
$100,126.835 | § 80,428,051

The shareholders' meeting held on May 7, 2007 also resolved to distribute stock dividends out of
capital surplus in the amount of NT$774,891 thousand.

The amounts of the appropriations of earnings for 2006 and 2005 were consistent with the
resolutions of the meetings of the Board of Directors held on February 6, 2007 and February 14,
2006, respectively. If the above bonus to employees, directors and supervisors had been paid entirely
in cash and charged to earnings of 2006 and 2005, the basic earnings per share (after income tax)
for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 shown in the respective financial statements
would have decreased from NT$4.93 to NT$4.56 and NT$3.79 to NT$3.50, respectively. The shares
distributed as a bonus to employees represented 1.77 % and 1.39% of the Company's total
outstanding common shares as of Decemnber 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively,

As of January 10, 2008, the Board of Directors had not resolved the appropriation for earnings of
2007.

The infarmation about the appropriations of bonus to employees, directors and supervisors is
available at the Market Observation Post System website.

Under the Integrated Income Tax System that became effective on January 1, 1998, R.O.C. resident
shareholders are allowed a tax credit for their proportionate share of the income tax paid by the
Company on earnings generated since January 1, 1998,

20. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

The Company's Employee Stock Option Plans under the 2004 Plan, 2003 Plan and 2002 Plan were
approved by the SFB on January 6, 2005, October 29, 2003 and June 25, 2002, respectively. The
maximum number of options authorized to be granted under the 2004 Plan, 2003 Plan and 2002
Plan was 11,000 thousand, 120,000 thousand and 100,000 thousand, respectively, with each option
eligible to subscribe for ane common share when exercisable. The options may be granted to
qualified employees of the Company or any of its domestic or foreign subsidiaries, in which the
Company's shareholding with vating rights, directly or indirectly, is more than fifty percent (50%). The
options of all the plans are valid for ten years and exercisable at certain percentages subsequent to
the second anniversary of the grant date. Under the terms of the plans, the options are granted at an
exercise price equal to the closing price of the Company's common shares listed on the TSE on the
grant date.

Options of the plans that had never been granted or had been granted but were subsequently
cancelled had expired as of December 31, 2007,

23
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22. EARNINGS PER SHARE

23, DISCLOSURES FOR FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a. Fair values of financial instruments were as follows:

December 31
2007 2006

Camying Fair Value Carrying Fair Value

Amount Amount
Assets
Financial assets at fawr value through profit or boss 3 42083 | § 42083 | % 25601 | $ 44601
Available-for-sale finandal assets 23,664,409 23,664,409 32,614,572 32,614,572
Held-te-maturity financial assets 20,224,672 20,192,188 37,484 318 37,375,517
Finanxial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss S 47546 | 5 47646 T 8 0S| 10,751
Bonds payabie {including current portion) 12,500,000 12,669,987 19,500,000 18,817,149
Other long-term payables {including current portion) 5,174,644 5,174,644 2,981,754 2,981,754

Years Ended December 31
2007 2006
Before Ahter Before After
Income Tax Income Tax Income Tax Income Tax
Basic EPS (NT$)
Income betore cumulative effect of changes in accounting prindples 3 458 | % 414 | § S1 s 4.83
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles - - 0.01) 0.01}
Income for the year 5 453 | § 414 | § 510 1 % 482
Diluted EPS [NT$)
Income befare cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles H 458 | § 414 | § 510 1% 482
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles - - (0.0 .01
Income for the year ] 458 | § 414 | § 309 | 3 481
EPS is computed as follows:
Amounts {Numerator) Number of EPS {NTS)
Shares
Before After | (Denominator) Before After
Income Tax Income Tax | {In Thousands) Income Tax Income Tax
Year ended December 31, 2007
Basic EPS
Income available 30 common sharehalders $120,751,406 | $100,177,093 26,345,582 b 458 3 4.14
Effect of dilutive potential common stock - stack options - - 21,668
Diluted EPS
Income available to common shareholders (indluding
effect of dilutive potential common stock) $120.751.206 | 330%.172,003 26,368,250 | § 458 [ % 4.14
Year ended December 31, 2006
Basic EPS
Income available to common shareholders $134,478,251 | $127,009,731 263714757 | % 540 | 8 482
Effect of ddutive potential common stock- stock options - - 24101
Diluted EPS
Income available to comman shareholders (including
effect of dilutive potential common stock) $134478,251 | $127.009.73% 26398858 | § 509 | § 4.81

b. Methods and assumptions used in the estimation of fair values of financial instruments

1) The aforementioned financial instruments do not include cash and cash equivalents, receivables,
other financial assets, payables, and payables to contractors and equipment suppliers. The
carrying amounts of these financial instruments approximate their fair values due to their short
maturities,

2) Fair values of financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss were estimated using
valuation techniques incorporating estimates and assumptions that were consistent with
prevailing market conditions.

3) Fair values of available-for-sale and held-to-maturity financial assets were based on their quoted
market prices; except for structured time deposits of which the fair values were estimated using
valuation techniques.

4} Fair value of bonds payable was based on their quoted market price.

5} Fair value of other long-term payables was based on the present value of expected cash flows,
which approximates their carrying amount.
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f. Others

Related parties over which the Company has control or exercises significant influence but with

which the Company had no material transactions,

Transactions with the aforementioned parties, other than those disclosed in other notes, are

summarized as follows:

2007 2006
Amount % Amount %
For the year
Sales
TSMC-North America 3 192,846,641 61 ] 190,459,073 &0
Philips - - 4,024,990 1
Others 1,072,708 - 872812 -
4 163,919,349 61 3 195 456,935 61
Purchases
WaferTech $ 8,774,750 18 ' 12,530,552 27
TSMC-Shanghai 5,828,541 12 4,405,843 10
SSMC 5.468,410 " 6.820,632 15
wis 4,188,107 9 3911838 8
Others 1,028 - - -
§ 24 260,836 50 § 27,668,865 60
Manufacturing expenses
VisEra $ 39,078 - 4 - -
- - 755,904 1
3 33,078 N I 755,904 i
Marketing expenses - commission
TSMC-Europe 4 316,748 24 $ 236,454 15
TSMC-lapan 220,358 16 254,758 16
TSMC-Korea 16818 2 0,981 -
] 564,424 42 b 501,193 31
General and administrative expenses » rental
GUC 3 6,139 - b 14,606 -
Research and development expenses
TSMC Technology {primantly consutting fees) $ 354,423 2|1 37,559 -
TSMC Canada (primarity consulting fees) 129,665 1 - -
GUC 56,887 1 39421 -
Others 44168 - - -
] 585,143 4] 4 76,980 -
{Continued}

2007 2006
Amount % Amount %
Sales of property. plant and equipment
TSMC-Shanghai ' 3,295 53 401,561 44
WaferTech 546 1 - .
§ 3841 7 i 401,561 44
Non-operating income and gains
VIS {primarily technical senvice income, see Note 26h) $ 346,260 il 261,237 2
TSMC-Shanghai (primarily technical service income) 338,038 3 278,195 2
Viskra (primarily rental income) 321,199 3 246,242 2
SSMC {primarily techrical service incarne, see Note 26e) 290,586 3 314,953 E]
Others 1.0 - - -
3 1,208 414 2 1 1,100,727 k]
A5 of December 31
Receivables
TSMC-North Amenca b 26,626,880 0|8 16,461,936 g7
Philips . - 250,919 2
Others 74,768 - 156,634 1
1 26,701,648 0| % 16,865,509 100
Other receivables
TSMC-Shanghai ) 151,037 9 |§ 123,853 28
VIS 118,743 22 121,51 27
TSMC-North America 98,885 19 59,547 13
SSMC 34,778 1& 69,568 15
VisEra 40,101 8 58.980 13
Others 31,758 [ 15,407 4
3 535308 100 | 3 449,266 100
Payables
Vs H 838,584 28 |3 717,562 1
WaterTech 784,280 26 864,733 6
SSMC 655,029 22 459,305 4
TSMC-Shanghai 596,581 20 478714 14
Philips - - 588,591 N
Others 125,156 4 118011 k|
$ 2,994 630 100 § 3326916 00
Other long-term payables
Philips (Note 25a) $ - -3 403,375 00
Deferred credits
TSMC-Shanghai 3 510,564 2] % 723,661 61
Viskra 62,175 6 124,350 "
] 572,739 5 842,011 72
{Conduded)
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terminated TTA. National did not make such request by the deadline, therefore the option has
expired in January 2008.

In December 2003, the Company entered intc a Technology Development and License Agreement
with Freescale Semiconductor, Inc. to jointly develop 65-nm SOl (silicon on insulator) technology.
The Company wil! also license related 90-nm SOI technology from Freescale Semiconductar, Inc,
Any intellectual properties arising out of the co-development project shall be jointly owned by the
parties. In accordance with the agreement, the Company will pay royalties to Freescale
Semiconductor, Inc. and will share a portion of the costs associated with the joint development
project.

The Company provides a technology transfer to VIS under a Manufacturing License and
Technology Transfer Agreement entered into on April 1, 2004. The Company receives
compensation for such technology transfer in the form of royalty payments from VIS computed at
specific percentages of net selling price of certain products sold by VIS. VIS agreed to reserve its
certain capacity to manufacture for the Company certain products at prices as agreed by the
parties,

TSMC, TSMC-North America and WaferTech filed a series of lawsuits in late 2003 and 2004
against Semiconductor Manufacturing international Corporation, SMIC (Shanghai) and SMIC
Americas (aggregately referring to as "SMIC"). The lawsuits alleged that SMIC infringed multiple
TSMC, TSMC-North America and WaferTech patents and misappropriated TSMC, TSMC-North
America and WaferTech's trade secrets. These suits were settled out of court on January 30, 2005,
As part of the settlement, Semiconductor Manufacturing tnternational Corporation shall pay
US5175 million over six years to resolve TSMC, TSMC-North America and WaferTech's claims. As of
December 31, 2007, SMIC had paid US$30 million in accordance with the terms of this settlement
agreement, In August 2006, TSMC, TSMC-North America and WaferTech filed a lawsuit against
SMIC in Alameda County Superior Court in California for breach of aforementioned settlement
agreement, breach of promissory notes and trade secret misappropriation, seeking injunctive relief
and monetary damages. In September 2006, SMIC filed a cross-complaint against TSMC, TSMC-
North America and WaferTech in the same court, alleging TSMC, TSMC-North America and
WaferTech of breach of the settlement agreement and implied covenant of good faith and fair
dealing, in response to TSMC, TSMC-North America and WaferTech's August complaint. In
November 2006, SMIC filed a complaint with Beijing People's High Court against TSMC, TSMC-
North America and WaferTech alleging defamation and breach of good faith. The California State
Superior Court of Alameda County issued an Order on TSMC, TSMC-North America and
WaferTech's pre-trial motion for a preliminary injunction against SMIC on September 7, 2007. In
the Order, the Court found "TSMC has demanstrated a significant likelihood that it will ultimately
prevail en the merits of its claim for breach of certain paragraphs of the (2005) Settlement
Agreement” with SMIC. The Court also found *TSMC has demonstrated a significant probability of
establishing that SMIC retains and is using TSMC Information in SMIC's 0.13um and smaller
technologies, and there is significant threat of serious irreparable harm to TSMC if SMIC were to
disclose or transfer that information before final resolution of the case.” Therefore, the Court
ordered that, effective immediately, SMIC must provide advance notice and an opportunity for

TSMC, TSMC-North America and WaferTech to object before disclosing items enumerated in the
Court Order to SMIC's third party partners. The Court, however, did not grant a preliminary
injunction as requested by TSMC, TSMC-North America and WaferTech. The result of the above-
mentioned litigation cannot be determined at this time. ,

'n April 2004, UniRAM Technology, Inc. filed an action with the US District Court in the Northern
District of California against TSMC and TSMC North America, alleging patent infringement and
trade secret misappropriation and seeking injunctive relief and damages. A jury in the District
Court made a verdict in September 2007, awarding US$30.5 million to the plaintiff. TSMC intends
to pursue remedies against this verdict.

27. ADDITIGNAL DISCLOSURES

Following are the additional disclosures required by the SFB for the Company and its investees:

d.

=

Financing provided: None;

. Endorsement/guarantee provided: None;

Marketable securities held: Please see Table 1 attached;

. Marketable securities acquired or disposed of at costs or prices of at least NT$100 million or 20%

of the paid-in capital: Please see Table 2 attached;

. Acquisition of individual real estate properties at costs of at least NT$100 million or 20% of the

paid-in capital: Please see Table 3 attached;

Disposal of individual real estate properties a1 prices of at least NT$100 million or 20% of the paid-
in capital: None;

Total purchases from or sales to related parties of at teast NT$100 million or 20% of the paid-in
capital: Please see Table 4 attached;

Receivable from related parties amounting to at least NT$100 million or 20% of the paid-in
capital: Please see Table 5 attached;

Names, locaticns, and related information of investees on which the Company exercises sig ant

influence: Please see Table 6 attached;
Information about derivatives of investees over which the Company has a controlling interest:

TSMC-Shanghai entered into forward exchange contracts during the year ended December 31,
2007 to manage exposures due to foreign exchange rate fluctuations. As of December 31, 2007,
no forward exchange contract was outstanding.
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TABLE 1

Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Investees

MARKETABLE SECURITIES HELD

DECEMBER 31, 2007

{Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Otherwise Specified)

December 31, 2007
Held Company Name Marketable Securities Type and Name Relationship with the Company | Firancial Statement Account Share/Unis Camying Value Percentage of ?“__6» <w_=m or 2@ Note
{In Thousands) {US$ in Thousands) Ownership set Value {USS in
Theusands)
The Company Open-end mutual funds
NITC Bond Fund Available-for-sale financial assets 12239 | % 2,045,935 NA | S 2,045,935
Fuh Hwa Bond n 132,997 1,801,674 NA 1,801,674
NITC Taiwan Bond - » 103,006 1,474,856 A 1,474 856
ING Taiwan Bond Fund - " 85,581 1,310,030 NA 1,310,030
Prudential Financial Bond Fund - " 83,306 1,236,728 N/A 1,236,728
President James Bond - " 7,128 1,208,799 N/A 1,208,799
JF Taiwan Bond Fund - " 54,049 915,252 1173 915,252
ING Taiwan Incame Fund - " 54,623 878,582 A 878,682
Taishin Lucky Fund - ” 68,945 718,556 N/A 718,556
AlG Taiwan Bond Fund - ] 54,469 705,033 WA 705033
Cathay Bend Fund - » 60,126 703,824 A 703,824
Dresdner Bond DAM Fund - " 54,319 639,542 N/A 639,542
#F Fiest Bond Fund - # 35324 504,206 N/A 504,306
HSBC Taiwan Money Management Fund - ” 27416 413,504 WA 413,504
INVESCO Bond Fund - » 27,176 410,054 WA 410,054
Government bond
2003 Government Bond Series B - Available-for-sale financial assets 2,349,163 NA 2,349,183
2004 Government Bond Series B - ] 1,197,121 /A 1497321
2006 Government Bond Series D - » - 399,733 WA © 399733
20G4 Gevemment Bond Series G - » - 200,065 WA 200,065
2006 Government Bond Seties D - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 3,651,840 NA 3,647,566
2003 Government Borxd Series B - » - 1,647,947 WA 1,647,413
2003 Asian Development Bank Govt. Bond » - 855,088 WA 875,103
2003 Gavernment Bond Series F » - 799,049 NA 767,744
2003 Gevernment Bond Series H [ - 400,70% NA 399,825
Eurgpean Investment Bank Bonds " - 379,829 A 400,000
2003 European Bank for Recanstnection and Development Govt. " - 89,963 NA 90,000
Bond Series A
Corporate bond
Hua Nan Bank - Available-for-sale financial assets 1,573,338 N/A 1,573,338
Cathay Bank - ” - 1,180,440 WA 1,180,440
Taiwan Power Company - ] - 889,200 WA 893,200
Farmosa Petrochemical Corporation - » - 399,264 WA 399,264
Formosa Petrochemical Corporation - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 3,581,667 WA 3,547,308
Taiwan Power Company - Ll - 2,630,064 NA 1679939
Nan Ya Plastics Corporation - . - 1,804,345 NA 1,796,764
CPC Corporation, Taiwan » - 1,200318 NA 1,199,461
China Steel Corporation ” 1,000,000 N/A 987,430
Formaesa Plastic Carporation " 391,134 NA 391,011
Shanghai commercial & Saving Bank ” - 292,118 NA 292,648
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December 31, 2007

Held Company Name Marketable Securities Type and Name Relationship with the Company [ Finaneial Statement Account Shares/Uriits Camying Value Percentage of Market Valug or Net. | pte
(I Thousands) | (US$ in Thousands) Ownership | 7556t Value (USS in
Thousands)
TSMC International Stoxks
InveStar Subsidiary Investments accounted far using 8721 | usy 42,038 97 | uss 42,038
equity method
IrweStar Il Subsidiary » 43,048 uss 57,594 97 uss 57,594
TSMC Development Subsidiary » 1 Uss 674,084 100 | Uss 674,084
TSMC Technology Subsidiary " 1| uss 5,592 100 | Uss 6,592
TSMC Development Stacks
WaferTech Subsidiary Investments accounted for using - | Uss 227,469 100 | Uss 227,469
equity method
TSMC Partrers Common siock
VisEra Holding Company Investee accounted for using equity |  Investments accounted for using 43000 | Us§ 67,348 45 | uss 67,948
method equity method
TSMC Canada Subsidiary " 2,300 uss 2877 106 | Us$ 2877
Emerging Alliance Common stock
Prxim, Inc. Financial assets carried at cost 1,036 | USS 275 uss 275
Richwave Technology Corp. n 4247 | USY 1548 13 | uss 1,648
Gilobal Investment Holding Inc. » 10,800 ¢ 3 100,000 I 100,000
Preferred stock
Audience, inc. Financial assets carried cost 1654 | USY 250 1 Uss 250
Axiem Microdevices, Inc. » 1,000 | USS 1,000 1 uss 1,000
Miradia, Inc, » 3040 | USS 1,000 3| uss 1,000
Mobitygen L] 1415 uss 750 1 uss 750
Mosaic Systems, Inc. » 2481 | UsY 12 6 | uss 12
Next 10, Inc. " 800 | Ust 500 4 | us§ 500
Optichran, Inc. - » 714 ust 1,000 3 uss§ 1,000
Optimal Corporation » - | uss 229 - | uss 229
Prirn, Inc. 4 3,606 | USY 862 21 uss 862
Teknowus, Inc, ” 6977 | uss 1,327 2 | Uss 1327
VentureTech Alliance Holdings Subsidiary Investrments accounted for using - - 10 -
equity method
VTAFII Common stock
Yobon . Financiat assets carried at cost 1,879 | uss 19 13 | vs$ 919
Sentelic - n 1200 | Uuss 2,040 15 | usy 2,040
Leadtrend - n 1,265 | US$ BEO 5 ] Uss 560
RichWave Tachnclogy Corp. - » 1,043 | US$ 730 2 | uss 730
Preferred stock
3V Technologies, Inc. - Financial assets camed cost 2357 | USS 1,768 1| uss 1,768
Ageia Technologies, Inc. - " 2,030 | Uss 2,074 2 ] uss 2074
Afuantia Corporation - ” 1,786 | Us§ 2,213 5 | Usy 2,273
Audience, Inc. - ” 2989 | ust B14 2 i uss 814

(Continued)
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December 31, 2007

Market VYalue or Net

Held Company Name Marketable Securities Type and Name Relationship with the Company Financial Statement Account SharesUnits Carmying Value Percentage of ¢ Note
{In Thousands} | (U3 in Thousands) Ownership | 5%t Value (U3 in
Thousands)
1P Unity, Inc. - Financial assets carried at cost 1.008 | Ul 494 1 uss 494
NangAmp Solutions, Ing. - ] 541 Uss 853 2 uss 853
Sonics, Inc. - » 1,844 uss 3,530 2 Us§ 3,530
lnveStar Il Common stock
Monolithic Power Systems, Inc - Financial assets at fair value 864 us 18,561 3 Uss 18,561
through prefit or loss
Rich Tek Technology Corp. - » 152 | Us§ 13N - | uss 1371
Geo Vision, Inc. - » 6 | Uss 59 -] uss 59
Menmsic, Inc, . Available-for-sale financial assets 1,145 | Us$ $1,594 7 uss 11,594
Rich Tek Technology Cerp. - » 261 us 2,382 - | US§ 2,362
Geo Vision, Inc. - " 15 usy 135 - us$ 135
eLCOS Microdisplay Technology, Ltd. - Financial assets carried at cost 270 | Uss 27 1 uss 17
EQNEX Technologies, Inc. - » 55 | usy 1043 5 | uss 1,048
Sonics, In¢. - Il 2,220 uss 32 - uss 32
Epic Communication, Inc. - L 191 | Uss 7 1] uss 37
EON Technology, Corp. . " 4243 | USS 1,175 [ 1175
Geyatek Technofogy, Corp. - " 2,088 | USH 545 7| wss 545
Trendchip Technologies Corp. - ” 1,000 | usy 574 a4 | uss 574
Capella Microsystems (Taiwan), Inc . . " 534 | UsS 210 2] Uss 210
Ralink Technology (aiwan), Inc. - » 2,383 | USE 91 3] sy 9
Auden Technology MFG. Co., Ltd - » 1,048 | USS 223 f 4 Uss 213
Preferred stock
Alchip Technclogies Limited - Financial assets carried at <ost 6,128 | US§ 2,950 15 | US$ 2,950
et{0S Mitrodisplay Technology, Lid. - L4 3500 | ust 3,500 8 | US§ 3,500
FangTek, Inc. - ” £.931 usy 3,250 16 { UsS 3,250
Kitapass Technology, Inc. - ” 3887 | Use 2,000 6 | USS 2,000
NanoAmp Solutions, Inc. - " 375 | uss 1,500 1 uss 1,500
Sonics, inc. - [ 2,115 | Usy 3,082 6 | uss 3,082
Tsme Glohal Agency bonds
Fed Hm Ln Pc Pool 11225 - Available-for-sate financial assets - Uss 139 WA | LSS 139
Fed Hm Ln Pc Pool 1b2566 - " - Uss V57 A Uss 157
Fed Hm Ln Pc Pocl 12632 - * - usd 178 NA uss 178
Fed Hm Ln Pe Pool 1h2642 - " - bussy 234 A | uss 234
Fed Hm Ln Pc Pool 162778 - " - uss 340 A Us§ 340
Fed Hm Ln Pe Pool 162792 - " - Uss 3 NA | Uss 23
Fed Hm Ln Pc Pool 162810 - " - | usy 196 NA | Uss 296
Fed Hm Ln Pc Poot 107453 . P - | s 2,805 Ni& [ USS 2,805
Fed Hm Ln P¢ Pool 150032 - » - usy 2% N& | Usy 296
Fed Hm Ln Pc Pocl 190053 - » - usy 367 N/A Uss 367
Fed Hm Ln Pc Pool 10104 - L - uss 142 WA | usY 142
Fed Hm Ln P¢ Pool 191282 - » - ust 4,077 NA uss 4,077
Fed Hm Ln Pc Pool 1g1411 - » - Uss 3618 NA | LSS 3,618
Fed Hm Ln Pe Pool 1h2520 - L4 - uss 2,669 A | USY 2,669
Fed Hm Ln Pc Pocl 1h2524 - » - | uss 1,410 NA | USS 1970
Fed Hm Ln Pc Pool 780870 . » - | UsS 721 Nia | USY m
Fed Hm Ln Pc Pool 781959 - " - uss 3834 ' NA | USE 3834
Fed Hm Ln P Pocl 782785 - ] - uss 254 WA | USY 54
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Decernber 31, 2007

Held Company Name Marketable Securities Type and Name Refationship with the Company | Financial Statement Account SharesUnits Carrying Value Percentage of Markes Valug or Net £ gt
{In thousands) | (USS in Thousands) Ownership | A55€1 Value (Usbin
Thousands}
Frma Poot 806642 - Available-for-sale finandial assets - | uss 77 Na [ Uss m
Friera Pool BOE721 - » - uss 635 /A uss 535
Fnma Pool 814418 . » - uss 343 N/A | USS 343
Fnma Pool 815626 - L3 - uss 2,301 NA uss 230
Fnma Pool 819423 - Li . uss 538 NA uss 538
Fnma Pool 821129 - ” . Uss 512 NiA | USS 512
Fama Pool 888249 . L] -] uUss 50 NA | USS 60
Fnma Pool 888499 - L . Uss 2438 NA | USS 2438
Fama Pocl 888502 - ” - uss 136 NA uss 236
Frma Pool 383507 - r - uss am NA uss m
Fnma Pocl 888515 - ” - | Uss 1730 WA [ USS 1,730
Fnma Pocl 888519 - r - us§ 123 N/A Uss 123
Fnma Pool 883527 - " - uss 59 WA uss 69
Frma Pool 888738 - » - | uss 4,935 NA | USS 4,935
Fnma Pocl 888793 - » < | Ust 5,697 NA | USS 5.697
Fnma Pool 900296 - » - uss 3276 NA us§ 3,276
Gnma li Pool 081150 - » - Uss 47 WA uss 470
Gnma li Pool 081153 - " - | uss 1423 NA | USS 1423
Fed Home Ln Bank - » - | Usy 5175 N/A | USS 5175
Federal Farm Cr Bks - » - | uss 3,511 WA | USS 35m
Federal Home tn Bks - » - uss 8,977 N/A uss 8,977
Federal Home Ln Bks . ” -1 oUss 8939 NA | USS 8939
Federal Home Ln Bks - » - | Uss 4,965 WA | Uss 4965
Federal Home tn Bis - " - uss 5,969 N/A Usy 5,969
Federal Home Ln Bks . » - Usy 4,980 NA 1 USS 4,980
Federal Home Lk Biks - » - Uss 19,023 WA | USS 19.023
Federal Home Ln Bks - [ - | usy 5.134 NA | US§ 5,134
Federal Home Ln Mtg Disc Nts - » -] uss 22,342 NA | US§ 22,342
Federal Home Loan Bank - n -1 ouss 4,621 WA 1 USS 4,621
Federal Home Loan Banks . u - | uss 21,500 N | USY 21,500
Federal Natl Mtg Assn - L] - uss 5,169 N/A uss 5,169
Federal Natl Mg Assn Medium - » - | uss 3.512 WA | USS 3512
Federal Natl Mtg Assn Mtn - # - uss 2,982 N/A V31 2,982
Federal Natl Mig Assn Min - » - | uss KRN Wa 1 uss EA R
Federal Natl Mtg Assn Mtn - » - | UsH 3,398 NA | USS 3,398
Federal Natl Mtg Assn Mtn - ] - uss 3,066 NA uss 3,066
Tennessee Valley Auth - » - | uss 6,068 W 7 Usy 6,068
Corporate bonds
Abbott Labs - Available-for-sale financial assets - 1 Uss 1,510 N/A | USH 1,510
Americzn Gen Fin Corp. - » - Uss 3,139 WA | USS 3,139
American Gen Fin Corp. Min - » - | uss 3,451 A 1ouss 3,451
American Gen Fin Corp. Min - ” - | Uss 1,962 NA | USS 1,962
Americzn Honda Fin Corp. Mtn - L] -] uss 3,107 WA | USS 3107
Ameritech Capital Funding Co. - r - | usy 489 NA | USS 489
Amgen Inc. - " - L uss 2,978 WA | LSS 2.978
Anz Cap Tr | - ” - uss 984 N/A uss§ 984
Atlantic Richfield Co. - ” - uss 2,216 NA uss 2216
Axa Finl Inc. - » - uUss 2147 N/A | USS 2,147
Beneficial Corp. Mtn Bk Entry - » -1 Uss 2,214 WA | USS 2214
Burlington Res Inc, - " - uss 3,653 WA uss§ 3,653

{Continued)
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Held Company Name

Marketable Securities Type and Name

Relationship with the Company

Financial Statement Account

December 31, 2007

Market Vatue or Net

Note

Shares/Units Carrying Value Percentage of .

i Thousands} | {US$ in Thousands) ownership | "5 <ﬁHﬁu .__m_w
Principal Fini Group Australia - Available-for-sale financial assets - | uss 1,008 NA | LSS 1.008
Protective Life Secd Trs Mtn - » - | uss 3484 NA | USS 3484
Sbe Communications Inc, - n < | sy 1372 NA | UsE 3in
She Communications Ine. - L - | Uss m NA | USS m
Simon Ppty Group LP - 1] - | usy 2,513 WA USS 2513
Simon Ppty Group LP - » - uss 1,000 NA | USE 1,010
Sp Powerassests Lid. Global - » - | uss 993 Na 1 USE 993
Suntrust Bk Atlanta Ga Medium - » - | uss 3,482 NA | USS 3,482
Uniteghealth Group Inc. - n - | uss 1.408 NA | US 1,408
Wachovia Corp. New - L] - us$ 1,168 NA | USS 3,168
Washington Post Co. - " - | uss 3,018 NA | USY 3,018
Wells Fargo + Co. New Med Trm - » - | uss 4413 Na 1 USY 4413
Corporate issued asset-backed securities
Ameriredit Auto Rec Tr - Available-for-sale financial assets - | uss 1,001 NA | USY 1,001
Americredit Autornchile Rec Tr - » - | uss 834 NA LSS 894
Amencredit Automobite Receiva - » - | uss 1,176 NA | USS 1,176
Atlantic City Ele Trns Fdgfte - [ - | uss 162 NA | USY 162
Banc Amer Coml Mtg Inc. - n - | uss 4,591 N | UsY 4,501
Banc Amer Fdg 20061 Ti - » - | uss 3,762 N 1SS 3,762
Bear Stearns Adjustable Rate - n - | uss 10 Na | UsY 1o
Bear Stearns Arm T - » - | uss 3081 NA | Uss 3,081
Bear Steatns Arm Tr - » - | Uss 1,951 NA | USY 1,951
Bear Steams Arm T - n - | uss 247 NA [ LSS 247
Bear Stearns Coml Mtg Secs Inc. - " - | uss 3179 WA | USs 3,179
Bear Stearns Coml Mtg Secs Inc. - u - | uss 5,099 NA | USY 5,089
Capitat One Avto Fin Tr - » - | uss 906 N[ USS 905
Capital One Auto Fin Tr - ” - uss 3,685 N/a uss 3,685
Capital One Multi Asset Exec - » - uss 918 NA [ USS 9,118
Capital One Multi Asset Execut - n - | uss 399 N USS 3,991
Capital One Multi Asset Execut - » -1 Uss 2,995 N | Uss 2,995
Capital One Prime Auto Receiva - n - | uss 3498 N | uss 3498
Capitial Ore Prime Auto Receiv - n - | ouss 454 NA | USS 464
Chass Tr - » - uss 1,297 NA [ uUsS 1,297
Cendant Rent Car Fdg Aesop LLE. - » -] Uss 2663 NA | USS 2,663
Chase Mig Fin Tr - » - | uss 887 WA | Uss 887
Chase Mig Fin Tr - ] - uss 1,745 N uss 1,745
Chase Mg Fin Tr - n - | uss 2,605 NA | USS 2,605
Chase Mtge Finance Corp. - " -] Ush 1678 WA | USS 1678
Cit Equip Coll Tr - " - usy 4,033 WA | USS 4,033
Citicorp Mg Secs - » - | Uss 261 NA | USS 261
Credit Suisse First Boston Mtg - [ - | uss 1,738 N | Uss 1,738
Credit Suisse First Boston Mig . » -] uss 6,842 WA | USS 6,842
Credit Suisse First Boston Mig - » - | uss 6,704 NA | LSS 6,704
Daimlerchrysler Auto Tr - » - uss 4337 Na | Uss 4337
Daimlerchrysler Auto Tr - ” - uss 1,698 NA | s 1,668
Deere John Owner T - " - | uss 2433 Wa | uss 2,488
First Franklin Mtg Ln Tr - I - uss$ 1,658 N/ Uss 1,659
First Horizon - ] - uss 45 N/A us$ 45
First Un Natl Bk Comi Mig Tr . » - | uss 2,555 WA | Uss 2,545
First Un Nat! Bk Coml Mtg Tr - [ - | uss 5172 NA [ Uss 5,172

(Continued)
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TABLE 2
Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited

MARKETASLE SECURITIES ACQUIRED AND DISPOSED OF AT COSTS OR PRICES OF AT LEAST NT$100 MILLION OR 20% OF THE PAID-IN CAPITAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 30, 2007 .
{Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Otherwise Specified)

Beginning Balance Acquisition Disposal {Note 2) Ending Batance
Hnmma ﬁwwﬂu” hﬂcz_a H_MHH_ SEement | Counterparty ”Mw_.ﬂhsa SharesUnits | Amount (Us$ H_MHMH_“,__““ Amount (USS | SharesUnits | Amount (USS Q:s:m_.c,ﬁ_.” M“H”_m””..m” SharesfUnits _”ﬂ““““mw“
(In Thousands) | in Thousands) in Theusands) |{In Thousands} | in Thousands} ) {In Thousands)
[Note 1) Thousands) | in Thousands} {Note 3)
The Company Open-end mutual funds
NITC Bond Fund Available-for-sale finan- [ National Investment Trust Co., Ltd. - 22,219 | % 3,655,939 -8 9980 | $ 1,650,000 | $1,621826 | § B.1M4 12,239 | $ 2,045,935
cial assets
Fuh Hwa Bond ” Fuh Hwa Investment Trust Co., Lt - 125122 1,667,908 41,289 556,000 33414 450,000 442 919 1081 132,997 1,801,674
HITC Taiwan Bond ” National Investrment Trust Co, Lud. - 93,312 1,314,669 23,834 340,000 14,180 200,000 197,557 2443 103,018 1,474,856
ING Tawan Bond Fund » ING Secunties lnvestment Trust Co., Ltd | - 175,156 2,634,459 85,581 1,300,000 175,156 2,656,012 2,604,862 51,150 85,581 1,318,030
Prudential Financial Bond Fund " Prudential Finarcial Secunties - 103,751 1,516,294 - - 20,445 300,000 205,582 4418 83306 1,236,728
lnvestment Trust Enterprise
President James Boad » Uni-President Assets Management - 65,496 1,610,426 77,128 1,200,000 65,496 1,016,917 1,000,599 16,318 77128 1,208,799
Lorp
JF Tawan Bond Fund » JF Asset Management (Tsiwan) Ltd. - 85,345 1,295,088 32,507 500.000 58,503 900,000 883,347 16,653 59,043 915,252
ING Taiwan Income Bond Fund ” ING Securities Investment Trust Co., Ltd | - 63,947 1,012,377 - - 9326 150,000 145,851 4149 54,621 874,682
Taishin Lucky Fund " Taishin investment Trust Co., Lid - 78,624 ' 806,386 - - 9,679 100,600 98,476 1,524 68,945 718,556
AIG Tawan Bord Fund » AlG Global Asset managerment - 78,629 1,002,595 54,469 700.000 78,639 1,008,733 1,000,000 8733 54,469 705,033
Corporation (Taiwan} Ltd.
Cathay Bond Fund ] Cathay Securivies Investment Trust Co., | - 109,720 1,265,092 60,126 700,000 104,720 1,271,985 1,251,264 20731 60,126 703,824
Ltd
Dresdrer Bond DAM Fund L] Allianz Global Investars Taian Lid. - 95,553 1,167,206 17,082 200,000 58,316 680,000 668,136 11,864 34319 639,542
JF Tarwan First Bend Fund " JF Asset Management (Taiwan) Limited | - 66,826 939,082 42,360 600,000 73,862 1,044,083 1,026,603 17,480 35324 504,206
HSBC Taiwan Money Management » HSBC Asset Management (Taiwan) Lid. | - 4,093 506,250 - - 6,677 100,000 98,05% 1.8 27 416 413,504
ING Taiwan Select Bond Fund » ING Securities Investment Trust Co., Ltd | - 76,593 868,076 - - 76,593 872,639 857,682 14,957 - .
Shinkong Chi-Shint Fund " Shinkang Investment Trust Co., Ltd - 62,183 890,660 - 62,183 896,293 879,940 16,359 - -
TiM High Yield Fund » Taiwan International Imvestment man- | - 44,685 554,863 - . 44,585 557,263 550,724 5,539 - -
agement
JIH SUN Bond Fund » JH SUN Securities Investment Tnost Co., | - 83,165 1,262,901 - 88,165 1,209,618 1,200,000 9518 - -
Ltd
Mega Diamond Bond Fund » Mega Investment Trust £o., Ltd - 139,333 1,602,947 94,744 1,100,000 234,077 2,721,023 2,700,000 1,023 - -
Polaris De-Bao Fund " Polaris Internationa Securities . 63,273 701,069 17,862 200,000 81,135 909,936 900,000 9,936 -
Investment Trust Co., Lid
Government bend
2003 Government Band Series B Avzilable-for-sale finan- | Chung Shing Bills Finance Corp. and - - §98,2388 1,348,634 - - - - - 2,349,163
cial assets several financial institutions
2004 Govemment Bond Series B " " - - 996,779 200,280 - - - - - 1197121
2006 Gevernment Bond Series D » » - - - 400,718 - - - - 399,733
2004 Government Bond Sevies G [ » . - - - 201,561 - - - - - 200,065
2005 Government Bong Series A Held-to-maturity finan- | Chung Shing Bills Finance Carp. and - 3,049,919 - - 3,050,000 3,050,000 -
ciat assets several finanial institutions
2002 Government Bond Series B ” " . . 350,35% - - 350,000 350,000 -
2004 Kaohsiung Municipat Series A Ll » - 620,000 - - 620,000 620,000 -
20004 Kaohsiung Municipal Series B » » - 249,548 - - 250,000 250,000 - -
{Continued}
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Beginning Balarwe Acquisition Disposal (Note 2) Ending Balance
“oaum=< Marketable Securites Finandial Statement Counter-party zw:_,a of f SharefUnits | Amount {US$ SharexLinits Amount (US$ | Shares/Units | Amount {US$ Carmying <m:”_m mm.__._ (Loss) on Shares/Units Amount {5
ame Type and Name Account Relatronship ; {In Thousands) | . X (Us$in | Disposal (LSS in Thousands)
{in Thousands) | in Thousands) in Thousands) |[in Thousands) | in Thousands) . {In Thousands)

{Note 1} Thousands) | in Thousands) {Note 3)

Fnma Pool 888738 Avaifable-for-sale . - - | uss - - | uss 5062 - | uss - | ouss - uss - - | USS 4935

financial assets
Fnma ool 888793 » - - - . - | uss 5823 - - - - - | uss 5697
Fnma Pool 900256 n - - - - - | USy 4336 - - - - - | UsS 3,276
Fed Home L Bank ” - - - - - us§ 5,035 - - - - - sy 5175
Federal Farm Cr Bks » . - - - - uss 341 - . - - - Uss 351
Fedetal Home Ln Bks » - . - Usy 4,920 - - - usy 4938 usy 4872 uss 66 - -
Federat Home Ln Bis » - - ] uss 2991 . - S| usy 3027 | usy 2,987 | LSS 40 - -
Federal Home Ln Bks » . - - | Uss 12279 - . =1 USS 12367 | US$ 12,233 | USS 134 - .
federal Home Ln Bks L - B - - - Uss 5,368 - us§ 5,532 us$ 5,365 uss 167 - -
Federa! Home Ln Bls " - - « | USS 6905 - - -1 usy 8847 | WS 6881 | USE 66 - -
Federal Home Ln Bks ” - . -] Uss 589 - - - | US$ 6032 | USS 5807 | USs 125 - -
Federal Mome Ln Bks » . - - - - | uss 18,951 - - . - - | US§ 19,023
Federal Home Ln Bis » - - - - - | ws 5,008 - - - - -] uss 5134
Federal Home Ln Bis » . . . - - | uss 249 S USS a610 [ uSs 4434 | USY 115 - -
Federal Home Ln Bks ] . - - - - Uss 8,983 - uss 9,000 Uss 8983 uss 17 - -
Federal Home Ln Bks " - - - . - usy 8,137 - uss 8235 uss 8,137 Uss 98 - -
Federal Home Ln Bks » . - + | uss 7.506 . - - | USS 7500 [ uss 7490 | USS 10 - -
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp ” - . - | uss 5948 . - - | USs 5986 [ USS 5930 | Us§ 36 - -
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp " - - - usy 6440 - - - us§ 6,453 usy 6,410 uss 43 - -
Federal Home Ln Mig Corp » - - . - - | Uss 6000 - - - - - -
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp Mtn » - - . . -] Uss 3199 -] US§ 3,236 [ USS 3,199 | Us§ 7 . .
Federal Home Ln Mtg Disc Nts » - - - B - usy 21,985 - - - - - Us§ 22,342
Federal Home Loan Bank " - - - - - | US§ 5075 - | uss 5158 [ usy 5075 [ USS 83 - -
Federal Horne Loan Bank » - - - . - | uss 5083 -] USS 4981 [ USS 5083 | USS (102} - -
Federal Home Loan Bank ” - - - - - | USS 4518 . - - - -] USS 461
federal Home Loan Bank » - - - - - | US§ 3453 -] UsY 3472 | ush 3453 [ USS 18 - -
Federal Home Loan Banks » - - - | uss 8049 - | uss 21,356 -1 USS 8201 | LSS 8081 | USS 120 - 1 US$ 21,500
Federal Matl Mg Assn ” - - ] USS 4365 - - - | US§ 4440 | uss 4364 | USY 76 - -
Federal Nat! Mtg Assn » - - - Uss 5,815 - - - Uss 5,933 Usy 5885 usy 48 - -
Federal Natl Mig Assn » - . « | US$ 19,766 - - - | USH 19844 | USS 19702 | USE 142 - -
Federal Natl Mtg Assn ” - - - - - | uss 4595 - | US$ 4652 | USS 4595 | Usy 57 - -
Federal Natl Mig Assn " - - - - - uss 4,982 - uss 5,093 us§ 4,982 usy  m - -
Fegeral Natl Mitg Assn » - - - - - | WSy A5H - | uss a3509 | uss 4500 | usS ] . -
Federal Natl Mtg Assn » - - . - - | uss 5102 - - - - - | uss 5,169
Federal Natl Mtg Assn n . - - uss 10,467 - - - Uss 10477 Us$ 10,459 uss 18 - -
Federal Natl Mtg Assn # - - - us§  7.868 - - - usy 7,926 usy 78% uss 92 - -
Federat Natl Mtg Assn [ - - + | Usy 14974 - - -0 USE 14893 | USH 14931 [ USE 62 . -
Federal Natf Mtg Assn " - - - | uss 3,843 - - S0 USS 3957 | UsS 3950 | USS 7 - -
Federal Nat Mtg Assn Pl - - - - - Us$ 6,500 - usy 6,505 usy 6,500 us§ 5 - -
Federal Natf Mg Assn » - - - - - | US§ 4982 -1 USE 5002 Uss 4982 | USS 20 - -
Federal Natl Mtg Assn » - . - - - | uss 8458 < | USS 8542 | US§ 8458 | USH 84 . -
Federal Natl Mig Assn » - - - - - Uss 4,997 - uss 5,027 usy 4,997 usy 30 - -
Federal Natl Mg Assn ) - - - - - | USS 4994 - | usy 5024 | usy 4994 | LSS 30 - -
Federal Natl Mtg Assn ” - - - | Uss eSN . - - | uss 6514 | USS 6516 | USS [#4] - -
Federal Natl Mig Assn » - - - - - usy 4368 - us§ 4319 uss 4,368 ust  49) - -
Federal Matl Mtg Assn » - - - . - | USS 4500 - . - - - -
Corporate bonds
American Express Co Available-for-sale - . - | Ussy 3452 - - - | USs 3486 | USE 3431 uss 35 - -
. finandial assets
(Continued)
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Beginning Balance Acquisition Disposai {Note 2) Ending Balance
mosz_.e Marketable Securtes Firandal SEtement | Counterparty N0 | Sharestunis | Amountivss | ST | sy | snavestrits | Amounsuss | Coming Value | Gaintlassion | | Amount (4S5
ame Type and Name Account Retationship . {In Thousands) | . . {uss in | Disposal (USS in Thousands)
{tn Thousands) { in Thousands) in Thousands) ((In Thousands} | in Thousands) . {In Thousands)
{Note 1) Thousands} | in Thousands) {Note 3)
Corporate issued asset-backed securities)
American Home Mig Assets Tr Available-for-sale - - . 13 - - us$ 3382 - | USS 3,187 | us§ 3,380 [ USS (193) - uss -
finandial assets
Americsedit Automaobile Rec Tr » - . - | ouss 3269 - . -] uss 3,196 | uss 3216 | wss {20 - -
Ba{rCard T » - . -1 Uss 4300 - - - | uss 4280 Us$ 4350 | US§  {90) - -
Banc Amer Coml Mig Inc » - - - - - | UsS 4591 . . - - - | uss 4%
Bear Stearns Coml Mtg Secs Inc » - - - - - | US§ 5259 . - - - - | uss 5089
Capital Auto Receivables Asset ” - - - | uss 3,243 - - -] Uss 3243 uss 3,232 uss 1 - -
Capital One Multi Asset Exec ] - - . - - | Uss 8998 - - - - -] uss 9118
Capital One Prime Auto Rec ” - - -] uss 398 - - - | uss 3,895 | uss 3999 | uSs {4) - -
Capital One Prime Auto Receiva " - - . - - | US§ 3500 . . - - - | uss 3,488
Caterpillar Finl Asset Tr " . - < | uss B4z . - - | uss 8181 | USS 8089 | usy 92 . .
Cendant Rent Car Fdg Aescp Lk " - - - | uss 9287 . - - | uss 4483 | USS 4433 | LSS 60 -5 USE 2,663
Credit Suisse First Boston Mtg » - - - - - | Uss 7613 - - - - -] Usy 6342
Credit Suisse First Boston Mig n - - - - - | usy 7,637 - - - - - sy 6,704
First Un Natl Bk Coml Mtg Tr » - . - - - | US$ 5188 - . - . -1 Uk 5172
Ford Credit Auto Owner Trust ” - - « | USY 4324 . - - USS a3 ussy 4310 | uss il - -
Gsamp Tr » - - - | uss 4251 . - - | Uss 3868 [ USY 4241 [ US§ (373) - -
Harley Davidson Motorcycle Tr ” . - - | usy 5825 - - - Us$ 3633 Ussy 3,804 | usS yi] - -
Hertz Veh Fing Lic » - - - | uss 5319 - - - | uss 5278 | uss 5284 [ w8 (8 - -
Honda Auto Recervables " - - - - - uss 3,373 - Usy 3331 Usy 3373 uss 8 - -
Hyundai Auto Recefvables Tr » . - - | uss 3928 - - -1 Usy 3460 | USY 3443 | Uss 17 - -
tb Ubs Comnl Mtg Tr ” - - - | US$ 3,493 - - -] uss usy 3101 Us$ 76 - .
Lb Ubs Coml Mtg Tr » - - - - - | uss 3884 - - - - - | uss 3,884
Mbna Cr Card Master Nt Tr ” - - B - - | uss 4500 - | uss 4449 Uss 4,500 | WSt {51) - -
Mbna Master Cr Card Tr li L] - - - | uss 7,605 - - -] uss 2552 | uss 7853 | wss {i101) - -
Merrill Lynch Mtg Invs It r - - - 1 Uss 5887 - - - USS 4630 | USS 4988 | LSS {358) - -
Nissan Auto Receivables » - - - uss 3928 - - - | usy 3928 Uss 3,943 | us§  {15) - .
Providian Gateway COwner Tr » . - - | uss 3942 - . -] USS 3961 | Uss 3911 | USY 50 - -
Stuctured Adj Rate Mtg Ln Tr ” - - - - - usE 388 - | USS 3,786 usy 3887 | uss (101) - -
Tiaa Seasoned Coml Mg T » - - - - - uss 417 - - - - - uss 4016
Tw Hotel Fdg 2005 Lic » - - =] USS 4,103 - - «| USS 3,325 | USS 3338 | Uss  (13) - -
Usaa Auto Owner Tr L4 - - - - - uss 4999 - - - - - Uss 4,998
Usaa Auto Qwner Tr n - - - | Uss 4138 - - - USE 4260 ) USH 4280 USH 14 - -
Wamu Mtg u - - . - - | USS 3,656 - . - . -] UsS 3242
Warnu Mtg Pass Thru Ctfs Tt » - - - . - | us$ 4854 + | USS 3760 | USS 4048 | LSS (288 - -
Wells Farge Finl Auto Owner Tr ” - - - us$ 4,936 - - - Uss 3,535 usy 3515 | uss 20 - -
Wells Fargo Mtg Backed Secs » - - - . - | USs 3,935 - . - . - | uss 3816
Wells Fargo Mig Backed Secs n - - . . - | US$ 4,008 . . . - -1 USs 3931
Government bonds
United States Treas Nt Available-forsale - - - - - | UsS 42,302 - | uss 42,89 US$ 42,302 | US§ 589 - .
financial assets
United States Treas Nt ” - - - - - | uss 5059 - | Uss 5007 USs 5089 | us§ (52 - -
United States Treas Nts » - - - - - ussy 50,837 - Us$ 34,754 Us$ 34,896 st (143 - usY 25,924
United States Treas Nis " - - - - - | U 6837 - | uss 7052 uss 6,837 Us§ 215 - -
United States Treas Nis » - - - - - | Uss 8072 < USy 3037 Us§ 3,036 | LSS i - Uss 5070
Unitad States Treas Nis » - - - - - Us$ 33,800 - US$ 34,440 Us§ 33,800 Uss 640 - -
United States Treas Nis r . - - - - Usy 25,041 . Us$ 25,606 Us§ 25,043 usy 565 - -
United States Treas Nts ” - - - - - | USS 11,676 -1 Ussy eI us§ 6,092 Uss 29 - | USs 5613
United States Treas Nis » - - - | Us§ 5936 - - - | USS 5936 [ USS 5944 | US§ e] - -
{Continued)

45




9P

“533153AUN POIaW Ainba jo sHuzars w Aunbs 10 $13%5¢ DURUn, U suieb uor pam | Spuoq ue 1PN J0 wone ap sapnpuy aueieq Guipua sy} if aeN

SPUG] FPNRE ‘PasodsIp SANNMS JQElipIEw 6] E1EP 3y| 1T B8N

{papnpuca} *$32133AU( WOJJ SPUSPIMP Y315 3PN3UI 10U Op pRnnte SaNUNIIS 3)qeIay W JO WNOWE PUB SIUNSICYS YL ©| AON
005’9 $sn | - B8E 45N | BEL'ES §SN | LLS°ES Ssn | - 56565 §sn | - - - - - " 36 Aunseal] 1p
- . L $50 | ToE’0L $sn | BIETOL $5n | - 79801 $sn | - - - - - v siN funseal) s
. - 19 $5n | 9sp's S0 | LIS ssn | - - - s s | - - - v sy Aamseay] 5
- - 90f 850 | (98'0F $SN | ELSLE $Sn | - 199°0€ §sn | - - - - - [ sin Aunseal] sn
- - ool §sn Leg'r  $sn LZ8'r 4N - - - PEST 49N - - - it sIN fanseay] sn
- . 0L 88N | 2ot'vt $Sn | E0Z'pL $SN | - W71 3N | - - - - . : SIN S83uL S
- - () 850 | 965’8 $5n | 7868 ssn | - 9658 §Sn | - - - - - “ SIN Seast sENS paun
- - (831} §sn v08°ZBY 45N 9£9'/81 §5n - SgILELSSN - 928'95 450 - - - g SIN SE3UL SAES pAuun
SEL6 50| - DEV $SN | BSERL $SN [ BBODZ $50 | - gEV'6L $SN | - - . . . u SN Se1L S3EIE paliufy
- . £ $5n | 9e6’t  §5n | &0 §sn | - - - 600% $50 | - - . “ SIN SBR[ SAELS PANUN
- . Lz ssn | BSL'LLzisn | 696°hLZSSN | - 8SL'LLTISN | - - - - - a SIN Seau SAIe1S papun
- - (Zrd  $sn | B3L9% ssn [ 99//91 §sn | - g8L'oL sn | - . - . - a SIN 5E34) SRIS PalUN
85’ §sn | - EEO'L  $SN | Z6S'SELSSN | SZEEELYSM | - vEYOPLESN | - - - . . “ SIN SEaJ) a5, panuf)
- - 06 $SP | LEV9Z $sn [ 106'9Z s | - 1E1ez ssn | - - - - - a Sy Sea4) SAEYS pAlUY|
- - SeT 5N | 8Z9%GL $SN | EDE'BL §SM | - BTO6L $sn | - . - . . " SIN SE3L) Saels papun
- - (ZSE)  $Sn | S9L19 §Sn | ELS09 35N | - - - 6Z6°09 $sn | - - - it SIN §P3I] SAEIS P
- - ! $sn EL5'PE 45N piS'vE $SN - £45°PE §SD - - - - - “ SIN sed)| Sa1e1S palun
- - 9y SN | ZEY0Z $Sn | BELLZ 80 | - 6907 50 | - - - - - W Sl 5821] S3IETS paNUN
6SE'E $5n | - 00r  $SN | £05Ev 85N | E0OPR SN | - 108’9y §sn | - - - - - “ SIN $83)] SAEIS PN
608'zy S50 | - LT %N | Opy's9 $80 | £S8°Z9 $Sn ) - DLE'BOLYSN | - - - - . " SI §B3I] SA1EIS paun
- - 29 50 | SETTL $5M | £9£771 §5n | - - . 0SE'ZL $sn | - . . i Sk Seal] S3lels palun
- - [43] 1N BL0'S 45N [+ 74 K 3] - 8105 0 - - - - . “ SIN seau| SNeS paiuf
- - [44 $5n | gv’oL $sn | g9L0L ssn | - 9pL'08 $Sn | - - - - - “ SIN $031[ SRNEIS PN
091’5 ssn | - 52 gsn | 95001 $sn | g0l ssn | - gre's 50 | - - - - - u I 531 SAEIG PN
- - (z2) §5n 1569 SN SE6'T  $SN - 1569 $5n M - - - - “ SIN SER1L SAIEIS PRIV

SIa%SE [21UPUY
. $n ol e SN | 98Tl 5N [ kgL ssn | - 98T 8N | - - - - . 3]e5-104-3[qBjIAY SIN 583l SAIeNS Pl
Mwmvﬂ_“ﬂ_oﬁ wr | (EPAESNOUL L) W_uh”eam”_.n__“_“_ Muh_wu:w_oﬁ (spuesnoy uy | {spuesnoyt ulh| {spuesnoy) ui Mn_hﬂﬂ_e_._._. ) {spuesnoy] U1 | {spuesnoy] ) d »
| | 1 ySUOIEY unes: awey pue awe,
$5N) unowny suunsaRys uo (ssa7) uien | anjes Bukuey $5N)wnodly | suVERRRUS T SEN) nowy shiurysaleys SSMnowy | stusaieds .cwo E.wa_wu fuedsayuno) U3Wwaes __ _u_._muw_ SANUNRH ”__aﬂ“mfm__“ ».._wnEn_,u.
aueeg buipuy (z 108} (esadsig uomsinbay uejeq bunubeg




TABLE 3

Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited

ACQUISITION OF INDIVIDUAL REAL ESTATE PROPERTIES AT COSTS OF AT LEAST NT$100 MILLION OR 20% OF THE PAID-IN CAPITAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007
{Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Specified Otherwise)

Nature of Prior Transaction of Related Counter-party
Company Name Types of Property Transaction Date Transaction Amount | Payment Term Counter-party . Price Reference Purpose of Acquisition| Other Terms
Refationships | owner Relationships | Transfer Date Amount
The Company Fab January 4, 2007 $ 198,000 | By the construction progress | Lead Fu lndustry Corp. | « NA Na NA WA | Public bidding Marufacturing purpose [ None
TABLE 4
Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Investees
TOTAL PURCHASES FROM OR SALES TO RELATED PARTIES OF AT LEAST NT$100 MILLION OR 20% OF THE PAID-IN CAPITAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007
{Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)
Transaction Details Abnormal Transaction Notes/Accounts Payable or Receivable
Company Name Related Party Nature of Refationships Note
I Payment Tarms .
Purchases/Sates Amount %toTotal | Payment Terms Unit Price {Note) tNote) Ending Balance % to Total
The Company TSMC-North America | Subsidiary Sales § 192,846,641 6i Net 30 days after invoice date 26,626,880 40
GUC investee with a controlling financial interest Sales 795,232 Net 30 days after monthly closing - 74,003 -
TSMC-Shanghai Subsidiary Sales 155,799 - | Met 30 days after monthly closing - - -
WaferTech Indirect subsidiary Purchases 8,774,750 18 | Net 30 days after monthly clasing - {784,280) 6
TSMC-Shanghai Subsidiary Purchases 5,828,541 17 | Net 30 days after monthly chosing -l - {596,581) 5
SSMC Investee accounted for using equity method Purchases 5468410 1 Net 30 days after monthly dosing <] - 1655,029) 5
VIS Investee accounted for using equity method Purchases 4,188,107 9 | Het 30 days after monthly chosing - - (838,584) 7
GuC TAMC-Horth Amenca | Same parent company Puschases 1,766,788 54 1 Met 30 days afier invoice dateinet -y - 139,402 15
45 days after monthly closing
XinTec Viskra Same president Sales 1,050,497 3 Net 45 days after shipping - 10,120 2
OmniVision Parent company of director {represented for Sales 181312 54 Net 45 days after shipping - 431,801 84
XinTec)

HNote: The terms of sales to related parties are not significantly different from those 1o third parties. For purchase transactions, prices are determined in accordance with the related contzactual agreements and no other similar transaction could be compared with.
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TABLE &6

Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited

NAMES, LOCATIONS, AND RELATED INFORMATION OF INVESTEES OVER WHICH THE COMPANY EXERCISES SIGNIFICANT INFLUENCE
DECEMBER 31, 2007
{Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Oziginal [nvestment Amount

Balance as of December 31, 2007

Net Incorne Equity in the
Investor Company Investee Company Location Main Businesses and Products December 31, | December 31, Shares{in | Percentage of | Carmying Value | (Losses} of the Earnings [ HNote
2007 2006 Thousands) Ownership {Note 1) Investee | (Losses} (Note 2}
The Company TSMC Global Tortola, British Virgin Islands Investment activities $ 42,327,245 § 42,327,245 i 100 [ $44204188 | § 2329568 | § 2321568 | Subsicary
TSMC International Tortola, British Virgin Islands Providing investment in companies involved in the 31,445,780 31,445,780 637,968 100 27,688,565 562,155 562,155 | Subsidiary
design, manufacture, and other related business in
the semiconductor industry .
ViS Hsin-Chu, Taiwar! Research, design, development, manufacture, packag- 13,047,681 8119816 616,240 E 11,024,568 - 4,321,011 1,085,203 | Investes accounted for using
ing, testing and sale of memory integrated circuits, equity method
LSI, V18I and related parts
SSMC Singapore Fabrication and supply of integrated dircuits 8,840,895 8,840.895 463 39 9,002,741 3,552,556 1,180,962 Investee accounted for using
equity method
TSMC-Shanghai Shanghai, China Manufacturing and sales of integrated dircuits at the 12,180,367 12,180,367 - 100 8,622,715 (959.387) (957,835) | Subsidiary
order of and pursuant to product design specifica-
ons provided by customers.
TSMC Partners Tortola, British Virgin Istands Investment activities 10,350 10,350 300 100 4,734,180 302,505 302,505 | Subsidiacy
TSMC-North America San jose, California, U.S.A, Sales and marketing of integrated circuits and semi- 333,18 333,718 11,000 100 2,255,647 293,276 153276 | Subsidiary
conductor devices
XinTec Taayuan, Taiwan Water level chip size packaging service 1,357,890 01,703 43 1,501,521 501,174 182,265 | investee with a controlling
financial interest
VTAFII Cayman Islands Investing in new start-up technology companies 1,095,622 785,485 - 58 1,170,821 140,497 137,687 | Subsidiary
VTAF I Cayman Islands Investing in new start-up technology companies 973,459 243,545 - g8 906,536 {41,533) 140,702) | Subsidiary
GUC Hsin-Chu, Taiwan Researching, developing, manufacturing, testing and 386,568 386,568 42,572 37 823,552 732,585 251,198 | Investee with a controlling
marketing of integrated circuits financial interest
Emerging Alliance Cayman Islands Investing in new start-up technology companies 1,019,042 141817 - 93 467,873 137,202 136,516 | Subsidiary
Chi Chemg Tatpei, Taiwan Investment activities 300,000 300,000 - 36 173,429 59.407 8573 | Subsidiary
Hsin Ruey Taipei, Taiwan Invesiment activities 300,000 300,000 - 36 171,658 58,751 7822 Subsidiary
TSMC-Japan Yokohama, Japan Marketing activities 83,760 83,760 6 100 104,929 3,531 3,531
TSMC-Europe Amsterdam, the Nethedands Marketing acivties 15,749 15,149 - 100 88,702 31,366 31,366
TSMC-Korea Seoul, Korea Marketing acthities 13,656 13,656 80 100 16,436 2,140 2,140

Note 1: The treasury stock is deducted from the carrying vatue,

Note 2: Equity in earning/losses of investees include the effect of unrealized gross profit from affiliates.
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8. Consolidated Financial Statements for the Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 and Independent Auditors' Report

REPRESENTATION LETTER

The entities that are required to be included in the combined financial statements of Taiwan
Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited as of and for the year ended December 31, 2007,
under the Criteria Governing the Preparation of Affiliation Reperts, Consolidated Business Reports and
Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises are the same as those included in the
consolidated financial statements prepared in conformity with the revised Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 7, "Consclidated Financial Statements®. In addition, the information
required to be disclosed in the combined financial statements is included in the consolidated financial
statements. Consequently, Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries
do not prepare a separate set of combined financial statements.

Very truly yours,

TAIWAN SEMICONDUCTOR MANUFACTURING COMPANY LIMITED

By

MOCRRIS CHANG
Chairman

January 10, 2008
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Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006
{In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Par Value)

2007 2006 2007 2006
ASSETS 3
Amount % Amount % LABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY Amount % Amount %
CURRENT ASSETS CURRENT LIABILITIES
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 2 and 4) 3 94,986,488 16 $ 117,837,192 20 Financial lizbilities at fair value thrgugh profit or loss (Notes 2, 3 and 5) 4 249,313 - 4 10,864 -
financial assets at fair value through profit o boss (Notes 2, 3 and 5) 1,632,387 - 1,206,854 Notes and accounts payable 11,574,882 H 7,934,388 1
Available-for-sale financial assets {Notes 2, 3 and ) 65,688,368 12 67,523,858 12 Payables o related parties {Note 25) 1,503,376 1 1,867,728 -
Held-to-maturity finandial assets (Notes 2 and 7} 11,526,946 2 8,510,823 2 Income tax payable (Notes 2 and 18) 11,126,128 ? 1,946,473 2
Receivables from related partes {Note 25) 10,885 - 252,339 . Accrued expenses and other current liabilities (Notes 16 and 28} 17,714,763 3 11,328,350 2
Notes and accounts recevable 47,204,126 8 34,957,650 3 Payables to contractors and equipment suppliers 6,256,732 1 10,768,591 2
Allowance for deubtful receivables (Notes 2 and 8) (701,807) - (749,888) . Current partion of bonds payable and long-term liabilities (Notes 14, 15 and 26) 280,813 - 1,004,137 1
Mowance for sales returns and cthers (Notes 2 and 8) (4,089,035) (1) {2,870,802) {1} o
Othes recervables from related parties (Note 25} 243620 . 256,863 . Total current liabdities 48,706,007 ] 45,860,531 8
Other financial assets (Note 26) 1,515,527 - 2,356,542 1
Inventories, net {Notes 2 and 9) 23,862,260 4 21,430,728 4 EHMLBE chm_ﬂ_m ” 12,500,000 s 2500000 )
Deferred income tax assets, net [Notes 2 and 18} 5,572,334 1 8,013,992 1 s payavie [ote ey 12500,
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,370,230 - 1,591,017 .| Longierm bank loans (Noses 15 and 26) 1.722.196 : €53,959 :
_—= —| == — Other long-term payabies (Notes 16 and 28} 9,409,978 2 8,703,267 2
Other payables to related parties (Notes 25 and 28) - - 403,375 -
4 4
Tt current assets — BRI 4 | JOIVIG8 8 | gnaiions under capitaleases (Note 2) 652,206 : 612,941 -
LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS (Notes 2, 3, 6, 7, 10.and 1) Tetal onig-term lia 24,284,470 4 22,873 542 1
Investments accounted for using eguity method 22517288 4 15,000,891 2
Available-for-sale financial assets 1,400,691 - 6,548,485 i QOTHER LIABILITIES
Held-to-maturity finangal assets 8,697,726 2 28,971,495 5 Accrued pension cost {Notes 2 and 17) 3,665,522 1 3,540,060 1
fFinandial assets carried at cost 3,845 615 1 3,272,280 { Guarantes deposits (Note 28) 2,243,009 - 3817132 1
Deferred credits (Notes 2 and 25) 1,236,873 - 1,177,138 -
Total kang-term investments 36,461,325 7 53,895,151 g Others 43,774 - 78,640 -
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Motes 2, 12 and 26) Total ather liabifities e 1 8612970 _ 2
Cost L
Land anc Lend irmprovemenss 942,157 i 844,644 i Total habitrties __ B0DI79655 _ 14 78347043 _ 14
Buildings ) 118,640,027 u 112,595,124 1% | EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE PARENT
Machinery and equipment 646,419,427 13 579,825,289 9@ Capital stock - $10 par value
Office equipment 11,826,640 2 10.546.725 ! Authorized: 28,050,000 thousand shares in 2007
Leased assets 652,296 - 612941 - 27,050,000 thousand shares in 2006
N 778,483,587 136 704,524,723 120 Issued: 26,427,104 thousand shares in 2007
Accumulated depreciation {540,099,567} 94) 463,038,084) e 75,820,688 thousand shares in 2005 264,271,037 46 258,296,879 44
Advance payments and construction in progress 21,868 167 _ 4 12 607 551 _ 2 Capital surplus (Notes 2 2nd 200 53,732,682 9 54,07, 498 g
. Retained eatnings {Note 20)
Net property, plant and equipment 260252187 46 254094190 ___ 43 Appropriated as legal capital reserve 56,406,684 10 43,205,711 7
Appropriated as special capital reserve 629,550 - 540,742 -
iNTANGIBLE ASSETS Unappropriated earnings 151,828,337 28 152,778,079 26
Goodwill (Note 2) 5,987,582 1 5,984,993 I 218,864 571 38 197,124,532 33
Deferred charges, net (Nowes 2 and 13) 7,923 601 2 5.936,915 ! Others {Notes 2, 3, 22 and 24}
Cumulative translation zdjustments (1,072,853) - (1,191,165} -
Total intangible assets 13,911,183 3 11,921,908 2 Unrealized gain on financial instruments 680,997 - 561,645 -
Treasury stock: 834,096 thousand shares in 2007
OTHER ASSETS 33,926 thousand shares in 2006 49,385032) (&) 518075} -
Deferred income tax assets, net (Notes 2 and 18} 1,313,283 1 5802142 1 ) . 49,776,888 — & 1,547,623 —_—
Refundable depasits 1,777,768 1 1,331,245 . Equity attributable 16 shareholders of the parent 487,091.402 8s 507,981,284 86
Qthers 327150 _— — 12533% —_— MINORITY INTERESTS (Note 2) 3,594,169 1 1,156,832 -
Total other assets L lomggez 2 12677 1 Totai shareholders’ equity 490,685,571 85 509,138,116 86
TOTAL ] 570,865,226 100 | § 587,485,159 100 | TOTAL 3 570,865,226 00 [ 3 587,485,155 100

The accompanying rotes are an integral part of the consclidated financial statements.
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Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES [N SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006
{in Thousands of New Taiwan Dolfars, Except Dividends Per Share)

Equity Attributable to Shareholders of the Parent

Capital $tock Retained Earnings Others Total
: —— Minorlty | shareholders
. } . . . Cumulative | Unrealized Gain
Shares Amount Capital Surplus Legal Capital | Special Capital cauuag&& Total Translation {Loss) an Treasury Stock Total Total Interests Equity
{In Thousands) Reserve Reserve Eamings " Financial
Adjustments Instruments.
BALANCE, JANUARY 1, 2006 247330025 | 3247300246 | §57,117.886 | 34348308 | 3 2235427 | $106196399 | $142771034 [ § (640741 [ % $ (918075 [ $01,558,817) | $445630,349 | § 608359 | $445238708
Appeopriations of prior year's earnings
Legat capital reserve - 9,357,503 - {9,357,503) - - - - - - -
Reversal of special capital resercve - - (1,585,685) 1,585,685 - - - - - - -
Bonus ta employees - in cash . . - - - (3,432,129) (3.432,129) - . - {3,432,129) . (3,432,129
Bonus to employees - in stock 343,213 3,432,129 - - - (3,432,129) (3.432,129) - - - - - -
Cash dadends to shareholders - NT$2.50 per chare - - - - (61,825,061) (61,825.051) - - - - {01,825,061) - {61,825,061)
Stock dradends 10 shareholders - NT$0.15 per share 370,950 3,709,504 - - (3,709,504) (3,708,504) - - - - - - -
Bonus to directors and supenasors - - - - - (257.410) (257 410) - - - 1257.410) - (257.410)
Capital susplus transferred to capital stock 370,950 3,709,504 (3,709,504) - - - - - - - - - - -
Net income in 2006 - - . - - 127,008,731 127,009,131 - - - 127,009,731 185,515 127,145,246
Adjustment arising from changes in pescentage of own-
ership in equity method investees - - 187,095 - - - - - - - - 187,095 - 187,095
Trarslation adjustments - - - - - - - (550.423) - - (55C,423) {550,.423) {126,206) (676,629)
Issuance of stock from exeraising employee stock
optians 14,550 145,496 429,701 - - - - - - - 575,197 . 575,197
Cash dividends received by subsidiaries from parent
company - - 82,320 - - - - - - - - 82,320 - 82,320
Vahyation gain on availabie-for-sale financiat assets - - - - - - - - 386,017 - 386,047 386017 2147 338,164
Equity in the valuation gain on available-for-sale finan-
dial assets held by equity method investees - - - - - - - - 175,598 - 175,598 175,598 - 175,598
Increase in minrity interests - : - - - - - - - - - 487 017 487,007
BALANCE, JANUARY §, 2007 25,829,688 258,296,879 54,107,498 43,705,711 640,742 152,778,079 197,124,532 (1,191,165) 561,615 (918.075) {1,547,625} 507,981,284 1,156,832 509,138,116
Apprapriations of prior years earnings
legal capital reserve - - 12,700,973 - {12,700,973) - - - - - . - -
Reversal of special capital reserve - - - (31,192} 11,192 - - - . . . .
Bonws 1o employees - in cash - - - - (4.572.798) 4,572,798) - - - (4,572,798} - {4,572,798)
Bonus to employees - in siock 457,280 4,572.798 - : 14,572,798) (4,572,758) - - - . . -
{ash dividends 1o shareholders - NT$3.00 per share - - - - (77,489,064) (77,489,054} - - - (77.489,064) - {77,489,064)
Stock dividends 1o shareholders - N7$0.02 per share 51,659 516,594 - - (516,594) (516,594) - - - - - .
Bonus 1o directors and supervisors - - - - - (285,800) {285,800) - - - {285,800) - {285,800}
Capital surplus transferred 1o capial steck 77,489 774,891 {774,891} - - - - - - - - - - -
Net income in 2007 - - . - - 109,177,083 109,177,083 - - - - 109,177.093 755,307 109,932,400
Adjustment arising from changes in percentage of own-
ership in equity method investees - - {28,639) - - - - - - - - (28.639) 31,862 3283
Translation adjustments - - . - - - . 118,312 - . 118,312 118312 99.318) 18,494
Issuance of stock from exercising employee stock
options 0,988 109.875 126.852 - - - - - - - - 436,827 - 436,827
Cash dividends received by subsidiaries from parent
company - 101,762 - - - - - - - - 101,762 - 101,762
Valuation gain on available-for-sale financiat assets - . - - - - - 24181 - 241,821 4181 19,487 261,308
Equity in the valyation loss on available-for-sale finan-
cial assets hld by equity method investees - - - - - - (122,439) - (122,439) (122,438) - {122,439)
Treasury stock repurchased by the Company - - - - - . - - (48,466,957) (48,466,957) (48,466,957) - {48,466,957)
Increase in minonty interests - - - - - - - - - - - - 1,729,999 1,729,999
BALANCE, DECEMBER 33, 2007 26427304 | $264271,037 | §33.732682 | § 56406684 | § 629,550 | $161,828337 | $218864571 | $U1,072853) | § 680997 | $(49,385032) | S(49.775888) | $487,091402 | §_ 3594169 | $490,68557)

The accompanying notes are an integral past of the consolicated financlal statements
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2007 2006
Repurchase of treasury stock 3 48,466,957 ) -
_ Increase in accrued expenses and other current liabilities 3,053,584) .
| Cash paid $ 45,413,373 3 -
NONCASH FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Current portion of bonds payable and long-term i § 280,813 3 7004137
Current pertion of ather payables 10 related parties {under payables to
related parties} $ - 3 638,591
Current portion of other long-term payables and other liabilities (under
accrued expenses and other current liabilities) § 3,735,875 ] 617,892

respectively, and consolidated the r
acquired and fiabilities assumed were as follows:

The Campany acquired controlling interests in XinTec Inc, {XinTec) and Mutual-Pak Technology Co., Ltd. {Mutual-Pak} in March 2007 and Juty 2007,
fincome and expensesflosses of the twe companies from the respective acquisition dates. Fair values of assets

7 Cutrent assets ] 3,101,718
Property, plant and equipment 2,339,546
Othey assets 436,692
Current hiabiliti (1,937.407)
Long-term i 701,855
Net amount 3 3,238,654
Purchase price for XinTec and Mutual-Pak 3 1,413,585
Less: Cash balance of XinTec and Mutual-Pak at acquisition (1,009,140
Net cash paid for acquisition of XinTec and Mutual-Pak 3 404 445
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financal statements. [Canduded)

Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and
Subsidiaries

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Specified Otherwise)

1. GENERAL

Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited {TSMC), a Republic of China {R.0.C.)
corporation, was incorporated as a venture among the Government of the R.0.C., acting through the
Development Fund of the Executive Yuan; Philips Electronics N.V. and certain of its affiliates (Philips);
and certain other private investors. On September 5, 1994, its shares were listed on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange (TSE). On October 8, 1397, TSMC listed some of its shares of stock on the New York Stock
Exchange (NYSE) in the form of American Depositary Shares (ADSs).

TSMC is engaged mainly in the manufacturing, selling, packaging, testing and computer-aided
designing of integrated circuits and other semiconductor devices and the manufacturing of masks.

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, TSMC and its subsidiaries had 25,258 and 22,969 employees,
respectively.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements are presented in conformity with the Guidelines Governing the
Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers, Business Accounting Law, Guidelines Governing
Business Accounting, and accounting principles generally accepted in the R.O.C.

For the convenience of readers, the accompanying consolidated financial statements have been
translated into English from the original Chinese version prepared and used in the R.O.C. If there is
any conflict between the English version and the original Chinese version or any difference in the
interpretation of the two versions, the Chinese-language consolidated financial statements shall
prevail.

Significant accounting policies are summarized as follows:

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of all directly and indirectly
majority owned subsidiaries of TSMC, and the accounts of investees in which TSMC's ownership
percentage is less than 50% but over which TSMC has a controlling interest. All significant
intercompany balances and transactions are eliminated upon consolidation.
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The following diagram presents information regarding the relationship and ownership percentages
between TSMC and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007:

TSMC
100% __!8# _ 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 36% 36% _mm# _amo\o _mm.m{e _w§ 43% 100%
TSMC TSMC- 64% Emerging
TSMC-NA TSMC-Japan | | TSMC-Korea | | TSMC-Eurgpe Interniational TSMC Global Shanghai Chi Cherng ™ Hsin Ruey VTAF Il VTAF Il Alliance GUC XinTec TSMC Partners
_mp;s 9.71% _ﬁ_s _
100% 100% 47% 97% 51% _ 100% _ 100% 100%
TSMC TSMC .
Technology | | Development ISDF ISDF II Mutual-Pak [ | VTA Holdings GUC-NA GUC-Japan TSMC Canada
99.9%6%
WaferTech

TSMC-NA is engaged in selling and marketing of integrated circuits and semicanductor devices.
TSMC-lapan, TSMC-Korea and TSMC-Eurape are engaged mainly in marketing activities, TSMC
International is engaged in invesiment in companies involved in the design, manufacture, and other
related business in the semiconductor industry. TSMC Global, TSMC Partners, TSMC Development, Chi
Cherng and Hsin Ruey are engaged in investing activities, TSMC-Shanghai is engaged in the
manufacturing and selling of integrated circuits pursuant to the orders from and product design
specifications provided by customers. Emerging Alliance, VIAF II, VTAF ill, VTA Holdings, ISDF, and
ISDF 11 are engaged in investing in new start-up technology companies. TSMC Canada and TSMC
Technology are engaged mainly in engineering support activities, WaferTech is engaged in the
manufacturing, selling, testing and computer-aided designing of integrated circuits and other
semiconductor devices. GUC is engaged in researching, developing, manufacturing, testing and
marketing of integrated circuits. GUC-MA and GUC-Japan are engaged in providing products
consulting in North America and Japan, respectively. XinTec is engaged in the provision of wafer
packaging service, Mutual-Pak is engaged in the manufacturing and selling of electronic parts, and
researching, developing and testing of RFID.

TSMC together with its subsidiaries are hereinafter referred to collectively as the "Company”.

Minority interests in the aforementioned subsidiaries are presented as a separate component of
shareholders' equity.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with the aforementioned
guidelines, law and principles requires management to make reasonable assumptions and estimates
of matters that are inherently uncertain. The actual results may differ from management’s estimates.

Classification of Current and Noncurrent Assets and Lia

Ies

Current assets are assets held for trading purposes and assets expected to be converted to cash, sold
or consumed within one year from the balance sheet date. Current liabilities are obligations incurred
for trading purpeses and obligations expected to be settled within one year from the balance sheet
date. Assets and liabilities that are not classified as current are noncurrent assets and liabilities,
respectively.
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Sales prices are determined using fair value taking into account related sales discounts agreed to by
the Company and its customers. Sales agreements typically provide that payment is due 30 days from
invoice date for a majority of the customers and 30 to 45 days after the end of the month in which
sales occur for some customers. Since the receivables from sales are callectible within one year and
such transactions are frequent, fair value of the receivables is equivalent to the nominal amount of
the cash to be received.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market vatue. Inventories are recorded at standard cost
and adjusted to the approximate weighted-average cost at the balance sheet date. Market value
represents replacement cost for raw materials, supplies and spare parts and net realizable value for
work in process and finished goods. The Company assesses the impact of changing technology on its
inventories on hand and writes off inventories that are considered cbsolete. Year-end inventories are
evaluated for estimated excess guantities and obsolescence based on a demand forecast within a
specific time horizon, which is generally 180 days or less. Estimated losses on scrap and slow-moving
items are recognized and included in the allowance for losses.

Investments Accounted for Using Equity Method

Investmentis in companies wherein the Company exercises significant influence over the operating
and financial policy decisions are accounted far using the equity method. The Company's share of the
net income or net loss of an investee is recognized in the "equity in earnings/losses of equity method
investees, net” account. Prior to January 1, 2006, the difference, if any, between the cost of
investment and the Company's proportionate share of the investee's equity was amortized by the
straight-line method over five years, with the amortization recorded in the "equity in earnings/losses
of equity method investees, net* account. Effective January 1, 2006, pursuant to the revised
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 5, *Long-term Invesiments Accounted for Using the
Equity Method” {SFAS No. 5), the cost of an investment shall he analyzed and the cost of investment
in excess of the fair value of identifiable net assets acquired, representing goodwill, shall not be
amortized and instead shall be tested for impairment annually. If the fair value of identifiable net
assets acquired exceeds the cost of investment, the excess shall be proportionately allocated as
reductions to fair values of non-current assets {(except for financial assets other than investments
accounted for using the equity method and deferred income tax assets). When an indication of
impairment is identified, the carrying amount of the investment is reduced, with the related
impairment loss recognized in earnings.

When the Company subscribes for additional investee's shares at a percentage different from its
existing ownership percentage, the resulting carrying amount of the investment in the investee differs
from the amouni of the Company’s share of the investee’s equity. The Company records such a
difference as an adjustment to long-term investments with the corresponding amount charged or
credited to capital surplus.

Gains or losses on sales fram the Company to equity method investees are deferred in proportion to
the Company's ownership percentages in the investees until such gains or losses are realized through
transactions with third parties. The entire amount of the gains or losses on sales to investees over
which the Company has a controlling interest is deferred until such gains or losses are realized
through subsequent sales of the related products to third parties. Gains or losses on sales from equity
method investees to the Company are deferred in propertion to the Company's ownership
percentages in the investees until they are realized through transactions with third parties. Gains or
losses on sales between equity method investees are deferred in proportion to the multiplication of
the Company's weighted-average ownership percentages in the investees. Such gains or losses are
recorded until they are realized through transactions with third parties.

If an investee's functional currency is a foreign currency, differences will result from the translation of
the investee's financial statements into the reporting currency of the Company. Such differences are
charged or credited to cumulative translation adjustments, a separate component of shareholders'
equity.

Financial Assets Carried at Cost

ant influence and that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, such as

Investments for which the Company does not exercise sig

non-publicly traded stocks and mutual funds, are carried at their ariginal cost. The costs of non-
publicly traded stocks and mutual funds are determined using the weighted-average method. If there
is objective evidence which indicates that a financial asset is impaired, a loss is recognized. A
subsequent reversal of such impairment loss is not allowed.

The accounting treatment for cash dividends and stock dividends arising from financial assets carried
at cost is the same as that for cash and stock dividends arising from available-for-sale financial assets.

Property, Plant and Equipment, Assets Leased to Others and Idle Assets

Property, plant and equipment and assets leased to others are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation. Properties covered by agreements qualifying as capital leases are carried at the lower of
the leased equipment's market value or the present value of the minimum lease payments at the
inception date of the lease, with the corresponding amount recorded as obligations under capital
leases. When an indication of impairment is identified, any excess of the carrying amount of an asset
over its recoverable amaunt is recognized as a loss. If the recoverable amount increases in a
subsequent period, the amount previously recognized as impairment would be reversed and
recognized as a gain. However, the adjusted amount may not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation, as if no impairment loss had been recognized. Significant
additions, renewals and betterments incurred during the construction period are capitalized.
Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred.
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Treasury Stock

Treasury stock is stated at cost and shown as a deduction in shareholders' equity. When TSMC retires
treasury stock, the treasury stock account is reduced and the common stock as well as the capital
surplus - additiona! paid-in capital are reversed on a pro rata basis. When the book value of the
treasury stock exceeds the sum of the par value and additional paid-in capitat, the difference is
charged to capital surplus - treasury stock transactions and to retained earnings for any remaining
amount. TSMC's stock held by its subsidiaries is treated as treasury stock and reclassified from
investments accounted for using equity method to treasury stock. The gains resulted from disposal of
the treasury stock held by subsidiaries and cash dividends received by subsidiaries from TSMC are
recorded under capital surplus - treasury stock transactions.

Fareign-currency Transactions

Foreign-currency transactions are recorded in New Taiwan dcllars at the rates of exchange in effect
when the transactions occur. Exchange gains or losses derived from foreign-currency transactions or
monetary assets and hiabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in earnings.

At the balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
revalued at prevailing exchange rates with the resulting gains or losses recognized in earnings.

Translation of Foreign-currency Financial Statements

The financial statements of foreign subsidiaries are translated into New Taiwan dollars at the
following exchange rates; Assets and liabilities - spot rates at year-end; shareholders' equity -
histarical rates; income and expenses - average rates during the year. The resulting translation
adjustments are recorded as a separate companent of shareholders' equity.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In March 2007, the Accounting Research and Development Foundation of the R.O.C. issued an
interpretation that requires companies to record the benus paid to directors, supervisors and
employees as an expense rather than an appropriation of earnings. This interpretation should be
applied to financial statements for fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2008,

The bnnmc:::o Research and Development Foundation of the R.O.C. also issued Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 39, "Accounting for Share-based Payment" (SFAS No. 39) in
August 2007, which requires companies to record share-based payment transactions in the financial
statements at fair value. SFAS No. 39 should be applied to financial statements for fiscal years
beginning on or after January 1, 2008.

The Accounting Research and Development Foundation of the R.Q.C. revised Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 10, "Accounting for Inventories* (SFAS No. 10} in November 2007, which
requires inventories to be stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value item by item. Inventaries
are recorded by the specific identification method, first-in, first-out method of weighted average
raethod. The last-in, first-out method is no tonger permitted. The revised SFAS No. 10 should be
applied to financial statements for the fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2009, Early
adoption is permitted.

3. ACCOUNTING CHANGES

On January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the newly released Statements of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 34, "Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement® {SFAS No. 34) and No. 36,
"Financial Instruments; Disclosure and Presentation”.

The Company had categorized its financial assets and liabilities upon initial adoption of the newly
released SFASs. The adjusiments made to the carrying amounts of the financial instruments
categorized as financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss were included in the
cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles; the adjustments made to the carrying amounts
of those categorized as available-for-sale financial assets were recognized as adjustments to
shareholders' equity.

The effect of adopting the newly released SFASs is summarized as follows:

Recognized as Cumulative Effect Recognized as a Separate

of Changes in Accounting Component of Shareholders’

Principles (Net of Tax) Equity

Financial 2ssets o Habilities at fair value through profit or loss $ 1,606,749 $ .
Available-for-sale financial assets - 306,531
$ 1,606,749 $ 306,531

The adoption of the newly released SFASs resulted in a decrease in net income before cumulative
effect of changes in accounting principles of NT$1,083,574 thousand, an increase in net income of
NT$523,175 thousand, and an increase in basic earnings per share (after income tax) of NT$0.02, for
the year ended December 31, 20086,

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the newly revised SFAS No. 5 and SFAS No. 25,
which prescribe that investment premiums, representing goodwill, be assessed for impairment at least
on an annual basis instead of being amortized. Such a change in accounting principle did not have a
material effect on the Company's consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended
Oecember 31, 2006.
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Structured time deposits categorized as available-for-sale financial assets consisted of the following:

Prncipal Amount Carrying Amount Interest Rate | Maturty Date
December 31, 2007
Step-up callable deposits
Damesti depasits 500,000 S 499,410 1.76% | March 2008
December 31, 2006
Stepup callable depasits
Domestic deposits 500,000 $ 499,242 1.76% | March 2008

The interest rate of the step-up callable deposits was pre-determined by the Company and the banks.

7. HELD-TO-MATURITY FINANCIAL ASSETS

December 11
2007 2006
Corparate bonds ] 10,900,247 H 13,742 541
Government bonds 7.824,425 12,070,657
Structured time deposits 1,500,000 41,671,120
20,224672 37,434 318
Current portion 11,526,946) (8,510,823)
$__ sgorms s asamans

The amount of interest earned from the callable range accrual deposits is based on a pre-defined
range as determined by the 3-month or 6-month LIBOR plus an agreed upon rate ranging between
2.10% and 3.45%. Based on the terms of the contracts, if the 3-month or 6-month LIBOR moves
outside of the pre-defined range, the interest paid to the Company is at a fixed rate between zero and

1.5%. Under the terms of the contracts, the bank has the right to cancel the contracts prior to the

maturity date.

As of December 31, 2007, no structured time deposit resided in banks located in foreign countries. As
of December 31, 2006, the principat of the deposits that resided in banks located in Hong Kong and
Singapore amounted to US$80,000 thousand and US$20,000 thousand, respectively.

8. ALLOWANCES FOR DOUBTFUL RECEIVAELES, SALES RETURNS AND OTHERS

Movements of the allowance for doubtful receivables were as follows:

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, structured time deposits categorized as held-to-maturity
financial assets cansisted of the following:

Range of Interest

frincipal Amount Interest Receivable Rates Maturity Date

December 31, 2007
Step-up callable deposits

Domestic deposits 1,500,000 | § 5,585 1.77% - 1.83% | April 2008 10 October 2008
December 31, 2006
Step-up callable deposits

Domestic deposits 4500,000 | % 13,928 1.40% - 1.83% | June 2007 to October 2008
Callable range acerual deposits

Domestic deposits 3,911,520 4,308 (See below) | September 200 to December 2009

Foreign deposits 3,259,600 4,598 (See below} | October 2009 to January 2019

11671120 | § PERELY

Years Ended December 31
2007 2006
Balance, beginning of year 749,888 $ 980,594
Effect of inclusion of newly consclidated subsidiaries 45 -
Provision 2,964 54,713
Write-off {51,080) (285,419}
Balance, end of year 701,807 $ 749,888
Movements of the allowance for sales returns and others were as follows:
Years Ended December 33
2007 2006
Batance, beginning of year 2,870,802 ) 4,317,413
Effect af inclusion of newly consoldated subsidiaries 12,956 -
Provision 5,773,383 5,382,146
write-gff (4,568,106) (5,828,757)
Balance, end of year 4,089,035 $ 2,870,802
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Year Ended December 31, 2007

Balance, Beginning of Year mﬁmﬁmﬂmﬂﬁ Additions Sale or Disposal Reclassfication | 1 ectt m,%_w“““ Balance, Ending of Year
Cost

Land and land improvements ) 8454 | 3 101,518 - -8 -8 (39635 | § 942,197
Buildings 112,595,124 711,053 5,522,828 (31,836) {11,518) 494,376 118,640,027
Machinery and equipment 579,825,289 2,430,982 63,828,487 {504,132) 241,750 597,051 646,418,427
Office equipment 10,645,725 547,188 1,064,259 {350,643) {78,898) n 11,829,640
Leased asset 612,941 . - . - 39,355 652,296
Total 704,524.723 ] 3,150,741 70,415,574 {886,579 § 151,334 § 1,127,794 778,483,587

Accumulated deprexiation
Land and land improvements 2343717 | § . 29,793 -1 -1 (1,472) 262,703
Buildings 54,288,225 11m 8,901,910 {30,557) 2,709 76,924 63,239,922
Machinery and equipment 400,579,587 584,690 67,018,215 {255,143) {156,839) (105,438 467,665,072
Office equipment 7,838,303 75,238 1,232,781 (350,147) 12.362) 939 8,796,752
Leased asset 96,592 - 31,429 - - 7097 135118
Total 463,038 084 ] 662,039 77,214,133 (636,247) 5 {156.492) ] (23,950) 540,099,567
Advance payments and constrection in progress 1260755 | § 480,580 8.474.380 - 14 288805 | § 16,851 21,868,167
Net 1 254,094,190 3 260,252,187

Year Ended December 31, 2006
Balance, Beginning of Year Additions Sale or Disposal Redassification Effect of mxn_sMﬂMHH Balance, Ending of Year
Cost

Land and land improvements H 851,225 . -1 -l s 6581 | $ 844,644
Buildings 105,832,028 1,595.171 {964,370 2,393 129,902 112,595,124
Machinery and eguipment 510,922,064 14,313,257 {4,876,809) {235,999) (297,224 579,825,289
Office equipment 9,670,611 1,236,205 (204,200) {40,550) (1534%) 10,646,725
Leased asset 597,669 - - - 15,272 612,941
Total 627,873,597 83144633 [6,045379) | § {274.156) | § (173,972 704524723

Accumulated depreciation
Land and land improvements 206,408 29,499 - § - § (1,530) 234377
46,560,127 8,465,728 (748,011 8 10,300 54,288,225
Machinery and eguipment 344 431,001 61,516,317 (4,748,334 {235,908) (383,489) 400,579,587
Office equipment 6,862,502 1,190,650 (203,404) 16,423) (4,022) 7,839,303
Leased asset 64,569 29,682 - - 2,341 96,592
Total 398,124,607 71231876 [5,699.749) | § {242.250) | § [376,400) 463,038,084
Advance payments and construction in progress 15,074,302 (2,468,323) -8 -3 2,572 12,607,551
Net ] 144,823,292 b 254,094,190
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Pursuant ta the loan agreements, financial ratios calculated based on annual audited financial
statements of TSMC-Shanghai as well as semi-annual and annual financial statements of XinTec must
comply with certain financial covenants. As of December 31, 2007, TSMC-Shanghai and XinTec were
in compiiance with all such financial covenants.

As of December 31, 2007, future principal repayments for the long-term bank loans were as follows:

Year cf Repayment Amount
2008 H 280,843
2009 302,090
2010 947,453
201 220,653
2012 and thereafter 252,000

] 2,003,009

16. OTHER LONG-TERM PAYABLES

December 31
2007 2006
Payables for acquisition of property, plant and equipment (Note 28() 3 7,908,516 ] 7431371
Payables for royalties 5,174,644 1,889,788
13,083,160 8,321,159
Current portion {chassified under accrued expenses and other current liabilities) {3.673,182) (617,892)
i 9,409,578 )3 8,703,267

The payables far royalties were primarily attributable to several license arrangements that TSMC
entered into for certain semiconductor-related patents.

17. PENSION PLANS

The Labor Pension Act (the Act) became effective on July 1, 2005. The employees of TSMC, GUC, and
XinTec who were subject to the Labor Standards Law pricr to July 1, 2005 were allowed to choose to
be subject to the pension mechanism under the Act with their seniority as of July 1, 2005 retained or
continue to be subject to the pension mechanism under the Labor Standards taw. Employees who
joined TSMC, GUC, XinTec and Mutual-Pak after July 1, 2005 can only be subject to the pension
mechanism under the Act.

The pension mechanism under the Act is deemed a defined contribution plan. Pursuant to the Act,
TSMC, GUC, XinTec and Mutual-Pak have made maonthly contributions equal 10 6% of each
employee’s monthly salary to employees' pension accounts starting from July 1, 2005. Furthermore,
TSMC-NA, TSMC-Shanghai, TSMC-Europe and TSMC Canada are required by local regulations to
make contributions at certain percentages of the monthly basic salary of their employees, Pursuant to
the aforementioned Act and tocal regulations, the Company recognized pension costs of
NT$725,78% thousand and NT$679,919 thousand for the years ended December 31, 2007 and
2006, respectively.

TSMC, GUC and XinTec have defined benefit plans under the Labor Standards Law that provide
benefits based on an employee's length of service and average monthly salary for the six-menth
period prior to retirement. TSMC, GUC and XinTec contribute an amount equal to 2% of salaries paid
each month to their respective pension funds (the Funds), which are administered ty the pension
fund monitoring committees (the Committees) and deposited in the name of the Committees in the
Bank of Taiwan (ariginally the Central Trust of China, which was merged into the Bank of Taiwan on
July 1, 2007).

Pension information on the defined benefit plans is summarized as follows:

a. Components of net pericdic pension cost for the year

As of December 31, 2007, future payments for other long-term payables were as follows: 2007 2006
Year of Payment Amount Service cost § 184,275 ' 178,460
2008 $ 3,673,182 _am..m_ cost 156,39 164,168
2009 582,027 Projected .E:S on plan assets {51,309) (49,399
2010 497,676 Amart.zation 35,853 12,096
2001 421,759 - .

2012 and thereatter 7908516 Net periedic pension cost 3 325.210 H 305,325
b 13,083,160

69




w1208’ § EBT'EIEYL s
T6e'989'0) vz a9 IURMOI|E UOENEA
9FEOIR'Y ETL'E96'E spieaunpiied sso) Buneiado 13y
Far0ss'e) {Z50°BVB T} sauaRyp Aesodusa)
6BETSTTL b 15F'588'6 3 RIPIID XEY JUIWNSMY|
13U "S13558 XB] SWOIUI PALIRIAP JUBLAUON
66E10'8 [ FEETLSS s
[EID(T) i85pLy) DIIBAO|E UONIERIEA,
012'78% AR 7A] sapusIain Areroduiay
008'048'L s 19£'7LE'S 3 531P33 e} Juawsau]
18l ‘SIS XE) SO paLI]Ip tuaLIM)
pYors 002 Y] 3 €001 3
1€ 12quR3Q 8002 1002
:BUIMO|[O) 34} JO PIISISUOD SIASSE XY SLIOIUI P33P 18N D 13k ay) 4o} spung Byl Wou suawiey 3
e — LLVEE? £2VE07
VE75] 3 TR 1 asuhea xey o] $ 5
9002 1007
{Ec£050°) G 3UBMOYE UOGER[EA
WYL {0 ] spiesujAne ssof Guiesado 1oy 1eak 243 0} Spung ayj O sUCIINqQUIUCSH "p
855°181°7) (r££°008) suasagp fiescdway
LSLrE'E 0sP'zz's SHPRIY XE] JUILNSIAL
519552 XPY 30U p3L3JAD U abuewd 13y %057 %00E - %057 s1955e Leld UD WNj2) JO B1E) papadx]
(es1'8ze) 6eLovd) siuaunsnipe xel 401 BYIO HOO'E - %007 %O0'E - %002 p—
1Zv'900°8 H 6£700°11 ] ajgeked AuaLina xey awioou| %OS'E - %ST'T %00E - %547 sanea Juasid BuLILLTep L1 Pasn Je) JUNOsK]
007 00T 9007 1007
1€ J3qUIZX3) P3PU3 SIea,
900¢ pue L0002 "€ lBquisliaq 1e mCOEQE:mmm |BHENYY "D
:Buimol|op a1 O palsisund ssuadxa Xej awodu| 'q
S¥9'90! H 9r1'0zL § 1J3U3G PAIS3A
170'900°8 [ FETN [ Ageded Auauny xey awou|
090'0P5'E s PI8'759°E H 1502 UOKURA PANIDY
BeeessTL) Errniln PRSI SHP31) XE1 RSB
801'041') §06'0LL'T sBuiwea pajeudosddeun uo g0 10 ¥ey euciippy 61061 T3] 550 13u pazwbimann
{790°78) . saydiound Hununeade ur sabueyd Jo 11843 BAnINLNY (0ze'8Ll) (EL8'60N) uonebygo uonssuen jau paziubosaiun
(PD1'£18'7) {op6'0s1) S3LBIRYP uaueulad pue Aresodua) B6V'L66'Y TELV08'E SNiELS papuny
E1¥'182°21) {£9¢'899'0) auI00u 1dwara-xe| (5658561 X E#] s1asse ueyd J0 anjea Jiey
‘Buwacyjoy ay) o Pay2 ay| 60'956'9 62L'EV0'S uor by 1ausg penaloly
$L7'98L'PE L LEV'BIR0E 1 s31e1 AOIMIEYS 1P X} WICOLI )0)a LI, UC PRseq asuatha XF] auoou| 08’6967 1SPrrt7 salJeles aIniny L0 PASEG 51/3U9 [BUORIPRY
vA7'986'E BLT'66S'E uoitebigo 1yauaq paienwny
002 Lo0z PPEEBBE ZEIBIPE uonefiqo 1yauaq p1saauoy
L€ 33qWa3AQ pIpu3 sseap 026701 H LR $ uortefyqo 1yaueq paIsan
usnebiigo Wjauag
1SMD||0} SB SBA 9jgeAed AJlUsLIND XB) AWo3UI 9002 0

pue saies AOINIEIS 18 XEY SLWIODUI 3103 SWOdUY, UO PIseq Jsuadxa el awodul JO UOHE|Ru0da v '8

Xv1 IWOONI 8L

900¢

pue £002Z ‘| £ 12qwala(] 1€ 1502 CD_mCm.Q panJ3ae pue mcm_n_ 3] 4O SNiels papuny JO UCHENIDUOIIY g



As of December 31, 2007, the net operating loss carryforwards were generated by WaferTech, g. The profits generated from the following projects of TSMC, GUC and XinTec are exempt from

TSMC Develapment and TSMC Technology and would expire on various dates through 2026. income tax for a four- or five-year period:
Tax-exemption Period
d. Integrated income tax information: P
Construction of Fab 12 - Module A 2004 to 2007
. Construction of Fab 14 - Module A 2006 to 2010
The balance of the imputation credit account (ICA) of TSMC as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 Construction of Fab 14 - Module B 2007 to 2011
was NT$3,012,848 thousand and NT$828,612 thousand, respectively. 2003 plant exparsion of GUC 2607 to 2011
2003 plant expansion of XinTec 2007 to 2011
The estimated creditable ratio for distribution of TSMC's earnings of 2007 and 2006 was 1.86%
and 5.23%, respectively. h. The tax authorities have examined income tax returns of TSMC through 2004.

The imputation credit allocated to the shareholders is based on its balance as of the date of 19, LABOR COST, DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION
dividend distribution. The estimated creditable ratic may change when the actual distribution of

imputation credit is made.
Year Ended December 31, 2007
e. All of TSMC's earnings generated prior to December 31, 1997 have been appropriated. Classitied as Cost of Classified a5 Totah
Sates | Operating Expenses
. . . . Labor cost
f. As of Umnmawmﬂ 31, 2007, investment tax credits of TSMC, GUC, XinTec and Mutual-Pak consisted Slary $ 1990153 | 3 7562966 | § 18,553,119
of the following: Labor and health insurance 685,922 416,131 1,102,053
Pension 646,999 404,128 1,053,127
LawfStatute ttem Total Creditatde | Reraining Creditable Exciry Year Meal 463,453 180,474 643,927
u Amount Amount | ¥ Welfare 249,133 266,412 515,545
Statute for Upgrading Incusties | Purchase of machinery and squip- | $ 6.8 | 8 - | 2007 Ochers 176,132 26747 202,939
ment 3.207,103 24,335 2008
5,044,032 14,328 2000 1 14,719,852 b 9,056,858 b 23.268,710
6,625.081 6625081 | 2m0 o .
3170393 3703,939 2011 omuqﬂ_md_w: $ 13,070,781 ] 100,533 b1 77,171,314
Amortization 3 1,849.917 ] 943,064 3 2,752 981
3 19,881,273 4 10,367,683
. . Year Ended December 31, 2006
Statute for Upgrading Industries Research and development expendi- | $ 1,295,681 $ - 2007
tures 2,500,538 6,600 2008 Classitied as Cost of .n_mmm:mma as total
1,545,606 1078326 | 2009 Sales | Operating Expenses
1,887,404 1887484 | 2010 Labor cost
1,749,252 . 1,749252 | 2011 Salary $ 1713405 | 8 6602437 | § 18,405,882
Labor and health insurance 714,170 404,345 1,119,015
9 9,078,481 3 .......N_.mmm Pension 627,731 365,398 997,129
Meal 460,980 173,185 634,165
Statute for Upgrading Industries Persannel training expenditures $ 16,379 3 - 2007 welfare 236,022 241,272 247,294
18.218 W) 208 Others 126032 217,045 443,007
45,353 46,353 2009
42.m a2 | 2010 s 13,973380 | § 8063182 | % 22,046,562
500 500 | 20m
Depreciation 3 £7.685 744 3 3,539.472 $ 71,225.216
3 121,721 3 89,144 Amortization 4 1,436,908 ] 1,035,482 $ 2,472,350
Siatute for Upgrading Industries Investments in important technolo- ) 79804 | § 79,804 2010
gy-based enterprises
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The shareholders' meeting held on May 7, 2007 also resolved to distribute stock dividends out of
capitat surplus in the amount of NT$774,891 thousand.

The amounts of the appropriations of earnings for 2006 and 2005 were consistent with the
resolutions of the meetings of the Board of Directors held on February 6, 2007 and February 14,
2006, respectively. If the above bonus to employees, directors and supervisors had been paid entirely
in cash and charged to earnings of 2006 and 2005, the basic earnings per share {after income tax)
for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 shown in the respective financial statements
would have decreased from NT$4.93 to NT$4.56 and NT$3.79 to NT$3.5C, respectively. The shares
distributed as a bonus to employees represented 1.77% and 1.39% of TSMCs total outstanding
common shares as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

As of January 10, 2008, the Board of Directors had not resolved the appropriation for earnings of
2007.

The information about the appropriations of bonus to employees, directors and supervisors is
available at the Market Observation Post System website.

Under the Integrated Income Tax System that became effective on January 1, 1998, R.O.C. resident
shareholders are allowed a tax credit for their proportionate share of the income tax paid by TSMC on
earnings generated since January 1, 1998.

21. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

TSMCs Employee Stock Option Plans, under the TSMC 2004 Plan, TSMC 2003 Plan, and TSMC 2002
Plan, were approved by the SFB on January 6, 2005, October 29, 2003 and June 25, 2002,
respectively. The maximum number of options authorized to be granted under the TSMC 2004 Plan,
TSMC 2003 Plan and TSMC 2002 Plan was 11,000 thousand, 120,000 thousand and 100,000
thousand, respectively, with each option eligible to subscribe for one common share when
exercisable. The options may be granted to qualified employees of TSMC or any of its domestic or
foreign subsidiaries, in which TSMCs shareholding with voting rights, directly or indirectly, is more
than fifty percent {50%). The options of all the plans are valid for ten years and exercisable at certain
percentages subsequent to the second anniversary of the grant date. Under the terms of the plans,
the options are granted at an exercise price equal 1o the closing price of TSMC's common shares
listed on the TSE on the grant date.

Options of the plans that had never been granted or had been granted but subsequently cancelled
had expired as of December 31, 2007.

Information about TSMC's outstanding options for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

was as follows:

Number of Options Weighted-average Exercise
{ln Thousands) Price (NT$)

Year ended December 31, 2007
Balance, beginning of year 52,814 H 73
QOptons granted 1,084 37149
Options exercised {10,388) 398
Options cancelled {1,045} 459
Balance, end of year 41,875 372

Year ended December 31, 2006
Balance, beginning of year 67,758 ) 394
Options granted 2,758 40.1
Options exercised {14,550} 40.1
Options cancelled {3,152) 437
Balance, end of year 52,814 395

The number of outstanding options and exercise prices have been adjusted to reflect the

appropriations of earnings in accordance with the plans. The options granted were the result of the

aforementioned adjustment.

As of December 31, 2007, information about TSMCs outstanding and exercisable options was as

follows:
Options Qutstanding Options Exercisable
b Weighted-average
Ra 3 Pri

e o xmBJz_.M Number of Options Remaining Weighted-average { Number of Options Weighted-average
{in Thousands} Contractual Life Exercise Price {NT$) {In Thousands) Exarcise Price {NT$)

[Years)
$25.9-9364 28,521 516 | % 331 28518 | % 331
$38.9.4513 13,348 .89 4.6 5838 46 4
41,875 374 35,366 356
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The number of outstanding options and exercise prices have been adjusted to reflect the distribution
of earnings by XinTec in accordance with the plans,

As of December 31, 2007, information about XinTec's outstanding and exercisahle options was as

22, TREASURY STOCK

{Shares in Thousands)

follows:
Options Qutstanding Options Exercisable
fa  Exercise Pri Weighted-avecage
mgea xm_n_«mﬁz“ﬁ Number of Options Remaining Weighted-average | Number of Options Weighted-average
{In Thousands) Contractual Life Exercise Price (NT$} {In Theusands) Exercise Price (NT$)
(Years)
$12.7 - 5200 9,642 8.75-9.96 3 15.4 - $ -

No compensation cost was recognized under the intrinsic value method for the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006. Had the Company used the fair value based method to evaluate the
options granted after January 1, 2004 using the Black-Scholes model, the assumptions and pro forma
results of the Company would have been as follows:

Begirning - Stock .

Shares Addition Divicends Ending Shares
Year ended December 31, 2007
Parent company stock held by subsidiaries 33926 . 170 34,096
Repurchase under share buyback plan - 800,000 - 800,000

33925 800,000 170 834,086
Year ended December 31, 2006
Parent company stock beld by subsidiaries 32,938 - 988 33,926

2007 2006
Assumptions:
TSMC Expecied dividend yield 1,00% - 3.44% 1.00% - 3.44%
Expecied volatility 43.77% - 46.15% 43.77% - 46.i5%
Risk free interest rate 3.01% - 3.85% 3.07% - 3.85%
Expecied life 5 years 5 years
GUC Expected dividend yield 0.00% - 0.60% -
Expected volatility 22.65% - 45.47% 22.65% - 41.74%
Risk free interest rate 2.12% - 2.56% 2.23%- 2.56%
Expected life 1-6years 3-6ymars
XinTag Expected dividend yield 0.80%
Expected volatility 31.79%- 47.42% .
Risk free interest rate 1.88% - 2.45% -
Expected life 3 yeors .
Net income attribuiable to sharehalders of the parent:
As reparted } 109177093 $ 127,009,731
Pro forma 109,089.015 126,887,247
Earnings per share (EPS} - after income tax (NTS):
Basic EPS as reported 3 414 ] 482
Pro farma basic EPS 414 438t
Diluted EPS as reported 414 481
Pre: forma diluted EPS 434 481

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the book value of the treasury stock was NT$49,385,032
thousand and NT$918,075 thousand, respectively; the market value was NT$51,713,947 thousand
and NT$2,290,026 thousand, respectively. The Company's common shares held by subsidiaries were
treated as treasury stock and the holders are entitled to the rights of shareholders, with the exception
of voting rights.

TSMC held a meeting of the Board of Directors and approved a share buyback plan to repurchase
TSMC's common shares up to 800,000 shares listed on the TSE during the period from November 14,
2007 to January 13, 2008 for the buyback price in the range from NT$43.2 to NT$34.2. As of
December 21, 2007, TSMC had repurchased 800,000 thousand common shares for a total cost of
NT$48,466,957 thousand. All the treasury stock repurchased will be retired in 2008.

23. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Years Ended December 31
2007 2006
Before After Before After
fncome Tax Income Tax Income Tax Income Tax
Basic EPS (NT$)
income before cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles
attributable to shareholders of the parent H 459 | ¢ 414 | $ s05 | % 476
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting prindiples attributable to
shareholders of the parent - - 0.06 9.06
Income attributable to sharcholders of the parent § 459 | § 444 | § 5.11 ] 482
Dituted EPS [NTS)
Income before cumidative effect of changes in accounting principles
attributable to shareholders of the parent 3 458 | § 414 | § 504 | 475
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles attributable to
shareholders of the parent - - 0.06 006
Income atiributable to shareholders of the paremt § 458 | § 414 | § 510 | § 4 8i
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e. Movements of the unreatized gain/loss an financial instruments for the years ended December 31, 3) Liquidity risk, The Company has sufficient operating capital to meet cash needs upon settlement
2007 and 2006 were as follows: of derivative financial instruments, bonds payable and bank loans. Therefore, the liquidity risk is

low.
Year Ended December 31, 2007

Equity in Valuation

ain an Avaitable-far- 4) Cash flow interest rate risk. The Campany mainly invests in fixed-interest-rate debt securities.

Valuation Gain on

Available-for-sale | Lo o) Assets Total Therefore, cash flows are not expected to fluctuate significantly due to changes in market
Financial Assets H
Held by Investees interest rates.
Balance, beginning of year 3 386,017 $ 175,598 3 561,615
Racognized directly in shareholders' equity 849,823 (122,439 717,384 25. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Removed from shareholders' equity and recognized in earnings (£08,002) - (608,002)
Balance, end of year $ 627838 | § 53,150 | § 680,997 Except as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements and other notes, the following is a

summary of significant related party transactions:

Year Ended December 31, 2006

Equity in Valuation a. Philips, one of the major shareholders of TSMC, which has become a non-related party since
Valuation Gain on . ’
‘ Gain on Available-for- March, 2007.
Available-for-sale . Total
Finandial sale Financial Assets
inancial Assets Held by Investees
b. Investees of TSMC ,
Balance, beginning of year 4 302376 | 4 -8 302,376
Recognized directly in shareholders' equity 4212 175,598 349,810 . .
Remgved from shareholders' equity and recognized in earnings (90,571} - {90,571) VIS (accounted for using equity method}
SSMC (accounted for using eguity method)
Balance, end of year $ 386,017 | § 175598 | % 551,615

<. VisEra Technology Company, Ltd. (VisEra), an indirect invesiee accounted for using equity method

f. Information about financial risk by TSMC

. . . . . . ) . Cthers: Rel i hi i i i i i

1) Market risk. The publicly-traded stocks categorized as financial assets at fair value through profit d. Others: Related parties n.u<m~ which .zgm Company exercises significant influence but with which the
. . R L . Company had no material transactions
or loss are exposed to market price fluciuations. The derivative financial instruments categorized

as financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are mainly used to hedge the 2007 2008
exchange rate fluctuations of foreign-currency assets and liabilities; therefore, the market risk of Amount % Amount %
" derivatives will be offset by the foreign exchange risk of these hedged iterns. Available-for-sale For the year
financial assets held by the Company are mainly fixed-interest-rate debt securities; therefore, the
fluctuations in market interest rates would result in changes in fair value of these debt Sales
securities VisEra $ 739,879 -8 99,367 -
: VIS 59,163 - 14,454 -
$SMC 2,928 - 6,514 -
_ 2) Credit risk. Credit risk represents the potential loss that would be incurred by the Company if Prulips - - 4,024,9% 1
] - - -
| the counter-parties or third-parties breached contracts. Financial instruments with positive fair Others - - | s
values at the balance sheet date are evaluated for credit risk. The counter-parties or third-parties $ £01.970 s 4187333 1
to the foregoing financial instruments are reputable financial institutions, business
organizations, and government agencies. Management believes that the Company's exposure to Purchases
M SSMC H 5.468.410 E 6.820,632 4
default by those parties is low. vis 4,208,207 2 3.919,565 3
VisEra 594 - - -
] 9,677,211 51 % 10,740,198 7

(Continued)
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28. SIGNIFICANT COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES e

Significant commitments and contingencies of the Company as of December 31, 2007, excluding
those disclosed in other notes, were as follows:

a. On June 20, 2004, TSMC and Philips (Philips parted with its semiconductor company which was

renamed as NXP B.V. in September 2006} amended the Technical Cooperation Agreement, which .

was originally signed on May 12, 1997, The amended Technical Cooperation Agreement is for five
years beginning from January 1, 2004. Upon expiration, this amended Technical Cooperation
Agreement will be terminated and will not be automatically renewed; however, the patent cross
license arrangement between TSMC and Philips {now NXP B.V.) will survive the expiration of the
amended Technical Cooperation Agreement. Under this amended Technical Cooperation
Agreement, TSMC will pay Philips {(now NXP B.V.} royalties based on a fixed amount mutually
agreed-on, rather than under a certain percentage of TSMC's annual net sales. TSMC and Philips
(naw NXP B.V.} agreed to cross license the patents owned by each party, TSMC also obtained
through Philips {(now NXP B.V.) a number of cross patent licenses.

b. Under a technical cooperation agreement with ITRI, the R.0.C. Government or its designee Q.

approved by TSMC can use up to 35% of TSMC's capacity if TSMC's outstanding commitments to
its customers are not prejudiced. The term of this agreement is for five years beginning from
January 1, 1887 and is automatically renewed for successive periods of five years unless otherwise
terminated by either party with one year prior notice. The agreement was automatically renewed
in 1992, 1997, 2002 and on January 1, 2007.

€. Under several foundry agreements, TSMC shall reserve a portion of its production capacity for h.

certain major customers that have guarantee deposits with TSMC. As of December 31, 2007,
TSMC had a total of US$68,391 thousand of guarantee depaosits,

d. Under a Shareholders Agreement entered into with Philips and EDB Investments Pte Ltd. on March
30, 1999, the parties formed a joint venture company, SSMC, which is an integrated circuit
foundry in Singapore. TSMC's equity interest in SSMC was 32%. Nevertheless, Philips parted with i
its semiconductor company which was renamed as NXP B.V. in September 2006, TSMC and NXP
B.V. purchased all the 5SMC shares owned by EDB Investments Pie Ltd. pro rata according to the
Shareholders Agreement on November 15, 2006. Afier the purchase, TSMC and NXP B.V. currently
own approximately 39% and 61% of the SSMC shares respectively. The Company and Philips {(now
NXP} committed to buy specific percentages of the production capacity of SSMC. TSMC and
Philips (now NXP B.V.} are required, in the aggregate, to purchase up to 70% of $5MCs capacity,
but TSMC alone is not required to purchase more than 28% of the capacity. If any party defaults
on the commitment and the capacity utilization of SSMC fall below a specific percentage of its IR
capacity, the defaulting party is required to compensate SSMC for all related unavoidable costs.

TSMC provides technical services to SSMC under a Technical Cooperation Agreement (the
Agreement) entered into on May 12, 1999, TSMC receives compensation for such services
computed at a specific percentage of net selling price of all products sold by SSMC. The
Agreement shall remain in force for ten years and may be automatically renewed for successive
periods of five years each unless pre-terminated by either party under certain conditions.

Under a Technology Transfer Agreement (TTA) with National Semiconductor Corporation (National}
entered into on June 27, 2000, TSMC shall receive payments for the licensing of certain
technology to National. The agreement was to remain in force for ten years and could be
automatically renewed for successive periods of two years thereafter unless either party gives

ns. tn January 2003, TSMC and National
entered into a Termination Agreement whereby the TTA was terminated. Under the Terminaticn

written notice for early termination under certain con

Agreement, TSMC will be relieved of any further obligation to transfer any additional technotogy.
In addition, TSMC granted National an option to request prior to January 2008 the transfer of
certain technologies under the same terms and conditions as the terminated TTA. National did not
make such request by the deadline, therefore the option has expired in January 2008.

In December 2003, TSMC entered into a Technology Development and License Agreement with
Freescale Semiconductor, Inc. to jointly develop 65-nm SOI (silicon on insulator} technology. TSMC
will also license related 90-nm SOI technology from Freescale Semiconductor, Inc. Any intellectual
properties arising out of the co-development project shall be jointly owned by the parties. In
accordance with the agreement, TSMC will pay royalties to Fresscale Semiconductor, Inc. and will
share a portion of the costs associated with the joint development project,

TSMC provides a technology transfer to VIS under a Manufacturing License and Technology
Transfer Agreement entered into on April 1, 2004. TSMC receives compensation for such
technology transfer in the form of royalty payments from VIS computed at specific percentages of
net selling price of certain products sold by VIS. VIS agreed to reserve its certain capacity to
manufacture for TSMC certain products at prices as agreed by the parties.

Effective January 1, 2006, The Company entered into the Joint Technology Cooperation Agreement
with Philips (now NXP B.V.), Freescale Semiconductar, Inc. and STMicroelectronics to jointly
develop 45-nm and beyond advanced CMOS Logic and e-DRAM technologies. The Company will
centribute process technologies and share a portion of the costs associated with this joint
development project. This agreement was to expire on December 31, 2008, but the Company has
ended its participation in the project. For the Company, this agreement will terminate as of January
26, 2008,

TSMC, TSMC-North America and WaferTech filed a series of lawsuits in late 2003 and 2004
against Semiconductor Manufacturing international Corporation, SMIC (Shanghai) and SMIC
Americas (aggregately referring to as *SMIC). The lawsuits alleged that SMIC infringed multiple
TSMC, TSMC-North America and WaferTech patents and misappropriated TSMC, TSMC-North
America and WaferTech's trade secrets. These suits were settled out of court on lanuary 30, 2005,
As part of the settlement, Semiconducter Manufacturing International Corperation shall pay
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30. SEGMENT FINANCIAL INFORMATION

a. Industry financial information

The Company is engaged mainly in the manufacturing, selling, packaging and testing of

integrated circuits. Therefore, the disclosure of industry financial information is not applicable to

the Company.

b. Gecgraphic infermation:

¢. Export sales

North America and Taiwan bn_m_._njﬁ m.:n Consolidated
Qthers Eimination

2007
Sales 10 other than consoldated entities 5 193,066,238 | $ 129,564,358 | % -1 s 322,630,596
Sales among consolidated entities 18,084,068 194,035,526 (212,119,594) -
Total sales 3 211,150,306 | § 323.599.884 | 5 {212,119504) | § 322,630,596
Gross profit § 3895144 | § 139,227,508 | 3 {Frzaqy | % 142,330,211
Operating expenses (30,628,304)
Non-cperating income and gains 11,933,803
Non-operating expenses and losses (2,013,684)
Income before income tax )] 121,642,026
Identifiable assets 3 145 483,411 5 439,675,938 ] {50,755, 448) 3 534,403,801
Long-term investments 36,461,32%
Total assets ] 570.865.226
2008
Sales to other than consolidated entities } 191,511,929 | § 125,895,242 | § -8 17,407,171
Sales among consolidated entities 18,998,614 161,345,140 (210,343 754}
Total sales § 210510543 | § J7z2a038 | % (10343754 | 8 317,407,171
Grass prafit $ 5,641,405 4 150,458,038 3 {329,353) $ 155,810,090
Operating expenses (28,545,396)
Norn-operating income and gains 9,705,592
Nor-operating expenses and losses (3.608,078)
Income before income tax 3 133.362.208
Identifiable assets $ 133,341,631 $ 441,339,388 § a1.06.010 | 533,590,008
Long-term investments 53895151
Total assets 5 587,485,159

Years Ended December 31
Area
2007 2006
Asia ) 40,609,413 4 62,434,071
Eurppe and others 34 518 668 23,764 877
s 7512808 s 86,198,943
The export sales information is based on the amounts billed to customers within the areas.
d. Major customers representing at least 10% of gross sales
Years Ended December 31
2007 2006

Amount % Amount %
Customer A 37,731,008 nls 33,950,443 "

ar
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December 31, 2007

Held Company Name Marketable Securities Type and Name Relationship with the Company | Financial Statement Account SharesUnils Canying Value Percentage of z“}af.__.”_:m “M“__.B Note
(in Thousands) | (US$ in Thousands) Qwnership . M”Mhﬂz a_“
A Stocks
TSMC Global Subsidiary Investment accounted for wsing 1 ) 44,204,183 100 | § 44,204,188
equity method
TSMC International Subsidiary " 987,968 27,688,565 00 27,688,565
VIS Investee accounted for using equity| 616,240 11,024,568 36 14,974,643
method
SSMC Investee accounted for using equity|  » 463 9.082,741 39 8,123,59%
method
TSMC Partrers Subsidiary " 300 4,734,180 100 4,734,180
TSMC-North Amefica Subsidiary » 11,000 2,255,647 100 2,255,647
XinTec Investee with a controlling financial | » 8,703 1,501,523 43 1,419,627
interest
GUC Investee with a controlling financial | - # 42,572 823,552 37 9,344,632
interest
TSMC-Japan Subsidiary » 5 104,929 100 104,929
TSMC-Europe Subsidiary ” - 88,702 100 88,702
TSMC-Korea Subsidiary » 80 16,436 100 16,436
United Industrial Gases Co., Ltd. - Finandial assets carried at cost 16,783 163,584 10 305,599
Shin-Etsi: Handotai Taiwan Co, Ltd, - » 10,500 105,000 7 321,254
WK. Technalogy Fund IV - " 4,000 40,000 2z 52,690
Hontung Venture Capital Co., Ltd. - » 2,633 26,329 10 20,536
Fund
Harizon Ventures Fund . Financial assets carried at cost - 312,949 12 312,949
Crimsgn Asia Capital - » - 70,298 1 70,298
Capnal
TSMC-Shanghai Subsidiary Investment accounted for using - 8,622,715 100 8,621,163
equity method
VIAFN Subsiduary n . 1,170,841 98 1,166,386
VTAF (N Subsidiary » - 906,536 98 896,703
Emerging Alliance Subsidiary [ - 467,873 9 461,873
Chi Cheng Subsidiary [ . 173,429 36 631,993 | Treasury stock of NT$458,564
thousand is deducted from the
carmying value
Hsin Rugy Subsidiary » - 171,658 36 631,169 Treasury stock of NT$459,511
thousand is deducted from the
carmying value
Chi Cherng Stacks
TSMC Parent Company Awailable-for-sale financial assets 17,032 1,085,584 - 1,055,584
WIS tnvestee accounted fos using equity | Investments accounted for sing 5.082 109.815 . i23,491
method equity method
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December 31, 2007

Market Value or Net

Held Company Name Marketable Securities Type and Name Relationship with the Company | Financial Statement Account SharesUnits Carrying Value Percentage of ‘ Note
fin Thousands} | (US$ in Thousands) Ownership | J_HMN_H n_,_“
Ageia Technologies, Inc. - Finarcial assets carried at cost 1030 | USk 2074 | uss 2,014
Aquantia Corporation - » 1,786 | USS 2,273 5 | uss 2,173
Audience, Ing, - » 2985 | USS 814 7| usy 814
Axiom Microdevices, inc. - " 5044 | USs 2,088 4 Uss 2,088
Becearn Communicazions - " 650 | UsS 1,600 1| uss 1,600
GemFire Corporation - [ 600 | uss 68 1] UsY 68
Impinj, Ing. - ” 475 | Uss 1,000 - | vss 1,000
Miradia, Inc. - # 3416 | USS 3106 3] Uss 3,106
Mobilygen - " 569 | US§ 149 1| usy 149
Next 10, In¢, - " 216 | UsS 182 - uss 82
Optichron, Inc. - L 1050 | uss 1,544 2| U 1,544
Pixdm, Inc. - ” 3,279 Uss 641 2 uss 641
Power Analog Microelectronics - n 3,039 | UsS 2,409 13 [ uss 2,409
QST Helding, LLC - » - | uss 145 3] uss 145
Teknorss, Inc, - » 1,599 uss 454 - uss 454
Tzero Technologies, Inc. . » 730 | uss 1,500 2 | Uss 1,500
Xceive . F] 714 [ Uss 1,000 T Uss 5,000
Gapital
VentureTech Alliance Holdings Subsidiary Investrents accounted for using - - 10 -
equity method
VTAF Il Common stoxk
Mutual-pak Technology Co, Ltd. Subsidiary Investments accounted for using 4590 | wss 1.672 51 | uss 1,672
equity method
Preferred stock
Advasense Sensors, Inc. - » 1,929 | Uss 1,834 6 | UsS 1,834
Auramicro, Inc. - " 2,500 | USS 750 17 | Uss 50
Exclara, Inc. (Formesy Synpitec, Inc.) - [ 14,513 | Uss 2,412 19 | USS 2,432
MI009, Inc, - [l 3,000 § LSS 3,000 5 | Uss 3,000
Neocanix, Inc. - [l 2458 | USS 4,000 B | Us$ 4,000
Powenvation, Ltd. - n 191 | uss 2,930 19 | uss 2,930
Quellan, Inc - ) 3106 | Uss 3500 6 | Usy 3,500
Silicon Technical Sendces, LLC - ' 1,055 | Uss 1,208 2 uss 1,208
Tilera, Inc. - L 1,698 | uss 2,360 3] U 2,360
y Sensors, inc. - " 6,424 Uss 2,545 3 uss 2,545
Convertible bond
GTBF, inc. - Financial assets carred at cost - | uss 1,500 NA | USS 1,500
Capital
VentureTech Alliance Holdings Subsidiary Investments accounted for using - - 30 -
equity methed
InveStar Comman stock
Monodithic Power Systems, Inc. - Financial assets at fair value 1,352 | uss 29024 7] uss 25,024
through peofit or loss
Memsic, Inc. - Auailable-for-sale financial assets 1,364 | USS 13812 9 1 uss 13812
Capella Microsystems (Taiwan), Ing - Financial assets carried at cost 530 [ USS 154 2 s 154
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December 31, 2007

Market Value or Net

Hedd Company Name Marketable Securities Type and Name Redationship with the Company Finandal Statement Account Shares/Units Carrying Value Percentage of ‘ Kote

(In Thousands) | (USS in Thousands) Ownership Asset Value (USS in

Thousands)

Fed Hm Ln Pe Pocl 782785 Auailable-for-sale financial assets - | uss 254 Na | uss 254
Fed Hm Ln Pc Pool 782837 - » - | uss 494 wa | uss 494
Fed Hm Ln P¢ Pool 782968 - » Uss 1,147 Na 1 ouss 1,147
Fed Hrm Ln Pe Pocl 783022 - » us 536 N/A | USS 536
Fed Hm Ln Pe Pocl 783026 - Ll - | uss 303 NA | USE 303
Fed Hm Ln Pg Pool 819205 - L - | uss 7,103 Wa | usy 7,103
Fed Hm L P Pool £89857 - » - uss 3.347 NA | USS 1,347
Fed Hm Ln Pc Pool G11295 - » ussy 1,126 NA | USS 1,126
Fed Hm Ln Pc Pool MB0BSS - » - uss 2,942 N/ usy 2,942
Federal Home Ln M1g Corp. - » - Usy 1,784 NA ) OUSS 1,784
Federal Home Ln Mtg Coep. - ” uss 1,832 Na | Uss 1,832
Federal Home Ln Mig Corp. - » uss 2,360 WA | USS 2,360
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp. - h us§ 2142 N | USS 2,742
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp. - [ ust 2378 N USS 2178
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp. - " uss 3,665 WA | uss 3,665
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp. - " uss 2136 WA | USss 2,136
Federal Home Ln Mt Carp. - P us$ 3275 WA | USS 3,275
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp. - I Uss 3,044 A | oUss 3,044
Federal Nationat Mort Assoc - ” uss 2,844 Na | uss 2844
Federal Matl Mig Assn - » usy 2059 NA | USsS 2059
Federal Natl btg Assn - » ush 2,194 WA | USS 2,104
Federal Natl Mtg Assn - » uss 20m WA | USH 2011
Federat Natl Mtg Assn - » usy 3567 WA [ LSS 3,567
Federal Natl Mtg Assn Gtd - » uss 117 Na | uss 117
Fnma Poal 255883 - " uss ERF WA | ush 3,126
Fima Pool 555549 - " uss 1,385 WA | USS 1,385
Fnma Pool 555715 - ” 1431 ] NiAC | USS 171
Fnma Pool 632399 - " uss 390 Ne | uss 390
Foma Pool 652401 - » uss 560 N USS 560
Fnma Pogl 667766 - " uss 1310 WA | US§ 1,310
Frima Pool 680932 - " Uss 110 WA usy 1,110
Fnma Pool 681393 - L4 usy 2,388 WA | USS 2,388
Fnma fool 685116 - L4 usy 599 NA | USS 599
Fnma Pool 631283 - " Uss 3.442 NAa | Uss 3,442
Fnma Pool 694287 - ] - | usy 20 N& | USE 0
Fnma Pool 703711 - " - 133 LY N/A us$ 457
Fnma Pool 725095 - # - Uss 1,023 NA L USS 1,023
Fma Pool 730033 - L] -] usy 169 A | usy 159
Fnma Poal 740934 - " - | ouss NfA | LSS 110
Fnma Pool 742232 - » - 1131 23 WA 13} 23
Fnma Pool 750798 - r - 133 2 N/A uss 2
Fnma Pool 773246 - » - usy 129 NA uss 1%
Fnma Pool 790828 - » - | uss 2,009 WA | uss 2,009
Fnma Pool 793932 - ” - Uss 438 NA Us$ 438
£nma Poal 794020 - ” - uss 608 NA uss 608
Fnma Pool 795548 - L - | uss 234 A | Uss FXt]
Foma Pool 799664 - » - Uss 94 NFA Uss 94
Fnma Pool 799868 ” - | uss 32 WA | Us$ 12
Fnma Pool 804764 » - uss 396 WA | UsY 39
fnma Pool 804852 _. - | wuss 330 A | uss 330
Fnma Pool 804962 " - | uss 388 Nia | UsS 388
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December 31, 2007

Held Company Name Marketable Securities Type and Name Relationship with the Company | Financial Statement Account SharesUnits Cannying Value Percentage of Market Value of Net |yt
{In Thousands) | (USS in Thousands) Qwnership | 5%t Value WSS in
Thousands}
Burlington Res Inc. - Available-for-sale financial assets - | uss 3,653 NiA | USE 3,653
Chase Manhattan Corp. New . ” - | uss 1,520 WA | USS 1,520
Chase Manhattan Corp. New - " -] uss 2,093 NA | US§ 2,009
Chase Manhattan Corp. New - " -] uss 3,483 NA [ st 3,481
Git Graup Hidgs Inc. - » - Uss 2,982 WA | uss 2,582
Cit Group Inc, New - ” - | uss 2,435 NA [ uss 2435
Consclidated Edison Inc. - » - uss 2.990 NfA uss 2,950
Credit Suisse First Boston Usa . » - | uss 2,229 NA | USS 2.9
Deere John Cap Corp. Min Bk Ent - » - | uss 2,215 NA | Use 2215
Depfa Acs Bank - » - | vss 20,402 WA [ uss 20,402
Fleet Bostan Corp. - L] - | ouss 2,620 NA [ Us§ 2620
Ge Global Ins Hidg Corp. - » - | uss 1,914 WA | Uss 1514
General Dynamics Corp. - Ll ] Uss 2,133 WA | USh 2,133
General Elec Cap Corp. Mtn - » - | uss 3978 NA | uSY 3978
General Elec Cap Corp. Mta - » - | uss 3.047 NA [ USS 3,047
General Elec Cap Corp. Mta - » - ouss 2,118 NA | uss 2,118
General Re Corp. - » -] Usy 3,263 NA | USS 3,263
Genworth Finl Inc. - » -] Uss 3278 NA [ UsS 3279
Haricock John Global Fdg li Min - » - | uss 8111 WA | USS 5111
Hancock John Global Fdg Mtn - » - Uss 943 WA | UsS 993
Hartford Finl Sves Group Inc. - " -] Uss 1,336 NA& | USs 1,336
Hbos Pic Medium Term Sr Nis - " - Uss 3,001 NA [ Uss 3,006
Heller Fiel Inc. - " -] oUsy 1,950 NA | USS 1,850
Hewdett Packard Co. - L] - usy 1,334 WA [ LSS 1,884
Househotd Fin Corp, - " - | ouss 2,850 NA [ UsS 2,950
Househaid Fin Corp. - » - Uss 3,046 WA uss 3,046
Ing Sec Life Instl Fdg - . - | ouss 1,582 WA [ LSS 2.582
International Business Machs - » -1 Uss 3,555 NA | UsS 3,555
Int) Lease Fin Corp. Min - » - | uss 2,985 WA [ uss 2,985
IP Morgan Chase - » R H 2.001 NA | Uss 2,001
Keycorp Mtn Book Eniry - n - | uss 3,053 A | Uss 3,053
Lehman Brothers Hidgs Inc. - " - | uss 1,643 WA | USS 1.643
Lehman Brothers Hidgs Inc. - " - uss 490 WA | USS 490
tehman Brothers Hidgs Inc. - » - | ss 939 N | USs 989
Lehman Brothers Hidgs Inc. - » - Uss 3,052 NA | Uss 3,052
tehman Biothers Hidgs Inc. - » - | uss 1,060 NA | USS 1,060
Massmutual Global Fdg It Mtn - » - | uss 3737 WA | USS 3737
Metropolitan Life Golbal Mtn - » - Uss 3,366 NA | USS 3366
Mgic lnvt Corp. - [l - | Uss 1,059 NA | USE 1,059
Mizuho Fin [Cayman) - ] - | ouss 2,148 NA [ UsE 2,148
Maonumentat Global Fdg li - ) - | Uss 1,494 NA [ USS 1,494
Monunmetat Global Fdg i - » - | uss 2,000 NA [ USY 2,000
Many Grougp Inc. - " - Uss 2137 NA | USS 2,137
Margan Stanley - " - USS 5,531 N/& | USS 5,531
Morgan Stanley - Ll - | uss 1,951 WA | UsS 1,951
. National Gty Corp. ' - » - uss 3,488 NA | USS 3,488
Natioawide Life Global Fdg § - » - | uss 360 NA | USS 163
Oracle Corp. /Qzark Hidg Inc. - » - | uss 2.019 A | UsS 2019
Pepsico Inc. Min Book Entry - » - | uss 3,607 WA | Uss 1607
Praxair Inc. - ” - uss 3in NA uss 3
Premark Intl In. - » - | uss 2,679 A | USS 2,679
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Decernber 31, 2007

Heid Company Name Marketable Securities Type and Name Retationship with the Company | Financial Statement Accaunt SharesUnits Carrying Value Rercentage of z_m;m_<<_%m or _M.E Note
In Thousands? | (US$ in Thousands) Ownership | 25" “”MM._ a_m.“
First Un Nat| Bk Caml Mtg Tr - Available-for-sale financial assets <) ousy 5172 N/& | USS 5172
First Un Natl Bk Coml Mtg Tr - » - | Uss 2,186 A LUss 2,186
Gs Mig Secs Corp. . » - § oUsy 1.709 A |uss 1,705
Horme Equity Morigage Trust - » < | Usy 1,659 Wa | uss 2,699
Home Equity Mtg Tr 2006 4 . » - [ ouss 970 WA | uss 970
Hyundai Auto Recefvables Tr . » -] UsY 1,519 WA | USS 1,515
P Morgan Mig Tr - u - | uss 838 NA | USH 838
JP Morgan Mig Tr . " .| Sy 910 N/t | USS 810
JP Morgan Mtg & - » - 1 Usy 863 NA | UsS 863
Lb Ubs Coml Mtg Tr . » -] uss 35884 WA | uss 3,834
Nomura Asset Accep Corp. - » - | Uss 1,542 NA | USS 1,542
Resadential Asset Mig Prods - " - uss 2,200 WA | UsS 2,200
Residential Fdg Mtg Secs f Inc. - » - | uss 1,594 WA | USS 1,554
Residential Fdg Mtg Secs | Inc. - " - | uss 3454 NA | USS 3,454
Sequoia Mtg Tr - " - | Uss 265 WA | USS 265
Sequoia Mig T . " -] ouss 340 na |ouss 340
Sequowa Mig Tr - L] - us$ 433 WA | UsS 433
Terwin Mtg Tr - " - uss 337 WA | uss 331
Tiaa Seasoned Coml Mig Tr - " -1 uss 24m6 WA | Uss 4,016
Usaa Auto Owner T - » - uss 4,093 NA | USS 4,998
Wamu Mtg - » - uss 3,242 WA uss$ 3,242
Wamy Mtg Pass Through Ctfs - 2 - uss 166 NA | USH 166
Washington Mut Mtg Secs Carp. - L] - ouss 2422 WA | USS 2422
Wells Fargo Finl Auto Qwner Tr - # - | Uss 44956 NA | USS 4,95
Wells Fargo Mtg Backed Secs - " - uss 3,816 WA | USS 3,816
walls Fargo Mtg Backed Secs - " - | uss 3,865 WA | uss 3,865
Wells Fargo Mig Backed Secs - » - 1 ust 3,931 NA | USS 38
Wells Fargo Mtg Bkd Secs - ” - uss 3,029 WA uss 3.02¢
Wells Fargo Mtg Bkd Secs - n - | Usy 1,763 NAA | USS 1,763
Whole Auto Ln Tr - » - | uss 1,828 NA& | USS 1,828
Government bonds
United States Treas Nis - Available-for-sale financiat assets - | uss 5070 WA L Uss 5,070
Unitad States Treas Nts - » - uss 5,613 NA | UsS 5,613
United States Treas Nts - ” - | uss 42,509 N/A | USS 42,509
United States Treas Nis - ” - Uss 5,160 N/A Uss 5,160
United States Treas Nis - » - Uss 3359 A | USS 3,359
United States Treas Nts - L - uss 7.158 A | uss 7,758
United States Treas Nis - . < | uss 15,924 NA | USS 25,924
Unitad States Treas Nis - " - | Uss 9,735 WA | USS 9,735
Wi Treasury Sec - » <[ Uss 6,500 A [ USS 6,500
Money market funds
Ssga Cash Mgmt Global Otfshere - Available-for-sale financial assets © o Uss 592,150 A | USE 592,180
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Beginning Balance Acquisition Dispesal {Note 2) Ending Balance
m_aaga Marketable Securities Financial Statement | nter-party narR ol resUnits | Amount(Uss | SRS | atotiuss | sharestnits | Amount(uss |CATYIDG Value | Gain tossion | gy | Amount (USS
ame Type and Name Account Relationship . {In Thousands) | . , {Us$in | Disposal (US$ in Thousands)
(In Thousands} | in Thousands) in Thousands} |{In Thousands) | in Thousands) . {In Thousands)
{Note 1} Thousands) | in Thousands) (Note 3)
Corporate bond
Taiwan Power Company Available-for-sale finan- | Chung Shing Bills Finance Corp. - - | § 1,045,799 =18 - - b8 150000 [ § 350000 | % - - | 3 899,200
cial assets
Taiwan Power Company Held-to-maturity finan- | » - - 4,080,391 - - - 1,460,000 460,000 - - 2,630,064
cial assets
Nan Ya Plastics Corporation r ” - - 2,773,810 - - - 470,000 970,000 - - 1,804,346
CPC Corperation, Taiwan ” » - - 1,451,378 - - - 250,000 250,000 - - 1,200,318
Formosa Plastic Corporation » » - - 516,663 - - - 136,000 136,000 - - 391,134
Sk
VIS Investee accounted for | - Investment 442,262 5,741,870 173979 4.927.865 - - - - 616,240 11,024,568
using equity method accounted
for using
equity
method
XinTec » - Investee with a - - 91,703 1,357,890 - - - - 91,703 1,501,521
controlling
financil
interest
Investee accounted for | - Subsidiary - 733,130 - 310,157 - - - - - 1,170,841
using equity methed
n - » - 228,005 - 720914 - - - - - 906,536
TSMC Global Agency bonds
Fed Hm Ln Pc Poal 191282 Available-for-sale finan- | - - - - - | USS 4378 - - . - - | US§ 4077
cial assets
Fed Km Ln Pc Poal 1g1411 n - - . - - | uss 4424 - - - - - | Us$ 3618
Fed Km Ln Pc Pool 191616 ] . . - - - | usy aa36 - | uss 4329 | USY 4280 | LSS 49 - -
Fed Hm Ln Pc Pool 191921 " - - - - - Usy 4404 - Uss 4276 usy 4277 Uss m - -
Fed Hm Ln Pc Pool 192162 " - - - - - us$ 5,757 - usy 5,749 usy 5723 uss Fi - -
Fed Hm Ln Pc Poel 192593 Ll - - - - - | sy 5E00 - | usy 5581 | Usy 5557 | U%S 30 - .
Fed Hm Ln Pc Pool 1j0410 » - - - - - | USS 6,024 - | USS 5650 | US$ 5644 | USS 6 - .
Fed Hm Ln Pc Pool 847628 » - . - usy 3,796 - - - uss 3,101 uss 3,091 us$ 10 - -
fed Hm Ln Pe Peol G12009 » . - - - - | USS 3935 - | usy 3603 | USY 3563 | USH 40 - .
Federal Home Ln Mtg » - - - - - uss 6513 - Ust 5,270 Uss 5247 Us$ 23 - -
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp » - - - | sy 3917 - . - | us$ 3257 | Us§ 3225 | usy 12 - -
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp » - - - | USs 4464 - - - | uss 3194 | USS 3175 | UsS 19 - -
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp » - - - | USY 8535 - . - | Ust G783 | USE 6743 | Ut 40 - -
Federal Home Ln Mig Corp » - - - Usy 3,743 - - - Uss 3511 usy 3,492 Us§ 19 - -
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp » - - - - - | uss 3868 - | Us§ 3,258 | US$ 3246 | USS 12 - -
{Cantinued)
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Beginning Balance Acquisition Disposal (Note 2) Ending Balance
Company Marketable Securities Financial Statement Counter-party z%:.a of . Sharestnits | Amount {US$ Shares/Units Amount (US$ | SharewUnits | Amount {US§ Camying <m=._m @: (Loss} on SharesUnits Arount {UsS
Name Type and Name Account Refationship . {In Thousands) | . . USSin | Disposal {USS in Thousands)
{In Thousands) Thousands) in Thousands} |(In Thousands) | in Thousands} A {In Thousards)
(Note 1) Thousands) | in Thousands} (Note 3}
Federal Natl Mtg Assn Available-forsale finan-| - - - | uss - - | USS 4997 - | usy 5027 | uss 4997 1 ouss 30 - | uss -
aial assets
Federal Nati Mtg Assn » - - - - - | uss 4994 - | uss 5024 | LSS 4994 ¥ USY 30 - -
Federal Natl Mtg Assn » - - - US$ 6,511 - - - | Us$ 6514 | LSS 6516 ] USS 2) . -
Federal Natl Mtg Assn » - - . - - | usy 4368 - | usy 4319 | Uss 4368 | USS  [49) - .
Federal Natl Mig Assn » - - . - - | uss 4500 - - - - - -
Corporate bonds
American Express Co Awailable-for-sale finan- | - - - | uss 3,452 - - - 1 USS 3466 | LSS 3431 | uSs 35 - -
<ial assets
American Honda Fin Corp Mtn » - - - us$ 3,062 - us$ 6,220 - us$ 6,297 usy 6,220 uss 7 - usy 3,307
Bank One Corp » - - - | uss 3365 - - - | Uss 3,422 | LSS 3335 | uSS 97 - -
Bear Stearns Cos Inc » - - - | Uss 3379 - - - | USS 3395 | USS 3340 | USH 55 - -
Bp CapMitsPLC » - - - - - US§ 4,496 - usy 4,575 Usy 4,495 uss$ 79 - -
Burlington Res Inc » - - - - - us§ 3648 . - - - - Us$ 3,653
Chase Manhattan Corp Mew L3 - - - | uss 5077 - - - | USS 3536 | USS 3565 [ uss {29 - | uss 1520
Chase Manhattan Corp New r - - - - -] USS 3480 . - . - - | Us§ 3483
Citigroup Fdg Inc » - B - - - | Us$ 4,587 - | usy 4591 Us$ 4,587 | uss 4 - -
Credit Suisse First Boston Usa L - - - - - | Uss 3178 - | uss 3105 | uss 3475 [ uss  (7D) . -
Deere John Cap Corp » - . - | uss 4828 . . - | US$ 4945 | USS 4899 | LSS 46 . .
Deere John Cap Corp » - - - - - us§ 5,900 - us$ 6,005 uss 5900 uss 105 - -
Depfa Acs Bank ” - - - - - | uss 19,985 - . - - - | usy 20,402
Ernerson Elec Co » - - - | usy 3s . . - | USS 3217 | USE 3222 | USY {5 . .
European Invt Bk " - - - us$ 3,970 - - - usy 3973 uss 3,930 uss 43 - -
European Invt Bk » - - - 1 uss 6057 . . - | uss 6317 | uss 5994 [ uss 323 . -
Federal Home Ln Bks " . - - Usy 7937 . . - | USS 7eed | USE 7937 | USS 27 . .
General Elec Cap Cotp Mtn 2 - . -] Uss 8759 . - -] USS 8793 | USS 8716 | USS 77 - -
General Elec Cap Corp Mtn » - - - - - | USs 4816 - | USs ABIE | USS 4816 - - -
General Elec Cap Corp Min » . - - | US§ 8282 - | Uss 2,993 - | uss 8414 | USS B268 | USS 146 - | usy 3047
Gerraarth Fint Ine 4 - - - - - | uss 3250 - - - . - | Uss 3279
Goldman Sachs Group Inc n - - - | US$ 4989 . . <] USE 5001 | USE 4941 | USS 70 . .
Goldman Sachs Group Inc " - - - US$ 3,456 - - - Uss 347 Uss 3453 uss 18 - -
Hartford Finl Sves Group Inc ” - - - uss 5037 - - - uss 5,023 Uss 5048 uss  (25) - -
Hbos Pic Medium Term St Nts » - - - | uss 3208 . - - | USS 3,215 | USS 3,182 | USS 33 - -
Household Fin Corp » - - - . - | Uss 3120 - - - - - | US§ 3046
Hsbc Fin Corp » - - - Usy 3,028 - - - uss 3028 uss 3,028 - - -
Hsbx Fin Corp " - - - - | uss 2468 S| ush 4469 | USS 4468 [ USY 1 - -
Hsh Fin Corp Mtn » - - - - - « | US§ 5114 | USE 5066 | USS 48 . .
Internatienal Business Machs ] - - - - - | uss 349 - - - - - Us§ 3,558
Intl Lease Fin Corp Mtn » - - - Uss 4,138 - - - Uss 4,181 uss 4,118 uss 43 - -
) P Morgan Chase + Co » - - - | UsS 3298 - - -1 USS 3288 | USS 3310 | Uss (22 . .
Key Bk Na Med Term Nts BX Entr ” - - - | uss 4401 - - - | uss 4435 | USs 4,393 | usy 42 - -
Lehman Brothers Hldgs Inc » - - - Uss 3,150 - - - Uss 3,182 uss 3,150 Uss 2 - -
Lehiman Brothers Hidgs Inc " - - - - - | uss 3,150 - - - . - | Uss 3052
Marshali + llsley Corp n - - - | Uss 8420 - - - USs 8487 | USs 8453 | USH 34 - -
Massmutual Global Fdg li Mtn ] - - - - - us$ 3,647 - - - - - Usy 3737
Mbna America Bank Na Y n - - - | USS 6403 - - - | uss Bd4%0 | USS 6437 | uss 53 . .
Merrill Lynch + Co Inc » - . - | uss 3453 - . = | USS 3484 | USE 3426 | USH 38 - -
Merrill Lynch + Co lng " - - - Us§ 4865 - - - Usy 4,880 uss 4,842 uss 32 B -
Metropolitan Life Global Mtn » - - - | usy 3388 - - S| sy 3452 | uSs 3361 [ wsk 91 - .
Metropolitan Ufe Golbal Mtn » - - - . - | Uss 3,325 . - - . « | US$ 3,366
h [Continved)
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Beginning Balance Acquisition Disposal (Note 2} Ending Balance
Moq_vmi Marketable Securities Financial Statenent Counter-party z..E.a of . Sharesnits | Amount (US§ Shares/Units Amount (USS |  SharestUnits | Amount USS Camrying <~_,_._m 9._... {Loss) on SharesAinits ._583 (uss
ame - Type and Name Account Relationship ! {in Thousands) | . ! ssin | Disposal (USS in Thousands)
{In Thousands) | in Thausands) in Thousands) |{In Thousands) | in Thousands} i {In Thousands)

[Note 1) Thousands) | in Thousands) {Note 3)

Government bonds
United States Treas Nt Available-for-sate finan-| - - - | uss - - | USS 42307 - | USS 42891 | uSH 42302 | uSY 58% < | uss -

dal assets
United States Treas Nt ] - - - - - | uss 5059 - | uss 5007 | us§ 5059 { USS (52} - -
United States Treas Nis r - - - -1 - | uss 60,837 - | USS 34754 | USS 3489 | uss (142} - | us§ 15924
United 5tates Treas Nts L] - - - - - | uss 5837 - | USS 7052 | USS 6837 [ uss 215 - -
United States Treas Nis » . - - - - | uss 8073 - | us$ 3,037 | U 3036 | USS 1 + | Uss 5,070
United States Treas Nts " - - - - - | Us$ 33800 - | USS 34440 | USS 33800 | USS} 64D - -
Urited Siates Treas Nts " - - - - - | USS 25041 - | USS 25606 | USS 25041 [ uSs 965 - -
United States Treas Nts " - - - - - | Us§ 11,676 - | Uss 6a2l Us§ 6092 | USS 29 « | Uss 5,613
United States Treas Nts n - - - | uss 5936 - - - | us$ 5936 | USS 5944 | USS [t:}] - -
United States Treas Nts » - - - - - | USS 12,876 - | USS 13318 | USS 12,876 | USS 442 - -
Uniited States Treas Nts " - . - - - | Uss 6,957 - | USY 6935 | USS 6957 [ USY (22 . -
Uniited States Treas N1s » - - - . + | uss 15313 - | Us$ 10313 | USS 10,056 | US§ 257 - | USs 5160
United States Treas Nts " - . - - - | uss 10,748 - | USY 10,768 | USS 10746 | USS 22 . -
United States Treas Nts ” - - - - < | Uss 5078 - | USS 517G | US§ 5078 | LSS 92 - -
United States Treas Nts » - - - | uss 12,350 - - - | usy 12,363 | USS 12,285 | s 68 - .
United States Treas Nts " - - - - - | Us$109.310 - | USY 67657 | USS 67440 [ uss  v7 - | uss 42,508
United States Treas Nis # - - - - - | UsY 46,901 - US$ 44003 | uSS 43503 | usy 400 - | uUsy 3,358
United States Treas Nis » - - - - - | uss 20,692 - | USE 21,133 | USS 20592 | LSS 446 . .
United States Treas Nis ” - - - - - | USY 34,573 < | US$ 34574 | USS 34573 | ust 1 - -
United States Treas Nts » - - - | US$ 60,929 - - - | US$ 60813 | USS 61,165 | USS  (352) - -
United States Treas Nis » - - - - - | ust 19,628 - | USS 19203 | USS 19,628 [ Uss 275 . -
United States Treas Nis » - - - - - USY 26,131 - | USS 26,50 Us$ 26,131 uss 370 - -
United States Treas Nts » - - - - - 1 US$ 146,634 - 1 US$138,925 | uUS$138,892 | LSS 1,033 - | Usy 7758
United States Treas Nis " - - - - - 1 US$ 16,788 -1 US§ 16766 | USS 16788 | USS (22 . .
United States Treas Nis " - - - - - | Us$am,7s8 - ) US$271,969 | USSZ71,75B | Uss  In - -
United States Treas Nts " - - - | US§ 4009 - - -] uSs A% | US$ 3996 | USY 23 - -
United States Treas Nts " - - - - - | USS 29,438 -] USS 20,089 | USS 19959 | Uss 130 - [ Uss 9735
United States Treas Nts » . - - | US$ 56,526 -1 UsSsI31185 -1 US$187,636 | USS187804 | USS  (168) . -
United States Treas Nts " . - . - - | US$ 8596 -1 USS B5SS2 | USS 8596 | USS (44 . .
Us Treas Nt » - - - - - | USs$ 14,102 - | USS 14203 1 USS 14,102 | LSS 101 - -
Us Treasury Nis " - - - | uss 4834 - . S| uss 4827 ¢ LSS 4827 | uwsy 100 - .
Us Treasury Nis n - - - - « | US$ 30867 « | US$ 31,573 | USS 30867 | USS 706 - -
Us Treasury Nts » - - - | uss sa67 - - -] US$ 5517 { US$ 5456 | USY 81 - -
Us Treasury Nts » - - - - - | US$ 10,362 -] USS 10,369 | USH 10362 | USS 7 - -
Wi Treasury Sec » - - - - - | US$ 59,585 - 1 US$ §3577 | USS 63,189 | USS 388 - | US$ 6500
Note 1: The sharesfunits and amourit of marketabie securities acquired do not include stock dividends from investess, (Concluded)

Note 2: The data for marketable securities disposed, exclude bends maturities.

Note 3: The ending balanca includes the ization of premium/di t on bonds | unrealized

gainy/losses on financial assets or eguity in earnings of equity method investees.
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TABLE 5

Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

RECE{VABLES FROM RELATED PARTIES AMOUNTING TO AT LEAST NT$100 MILLION OR 20% OF THE PAID-IN CAPITAL

DECEMBER 31, 2007

(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Turncver Days

Overdue

Amounts Received in

XinTec)

Company Name Related Party Nature of Relationships Ending Balance . Allowance for Bad Debts
(Note} Amounts | Action Taken Subsequent Period

The Company TSMC-North America Subsidiary $ 26,725,765 41 4 8,164,297 Accelerate demand on account receivable $ 4,521,960 3 N

TSMC-Shanghai Subsidiary 151,037 - - .

GUC Investee with a contralling financial interest 118,749 - 8,081 | Accelerate demand on account recefvable .

XinTec Viskra Same president 10120 69 1,075 | Accelerate demand om account recenable - .

Cmnivision Parent company of director {represented for 431,801 43 - - - -

Note: The calkulation of tumover days excludes other receivables lrom related parties.
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TABLE 7

Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

INFORMATION OF INVESTMENT IN MAINLAND CHINA
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007
{Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Otherwise Specified)

Accumutated Outflow of Investment Fows Accurnulated Qutflow of
. . Total Amount of Paid-in Capital Investment from Yaiwan as of Investment from Taiwan as of .
rd Products M t Investment ¢ f hi
Investee Company Main Businesses and Produ (RMB in Thousand] ethod of Investm January 1, 2007 | Outftow iow December 31, 2007 Percentage of Ownership
{USS in Thousand) [(U5% in Thausand) {US$ in Thousand)
TSMC {Shanghai} Company Limited Manufacturing and sales of integrated 3 12,180,367 | (Ncte 1) T 11180367 | ¢ -] s ' 12,180,367 100%
orcuits at the order of and pur- {RMB 3,070,623) {uss 37,000 {Us$ 371,000)
suant 1o product design specifica-
tigns provided by customers
Equity in the Earnings Carrying Value as of | Accumulated lnward Remittance of Accumulated Investment in Mainland China as of Investment Amounts Authorized by Upper Limit on Investment
{Losses) {Note 2} December 31, 2007 | Earnings as of December 31, 2007 December 31, 2007 (USS in Thousand} Investment Commission, MOEA {US$ in Thousand) (USS in Thousand)
1) {957,835) 3 8622715 H ' 12,180,367 $ 12.180,367 ] 12,180,367
{Uss 371,000 {uss 371,000} {uss 371,000

Nete 1: Direct investments US337 1,000 thousand in TSMC-Shanghai.

Note 2: Amount was recognized based on the reviewed financial statements.
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B. FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

Intercompany Transactions

No. Company Name Counter Party N Nature of Pe f i
Relationship (Note ) | Fiqancial Statements item Amount | Terms (Note 2) reéntage of Consolidated fotal
Gross Sales or Totaf Assets
i} SME TSMC:-NA 1 Sales b1 190,459,073 | - 60%
Receivables from related parties 1646195 | - 3%
Other receivables from related parties 59,547 - .
Payables to related parties 27455 | - -
TSMC-Shanghai 1 Sales 61,951 | - -
Purchases 4405843 | - 1%
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 179,498 | - -
Technical service income 98197 | - -
Proceeds from disposal of property. plant and equipment 401,561 - -
Other receivables fram related parties 123853 | - -
Payables 1o related parties a7 oy - -
Deferred credits 23861 | - -
TSMC-Japan 1 | Marketing expenses - commission 254758 | - -
Payables 1o related parties 20295 | - -
TSMC-Europe 1 Marketing expenses - commission 236434 | - -
Payables to related parties 2158 | - -
GUC 1| Sales 75570 | - -
General and administrative expenses - rental expense 14606 | - -
Research and development expenses 39421 | - -
Receivables from related parties 155,216 -
Payables 1o related parties 27 -
TSMC Technotogy 1 | Other receivables from refated parties 3,785 -
Payables to related parties 42,389 -
WaferTech 1] Sales 34517 -
Purchases 12,530,552 4%
Payables ta related parties 864,733 | - -
1 TSMC Internationat TSMC Development 3 | interestincome 8,02% | - -
TSMC Teehnotogy 3 | Peferred royalty income 643,679 | - -
2 TSMC Partners TSMC international 3 | Other recevables 10,003,652 | - 3%
Delerred revenue 8814830 | - 3%

3 TSMC Technology WaferTech 3 | Receivables from related parties 1366 | -
4 GUC TSMC-NA 3 [ Purchases 920,045 | - -
Manufzciuring overhead 330,129 -
Payables to related parties 301,507 | - -
GUC-NA 3 | Operating expenses 41,984 -
Note 1: Na. 1 represents the transactions from parent company to subsidiary. (Concluded)
Na. 3 represents the transactions between subsidiaries.
Note 2: The terms of intercompany sales are not significantly different from those to third parties. For other i pany prices are ¢ ined in accordance with mutual agreements.
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